
 

 

AGENDA  

MIDDLESEX-LONDON BOARD OF HEALTH  

Finance and Facilities Committee 

 

Middlesex-London Health Unit – Room 3A 

50 King Street, London 

Wednesday, February 12, 2014     9:30 a.m. 

 

 

1. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
3.1. Public Minutes – January 29, 2014 

3.2. Confidential Minutes January 29, 2014 
 

4. BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS  
 

5.1. 2014 Budget Process Planning and Budget Templates for Family Health Services (FHS), 

Human Resources & Labour Resources (HRCS) and General Expenses and Revenues (GER) 

(05-14FFC)  

5.2. 2014 Budget Overview (06-14FFC) 

5.3. 2013 4
th
 Quarter Variance Report (07-14FFC) 

5.4. 2013 Public Sector Salary Disclosure (08-14FFC) 

5.5. 2013 Board of Health Remuneration (09-14FFC) 

5.6. Locally Driven Collaboration Project Funding Agreement – Public Health Ontario (10-14FFC) 

 

6. CONFIDENTIAL - The Finance and Facilities Committee will go in camera to discuss the 

following: 

 

6.1. A proposed or pending acquisition of land by the Middlesex-London Board of Health 

6.2. Litigation or potential litigation, affecting the Middlesex-London Health Unit 

 

7. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 Next meeting Thursday, March 6, 2014 at 9:00 a.m. 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

Please note: A sandwich lunch will be provided 

 



PUBLIC MINUTES 

Finance and Facilities Committee 

50 King Street, Room 3A 

MIDDLESEX-LONDON BOARD OF HEALTH 

2014 January 29      9:00 a.m.                 

 
 

 

COMMITTEE 

MEMBERS PRESENT:     Mr. David Bolton 

        Ms. Trish Fulton (Chair) 

  Mr. Marcel Meyer  

  Mr. Stephen Orser 

  Mr. Ian Peer     

              

OTHERS PRESENT:   Ms. Laura DiCesare, Director, Human Resources and Corporate Strategy 

   Dr. Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health & CEO (Secretary-

Treasurer for Board of Health) 

   Mr. John Millson, Director, Finance and Operations 

   Ms. Sherri Sanders, Executive Assistant to the Board of Health (Recorder) 

Dr. Bryna Warshawsky, Associate Medical Officer of Health and Director, Oral 

Health, Communicable Disease and Sexual Health Services 
 

MEDIA OUTLETS:  none 

    

             At 9:00 a.m., Ms. Trish Fulton, Committee Chair, welcomed everyone to the Finance and Facilities 

Committee (FFC) meeting.  

 

1. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICT(S) OF INTEREST 
 

Chair Fulton inquired if there were any disclosures of conflict of interest to be declared. None were 

declared.  

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

It was moved by Mr. Peer, seconded by Mr. Bolton that the Agenda for the January 29, 2014 

Finance and Facilities Committee be approved. 

Carried 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES January 9, 2014 

 

It was moved Mr. Bolton, seconded by Mr. Meyer that the Public Minutes from the January 9, 2014 

Finance and Facilities Meeting be approved. 

Carried  

 

It was moved Mr. Bolton, seconded by Mr. Orser that the Confidential Minutes from the January 9, 

2014 Finance and Facilities Meeting be approved. 

Carried  

 

4. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 

Dr. Mackie, Medical Officer of Health, provided a verbal update on the Generator project for 50 King 

Street. The Generator Ad Hoc Committee met prior to the FFC meeting on January 29, 2014. The ad hoc 

committee recommends, after talking to electrician Mr. Dick Foster, that the generator should provide enough 

power to run the two rooms with fridges for vaccines and the two server rooms (telephones and computers).  The 

committee also recommends to the FFC that the proposed generator should have a three-phase alternator and be 

fueled by natural gas. Staff will consult with the Health Unit’s electrical contractor as to requirements and draft a 

Request for Proposal for the FFC to review.  

 

https://www.healthunit.com/january-29-2014-agenda
https://www.healthunit.com/january-09-2014-minutes


Public Minutes      - 2 - 2014 January 29 

Finance and Facilities Committee                                             

Middlesex-London Board of Health 
 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS 
 

5.1. Healthy Communities Partnership Grant ($49,000) (Report 03-14FFC) 

 

Mr. Millson, Director, Finance and Operations, explained that Appendix B to Report 03-14FFC is 

Amending Agreement No. 7 to the Public Health Accountability Agreement which allows the Ministry of Health 

and Long-Term Care to flow an additional $49,000 to the Healthy Communities Partnership Middlesex-London, 

and it extends the time period in which the total funding can be utilized to March 31, 2014.  

 
  It was moved by Mr. Orser, seconded by Mr. Bolton that the Finance & Facilities Committee review and 

make recommendation to the Board of Health to endorse the Board Chair to sign the Amending Agreement No. 7 

to the Public Health Accountability Agreement as it relates to the additional 100% funding for the Healthy 

Communities Fund – Partnership Stream Program as appended to Report No. 03-14FFC. 

Carried 
 

5.2. 2014 Budget Process (Report No 04-14FFC) 
 

Dr. Mackie summarized that the Planning and Budget Templates for the first two of the six service areas 

were reviewed by this Committee on January 9, 2014 in Report 02-14FFC as follows: 1. Environmental Health 

& Chronic Disease Prevention  and 2. Finance Operations and Information Technology. Two service areas were 

reviewed at this meeting. The remaining two service areas (Family Health Services and Human Resources & 

Corporate Strategy) will be discussed at the February 12 FFC meeting.  

 

Service Area #3 Office of the Medical Officer of Health (OMOH)  

 

Dr. Mackie reviewed the planning and budget templates for the OMOH service area.   

 

Dr. Mackie reported that a new indicator under the OMOH will be that of Board of Health Members’ 

satisfaction with staff support of their role, particularly at meetings. This indicator will be discussed by the 

Governance Committee to be incorporated into the Board of Health Self-Assessment process.  

 

It was suggested that an indicator of performance could be how the Medical Officer of Health is viewed 

by the public as the spokesperson for the Health Unit. This indicator will be considered under the 

Communications sub-area of the OMOH templates.  

 

Discussion ensued about Privacy requirements and, although the Board would like to see a decrease in 

breeches, most privacy breeches are out of the control of staff.  

 

The Committee also recommended that staff be commended on the increase in Health Unit staff 

members getting their flu shot. This staff is an excellent model for Health Care agencies.  

 

 Mr. Orser left the meeting at 9:40 a.m. 

 

Dr. Mackie highlighted the proposed addition of a 0.5 FTE Marketing Co-ordinator to assist the 

Communications Department to promote the Health Unit.  

 

It was moved by Mr. Peer, seconded by Mr. Bolton that the Finance and Facilities Committee receive 

the 2014 Planning and Budget Templates for the Office of the Medical Officer of Health (OMOH), attached as 

Appendix A to Report 04-14FFC. 

Carried 

 Mr. Meyer left the meeting at 9:55 a.m. 

 

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-01-29-report-03-14-ffc.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-01-29-report-04-14-ffc.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-01-09-report-02-14c.pdf


Public Minutes      - 3 - 2014 January 29 

Finance and Facilities Committee                                             

Middlesex-London Board of Health 
 

Service Area #4 Oral Health, Communicable Disease Prevention & Sexual Health Services (OHCDSHS)  

 

Dr. Bryna Warshawsky, Associate Medical Officer of Health and Director, Oral Health, Communicable 

Disease and Sexual Health Services, reviewed the the planning and budget templates for the OHCDSHS area. 

Dr. Warshawsky reported that programs in this service area will be impacted by a change in Directors, when she 

leaves the Health Unit at the end of March 2014.  

 

It was moved by Mr. Peer, seconded by Mr. Bolton that the Finance and Facilities Committee receive 

the 2014 Planning and Budget Templates for Oral Health, Communicable Disease and Sexual Health Services 

(OHCDSHS), attached as Appendix B to Report 04-14FFC. 

Carried 

 

It was moved by Mr. Bolton, seconded by Mr. Peer that the Finance and Facilities Committee report to the 

Board of Health re the 2014 Planning and Budget Templates for OMOH and OHCDSHS at the February 26, 

2014 Board of Health meeting after the templates for all six services areas have been reviewed.  

Carried 

 
 

 

At 10:40 a.m., it was moved by Mr. Peer, seconded by Mr. Bolton that the Finance and Facilities 

Committee move in camera to discuss a matter subject to solicitor-client privilege. 

Carried 
 

 

At 10:50 a.m., it was moved by Mr. Peer, seconded by Mr. Bolton that the Finance and Facilities 

Committee return to public forum and report that information was discussed about a matter subject to 

solicitor-client privilege. 

Carried 

 

 

6. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

The next scheduled Finance and Facilities Committee Meeting is Wednesday, February 12 at 9:30 a.m. 

in Room 3A. This meeting likely will run past noon; therefore, lunch will be provided.  

  

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 

At 10:55 a.m., it was moved by Mr. Bolton, seconded by Mr. Peer that the meeting be adjourned.  
 

Carried 

 

_________________________________   ______________________________ 

TRISH FULTON      CHRISTOPHER MACKIE 

Chair  Secretary-Treasurer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 05-14FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Board of Health 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health 

 

DATE:  2014 February 12 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2014 BUDGET PROCESS  
 

Recommendations 

 
It is recommended:  

 

1) That the Finance and Facilities Committee receive the 2014 Planning and Budget Templates 

for Family Health Services (FHS), attached as Appendix A; and further,  
 

2) That the Finance and Facilities Committee receive the 2014 Planning and Budget Templates 

for Human Resources and Labour Relations (HRLR), attached as Appendix B; and further,  
 

3) That the Finance and Facilities Committee receive the 2014 Planning and Budget Template 

for General Expenses and Revenues, attached as Appendix C; and further 
 

4) That the Finance and Facilities Committee report to the Board of Health re the 2014 

Planning and Budget Templates for FHS, HRLR and GER at the February 26, 2014 Board of 

Health meeting.  
 

Key Points  
 

 The Program Budgeting and Marginal Analysis (PBMA) process identified opportunities for 

disinvestments and investments in order to maximize the Health Unit’s impact on public health in 

London and Middlesex. 

 These proposals are being integrated into the 2014 budget documents. 

 At each of the three Finance and Facility Committee meetings in January and February, the Committee 

will consider the 2014 Planning and Budget proposals.  

 The Board of Health will consider the budget as a whole at the February 26, 2014 meeting. 

 

 

The Program Budgeting and Marginal Analysis (PBMA) process identified opportunities for disinvestments 

and investments in order to maximize the Health Unit’s impact on public health in London and Middlesex.  

These proposals are being integrated into the 2014 budget documents.  The Finance and Facility Committee 

will consider the budget proposals from each Service Area over its three meetings in January and February 

on the following schedule: 

 
Date Service Area 

January 9  Finance & Operations and Information Technology  

 Environmental Health & Chronic Disease Prevention 

January 29  Office of the Medical Officer of Health  

 Oral Health, Communicable Disease & Sexual Health 

February 12  Family Health Services 

 Human Resources & Labour Relations 

 

 

  

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-02-12-report-05-14-fcc-appendix-a.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-02-12-report-05-14-fcc-appendix-b.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-02-12-report-05-14-fcc-appendix-c.pdf


2014 February 12 -  2  - Report No. 05-14FFC 

 

  

 

 

The Planning and Budget documents attached to this report include enhanced budget information as well as 

substantial program-related information in order to allow the Finance and Facilities Committee and the 

Board of Health to make informed decisions about the 2014 budget.  The documents attached represent the 

2014 Planning and Budget proposals for each program area in Family Health Services (FHS), Human 

Resources & Labour Relations (HRLR) and General Expenses and Revenues (GER). The Board of Health 

will consider the budget as a whole at the February 26, 2014 meeting.  Additional information and analysis 

will be available regarding the overall budget at that time. 

 

 
 

Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC  

Medical Officer of Health 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES 
 

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR 
 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

 
Program:  FHS – Office of the Director 
 

2 

SECTION A 

 
SERVICE AREA 
 

Family Health Services MANAGER  NAME  DATE 

 
PROGRAM TEAM 
 

Office of the Director  DIRECTOR NAME Diane Bewick February 12, 2014 

 

SECTION B 
SUMMARY OF TEAM PROGRAM 

The Office of the Director of Family Health Services area is comprised of the Director of Family Health Services/Chief Nursing Officer (CNO), the 
Program Assistant to the Director/CNO, an Epidemiologist, Program Evaluator and Community Health Nursing Specialist.  The team supports the 
activities of the entire Family Health Services area.  The Teams within Family Health Services are as follows: 

 Reproductive Health  

 Smart Start for Babies  

 Early Years  

 Screening, Assessment & Intervention (Speech and Language, Blind Low Vision, Infant Hearing) 

 Best Beginnings (West/Central/East) 

 Child Health  

 Young Adult  

 
Oversight of the programs and staff of Family Health Services area including strategy, planning, budgeting, financial monitoring,  
recruitment/hiring/orientation and performance development and monitoring for 11 direct reports and 120 staff. In addition engage in agency 
planning and administration and community partner development and sustainability.  
 
In addition the responsibility of the Chief Nursing Officer are administered through the Director of Family Health Services.  The Chief Nursing 
Officer (CNO) and Community Health Nursing Specialist (CHNS) work with nurses and others across the agency to promote excellence in public 
health nursing practice in order to keep quality outcomes for the community. The Epidemiologist and Program Evaluator contribute to FHS 
program planning, population assessment, health assessment and surveillance, and program evaluation. 
 

 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

 
Program:  FHS – Office of the Director 
 

3 

SECTION C 
ONTARIO PUBLIC HEALTH STANDARD(S), RELEVANT LEGISLATION OR REGULATION 

Ontario Public Health Standards: 

 Reproductive Health 

 Child Health 

 Chronic Disease & Injury Prevention 

 Sexual Health 
 Foundational 
 Organizational Standards 

 
Child & Family Services Act, 1990 

 Duty to Report Legislation  
 

Nursing Act, 1991 

 

SECTION D 
 
COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #1   - OVERALL FHS LEADERSHIP (DIRECTOR) 
 

 Developing, reviewing and approving all aspects of program initiatives based on best available evidence 

 Actively participate in Senior Leadership Team and agency wide decisions including effective implementation of these decisions within FHS. 

 Community and Provincial involvement related to the broader public health system eg. selection and development of accountabil ity 
requirements, province wide training initiatives, consistent Family Health provincial messaging 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #2  - EPIDEMIOLOGY & PROGRAM EVALUATION 
 

 The Epidemiologist and Program Evaluator provide consultation to FHS in population needs assessments, health assessment and 
surveillance and program evaluation.  They do this through ensuring best evidence resources are available for program planning, 
developing capacity in teams for analysis and integration of data, consultation and assistance with specific program evaluation. 

 Participate in agency wide systems to build capacity of organization to implement evidence informed practice ie. RRFSS, RAC. 
 
 
 
 
 



   2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

 
Program:  FHS – Office of the Director 
 

4 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #3  CNO & CHNS – NURSING PRACTICE QUALITY ASSURANCE & LEADERSHIP 
 

 Provide staff consultations and support to address nursing practice issues  

 Contribute to policy and procedure development for public health and public health nursing practice.  

 Provide leadership at Nursing Practice Council meetings and take leadership role in developing implementing annual practice plans.  

 Oversee the implementation of best practice guidelines, legislation, regulations, competencies and trends in nursing practice. 

 Lead and plan professional development programs for all agency PHNs (150 nurses)  

 Promote and support national certifications such as (e.g. Community Health Nursing, International Certified Lactation Consultants, US 
Infectious Control)  

 Lead journal clubs and knowledge exchange activities with staff to identify best practice evidence and build critical appraisal skills of 
research as requested.  

 Contribute to human resource sustainability through post secondary partnerships. 
 

 

SECTION E 
PERFORMANCE/SERVICE LEVEL MEASURES 

 2012 2013 
(anticipated) 

2014 
(estimate/ 

same/increase/decrease) 

Component of Team #1  OVERALL FHS LEADERSHIP (DIRECTOR) 

 Completion, implementation, outcome evaluation of 
operational plans including budgeting in all program areas. 18 operational plans 

100% 

8 operational plans 
100% 

combined several 
12 anticipated 

 Completion of performance reviews for all staff per biannual 
schedule 

80% 80% 80% 

Component of Team #2  EPIDEMIOLOGY & PROGRAM EVALUATION 
 

 # of projects involving partnership with community 
researchers, academic partners and other organization. 

5 7 5 

 # of structured capacity building planning and evaluation 
offerings to FHS Staff. 

0 1 3 

 # of consultations with managers and staff re: program 
evaluation. 

 
 

10 11 Increase 



   2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

 
Program:  FHS – Office of the Director 
 

5 

Component of Team #3  CNO & CHNS - NURSING PRACTICE QUALITY ASSURANCE & LEADERSHIP 

 

# of professional development events  

 # of all nurse workshops 

  
2  

80% participated 

 
Same 

 # of team/program specific initiatives  6  Increase 

 All agency training (BFI/Smoking Cessation) 
 

 BFI Training (100% 
nurses participated) 

Same 

 # of practice consultations  58 Same 

 # of staff engaged in structured knowledge exchange  8 provincial/national 
events (22 staff) 

1 journal publication 

Same 

 
 

SECTION F 
 
STAFFING COSTS: 
 

 
 

2013 TOTAL FTES 

 
 

2014 ESTIMATED FTES 

 7.5 6.75 

Director and Chief Nursing Officer 
Administrative Assistant to the Director 
Community Health Nursing Specialist 
Epidemiologist 
Program Evaluator 
Program Assistant to Epi/PE/CHNS 
Public Health Nurse 

 

1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.5 

1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
0.75 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

 
Program:  FHS – Office of the Director 
 

6 

SECTION G 
 

EXPENDITURES: 
 

Object of Expenditure 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Personnel Costs $   669,951 $   633,773 $   705,023 $   649,989 $  (55,034) (7.8)% 

  Other Program Costs 224,424 175,664 233,174 223,228 (9,946) (4.3)% 

Total Expenditures $   894,375 $   809,437 $   938,197 $   873,217 $  (64,980) (6.9)% 

 

SECTION H 
 

FUNDING SOURCES: 
 

Object of Revenue 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Cost-Shared $     891,301 $       796,062 $       934,823 $     869,843 $  (64,980) (7.0)% 

  MOHLTC – 100%       

  MCYS – 100%       

  User Fees       

  Other Offset Revenue 3,074 13,375 3,374 3,374   

Total Revenues $    894,375 $      809,437 $      938,197 $     873,217 $  (64,980) (6.9)% 

 

SECTION I 
 
KEY HIGHLIGHTS/INITIATIVES PLANNED FOR 2014  

Director: 

 Strengthen positive parenting directions 

 Pilot neighbourhood integration project 
 
CNO/CHNS: 

 Nurse workshops/professional development training scheduled for May 6th, and again in the fall 2014. 

 Explore re completion of RFP for Registered Nurses’ Association (RNAO) Best Practice Guideline Spotlight Organization designation. 

 Involvement in smoking cessation agency wide initiative. 



   2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

 
Program:  FHS – Office of the Director 
 

7 

 
 

SECTION J 
 
PRESSURES AND CHALLENGES 

 Significant manager and staff changes and absences in 2013-2014. 
 
SECTION K 
RECOMMENDED ENHANCEMENTS, REDUCTIONS AND EFFICIENCIES FOR 2014 

Community Health Nurse Specialist - assigned (shared) administrative support is being planned for 2014. 

 
Reduction in Casual Nursing - ($70,000) – this proposal reduces the resources available to cover paid absences (ie: vacation, sick-time), and 

  associated costs ($9,946) 
 
One-time Funding: - $14,966 - Additional 0.25 Program Evaluator ($14,966) – this would support program work by gathering and implementing 

 evidence regarding effective or promising practices in family health, prenatal health, healthcare provider outreach, and child development. 
 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

 

8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES 
 

REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH TEAM 
 
 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template     

 
 

 
 

9 

 

SECTION A 

 
SERVICE AREA 
 

Family Health Services MANAGER  NAME Heather Lokko DATE 

 
PROGRAM TEAM 
 

Reproductive Health Team DIRECTOR NAME Diane Bewick February 12, 2014 

 

SECTION B 
 
SUMMARY OF TEAM PROGRAM 
 

The Reproductive Health Team enables individuals & families to achieve optimal preconception health, experience a healthy pregnancy, have the 
healthiest newborn(s) possible, and be prepared for parenthood. Specific topic areas of focus include alcohol and tobacco, healthy eating, physical 
activity, and mental wellness. This team is also leading the agency-wide Health Care Provider Outreach initiative and Baby Friendly certification 
process. 

 

SECTION C 
 
ONTARIO PUBLIC HEALTH STANDARD(S), RELEVANT LEGISLATION OR REGULATION 
 

Ontario Public Health Standards: 

 Child Health 

 Reproductive Health 

 Foundational Standard  

 Chronic Disease and Injury Prevention  

 Sexual Health 

 
Child & Family Services Act, 1990 

 Duty to Report Legislation  

 
  



                               2014 Planning & Budget Template     

 
 

 

Program: Reproductive Health Team 
 

10 

SECTION D 
 
COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #1:  PRECONCEPTION HEALTH 

Preconception health initiatives are intended to increase the proportion of individuals who are physically, emotionally, and socially prepared for 
conception and to improve pregnancy outcomes. Strategies include: 

 Provide preconception health teaching to priority population groups 

 Provide up-to-date preconception information on MLHU website, and implement social media strategies related to preconception health 

 Provide/adapt/promote preconception health resources for Grade 7-12 teachers in order to build teacher capacity in this area 

 Support regional “Rethink Your Drinking” campaign 

 Provide food skills sessions, and explore collaboration with Strathroy grocery stores to increase subsidized access to fruits and vegetables, for 
women planning a pregnancy 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #2:  PRENATAL HEALTH 

 Implement a prenatal skin-to-skin communication campaign 

 Pilot a collaboration with a health care provider to provide service to priority population women recently confirmed pregnant 

 Offer in-class and online prenatal education (6-week series, weekend series, e-learning) 

 Provide food skills sessions and explore collaboration with Strathroy grocery stores to increase subsidized access to fruits and vegetables for 
pregnant women 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #3:  PREPARATION FOR PARENTHOOD 

 Our preparation for parenthood initiatives focus on the social, emotional, and mental aspects of parenthood, and how to effectively manage the 
transition to parenthood, including information about how parenting impacts future health.   

 Provide up-to-date preparation for parenthood information on MLHU website 

 Offer ‘Preparing for Parenthood’ class 

 Develop and implement a preparation for parenthood campaign, targeting pregnant families 

 Develop and promote an interactive online parenting style self-assessment 
COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #4:  BABY-FRIENDLY INITIATIVE 

The Baby-Friendly Initiative (BFI) is a evidence-based strategy that promotes, protects and supports breastfeeding, and is an effective tool to 
increase breastfeeding initiation, duration, and exclusivity.  Breastfeeding is a significant contributor to healthy growth and development.  MLHU’s 
goal is to become Baby-Friendly designated by the end of 2014 or early in 2015.  BFI designation is a Ministry of Health Accountability Agreement 
indicator. 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #5:  HEALTH CARE PROVIDER OUTREACH (INCLUDES PRECONCEPTION, PRENATAL, AND EARLY YEARS HEALTH) 

The Health Care Provider Outreach Initiative is a strategy to enhance both preconception, prenatal, and early years health within our community   
through physicians, midwives, nurse practitioners and nurses. 

 Strategies focus on providing information to and connecting with health care providers through office visits, mail-outs, website content, 
paper/electronic resource binders, workshops, presentations and so on. 

 



                               2014 Planning & Budget Template     

 
 

 

Program: Reproductive Health Team 
 

11 

SECTION E 
 
PERFORMANCE/SERVICE LEVEL MEASURES 

 

 

2012 2013 
(anticipated) 

2014 
(estimate/ 

same/increase/decrease) 

COMPONENT OF TEAM #1:  PRECONCEPTION HEALTH 

Preconception campaign   N/A  Campaign materials 
developed 

 Campaign will be 
implemented  

Interactive online self-assessment tool preconception health  N/A  “Pre-Pregnancy 
Planner” self-
assessment tool 
developed  
 

 “Pre-Pregnancy 
Planner” self-
assessment tool 
launched and 100 
hits/month 

COMPONENT OF TEAM #2: PRENATAL HEALTH 

# of prenatal series offered 
# of women/support persons attending sessions 
% of potential primiparous families 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
# of E-learning Registrants 
 
 

5-week series 

 89  

 756 women & 749 
support persons 

 45% of primips 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E-Learning 

 326 women 

 199 support 
persons 

6-week series 

 62  

 591 women & 584 
support persons 

 40% of primips 
 
Prenatal Weekend 

 4 series 

 39 women & 35 
support persons 

 
E-Learning 

 503 women 

 326 support persons 

6-week series 

 55 scheduled 

 40% of primips 
 
 
 
Prenatal Weekend 

 15 series scheduled 

 
 
E-Learning 

 550 women 

 375 support persons 

Skin-to-skin campaign   Campaign 
planned  

 Campaign 
implemented 

 Same 

COMPONENT OF TEAM #3: PREPARATION FOR PARENTHOOD 

# of sessions offered 
# of women/support persons attending sessions 

 12  

 73 women & 67 
support persons 

 12  

 92 women & 88 
support persons  

 14  

 120 women & 100 
support persons 



                               2014 Planning & Budget Template     

 
 

 

Program: Reproductive Health Team 
 

12 

COMPONENT OF TEAM #4: BABY-FRIENDLY INITIATIVE 

BFI educational requirements completed by 100% of MLHU staff 
and volunteers  

Planning for 
educational sessions 
completed 

 98% MLHU staff   New staff and 
volunteers will 
complete educational 
requirements within 4 
months of start date 

BFI policy developed, BOH-approved and orientation provided to 
all staff, with sustainable processes established to ensure policy 
orientation of new staff and volunteers 

Completed  Annual policy 
revision completed  

 Policy revisions will be 
shared with all MLHU 
staff & volunteers 

COMPONENT OF TEAM #5: HEALTH CARE PROVIDER OUTREACH 

# of mail-outs, # of participants at presentations  4 mail-outs to 315 
health care 
providers 
 

 7 mail-outs to 315 
health care providers 

 Presentations to 232 
medical students & 
305 practitioners 

 Revision of 300 
resource binders  

 More electronic 
outreach and web-
based resources 

 6 mail-outs to 350 
health care providers 

 

In person office contact/visits  18   105   350  

Workshop for Primary Health Care Providers on Early Years  160 participants  85 participants 
 

 Same 

 

SECTION F 
STAFFING COSTS: 
 

 
2013 TOTAL FTES 

 
2014 ESTIMATED FTES 

 14.5 14.15 

Program Manager 
Public Health Nurse 
Public Health Dietitian 
Program Assistant 

1.0 
9.5 
1.0 
3.0 

1.0 
9.9 
1.0 
2.5 

 
 
 
 
 



                               2014 Planning & Budget Template     

 
 

 

Program: Reproductive Health Team 
 

13 

SECTION G 
 

EXPENDITURES: 
 

Object of Expenditure 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Personnel Costs $   1,193,950 $   1,155,945 $   1,248,488 $   1,250,469 $        1,981 0.2% 

  Other Program Costs 127,444 122,969 120,394 90,894 (29,500) (24.5)% 

Total Expenditures $   1,321,394 $   1,278,914 $   1,368,882 $   1,341,363 $    (27,519) (2.0)% 

 

SECTION H 
 

FUNDING SOURCES: 
 

Object of Revenue 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Cost-Shared $    1,277,950 $    1,252,359 $     1,359,348 $     1,331,829 $    (27,519) (2.0)% 

  MOHLTC – 100%       

  MCYS – 100%       

  User Fees 35,000 20,433 8,140 8,140   

  Other Offset Revenue 8,444 6,122 1,394 1,394   

Total Revenues $    1,321,394 $    1,278,914 $     1,368,882 $     1,341,363 $    (27,519) (2.0)% 

 

SECTION I 
KEY HIGHLIGHTS/INITIATIVES PLANNED FOR 2014  
 

 Expanding the Health Care Provider Outreach Initiative to ensure a more collaborative and coordinated MLHU approach  

 Offering preconception groups to priority populations 

 Developing programming for physical activity and pregnancy  

 Identifying and using social media related to preconception health with an emphasis on alcohol use in pregnancy 

 
  



                               2014 Planning & Budget Template     

 
 

 

Program: Reproductive Health Team 
 

14 

SECTION J 
PRESSURES AND CHALLENGES 
 

 This team is still relatively new, and is in the process of establishing a number of new initiatives.  

 

SECTION K 
 
RECOMMENDED ENHANCEMENTS, REDUCTIONS AND EFFICIENCIES FOR 2014 
 

Reduced Reproductive Health PA Support - $30,659 (0.5 FTE) – Contracting for graphic design and advanced presentation development skills 

 on the Reproductive Health Team has led to lesser requirements for centralized administrative support. 
 
Reduction in Social Marketing Campaigns - $39,100 – This proposal would be a reduction in health campaigns related to reproductive health 
 ($9,600 or 0.1 PHN, and $29,500 in health promotion expenses). 
 
Expansion of Healthcare Provider Outreach Initiative - $42,240 (0.5 PHN FTE) – This proposal would support MLHU to have better coordinated 
 and integrated healthcare provider outreach.  It is expected that this would increase efficiency, reduce duplication, and enhance healthcare 
 providers’ experience working with MLHU. 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES 
 

EARLY YEARS TEAM 
 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

16 

  
 
 

 
SECTION A 
 

 
SERVICE AREA 
 

FHS MANAGER  NAME Ruby Brewer DATE 

 
PROGRAM TEAM 
 

Early Years DIRECTOR NAME Diane Bewick February 12, 2014 

 

SECTION B 
 
SUMMARY OF TEAM PROGRAM 

The goal of the Early Years Team is to improve the health and developmental outcomes for children by providing a range of act ivities designed to 
address the physical, psychological, and social growth and development of children ages 0-4.  Multi-strategy approaches are used and include 
facilitating access to and providing direct services, raising awareness and providing education, creating supportive physical and social 
environments, strengthening community action and partnership, and building personal skills with families and care givers in London and Middlesex 
County.  Topic areas include breastfeeding, safe and healthy infant care, mental health and early childhood development, nutr ition, healthy 
eating/healthy weights, child safety, oral health, immunization, parenting, healthy growth and development and the early identification of 
developmental concerns. 
 
 

 

SECTION C 
ONTARIO PUBLIC HEALTH STANDARD(S), RELEVANT LEGISLATION OR REGULATION 

Ontario Public Health Standards: 

 Child Health Program 

 Chronic Disease and Injury Prevention  

 Infectious Diseases Program 

 Vaccine Preventable Diseases Program 

 Foundational 
 

Child & Family Services Act, 1990 

 Duty to Report Legislation  

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Early Years Team 
 

17 

SECTION D 
 
COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #1  BREASTFEEDING COUNSELING AND SUPPORT 

 

PHNs provide breastfeeding support and teaching through: 

 One-on-one support at Well Baby/Child & Breastfeeding clinics located throughout the city and county 

 Multi-strategy awareness raising and social marketing initiatives that target physicians and other primary care providers, families, and the 
community at large 

 The use of social media and creating a breastfeeding video library and maintaining information on the website 

 Phone counseling is available through the Health Connection during business hours, the Infantline evenings and weekends and the 48 hour 
postpartum phone call to lower risk families with a new infant. 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #2   INFANT MENTAL HEALTH AND EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT 

Public Health services provided to promote healthy growth and development and to identify potential developmental challenges early in life includes: 

 One-on-one skill-building sessions with parents at Well Baby/Child & Breastfeeding Clinics and through the Health Connection and Infantline 
telephone services; 

 Monthly developmental screening clinics in collaboration with a developmental paediatrician and residents; 

 Developing and implementing awareness raising and social marketing campaigns focused on healthy growth and development; 

 Providing education and consultation to licensed child care centres 

 Providing educational and parenting support sessions to parents 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #3  ADJUSTMENT TO PARENTHOOD AND PARENTING SUPPORT 

The quality of parenting a child receives is considered the strongest potentially modifiable risk factor that contributes to developmental and 
behavioural problems in children.  Positive parenting promotes healthy, secure infant attachment and is vital to ensuring optimal neurological 
development and stress response patterns in a child’s brain.  Services to support parenting include: 

 Provide telephone counseling, one-on-one counseling, and referrals to community resources and supports 

 Provide direct education, counseling and support for Post Partum Mood Disorder, Healthy Family Dynamics, Positive Parenting, Shaken 
Baby Syndrome, Injury Prevention and Attachment 

 Facilitate group skill building sessions  
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #4 HEALTHY EATING/HEALTHY WEIGHTS AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY 

Good nutrition and physical health are fundamental to the promotion of healthy early childhood development and are critical components in 
preventing childhood obesity. In addition to breastfeeding other actions include: 

 Tummy Time ( designed to help parents understand the importance on infants being placed in a variety of positions throughout the day) 

 Trust Me Trust My Tummy (designed to help parents understand feeding cues) 

 Canada’s Food Guide and Canada’s Physical Activity Guidelines 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Early Years Team 
 

18 

 Outreach campaigns 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #5  COMMUNITY EARLY YEARS PARTNERSHIP AND COLLABORATION 

Two key partnerships are leveraged in accomplishing the goals of this team.  The Middlesex-London Community Early Years Partnership consists 
of approximately 35 organizations and the Physician Champion Partnership consists of physicians, Nurse Practitioners and specialized service 
provider agencies. Together they:  

 Identifying strategies to reach physicians and other primary care providers such as hosting an annual Main Pro C workshop, presenting at 
Clinical Rounds, attending the Annual Clinical Day in Family Medicine 

 Developing resources (e.g. referral pathways, pamphlets, Red Flags) 

 Promoting awareness about the importance of early developmental screening 

 Identifying developmental screening opportunities (Nipissing, Ages and Stages) 

 Organizing community events/fairs such as the Community Toddler Fairs, Healthy Growth and Development and Screening days, Kids First 
day), Oneida health fair 

 Social media and social marketing initiatives such as radio ads, newspaper & magazine articles and campaigns 
 
SECTION E 
 
PERFORMANCE/SERVICE LEVEL MEASURES 

 
 

2012 2013 
(anticipated) 

2014 
(estimate/ 

same/increase/decrease) 

Component of Team #1  BREASTFEEDING COUNSELING AND SUPPORT 

Breastfeeding women have improved knowledge and skills  
# Well Baby Clinics 
# Mothers receiving counselling 

 

 16  

 3,041 mothers  
 

 Enhanced website 
information  

 

 16  

 3,762 mothers  
 

 Produced 5 
breastfeeding videos 
 

 

 Same 
 
 
 

 Establish breastfeeding 
counselling by 
appointment at MLHU 

# of families receiving phone counselling for breastfeeding  Health Connection -
597 
 

 Infantline-574   

 Health Connection -
616 
 

 Infantline-550  

 Same 
 
 

 Same 
# low risk new mothers called within 48 hours of discharge  2,408  1,282  Same 

 
 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Early Years Team 
 

19 

Component of Team #2  INFANT MENTAL HEALTH AND EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT 

# of Developmental Clinics with developmental paediatrians and public 
health nurses 

 6 developmental 
screening clinics  

 6 developmental 
screening clinics  

 Increase 

# of Nippissing Screens  139 children at 
OEYCs 
 

 134 children at 
OEYC, 10 referrals 

 

 Same 
 

# of parents counselled regarding growth and development at Health 
Connection 

 1,335 families  1,200 families 
 

 Same 

# of children screened at Well Baby and Child Clinics  1,980 children  2,228 children 
 

 Same 

Component of Team #4  ADJUSTMENT TO PARENTHOOD AND PARENTING SUPPORT 

Positive parenting education and awareness. eg. clinic Talks, Mommy 
and Me, Baby and Me, Teen Group, Southdale Women’s Group, Arabic 
Women’s Group, All About Breastfeeding, Baby Fun Drop In, Heart 
Space, Wee Ones. 
 
 

 11 group 
programs/1,073 
participants 
 

 N/A 
 
 

 16 Just Beginning 
Series/140 
participants 

 11 programs and 
presentations 
facilitated  
 

 17 Triple P 
discussion groups 
 

 12 Just Beginning 
Series/90 
participants 
 

 Same  
 
 
 

 Increase 
 
 

 Decrease 

Component of Team #5  HEALTHY EATING, HEALTHY WEIGHTS AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY 

Increase access and support to the NutriSTEP screening tools (new 
provincial indicator) 
 

 Staff training 
completed 

 Obtained licensing 
and plans for 
implementation 

 Increase  

Component of Team #6  COMMUNITY EARLY YEARS PARTNERSHIP AND COLLABORATION 

Community Early Years Partnerships 
 
 
 

 Community Early 
Years Physician 
Champion 
Partnership formed 
 

 Community Early 
Years Physician 
Champion 
Partnership 
strengthened (14 
committee members; 
350 partners) 

 2 workshops and 8 
community early 
years newsletters 
completed 

 Increase 
 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Early Years Team 
 

20 

SECTION F 
 
STAFFING COSTS: 
 

 
 

2013 TOTAL FTES  
 

 
 

2014 ESTIMATED FTES 
 

 14.0  14.75 

 

Program Manager      
Public Health Nurse          
Program Assistants   

 
1.0 

11.0 
2.0 

 

 
1.0 

11.75 
2.0 

 

 

SECTION G 
 

EXPENDITURES: 
 

Object of Expenditure 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Personnel Costs $   1,330,457 $   1,375,756 $   1,396,667 $   1,462,925 $  66,258 4.8% 

  Other Program Costs 92,098 87,870 92,206 92,206  % 

Total Expenditures $   1,422,555 $   1,463,626 $   1,488,873 $   1,555,131 $  66,258 4.5% 

 

SECTION H 
 

FUNDING SOURCES: 
 

Object of Revenue 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Cost-Shared $     1,422,555 $      1,463,626 $    1,488,873 $     1,555,131 $  66,258 4.5% 

  MOHLTC – 100%       

  MCYS – 100%       

  User Fees       

  Other Offset Revenue       

Total Revenues $    1,422,555 $      1,463,626 $   1,488,873 $     1,555,131 $  66,258 4.5% 

       



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Early Years Team 
 

21 

SECTION I 
 
KEY HIGHLIGHTS/INITIATIVES PLANNED FOR 2014  
 

 Increase availability of timely early postpartum breastfeeding support by breastfeeding appointment only @ MLHU Tuesdays and Thursdays  

 Breastfeeding Peer Support program explored and potentially implemented 

 Increased collaboration and services with licensed childcare centres 

 Increase strategies to improve childhood obesity (implementation strategy  for NutriSTEP as a provincial indicator) 
 

 
SECTION J 
 
PRESSURES AND CHALLENGES 

 Reducing staff at clinics to accommodate new initiatives 

 Gap in children 12 months to school entry – require strategies to access these families 
 

 

SECTION K 
 
RECOMMENDED ENHANCEMENTS, REDUCTIONS AND EFFICIENCIES FOR 2014 

Enhancement – Infant Mental Health/Early Childhood Development - $105,602 – This proposal would see a 1.0 PHN and a 0.25 Program 

Assistant work to promote infant mental health and positive early childhood development with high needs families, caregivers, primary care 
providers, and other support services. 

 
Reduction – Elimination of Just Beginnings classes – $(24,015) – This proposal eliminates the parenting classes for first time mothers. 
(0.25 PHN) 
 
Health Connection Efficiencies $(15,329) – This proposal captures a number of efficiencies realized by redesign of the health connection 

telephone support service. (0.25 Program Assistant) 
 
  

 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES 
 

SCREENING, ASSESSMENT AND INTERVENTION 
 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

23 

 
 
 

 
SECTION A 
 

 
SERVICE AREA 
 

Family Health Services MANAGER  NAME Debbie Shugar DATE 

 
PROGRAM TEAM 
 

Screening, Assessment and 
Intervention 

DIRECTOR NAME Diane Bewick 
 

February 12, 2014 
 

 

SECTION B 
 
SUMMARY OF TEAM PROGRAM 

The Screening, Assessment and Intervention Team administers the provincial preschool speech and language program (tykeTALK), The Infant 
Hearing Program and the Blind Low Vision Early Intervention Program. MLHU is the lead agency for these programs. Direct services are 
contracted out. tykeTALK covers the Thames Valley region (Middlesex-London, Elgin, Oxford counties). IHP and BLV programs cover the regions 
of Thames Valley, Huron, Perth, Grey-Bruce, and Lambton.  
 
The team is also responsible for Let’s Grow, an online e-newsletter for families of children birth to 5 years of age. The e-newsletter is a prevention 
and early identification strategy to help parents learn about appropriate developmental milestones, how to best stimulate their children and to 
inform them of local resources. This program is funded through the cost-shared MLHU budget. 
 

 

SECTION C 
 
ONTARIO PUBLIC HEALTH STANDARD(S), RELEVANT LEGISLATION OR REGULATION 

This program aligns with and strengthens our effectiveness in the following Ontario Public Health Standards : 

 Foundational 

 Child Health 

 Reproductive Health 

 Injury Prevention 
 
A Service Agreement is signed between MCYS and MLHU to deliver the three early identification programs. 

 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Screening Assessment and Intervention (SAI) 
 

24 

 

SECTION D 
 
COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #1  PRESCHOOL SPEECH AND LANGUAGE (TYKETALK) 

tykeTALK is a prevention and early intervention program designed to give children the best start in life through optimal verbal communication 
strategies. The program services children and their families from birth to school-entry. Of all the children that tykeTALK provides service to 
approximately 60% come from London, 7% from Middlesex county, 16% from Elgin county and 16% from Oxford county. The program consists of 
the following program components/strategies: Referral/Intake, Intervention and Community Awareness, Support and Education. The goals of the 
program are to develop and maintain an integrated system of pre-school speech and language services; maintain seamless and efficient access to 
service; ensure early identification and intervention for all children with communication disorders; provide a range of evidence based interventions 
for the child, family and caregivers; promote a smooth transition to school; and provide family - centred care that respects and involves parents. 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #2  INFANT HEARING PROGRAM 
 

The Infant Hearing Program-SW Region is a prevention and early intervention hearing program. The program consists of the following program 
components/strategies: universal newborn hearing screening, hearing loss confirmation and audiologic assessment and follow up support and 
services for children identified with permanent hearing loss. The IHP-SW screens the hearing of 10,000 newborns/year either in the hospital or the 
community and provides follow-up supports and services to approximately 120 children per year who have permanent hearing loss. The program 
provides service to children and families from birth to eligibility to attend Grade 1.  
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #3 BLIND LOW VISION EARLY INTERVENTION PROGRAM 
 

The Blind Low Vision Early Intervention Program is an early intervention program. The program consists of the following program 
components/strategies: intervention and education and family support and counseling. The program provides services to approximately 120 children 
per year who have been diagnosed as being blind or having low vision. The program provides service to children and families from birth to eligibility 
to attend Grade 1. 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #4  LET’S GROW E-NEWSLETTER 
 

The e-newsletter is a prevention and early identification strategy to help parents learn about appropriate developmental milestones, how to best 
stimulate their children and to inform them of local resources. Parents have the opportunity to register on line when their newborn arrives.. Parents 
who have registered receive regular age-paced e-mail blasts connecting them to the appropriate Let’s Grow e-newsletter located on the MLHU 
website. 

 
 
 
 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Screening Assessment and Intervention (SAI) 
 

25 

SECTION E 
PERFORMANCE/SERVICE LEVEL MEASURES 

 

 

2012 2013 
(anticipated) 

2014 
(estimate/ 

same/increase/decrease) 

Component of Team #1  tykeTALK 

Average age of referral stays below 30 months 31 months 30 months 29 months 

Average wait from referral to first intervention reduced to 16 weeks 14 weeks 
 

17 weeks 
 

18 weeks 
 

Number of children seen for assessment and/or intervention 3266 children 3300 3500 

Component of Team #2  Infant Hearing Program – SW Region 

90%  of all newborn babies residing in the region receive a hearing 
screening 

96% 
 

96% 
 

96% 
 

90% of babies with a “refer” result from UNHS (Universal Newborn 
Hearing Screening) will have an audiology assessment 

98% 98% 98% 

40% of babies identified with PCHL as a result of UNHS will begin use 
of amplification and will begin communication development by 9 months 
corrected age 

50% 50% 50% 

Component of Team #3 Blind Low Vision Early Intervention Program 

Average age of children at referral will remain at less than 24 months 20 months 20 months 20 months 

Wait time from referral to first intervention will remain at less than 12 
weeks 

5 weeks 6 weeks 7 weeks 

Component of Team #4  Let’s Grow e-Newsletter 

Develop ads on Facebook for target populations Planning stages Ads on Facebook and 
identifies web metrics 

Determine effectiveness 
based on web 

metrics 

Translate e-Newsletters in to French Issues 1-4 will be 
translated into French 

Remainder of issues (5-
12) translated into 

French 

Undetermined 

# parents enrolled to receive Lets Grow 2,515 4,752 Increase 

# newsletters sent 10,315 18,814 Increase 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Screening Assessment and Intervention (SAI) 
 

26 

 
SECTION F 
 
STAFFING COSTS: 
 

 
 

2013 TOTAL FTES  
 

 
 

2014 ESTIMATED FTES 
 

 28.32  27.37 

MLHU Staff: 

System Facilitator (Program Manager) 
Program Assistants 
Intake – Coordinator 
 

Contract Staff : 
Family Support Workers 
Early Childhood Vision Consultants 
Health Promoter 
Speech & Language Pathologists 
Administrative Support 
Communication Disorder Assistant 
System Coordinator 
Audiologists 
Hearing Screeners 

 
1.0 
2.4 
1.0 

 
 

0.58 
2.3 
0.4 

11.47 
3.1 
2.8 
0.5 

1.89 
1.28 

 
1.0 
2.4 
1.0 

 
 

0.18 
2.3 
0.0 

11.47 
3.1 
2.8 
0.5 

1.74 
1.28 

 
 

SECTION G 
 

EXPENDITURES: 
 

Object of Expenditure 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Personnel Costs $   2,424,165 $   2,396,645 $   2,404,292 $   2,396,554 $    (7,738) (0.3)% 

  Other Program Costs 307,892 315,332 163,122 158,122 (5,000) (3.1)% 

Total Expenditures $   2,732,057 $   2,711,977 $   2,567,414 $   2,554,676 $  (12,738) (0.5)% 

 
 
 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Screening Assessment and Intervention (SAI) 
 

27 

 
SECTION H 
 

FUNDING SOURCES: 
 

Object of Revenue 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Cost-Shared $         43,908 $           42,960 $            37,697 $          42,697 $        5,000 13.3% 

  MOHLTC – 100%       

  MCYS – 100% 2,653,073 2,633,941 2,494,641 2,476,903 (17,738) (0.7)% 

  User Fees       

  Other Offset Revenue 35,076 35,076 35,076 35,076   

Total Revenues $    2,732,057 $      2,711,977 $       2,567,414 $     2,554,676 $    (12,738) (0.5)% 

 
 
 

SECTION I 
 
KEY HIGHLIGHTS/INITIATIVES PLANNED FOR 2014-2015 
 

1) Pilot the Tiered Intervention for Preschool Speech and Language Services Framework  

2) Facilitate transition to new screening equipment for the Infant Hearing program and implement new provincial Quality Assurance (QA) 

standard 

3) Evaluate speech and language pathology services provided to children at childcare centres and propose a more effective strategy to support 

children in this environment 

 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Screening Assessment and Intervention (SAI) 
 

28 

SECTION J 
 
PRESSURES AND CHALLENGES 
 

MCYS has not provided funding increases in over 5 years yet salary and operation costs have continued to rise. As time goes on there is no place 
left to cut other than personnel which results in increased waitlists and fewer children and families being served. Also additional demands from 
MCYS have been placed on staff with respect to data collection and quality assurance. 
 

 
 

SECTION K 
 
RECOMMENDED ENHANCEMENTS, REDUCTIONS AND EFFICIENCIES FOR 2014 
 

 
Reductions resulting from no increase to MCYS grants  - $17,738 - The following reductions are required to address overall inflationary  
 pressures in the programs and as a result of the loss of One-time funding in the amount of $17,738 in the tykeTALK program: 
 

Elimination of .4 FTE Health Promoter (tykeTALK) 
Elimination of .15 FTE Auditory Verbal Therapist (IHP) 
Elimination of  .4 FTE Family Support Workers (BLV) 
 

Reduction in Health Promotion in Let’s Grow Program - $5,000 – This proposal reduces resources in the Let’s Grow program relating to  
 database and website maintenance no longer required. 
 
Increase in Weekend Hearing Screening at LHSC - $10,000 – This proposal incorporates the Board of Health decision of November 21, 2013 
 (Report No. 17-13C, minutes) to fund up to $10,000 for weekend hearing screening tests on newborns before discharging them from LHSC.  
 This avoids any reductions required in the FTE resources for Hearing Screeners for 2014.  
 

 
 
 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
 

29 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES 
 

BEST BEGINNINGS TEAM 
 
 
 
 

 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
 

30 

 

SECTION A 

 
SERVICE AREA 
 

Family Health Services MANAGER  NAME 
Stacy Manzerolle,  
Nancy Greaves,  
Kathy Dowsett 

DATE 

 
PROGRAM TEAM 
 

Best Beginnings Team  DIRECTOR NAME Diane Bewick February 12, 2014 

 

SECTION B 
SUMMARY OF TEAM PROGRAM 

The Best Beginnings Team provides health services to vulnerable families with infants and young children.  Key program areas include: 

 The Healthy Babies Healthy Children (HBHC) program focuses on high risk families through pregnancy and with children from birth to 
school entry with the intent of providing children with a healthy start in life.  Families come into the program largely following a risk 
assessment in hospital.  A multi-disciplinary team provide home visits and other services aimed at promoting healthy growth and 
development. 

 The Social Determinants of Health work focuses on families who are new to the country (refugees and newcomers); those living in poverty; 
and those who are marginalized, working collaboratively with community agencies to address system wide issues. 

 The Family Health Clinic provides primary health care in 8 community sites each week.  These clinics are for families who cannot access 
family physician services and are operated out of existing community locations. 

 Women’s and Family Shelters (8) receive public health services on a regular basis inclusive of direct care, counselling, consultations, 

community referral and group support. 

 Smart Start for Babies (SSFB) is a Canadian Prenatal Nutrition Program (CPNP) designed for pregnant women who are at risk for poor 

birth outcomes, related lifestyle habits, abuse, poverty, recent arrival in Canada, and teen pregnancies.  SSFB provides pregnant women 

and their support persons with access to healthy foods, nutritional counseling and education, prenatal education, opportunities to learn life 

skills, referrals to community supports and resources. Limited post partum support programs are available. 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Best Beginnings Team 
 

31 

SECTION C 
ONTARIO PUBLIC HEALTH STANDARD(S), RELEVANT LEGISLATION OR REGULATION 

Ontario Public Health Standards:  

 Foundational Standard,  

 Reproductive and Child Health Guidelines 

 Chronic Disease & Injury Prevention 

 Sexual Health 

 Injury Prevention 

 Child Health 
 

Child & Family Services Act, 1990 

 Duty to Report Legislation  
 

MCYS Healthy Babies, Healthy Children Protocols 
 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Best Beginnings Team 
 

32 

SECTION D 
COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #1 – HBHC – SCREENING/ASSESSMENT/HOME VISITING/SERVICE COORDINATION 

 The HBHC program provides service to women and their families in the prenatal period and to families with children from birth until they 
transition to school.  The program includes screening, home visiting, service coordination and referral. 

 Home visiting services provide early intervention for families who are confirmed as being with risk of compromised child development. The 
home visiting model focuses on seventeen family goals as identified in the Family Friendly Service Plan.  

 Service coordination ensures families identified can access services and supports.  

 Reducing smoking during pregnancy and in the presence of young children has a significant impact on the health outcomes for families. 
Pregnant families and those with young children are offered nicotine replacement therapy and counselling from a specialized PHN. 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #2 – OUTREACH TO VULNERABLE FAMILIES 

 PHNs provide service to 8 shelters for women, children and families in London and Middlesex.  Services include assessment, intervention, 
advocacy, and linkage of families to community services. The shelter PHN is also able to refer families to community programs once they leave 
the shelter.  Consultation and education with shelter staff is ongoing. 

 Nurse Practitioner clinics drop-in or by appointment are provided in set locations where vulnerable families live.  These clinics offer services for 
families with children under the age of six and for high school students who do not have a primary care physician.  

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #3 – PRENATAL SUPPORT & EDUCATION 

 Participants attend weekly prenatal/nutrition sessions at six sites in London and Strathroy. Prenatal education addresses information and 
behaviours which contribute to healthy birth outcomes, and includes mental health promotion and injury prevention, including healthy 
relationships, abuse, and smoking cessation. Nutrition education addresses food preparation and safety, and developing life skills. Snacks are 
offered at each session as are food vouchers, kitchen items and prenatal vitamins are provided.  

 Postpartum sessions provide information to promote breastfeeding, to address issues of infant safety and injury prevention, and to promote 
linkages to programs and resources in the community which support families after the birth of their baby. High risk mothers attend with their 
babies up until 6 months.  

 An Advisory Group from community agencies provides advice and support for SSFB. Site coordinators (hired by partnering agencies and paid 
through the SSFB budget) assist with recruiting of participants and with linking them to other appropriate programs and neighbourhood 
supports in the community. In-kind support is provided by the Middlesex & London Children’s Aid Society (CAS), Health Zone Nurse 
Practitioner Led Clinics (NPLC), and the London Health Sciences Centre (LHSC). 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Best Beginnings Team 
 

33 

SECTION E 
PERFORMANCE/SERVICE LEVEL MEASURES 

 2012 2013 
(anticipated) 

2014 
(estimate/ 

same/increase/decrease) 

Component of Team #1 - HBHC – SCREENING/ASSESSMENT/HOME VISITING/SERVICE COORDINATION 

Percentage of postpartum screens completed* 64% 67.5% Increase (85%) 

Percentage of identified families who are confirmed with risk – 
postpartum 

23% 61% Decrease (25%) 

Number of families enrolled in the program 1,020 1,111 Increase 

Number of new referrals 498 470 Same 

Total number of Home Visits 8,704 9,413 Same 

*in 2013 a new more comprehensive screening tool was introduced across Ontario 

Component of Team 2 – OUTREACH TO VULNERABLE FAMILIES 

Number of client assessments completed at shelters 100% of those referred 
(287) 

100% of those referred 
(146) 

Decrease 

Number of client visits at Family Health Clinics 1450 1573  1500 

Number of referrals made to other community agencies 872 872  850 

Component of Team #3 – PRENATAL SUPPORT & EDUCATION 

Sessions offered per year (at six locations) 120 158 Increase (252) 

Unique number of pregnant participants 138 196 Increase (300) 

Unique number of support persons attending sessions 107 159 Increase (225) 

Percent of women who initiate breastfeeding 93% 90% Increase (95%) 

Percent of women who provide smoke-free environments for their 
babies 

90% 73% Increase (90%) 

Number of partner agencies offering SSFB sessions 1 (CAS) 2 (CAS and Health 
Zone) 

4 (CAS, Health Zone, and 
two new partnering 

agencies) 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Best Beginnings Team 
 

34 

 
SECTION F:  
STAFFING COSTS: 
 

 
 

2013 TOTAL FTES  
 

 
 

2014 ESTIMATED FTES  
 

 36.7 36.7 

MLHU Staff: 

Program Manager 
Public Health Nurse  
Family Home Visitor 
Social Worker 
Program Assistant  
Nurse Practitioner 

 
Contract Staff: 

Site Coordinators (0.1 FTE x 7 sites)  

 
3.0 

16.5 
10.5 
1.0 
4.0 
1.0 

 
 

0.7 

 
3.0 

18.0 
9.0 
1.0 
4.0 
1.0 

 
 

0.7 
 

 
 
SECTION G 
 

EXPENDITURES: 
 

Object of Expenditure 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Personnel Costs $   2,931,873 $   2,971,931 $   3,044,771 $   3,079,413 $      34,642 1.1% 

  Other Program Costs 250,999 211,562 259,203 248,577 (10,626) (4.1)% 

Total Expenditures $   3,182,872 $   3,183,493 $   3,303,974 $   3,327,990 $      24,016 0.7% 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Best Beginnings Team 
 

35 

 
SECTION H 
 

FUNDING SOURCES: 
 

Object of Revenue 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Cost-Shared $         555,608 $           606,943 $         547,839 $          571,855 $     24,016 4.4% 

  MOHLTC – 100% 86,721 92,939 88,455 88,455   

  MCYS – 100% 2,383,313 2,326,275 2,513,320 2,513,320   

  Public Health Agency 152,430 143,189 152,430 152,430   

  User Fees       

  Other Offset Revenue 4,800 14,147 1,930 1,930   

Total Revenues $      3,182,872 $        3,183,493 $      3,303,974 $      3,327,990 $      24,016 0.7% 

 
 

SECTION I 
KEY HIGHLIGHTS/INITIATIVES PLANNED FOR 2014  

 Increase access to PIPE, Triple P, NCAST parent child interaction scales for HBHC families 

 Continue with HBHC screen (liaison) outreach to community health care providers 

 Pilot a home visiting component of SSFB for pregnant women and pregnant teens who face significant barriers to attending group sessions. 

 Explore options for funding which will provide for a full-time administrative assistant to support this expanding program 

 Explore opportunities for partnering with additional community sites including the London Intercommunity Health Care Centre, Heartspace, and 
the Carling Thames Neighbourhood Family Centre 

 

  

SECTION J 
PRESSURES AND CHALLENGES 

 Achieving an increased percentage of completed HBHC screens relies on partner collaboration and compliance 

 Mitigating the resulting workload that will accompany increased rates of completed HBHC screens, specifically, increased staff time to follow up 
clients who are screened  and confirmed to be at-risk 

 The MCYS has not increased funding for HBHC to match costs of program 

 The growth of the SSFB program has resulted in a need for enhanced program assistant support beyond 0.5 FTE 

 Preliminary exploration has begun with the aboriginal community which could result in an expansion of the program to provide an aboriginal 
specific site for SSFB sessions 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Best Beginnings Team 
 

36 

 
SECTION K 
RECOMMENDED ENHANCEMENTS, REDUCTIONS AND EFFICIENCIES FOR 2014 

 
Reduction in Family Home Visiting - $124,165 – This proposal reduces 1.5 FTEs of Family Home Visitors ($112,500) and other program costs 
  by ($11,665) to meet budget constraints while continuing to deliver HBHC program components as specified by the Ministry of 
  Children and Youth Services. 
 
Reduction in liaison in shelters - $ 24,015 – This proposal reduces a 0.25 PHN working in shelters, community and family practice centres 

 
Increase in Nursing Child Assessment Satellite Tool (NCAST) - $124,165 - With the addition of 1.25 FTE PHN ($120,078) and support costs of 

  $4,087, this proposal aims to increase NCAST outreach to all HBHC families and enhance outcomes reliant on hospital  
  collaboration. 
 
Increase focus on Priority Populations - $48,031 – This proposal would focus an additional 0.5 PHN working with priority populations, in  
  particular, First Nations and New to Canada families. 

 

 
 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
 

37 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES 
 

CHILD HEALTH TEAM 
 
 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
 

38 

SECTION A 

 
SERVICE AREA 
 

Family Health Services MANAGER  NAME Suzanne Vandervoort DATE 

 
PROGRAM TEAM 
 

Child Health Team DIRECTOR NAME Diane Bewick February 12, 2014 

 

SECTION B 
 
SUMMARY OF TEAM PROGRAM 

 
The Child Health Team works with elementary schools (139 schools/45,000 children), teachers, parents and communities to address health 
issues impacting children and youth.  This work is approached using the foundations for a healthy school model which includes 4 components; 
High-Quality Instruction and Programs, Healthy Physical Environment, a Supportive Social Environment and Community Partnerships. The focus 
of child health initiatives is healthy eating, physical activity, mental wellness, growth and development and parenting.   
 

 

SECTION C 
 
ONTARIO PUBLIC HEALTH STANDARD(S), RELEVANT LEGISLATION OR REGULATION 

Ontario Public Health Standards: 

 Child Health Program  

 Chronic Disease and Injury Prevention  

 Infectious Diseases Program  

 Foundational Standard 

 Reproductive Health 
 
Child & Family Services Act, 1990 

 Duty to Report Legislation  
 

Thames Valley School Board Partnership Agreement 
 

 
  



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
Program:  Child Health Team 
 

39 

SECTION D 
COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #1   HEALTHY EATING 

 

Strategies for addressing healthy eating for school age children are done in partnership with elementary school board staff and include: 

 Activities to increase the consumption of fruits and vegetables through use of Nutrition Tools for Schools, Let’s Get Cookin,  Fresh from the Farm 
and ongoing work with Healthy School Committees 

 Development and dissemination of Family Meals Videos and Breakfast Videos for parents 
 Expansion of milk programs, hot lunch programs and breakfast programs 
 Support, education and resources provided to teachers, parents and students through multiple venues 
 Teaching and learning activities with groups of students – classroom, assembly, special health events 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #2  PHYSICAL ACTIVITY/SUNSENSE/INJURY PREVENTION 
 

Strategies to address the promotion of physical activity include: 

 Implementation of Active and Safe Routes to school program 

 Assisting schools to commit to the Outdoors Ultimate Playground and Bike Rodeo initiatives  

 Integrating sunsense and injury prevention initiatives into physical activity programs 

 Support, educate and ensure resources are provided to teachers and school staff through consultation, staff meeting and joint planning 

 Teaching and learning activities with groups of students  - classroom assemblies and special health events 

 Work with Healthy School committees to implement Daily Physical Activity (DPA) regulations 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #3  HEALTHY GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT  

 

Provide support, education and resources to teachers and other school personnel which promote healthy growth and development such as:  

 Skill building documents for teachers promoting student mental health launched 

 Implement OPHEA’s Smoke Free Ontario Pilot program with 5 schools to prevent tobacco use 

 Leading the Board wide Promote Healthy Living Champion Award process 

 Provide resources which develop general health literacy 

 Develop resources and esure their use in areas such as healthy sexuality and healthy relationships 

 Promote health literacy to JK/SK aged students through the use of “Murray and Bird” story book  

 Provide support, education and appropriate follow up to staff, students and families with medical conditions  i.e diabetes, allergies, asthma 
 Provide education and support regarding infectious diseases and vaccine preventable diseases. 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #4  PARENTING  

 

As parenting is the most modifiable risk factor in the prevention of abuse, chronic disease and mental illness, parenting is a critical component to work 
with families and specific initiative include: 

 Provide Triple P seminars, discussion groups and Tip Sheets to parents of school aged children 

 Implementing IParent social media information campaign which communicates positive parenting messages and directs parents to resources 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
Program:  Child Health Team 
 

40 

SECTION E 
 
PERFORMANCE/SERVICE LEVEL MEASURES 

 2012 2013 
(anticipated) 

2014 
(estimate/ 

same/increase/decrease) 
Component of Team #1: HEALTHY EATING 

# of Healthy School Committees 54 (39%) 45* (32%) Increase 69 (50%) 

Use of Nutrition Tools for Schools  N/A 12 schools Increase 

# of Teacher consultations related to health topics 700 
(183 Healthy Eating, 189 

Physical Activity, 29 Mental 
Wellness) 

 

685* Increase (700) 

COMPONENT OF TEAM #2: PHYSICAL ACTIVITY/SUNSENSE/INJURY PREVENTION 

Physical literacy workshop for school staff N/A Plan Implement & Evaluate 

# of schools with Active and Safe Routes to school N/A 7 Increase 

Presentations/formal discussion with student groups/classes 
 

599 600 Same 

Component of TEAM #3: GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT  

Health literacy tool for JK/SK (Murray and Bird storybook) 
 
 
 

N/A Tool developed and 
produced 

100% of schools 
receive resources and 

orientation for use. 
 

# of Healthy Living Champion Awards 
 

73 49* Increase 

COMPONENT OF TEAM #4:  PARENTING    

# of Triple P – seminars and discussion groups  33 sessions with 372 
Participants 

54 sessions, 627 parents Increase  

Positive Parenting iParent Campaign – implement a campaign 
in toddler, child and youth parenting 

N/A 4 – 1 toddler, 2 child, 1 
adolescent 

Increase 

 
*Decrease as result of Labour relations at school board 

  



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
Program:  Child Health Team 
 

41 

SECTION F 
 
STAFFING COSTS: 
 

 
 

2013 TOTAL FTES  
 

 
 

2014 ESTIMATED FTES 
 

 15.5 15.5 

Program Manager   
Public Health Nurses 
Program Assistant 

1.0 
13.5 
1.0 

1.0 
13.5 
1.0 

 
 
SECTION G 
 

EXPENDITURES: 
 

Object of Expenditure 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Personnel Costs $   1,399,124 $   1,369,160 $   1,432,449 $   1,432,449  0.0% 

  Other Program Costs 69,314 67,676 67,574 60,075 $  (7,499) (11.1)% 

Total Expenditures $   1,468,438 $   1,436,836 $   1,500,023 $   1,492,524 $  (7,499) (0.5)% 

 
SECTION H 
 

FUNDING SOURCES: 
 

Object of Revenue 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Cost-Shared $     1,467,359 $       1,428,757 $     1,499,684 $     1,492,185 $   (7,499) (0.5)% 

  MOHLTC – 100%       

  MCYS – 100%       

  User Fees       

  Other Offset Revenue 1,079 8,079 339 339   

Total Revenues $    1,468,438 $     1,436,836 $    1,500,023 $     1,492,524 $   (7,499) (0.5)% 

 
 
 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
Program:  Child Health Team 
 

42 

SECTION I 
 
KEY HIGHLIGHTS/INITIATIVES PLANNED FOR 2014  
 

 Implement Healthy Living Champion Award on-line in both French and English 

 Complete the evaluation for both Healthy Living Champions and Outdoors the Ultimate Playground 

 Provide leadership in planning and hosting the National Conference on Healthy Schools in London 

 Implement parenting education tracking system and online registration 
 Our team will take the lead in addressing the NutriSTEP accountability indicator 

 
 

SECTION J 
 
PRESSURES AND CHALLENGES 
 

 In Middlesex-London there are 139 elementary schools and we have 12.5 PHNs to provide service to students, teachers and parents.  We 
have limited resources to meet health demands in particular to ensure best practice and proper evaluation of all services provided. There are 
some valuable health topic areas that we are not able to address.  Another internal challenge for the Child Health Team is the academic year 
does not follow the calendar year for planning and budgeting. 

 

 

SECTION K 
 
RECOMMENDED ENHANCEMENTS, REDUCTIONS AND EFFICIENCIES FOR 2014 
 

 
Increase to Implementation of Developmental Assets – $50,532 – This shared proposal (between the Child Health Team (0.5 PHN) and the 
   Young Adult Team (0.5 PHN) or $48,031 plus $2,501 in support costs) is a collaborative effort to plan, develop, implement and 
   evaluate the Developmental Asset Framework – an evidence-based approach to positive child and adolescent development. 
 
Reduction for Thames Valley Early Learning Program & Anaphylaxis Training - $58,031 – This proposal eliminates this program which  
   supports parents to optimize their child’s readiness for school, and provides training to schools on anaphylaxis. It reduces PHN 
   resources by 0.5 FTE or $48,031 and program costs of $10,000. 
  

 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 

43 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES 
 

YOUNG ADULT TEAM 
 
 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
 

44 

SECTION A 

 
SERVICE AREA 
 

Family Health Services MANAGER  NAME Christine Preece DATE 

 
PROGRAM TEAM 
 

Young Adult Team DIRECTOR NAME Diane Bewick February 12, 2014 

 

SECTION B 
 
SUMMARY OF TEAM PROGRAM 

The Young Adult Team focuses on the healthy growth and development of adolescents and young adults. The team works primarily in 24 
secondary high schools and several community settings to address the complex health and social issues that impact youth by utilizing a 
comprehensive health promotion programming approach. The team works in partnership with local school boards, school administrators, youth 
groups, neighbouring health units, community agencies and various teams from within MLHU to ensure a comprehensive health promotion 
approach. 
 

 

SECTION C 
 
ONTARIO PUBLIC HEALTH STANDARD(S), RELEVANT LEGISLATION OR REGULATION 

Ontario Public Health Standards: 

 Child & Youth Health Program Standard 

 Chronic Disease and Injury Prevention Standard  

 Infectious Diseases Program Standard 

 Sexual health Standard 

 Reproductive Health Standard 
 
Child & Family Services Act, 1990 

 Duty to Report Legislation  
 
Thames Valley School Board Partnership Agreement 
 

  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Young Adult Team  
 

45 

SECTION D 
COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #1: YOUTH HEALTH AND MENTAL WELL BEING 

The Young Adult Team implements a series linked activities in partnership with school partners which support positive youth development such as 
facilitation of small groups, one-to-one support, student youth engagement, health communication campaigns, physical literacy plan and regular 
school and home health newsletters. When possible, staff initiate and work with Healthy School committees in each school where health related 
issues are identified and students take leadership addressing them.  The team is hosting the National Healthy Schools Conference in London this 
Spring focused on the development of the whole child.  

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #2:  PARENT ENGAGEMENT IN SCHOOL COMMUNITIES 

The parent engagement initiative provides parents with education and skill building opportunities to increase their knowledge about the importance 
of positive parenting. A five year plan has been developed to engage parents in their school communities.  Strategies include the launching of 
“Parenting Your Teen” videos, parenting support programs, establishment of parent involvement committees and reaching out to parents through 
newsletters and parent council packages. 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #3:   BE BRIGHTER WITH BREAKFAST 

Be Brighter with Breakfast aims at increasing knowledge about the importance of  eating a healthy breakfast, regular breakfast eating and 
consumption of fruits and vegetables among secondary school youth.  A series of comprehensive activities are showing a nutrition improvement 
with youth. 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Young Adult Team  
 

46 

SECTION E 
PERFORMANCE/SERVICE LEVEL MEASURES 

 2012 2013 
(anticipated) 

2014 
(estimate/ 

same/increase/decrease) 

COMPONENT OF TEAM #1:  YOUTH HEALTH AND MENTAL WELL BEING 

# of schools with active healthy school committees 14 *12  Increase  

# of student receiving one-on-one support from school nurse 4,891 
(617 referrals to 

community 
agencies) 

1,931 
(896 referrals to 

community agencies) 

Same 
 

COMPONENT OF TEAM #2: PARENT ENGAGEMENT IN SCHOOL COMMUNITIES 

# of educational/skill building activities offered to parents of teens in Middlesex-
London  

54 95  Increase 

# of activities offered in partnerships with parent councils  Development 
phase 

45  Same  

Parent engagement in activities aimed at positive teen parenting.  
- Parent meetings/community events 

 
Development 

phase 
 

 

 4,750 parents  

 
Increase participation 

- parenting your teen videos 10 videos viewed 
12,000 times 

 
 

 25 videos viewed 
25,000 times 

 

 1,000 parents 
subscribed to 

newsletter 

 1,300 parents 
receive 
newsletter 

Increase 
 

 244 parents 
counselled 

 800 parents 
counselled 

Same 

COMPONENT OF TEAM #3:  BE BRIGHTER WITH BREAKFAST 

Increase in morning meal intake  Development 
phase 

Increase (3%) 
 

Increase  

Increase in percentage of students that ate 3 of 4 food groups at breakfast Development 
phase 

Increase (8%) 
 

Increase 

Increase in consumption of fruits and vegetables among youth at secondary 
schools 

Development 
phase 

Increase (3%)  
 

Increase  

* decrease due to School Board labor disruption 
 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Young Adult Team  
 

47 

SECTION F 
 
STAFFING COSTS: 
 

 
 

2013 TOTAL FTES  
 

 
 

2014 ESTIMATED FTES 
 

 12.0 12.0 

Program Manager 
Public Health Nurses 
Program Assistant 
Health Promoter  
Dietitian  

1.0 
8.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 

1.0 
8.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 

 

SECTION G 
 

EXPENDITURES: 
 

Object of Expenditure 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Personnel Costs $   1,009,221 $   1,014,146 $   1,055,767 $   1,055,767  0.0% 

  Other Program Costs 73,110 75,159 70,310 66,810 (3,500) (4.9)% 

Total Expenditures $   1,082,331 $   1,089,305 $   1,126,077 $   1,122,577 $  (3,500) (0.3)% 

 

SECTION H 
 

FUNDING SOURCES: 
 

Object of Revenue 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Cost-Shared $     1,082,331 $     1,086,730 $    1,126,077 $     1,122,577 $  (3,500) (0.3)% 

  MOHLTC – 100%       

  MCYS – 100%       

  User Fees       

  Other Offset Revenue  2,575     

Total Revenues $     1,082,331 $     1,089,305 $    1,126,077 $    1,122,577 $  (3,500) (0.3)% 

 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  Young Adult Team  
 

48 

SECTION I 
 
KEY HIGHLIGHTS/INITIATIVES PLANNED FOR 2014  
 

 Comprehensive Healthy Schools implementation focusing on three themes: healthy eating, physical activity, and mental wellness 

 Leading the planning of the National/Provincial Healthy Schools Conference in April 2014 to be held in London. 

 Research and planning for Development Assets with Community Partners and School Boards 
 Strengthening parent and youth engagement 

 

SECTION J 
 
PRESSURES AND CHALLENGES 
 

Pressure for Public Health Nurses to do more in secondary school settings as the health needs are becoming more prevalent among our youth and 
their families.  

 
SECTION K 
 
RECOMMENDED ENHANCEMENTS, REDUCTIONS AND EFFICIENCIES FOR 2014 
 

 
Dis-investment in Youth Create Healthy Communities Program - $54,031 – This proposal will reduce staff time (0.5 PHN or $48,031) working 

   with youth in after school programs.  Instead other youth engagement strategies will be used to assist with the implementation of 
   youth engagement activities in school and community settings. This proposal includes a reduction of $6,000 in other program costs. 
 
 
Increase to Implementation of Developmental Assets – $50,531 – This shared proposal (between the Child Health Team (0.5 PHN) and the 

   Young Adult Team (0.5 PHN) or $48,031 plus $2,500 in support costs) is a collaborative effort to plan, develop, implement and 
   evaluate the Developmental Asset Framework – an evidence-based approach to positive child and adolescent development. 
 

 
 



                                            2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES & LABOUR RELATIONS 
 

 



                                            2014 Planning & Budget Template      

2 

 
 
 
 
 
SECTION A 
 

 
SERVICE AREA 
 

Human Resources & Labour 
Relations 

MANAGER  NAME  DATE 

 
PROGRAM TEAM 
 

Human Resources & Labour 
Relations 

DIRECTOR NAME Laura Di Cesare January 2014 

 

SECTION B 

 
SUMMARY OF TEAM PROGRAM 

 The HRLRS Team is comprised of the Human Resources, Library Services and Reception functions. 

 Our role is to provide value-added HR and OD strategies to our program partners that: identify and respond to the changing needs of the 

organization; builds communication between employees and management; and mitigates risk to the organization. 

 The HR department balances service and regulatory requirements with responsibility for supporting all phases of the Employment Life Cycle. 

 Library Services supports MLHU employees and is also one of 4 hub libraries in the province. 

 Reception provides services at both the 50 King Street and Strathroy locations. 

 

SECTION C 
 

ONTARIO PUBLIC HEALTH STANDARD(S), RELEVANT LEGISLATION OR REGULATION 

HUMAN RESOURCES: Ontario Employment Standards Act, 2000; Labour Relations Act Ontario, 1995; Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities 
Act (AODA), 2005; Pay Equity Act, 1990; OHSA, 1990; Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, 1990, OMERS Act, 2006; Pension Benefits Act, 
1990; Bill 32, 2013; 
 
LIBRARY: Foundational Standard – supports evidenced based program delivery and knowledge exchange 
 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template 
 
Program:  Human Resources & Labour Relations 
 

3 

SECTION D 

 
COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #1 – HUMAN RESOURCES 
Human Resources responsibilities include all components related to an employee’s “life-cycle” while at MLHU. These responsibilities include  
a) Workforce Planning (e.g. recruitment; succession planning; HR Metrics and reporting to support strategic and operational initiatives);  

b) Workforce Engagement (e.g. orientation; employee training and development initiatives; rollout of new agency-wide initiatives);  

c) Workforce Maintenance (e.g. Collective Agreement negotiations and grievance management; job design and evaluation; benefits and pension 

administration; performance management; policy development/administration); and  

d) Workforce Separation (e.g. management and administration of resignations, retirements and terminations). 

 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #2  - LIBRARY SERVICES 

MLHU Public health librarians offer training and help with accessing and using the products and services of the library in addition to providing 
reference services, interlibrary loans, and bibliographic database searching. As part of the Shared Library Services Partnership (SLSP) launched 
by Public Health Ontario, the MLHU Library provides library services to 5 additional health units including Chatham-Kent Health Unit, Elgin-St. 
Thomas Public Health, Haldimand Norfolk Health Unit, Niagara Region Public Health, and Windsor-Essex County Health Unit. 
 

 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #3 - RECEPTION 

Reception services provided at 50 King and in Strathroy include, greeting and redirecting clients, switchboard operation and mail services.  At 50 
King Street they also include providing coverage for the vaccine clerk. In Strathroy, they provide administrative support for office staff and assist 
with the Family Planning/STI clinics. 
 
 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template 
 
Program:  Human Resources & Labour Relations 
 

4 

SECTION E 
 

PERFORMANCE/SERVICE LEVEL MEASURES 
 2012 2013 

(anticipated) 
2014 

(estimate) 
(same/ increase/ 

decrease) 

Component of Team #1 – Human Resources 

Employee Engagement Score N/A N/A Benchmark Year 

Internal Client Satisfaction Survey N/A N/A Benchmark Year  

Component of Team # - Library Services 

Internal Client Satisfaction Survey N/A N/A Benchmark Year  

 
MLHU 

SLSP 
(started 

May 2012) 

% completed 
within target 

MLHU 

SLSP 
(started 

May 
2012) 

% 
completed 

within 
target 

 

% of reference questions acknowledged within 1 day and 
completed within a timeline agreed upon with the requestor 

468 
reference 

questions  

102 
references 

questions  

100% 851 
reference 

questions  

239 
reference 

questions  

100%  

% of Comprehensive Literature Searches completed within the 4 
week Service Delivery Target 

172 search 
requests   

82  
search 

requests  

100% 123 search 
requests  

98  
search 

requests 

100%  

% of Article Retrieval/document delivery completed within the 5 
day Service Delivery Target 

1,331 items  658 items  100% 2523 items  1792 

items  
100%  

Component of Team #3 - Reception 

Internal Client Satisfaction Survey N/A N/A Benchmark Year  

% of calls completed within an average of 3 minutes  (Avg. 80 calls/day) 100% Same 

 
 

  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template 
 
Program:  Human Resources & Labour Relations 
 

5 

SECTION F 
 

STAFFING COSTS: 
 

 
 

2013 TOTAL FTES 

 
 

2014 ESTIMATED FTES 

 9.4 9.4 

Director  
HR Officer 
HR Coordinator 
Administrative Assistant to the Director 
Student Education Program Coordinator 
Librarian 
Program Assistant  

1.0 
2.0 
1.0 
0.5 
0.5 
2.0 
2.4 

1.0 
2.0 
1.0 
0.5 
0.5 
2.0 
2.4 

 
SECTION G 
 

EXPENDITURES: 
 

Object of Expenditure 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
Personnel Costs $  776,975 $   783,244 $   811,968 $   860,568 $  48,600 6.0% 

Other Program Costs 96,065 115,581 96,065 79,165 (16,900) (17.6)% 

Total Expenditures $  873,040 $   898,825 $   908,033 $   939,733 $  31,700  3.5% 

 

SECTION H 
 

FUNDING SOURCES: 
 

Object of Revenue 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
Cost-Shared $   763,040 $     772,696 $   798,033 $   829,733 $  31,700 4.0% 

MOHLTC – 100% 110,000 101,088 110,000 110,000 0  

MCYS – 100%       

User Fees       

Other Offset Revenue  25,041     

Total Revenues $   873,040 $    898,825 $    908,033 $   939,733 $  31,700 3.5% 
 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template 
 
Program:  Human Resources & Labour Relations 
 

6 

SECTION I 
 

KEY HIGHLIGHTS/INITIATIVES PLANNED FOR 2014  
 

 Within the context of the PWC review and recommendations, and under new leadership, Human Resources staff functions will be refocused, 
including Occupational Health and Safety and Strategic Initiatives, to gain efficiencies and demonstrate the value added impact of the Human 
Resources and Corporate Strategy team. This will be achieved by identifying key performance indicators, changing processes and procedures 
in order to collect and analyze the metrics, with respect to the key indicators and proposing new strategies for workforce planning. 

 The collective agreements for both CUPE and ONA expire March 31, 2014.  Negotiations can be expected to commence before the summer. 

 Ongoing and new initiatives related to attendance management, accommodation and other legislated requirements will be supported through 
coordinated education and skills training for both staff and management.  

 
SECTION J 
 

PRESSURES AND CHALLENGES 
 

 Developing the direction for change, as well as managing the changes, will be a significant challenge for the incoming Director as well as for 
the staff.  As indicated in the PWC report, the team is willing and ready to make changes.  However, changes in this area impact all other areas 
of the Health Unit, and others will need to have input into changes that affect them, as well as having the changes well communicated.  

 There needs to be a major shift from being reactive to demands for service to being proactive and strategic. There is a need to develop metrics 
and indicators to make this shift.  This will place added pressure on the HR staff as quick and reliable customer service has always been a 
priority. 

 The challenge for negotiations with the unions will come from the provincial government’s direction regarding fiscal restraint. 

 As the demand for evidence—based research increases along with the reputation of the librarians for being a valued resource, the increased 
requests for services may mean a decline in the ability to meet the service delivery timelines. 

 

SECTION K 

 
RECOMMENDED ENHANCEMENTS, REDUCTIONS AND EFFICIENCIES FOR 2014 
 

Reduction in Newspaper Advertising for Vacancies  -$10,000 

Reduction in Volunteer Program Budget   -$  3,500 

Reduction in Staff Development    -$  3,400 

One-time expense recommendation to hire 0.5 FTE that would support development of tools and training materials to address strategic HR initiatives related 

to policy training requirements as well as support the administrative needs of the ONA and CUPE negotiation committees  +$48,600 

 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GENERAL EXPENSES & REVENUES 
 

 
 



                                              2014 Planning & Budget Template      

 
 

2 

SECTION A 

 
SERVICE AREA 
 

General Expenses & 
Revenues 

MANAGER  NAME  DATE 

 
PROGRAM TEAM 
 

General Expenses & 
Revenues 

DIRECTOR NAME Senior Leadership Team February 12, 2014 

 

SECTION B 
SUMMARY OF TEAM PROGRAM 

General Expenses & Revenues is a centralized budget managed by the Senior Leadership Team related to Board of Health meetings, general 
Health Unit property costs, risk management & audit, post-employment benefits, employee assistance program (EAP), managed position 
vacancies, and general offset revenues. 
 

 

SECTION C 
ONTARIO PUBLIC HEALTH STANDARD(S), RELEVANT LEGISLATION OR REGULATION 

 Ontario Public Health Organizational Standards: 

o 2.1 Remuneration of board of health members 

o 6.2 Risk Management 

o 6.9 Capital Funding Plan 

 Section 49, Health Protection & Promotion Act – as it relates to the payment of Board of Health members 

 

SECTION D 
 
COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #1   - BOARD OF HEALTH & COMMITTEES 
 

This program budget supports the remuneration of board of health members as described in Section 49 of the Health Protection and Promotion Act.  
Remuneration includes meeting stipend, travel costs and payments for professional development opportunities 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #2  - FACILITIES / OCCUPANCY COSTS 

This component supports the resource allocation for health unit offices which includes the following expenditure categories: 

 Leasing costs 

 Utilities – Hydro, telephone & other communications costs, and water, 

 Janitorial contracts 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  General Expenses & Revenues 
 

3 

 Security contracts. 

 General office & equipment maintenance and repairs. 

 Management of the multi-purpose photocopiers. 

 General office supplies (copy paper, batteries, forms etc.) & postage and courier costs. 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #3 – INSURANCE, AUDIT, LEGAL FEES AND RESERVE FUND CONTRIBUTIONS 

This component supports the insurance needs of the organization, annual audit fees, legal and other professional services and provides the budget 
for reserve fund contributions. 
 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #4 – POST-EMPLOYMENT & OTHER BENEFITS AND VACANCY MANAGEMENT 

This component supports the allocation of resources for general employee benefits (listed below) and is the area where the health unit budgets for 
managed position vacancies. 
 
General employee benefits include: 

 Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 

 Post-employment benefits (retirees) 

 Supplemental Employment Insurance benefits 

 Sick Leave payments which are funded by the Sick Leave Reserve Fund 

COMPONENT(S) OF TEAM PROGRAM #5 – GENERAL OFFSET REVENUES 

General revenues accounted for in this section are non-program specific in nature such interest revenue, property searches and miscellaneous 
revenue.  

 
 

SECTION E 
PERFORMANCE/SERVICE LEVEL MEASURES 

 2012 2013 
(anticipated) 

2014 
(estimate/ 

same/increase/decrease) 

Component of Team #1 - #5 

No specific performance / service level measures are available for these components at this time.  During 2014 these will be developed and will be part 
of future budget presentations. 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  General Expenses & Revenues 
 

4 

SECTION F 
 
STAFFING COSTS: 
 

 
 

2013 TOTAL FTES 

 
 

2014 ESTIMATED FTES 

   

 
No FTEs 

 
 

  

 
 

SECTION G 
 

EXPENDITURES: 
 

Object of Expenditure 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Personnel Costs $      301,560 $        269,925 $      (58,200) $     (435,339) $    (377,139) (648.0)% 

  Other Program Costs 2,328,756 2,387,413 2,185,746 2,527,696 341,950 15.7% 

Total Expenditures $   2,630,316 $     2,657,338 $   2,127,546 $    2,092,357 $      (35,189) (1.7) 

 
 
SECTION H 
 

FUNDING SOURCES: 
 

Object of Revenue 2012 Budget  2012 Actual 2013 Budget 
2014 Draft 

Budget 

$ increase 
($ decrease) over 

2013 

% increase 
(% decrease) 

over 2013 
  Cost-Shared $     2,614,286 $      2,630,889 $       2,096,516 $     2,061,327 $  (35,189) (1.7)% 

  MOHLTC – 100%       

  MCYS – 100%       

  User Fees 3,750 3,051 3,750 3,750   

  Other Offset Revenue 12,280 23,398 27,280 27,280   

Total Revenues $      2,630,316 $     2,657,338 $      2,127,546 $     2,092,357 $  (35,189) (1.7)% 



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  General Expenses & Revenues 
 

5 

 

SECTION I 
 
KEY HIGHLIGHTS/INITIATIVES PLANNED FOR 2014  

 The initiatives and highlights affecting this budget are related to those described under the “Operations” portfolio.  That is to develop a 
facilities plan for the office space and improve office space utilization.   

 Review the health unit’s insurance requirements and to the best value for money. 

 Implement contract changes for both security and janitorial services 
 
 
 

SECTION J 
 
PRESSURES AND CHALLENGES 

 Implementation of the Board of Health Reserve / Reserve Fund Policy with the addition of two new reserve funds. (Facilities Reserve Fund & 
Technology Reserve Fund). 

 This budget includes an increase of $484,066 in managed position vacancies for a total of $764,066.  For the health unit to achieve its 
reserve fund contributions objectives position vacancies will need to be closely examined. 

 Both the Ontario Nurses’ Association (ONA) and Canadian Union of Public Employees (CUPE) contracts expire March 31st, 2014, therefore 
the future costs are uncertain. 

 

 
  



 

    2014 Planning & Budget Template      
 

Program:  General Expenses & Revenues 
 

6 

 

SECTION K 
RECOMMENDED ENHANCEMENTS, REDUCTIONS AND EFFICIENCIES FOR 2014 

 
Reductions resulting from changes in service contracts - $49,800 – Three proposals relate to creating efficiencies and result in altering  

  contractual agreements. 
 
Reductions in insurance costs - $28,250 – This proposal relates to possible savings resulting from obtaining insurance through a competitor.  
  Currently the Health Unit obtains its insurance through the City of London’s policy.  The City acts as both the insurer (self -insurance) 
  and the broker (insurance premiums).  Further information can be found in Report No. 001-13C 
 
Reduced use of legal services - $40,000 – Historically, legal counsel has been used for union negotiation, bargaining, dispute resolution, and 

  contract review and preparation.  This proposal would reduce reliance on these services. 
 
Reduction related to recognizing additional position vacancies - $535,163 – This proposal increase the agencies position vacancy budget by 

  $300,000 to allow for annual contributions to reserve funds, and for an additional $235,163 to fund one-time investment proposals 
  as identified in the Program Budget Marginal Analysis process. 
 
Enhancement – Contributions to new reserve funds - $450,000 – This proposal would request the Board of Health to create three new reserve 

  funds, one for an annual contribution of $200,000 for costs associated with the Boards of Health’s use of property, another for 
  $50,000 annually for future purchases relating to Information Technology, and another $200,000 for a new salary stabilization 
  reserve fund. 
 
Enhancement – Prioritize Software - $10,000 – This proposal will assist in the efficient gathering of information related to Program Budget  

  Marginal Analysis (PBMA) initiative as part of the integrated planning and budgeting process recommended by    
  PricewaterhouseCoopers. 
 
Enhancement – Salary & Benefit adjustments - $158,024 - This item relates to expected salary and benefit changes.  
 

 

 
 

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2013-08-report-001-13c.pdf


                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 06-14FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health 

 

DATE:  2014 February 12 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2014 BUDGET OVERVIEW 
 

Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee make the following recommendations 

regarding the 2014 Operating Budget to the Board of Health: 

 

1) That the Board of Health approve the 2014 Operating Budget in the gross amount of $33,305, 620 

as appended to Report No. 006-14FFC “2014 Budget Overview”; and further 

2) That Report No. 006-14FFC be forwarded to the City of London and the County of Middlesex for 

information; and 

3) That staff submit the 2014 Operating Budget in the Ministry of Health & Long-Term Care’s 

Program Based Grant format. 

 

Key Points  
 

 

 The development of the 2014 Proposed Operating Budget began to address the recommendation from 

PricewaterhouseCoopers for the Health Unit to include both planning and budgeting information in its 

annual budget process. 

 The 2014 Proposed Operating Budget was developed with an estimated 2% increase in Mandatory 

Program funding from the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care, a 0% increase from the City of 

London and the County of Middlesex, and a 0% increase for all other programs.  

 The overall 2014 Operating Budget as presented in Appendix B is increasing $303,286 or 0.92%.  This 

is due to expected increases in staff-related costs, and is to be funded mainly through provincial grants. 

 

  
Background  
 

A key recommendation of the PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) Shared Services Review was for the Health 

Unit to become a more integrated and cohesive organization.  An identified supporting initiative was to 

integrate and align service area planning and budgeting activities to mitigate against risk of unplanned 

expenditures and to support optimal allocation of resources to key initiatives. 

 

Table 1 below lists some of PwC’s observations regarding this recommendation.  The budget development 

process for 2014 was revisited to address this recommendation and these observations. 

 

  

  



2014 February 12 -  2  - Report No.06-14FFC 

 

  

  

Table 1 – PricewaterhouseCoopers Observations and Steps Taken to Respond 

 

PwC Observations (Pre-2014 Budget Process) Steps Taken in 2014 Budget Process 

1. In general, the MLHU’s operational plans 
are based on available budget. Finance 
provides estimates of grant revenues to 
the senior leadership team who then 
decides on the allocation of resources to 
departments. 

2. Budgeting at the department level is 
based on historical “carry-over” budgets 
as opposed to using a ground-up 
budgeting approach.  

3. Operational plans are driven more by the 
budget than by actual operational 
requirements – there is an inherent 
disconnect between planning and 
budgeting activities. 

4. Operational plans are also not known or 
available at the time resources are 
allocated.  

5. There is a need to formalize a process to 
reallocate resources “in-year,” after the 
original budget has been approved. 

 New budget document template 

 Relevant planning is conducted 
prior to budget decisions, and 
relevant information is included in 
budget documents  

 Program Budgeting and Marginal 
Analysis process (PBMA) 
implemented  

 Board of Health approved criteria 
used to guide budget 
recommendations 

 Over 100 proposals reviewed and 
prioritized based on criteria 

 Priorities for use of available funds 
included for consideration by 
Finance and Facilities Committee 
and the Board of Health as part of 
the budget process 

 Indicators of efficiency, service 
levels and program impacts 
included as part of budget 
documents 

 

 

Program Budget Marginal Analysis 
 

New for the development of the 2014 budget, the use of “Program Budgeting and Marginal Analysis 

[PBMA], which transparently applies pre-defined criteria to prioritize where proposed decreases or increases 

could be made,” to facilitate “reallocation of resources based on maximizing the value of services across the 

four principles of the Ontario Public Health Standards [OPHS] (Need, Impact, Capacity, and 

Partnerships/Collaboration).”  Attached as Appendix A, is a list of the revised proposals for dis-investment, 

re-investment and one-time investments.  The proposals have been incorporated in to the draft 2014 planning 

& budgeting templates. 

 

Planning & Budgeting Templates 
 
Also new for the 2014 budget is the introduction of Planning & Budgeting Templates.  These templates 

provide both planning & budgeting information and are meant to increase transparency and provide 

additional program information for the Board to make resource allocation decisions.  Over the past two 

Finance & Facilities Committee meetings the members reviewed the Planning & Budget Templates for 

Finance & Operations Services, Information Technology Services, Environmental Health, Chronic Disease 

and Injury Prevention Services, Office of the Medical Officer of Health, and Oral Health, Communicable 

Diseases and Sexual Health Services.  As part of this agenda, Report No. 005-14FFC provides the last three 

templates for the committees review.  The templates are for Human Resources & Labour Relations Services, 

Family Health Services, and Corporate Expenses & Revenues.   

 

2014 Proposed Board of Health Budget 

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-02-12-report-06-14-ffc-appendix-a.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-02-12-report-05-14-ffc.pdf


2014 February 12 -  2  - Report No.06-14FFC 

 

  

 

On June 20
th
, 2013 the Board of Health reviewed Report No. 078-13 and directed staff to develop the 2014 

Cost-Shared budget and associated plans based on a 0% increase from the City of London and the County of 

Middlesex.  Attached as Appendix B, is the 2014 Proposed Budget Summary that provides gross 

expenditures and revenues for the various programs and provides.  For ease of accessing this information all 

templates have been consolidated into one document and links created to each of the Planning & Budgeting 

Templates.  

 

The proposed budget includes an anticipated 2% increase in provincial funding for the Mandatory Programs 

and a 0% increase for the remaining programs.  As can be seen, the proposed 2014 budget includes an 

increase of $303,286 or 0.92%.  This increase is mainly related to increased staffing costs and is to be funded 

through the expected 2% increase to the Mandatory Programs grant from the MOHLTC of $308,024, 

reductions in 100% ministry grants of $27,738, and an increase of $23,000 in other revenue and user fees. 

 

 

This report was prepared by Mr. John Millson, Director of Finance & Operations. 

 

 

 

 

Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health 

 

 

 

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2013-06-report-078-13.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-02-12-report-06-14-ffc-appendix-b.pdf


Program Budget Marginal Analysis Proposals 
Proposed Areas for Disinvestment 

(Revised February 12
th

, 2014) 

 

No. Dept. Dis-Investments Value FTE Score 

4 FHS Tyke Talk Health Promoter $0 0.4 -141 

7 FHS Infant Hearing Program: Auditory Verbal Therapists $0 0.15 0 

9 FHS Blind Low Vision Program: Family Support Workers $0 0.3 -142 

12 EHCDP Website & Health Inequities Program Reassignment $96,393 1 PHN -75 

18 FHS Youth Create Healthy Communities $54,031 0.5 PHN -77 

26 FHS Smart Start for Babies Prenatal Nutrition Program $7,622 0 -18 

29 FHS Healthy Babies Healthy Children $124,165 1.5 FHV -118 

30 EHCDP Consulting Services for Health Hazards $10,000 0 -10 

31 FHS Best Beginnings Team – Cost Share $24,015 0.25 PHN -245 

34 EHCDP Food Safety Materials $20,000 0 -27 

38 OMOH Travel Clinic Contract Renegotiation $29,106 0.4 PA -4 

42 FHS 

Thames Valley Early Learning Program &  

Anaphylaxis Training $58,031 0.5 PHN 

-43 

43 EHCDP Beach Management Program $15,000 0.15 PHI -35 

48 FHS Reduced Reproductive Health PA Support $30,659 0.5 PA -85 

49 OMOH Reduced Communications PA Support $10,400 0.2 PA -44 

62 FHS Change in Let’s Grow Resources $5,000 0 0 

63 OHCDSH Sexual Health Clinic Efficiencies $34,000 0 -26 

64 FHS Just Beginnings Efficiencies $24,015 0.25 PHN -28 

66 OMOH Office of the Medical Officer of Health Efficiencies $18,525 0 0 

67 IT IT Administrative Support $35,019 0.5 PA -14 

72 FHS Health Connection Efficiencies $15,329 0.25 PA -41 

85 HRLR Reduction in Newspaper Advertising for Vacancies $10,000 0 0 

86 HRLR Reduction in Volunteer Program Budget $3,500 0 -3 

87 HRLR Reduction in Staff Development $3,400 0 -59 

93 FHS Reduction in Social Marketing Campaigns $39,100 0.1 PHN -61 

99 FHS Casual Public Health Nurse and Operational Budget $79,946 0.75 PHN -90 

102 IT Director Position Wage Differential $20,000 0 0 

103 FOS Reduced Accounts Payable PA $36,300 0.5 PA -18 

106 GER Reduction in service contract $30,000 0 -26 

107 MLHU New Broker for General Liability Insurance $28,250 0 0 

109 MLHU Lower Use of Legal Services $40,000 0 0 

110 OMOH Public Fit-Testing Services  $5,000 0 -29 

112 GER Reduction in service contract $8,300 0 -26 

113 GER Reduction in service contract $11,500 0 0 

  Total $926,606 8.2 -1,485 

 

*PHN = Public health nurse; PA = Program assistant; PHI = Public health inspector; PE = Program 

evaluator; FHV = Family home visitor 

 

  

Appendix A 



2014 February 12   
 

  

Disinvestment Descriptions 
(Revised – February 12, 2014) 

 

No. 4 - Tyke Talk Health Promoter 

This proposal recommends ending the contract Health Promoter position in favour of other strategies to 

build community and partner capacity for this program. 

 

No. 7 - Infant Hearing Program: Auditory Verbal Therapists 

This proposal would build capacity of existing Speech-Language Pathologists to provide auditory verbal 

(AV) therapy to children, and decrease the contract with specialized AV therapists. 

 

No. 9 - Blind Low Vision Program: Family Support Workers 

This proposal recommends ending the family support working components of the provincial Blind Low 

Vision (BLV) Early Intervention Program in favour of other strategies to support families adjust to the BLV 

diagnosis. 

 

No. 12 - Website & Health Inequities Program Reassignment 

This position assisted with the development of and transition to the new website and staff will now integrate 

website work into their individual assignments. The EHCDP Management Team will develop a strategy to 

address Health Inequities in the service area program delivery. 

 

No. 18 - Youth Create Healthy Communities  

This initiative involves young people meeting after school to plan, develop and implement strategies to 

address the issues local health issues. However, there are other youth engagement initiatives where 

adolescents can become involved in a meaningful way, and nurses in secondary schools can link youth to 

other youth engagement initiatives in the health unit and/community. 

 

No. 26 - Smart Start for Babies Prenatal Nutrition Program 

This program had allocated $5,000 for prenatal e-learning. However, priority prenatal populations have not 

embraced e-learning to compliment in-person prenatal education. 

 

No. 29 - Healthy Babies Healthy Children 

Family Home Visitors provide valuable services to vulnerable families. However, it is anticipated that the 

2014 Healthy Babies Healthy Children funding will remain the same; not accommodating increases in 

program and staffing costs. 

 

No. 30 - Consulting Services for Health Hazards 

External consultants are necessary on occasion when health hazards arise in the community. However, the 

need for consultants is infrequent and unpredictable and better addressed on an ad hoc basis 

 

No. 31 – Best Beginnings – Cost Share 

Reduce PHN staff complement by 0.25 FTE. Activities affected by this reduction include PHN liaison in 

shelters, community liaison services (Limberlost) and PHN liaisons in Family Practice Centres (Victoria 

Family Medical Centre and Byron Family Medical Centre).  

 

No. 34 - Food Safety Materials 

This proposal would (a) discontinue “Food Talk” – a quarterly newsletter mailed to all moderate- and high-

risk food premises (1,600 mailed quarterly), and (b) discontinue printing and mailing food safety materials, 

and make them available online. 

 

No. 38 - Travel Clinic Contract Renegotiation 

The renegotiation of the travel clinic has identified resources that can be reallocated. This is a combination 

of a small amount of rent and the opportunity to redeploy some administrative support. 

 



2014 February 12   
 

  

 

No. 42 - Thames Valley Early Learning Program & Anaphylaxis Training 

This program supports parents to optimize their child’s readiness for school, and provides training to schools 

on anaphylaxis. The reduction of both these programs will free up a nurse to focus on other higher-impact 

child health programs. 

 

No. 43 - Beach Management Program 

There are six beaches within the geographic health unit, and beach management in mandated by the Ontario 

Public Health Standards. This proposal would discontinue beach surveillance at five of the six beaches and 

instead provide permanent postings at these beaches stating that they are not monitored. 

 

No.  48 - Reduced Reproductive Health PA Support 

Advanced graphic design and presentation development skills on the Reproductive Health Team has led to 

less requirement for centralized administrative support.  

 

No. 49 - Reduced Communications PA Support 

This proposal reduces administrative support to Communications by 20% in order to have this support focus 

on only the highest-priority organization-wide communications work.  

 

No. 62 - Change in Let’s Grow Resources 

Fewer dollars are needed to advertise the Let’s Grow Resource.  

 

No. 63 - Sexual Health Clinic Efficiencies 

This proposal captures a number of efficiencies realized by various service redesign initiatives.  

 

No. 64 - Just Beginnings Efficiencies 

Just Beginnings is a parenting program for first time mothers. This proposal shifts resources to focus on high 

priority infant mental health and early childhood development components of the program. 

  

No. 66 – Office of the Medical Officer of Health Efficiencies 

This proposal captures a number of efficiencies realized by changes to staff day planning, annual report 

production, accreditation, use of professional services, and the emergency response volunteer program. 

 

No. 67 - IT Administrative Support 

In conjunction with the realignment of the Information Technology (IT) Services reporting through to the 

Director of Finance & Operations, this proposal would decrease administrative support and allow the sharing 

of administrative support between Finance & Operations and the IT programs. 

  

No. 72 - Health Connection Efficiencies 

This proposal captures a number of efficiencies realized by redesign of the health connection telephone 

support service. 

 

No. 85 - Reduction in Newspaper Advertising for Vacancies 

Efficiencies will be realized by advertising through the London Free Press online service and reducing the 

number of job vacancies appearing in the newspaper.  Local newspaper advertising is believed to be less 

effective for filling vacancies for the majority of vacancies, ie. for healthcare professionals.  Such vacancies 

are also broadly advertised through e-mail list-serves and the websites of the relevant professional 

associations.  All job advertising now directs candidates to apply through the MLHU website where more 

information about the vacancies is provided.  

  



2014 February 12   
 

  

No. 86 - Reduction in Volunteer Program Budget 

This proposal captures efficiencies realized due to program changes that have decreased the number of 

volunteer hours and the nature of the volunteer work.  The Annual Volunteer Appreciation banquet has been 

replaced by smaller events recognizing volunteers throughout the year, with the support and involvement of 

the staff with whom the volunteers work. 

  

No. 87 - Reduction in Staff Development 

This proposal captures efficiencies realized through MLHU’s participation as a hub library in the Shared 

Library Services Program, which provides support for professional development for the library staff.  This 

amount includes travel and accommodation costs as well as conference/seminar costs. 

 

No. 93 - Reduction in Social Marketing Campaigns 

This proposal would be a reduction in health campaigns related to reproductive health. 

 

No. 99 - Casual Public Health Nurse and Operational Budget 

This proposal would see a reduction in funds for public health nurse coverage of family health nursing 

absences. 

 

No. 102 - Director Position Wage Differential 

This is a reduction to reflect the IT Director position being filled through a manager position. 

 

No. 103 - Reduced Accounts Payable PA 

Technology-facilitated process improvements (streamlining paper based processes) will reduced data entry 

demands for Finance and Operations Services. 

 

No. 106 - Reduced Service Contracts 

This proposal would examine the use of office space which requires negotiation with the lessor. 

 

No. 107 - New Broker for General Liability Insurance 

Currently the Health Unit obtains its insurance through the City of London's policy. The City acts as both the 

insurer (self-insurance) and the broker (insurance premiums). The Health Unit contributed $92K towards 

insurance premiums and a contribution to the City's self-insurance reserve fund. This proposal would be for 

the Health Unit to explore obtaining insurance through a competitor. 

 

No. 109 - Lower Use of Legal Services 

Historically, legal counsel has been used for union negotiations, bargaining, dispute resolution, and contract 

review and preparation. This proposal would promote less reliance on these services. 

 

No. 110 - Public Fit-Testing Services  

This program will offer fit-testing services (currently only offered in-house) to the public and partner health 

organizations, on a cost-recovery basis. 

 

No. 112 – Reduced Service Contract 

This proposal examines service contracts and would require negotiations and or notice to the service 

provider. 

 

No. 113 - Reduced Service Contract 

This proposal examines service contracts and would require negotiations and or notice to the service 

provider. 

  



2014 February 12   
 

  

Proposed Areas for Re-Investment 
(Revised February 12, 2014) 

 

No. Dept. Investments Value FTE  Score 

25 FHS Healthy Babies Healthy Children $124,165 1.25 PHN,  283 

27 FHS 

Infant Mental Health/Early Childhood 

Development $105,602 

1 PHN,  

0.25 PA 227 

33 FHS 

Best Beginnings Team Focus on Priority 

Populations $48,031 0.5 PHN 256 

46 EHCDP Well Water Program $15,000 0.15 PHI 180 

51 EHCDP Enhancement to Smoking Cessation Services $88,032 0.5 PHN 216 

53 FHS 

Expansion of Healthcare Provider Outreach 

Initiative $42,240 0.5 PHN 245 

54 OMOH PA Support for Strategic Projects $10,400 0.2 PA 181 

68 FHS Smart Start for Babies Prenatal Nutrition Program $7,622 0 268 

70 IT IT Development/Consulting $20,000 0 50 

71 FHS Public Health Nurse for Developmental Assets $101,063 1 PHN 250 

78 OHCDSH 

Public Health Nurse/Health Promoter for Social 

Determinants of Health / Health Promotion 
$47,562 0.5 PHN  211 

79 OHCDSH PA Support for Sexual Health $28,000 0.4 PA 107 

92 EHCDP PE Support for Environmental Health $62,090 0.75 PE 258 

96 EHCDP Tobacco Prevention Youth Engagement Strategy $22,000 0.9 Students 216 

111 OMOH Marketing and Promotion Position $36,641 0.5 Comm 250 

115 IT Enhanced Corporate Trainer $40,000 0.5 Trainer 47 

116 FHS Weekend Hearing Screening at LHSC $10,000 0.1 SLP 272 

117 MLHU PBMA Software $10,000 0 N/A 

  Total $818,448 9.0 3,517 

 

*PHN = Public health nurse; PA = Program assistant; PHI = Public health inspector; PE = Program 

evaluator; HP = Health promoter; Comm = Marketing coordinator; Students = Tobacco reduction students; 

SLP = Speech-language pathologist 

 

Re-Investment Descriptions 

 

No. 25 - Healthy Babies Healthy Children 

This proposal would aid nursing resources to increase Nursing Child Assessment Satellite Tool (NCAST) 

outreach to all Healthy Babies Healthy Children families. 

 

No. 27 - Infant Mental Health/Early Childhood Development 

Attachment and good nutrition are fundamental to the promotion of healthy child development. This 

proposal would see a nurse and assistant work in this area to promote infant mental health and positive early 

childhood development with high need families, caregivers, primary care providers, and other support 

services.    

 

  



2014 February 12   
 

  

No. 33 - Best Beginnings Team Focus on Priority Populations 

This proposal would focus on work with newcomers and include initiatives such as building capacity within 

communities to support newcomers' access to health information, health services, as well as parenting 

resources and supports. 

 

No. 46 - Enhanced Inspection of Public Pools and Spas 

This proposal aims to initiate an awareness campaign to reach private well owners and encourage them to 

safely manage their wells and test their well water regularly.  

 

No. 51 - Enhancement to Smoking Cessation Services 

This proposal seeks additional Public Health Nurse resources to support the uptake of nicotine replacement 

therapies with priority populations within our community. 

 

No. 53 - Expansion of Healthcare Provider Outreach Initiative 

This proposal would support MLHU to have better coordinated and integrated healthcare provider outreach. 

It is expected that this would increase efficiency, reduce duplication, and enhance healthcare providers' 

experience working with MLHU. 

 

No. 54 - PA Support for Strategic Projects 

This proposal would support critical administrative and risk management functions incl. policy development, 

records management, and strategic projects. Without this support, management time is spent on support 

functions, which slows progress and is an inefficient use of resources. 

 

No. 68 - Smart Start for Babies Prenatal Nutrition Program 

The proposal would provide Smart Start for Babies participants that choose to breastfeed their babies with a 

$20 voucher to purchase Vitamin D for their infants. 

 

No. 70 - IT Development/Consulting 

The proposal would be to increase IT resources to engage external consultants in the development of 

software applications for process improvements across the organization. 

 

No. 71 - Public Health Nurse for Developmental Assets 

This proposal would lead a collaborative effort to plan, develop, implement and evaluate the Developmental 

Asset Framework – an evidence-based approach to positive child and adolescent development. This 

framework has been used to advance this work at other health units. 

 

No. 78 - Public Health Nurse for Social Determinants of Health 

This proposal would see additional resources dedicated toward the social determinants of health and health 

promotion within Oral Health, Communicable Disease and Sexual Health. 

 

No. 79 - PA Support for Sexual Health 

This proposal will provide much needed administrative support to the Sexual Health Manager and Sexual 

Health Promotion Team. 

 

No. 92 - PE Support for Environmental Health 

This proposal will increase program evaluation resources that will improve MLHU’s understanding of 

population health need and its services’ impact on health outcomes. 

 

No. 96 - Tobacco Prevention Youth Engagement Strategy 

This proposal will significantly improve the youth engagement efforts related to chronic disease prevention 

and tobacco control. 

 

  



2014 February 12   
 

  

No. 111 - Marketing and Promotion Position 

This proposal will establish a part-time marketing role to provide support to teams across MLHU as well as 

launch a promotional campaign to raise awareness about the work and services of the Health Unit. 

 

No. 115 - Enhanced Corporate Trainer 

This proposal would increase the capacity of the corporate trainer, in order for staff to best utilize software 

that support efficient program planning and delivery. 

 

No. 116 – Weekend Hearing Screening at LHSC 

This proposal will increase hearing screening staff on weekends for newborns at London Health Sciences 

Centre. This means ~300 additional families will have access to in-hospital screening.  

 

No. 117 – PBMA Software 

Prioritize Software licensing and support costs to facilitate the PBMA process. 

 

  



2014 February 12   
 

  

Proposed One-Time Investments 
(Revised February 12

th
, 2014) 

 

No. Dept. Investments Value FTE  Score 

36 EHCDP in motion Community Challenge in Middlesex County $50,000 0 173 

37 EHCDP London Road Safety Strategy $10,000 0 157 

39 EHCDP Childhood Injury Prevention - Car Seat Safety $50,000 0 178 

88 HRLR HR Coordinator: Negotiations & Staff Development $48,600 0.5 HR 211 

95 FHS Temporary Program Evaluator $14,966 0.25 PE 270 

104 EHCDP Promotion of Artificial Tanning Legislation $35,000 0 168 

111 OMOH MLHU Promotion and Awareness Campaign $30,000 0 250 

114 MLHU Facilities Project Management $104,755 0 146 

  Total $343,321 0.75 1,553 
 

*HR = Human resources coordinator; PE = Program evaluator 

 

One-Time Investment Descriptions 
 

No. 36 – in motion Community Challenge in Middlesex County 

This would see an in motion Community Challenge initiated across Middlesex County. This is important as 

citizens of Middlesex County have a higher inactivity rate than citizens within the City of London. 
 

No. 37 - London Road Safety Strategy 

This would see three annual $10K contributions to the London Road Safety Strategy campaigns which will 

focus on distracted driving in 2014, and cycling/pedestrian campaigns in 2015 and 2016. 
 

No. 39 - Childhood Injury Prevention - Car Seat Safety 

This would fund a literature review and programming to address a critical issue: only 25% of children 4-8 in 

Ontario are properly restrained in a booster seat. This work would be done in partnership with the Middlesex 

Child Safety Committee and Buckle Up Baby program. 
 

No. 88 - HR Coordinator: Negotiations & Staff Development 

This would support development of tools and training materials to address strategic HR initiatives related to 

employee wellness and policy training requirements. 
 

No. 95 - Temporary Program Evaluator 

This would support teams to gather and implement evidence regarding effective or promising practices in 

family health, prenatal health, healthcare provider outreach, and child development.      
 

No. 104 - Promotion of Artificial Tanning Legislation 

This would support a local campaign to (a) increase awareness about the dangers of artificial tanning and 

ultraviolet radiation exposure, (b) promote the legislation and the new protection; and (c) support the 

implementation of a tanning services provider education strategy/campaign to increase operator compliance 

with the legislation. 
 

No. 111  - MLHU Promotion and Awareness Campaign 

This initiative would create an advertising and promotional campaign designed to raise awareness about the 

work of the Health Unit as a whole and the role of public health in London and Middlesex County, in order 

to increase citizens understanding and access to public health services. 
 

No. 114 - Facilities Project Management 

As stated in the 2012-2014 strategic plan, this would develop a facilities plan to address the needs of the 

Health Unit and the growing, changing community it serves. The plan would include: a review of existing 

facilities, a review of program delivery and needs assessment as it pertains to facilities, and 

recommendations for the future. 



2012 2012 2013 2014 $ increase/ % increase/
REF # Budget Actual Budget Budget ($ decrease) (% decrease)

over 2013 over 2013

Oral Health, Communicable Disease & Sexual Health Services

A-1 Office of the Associate Medical Officer of Health 856,421$        725,151$        729,370$       729,370$       -$                 0.0%

A-8 Vaccine Preventable Diseases 1,455,208       1,739,886       1,518,956      1,518,956      -                   0.0%

A-15 Infectious Disease Control 1,318,099       1,329,996       1,375,930      1,365,930      (10,000)        -0.7%

A-22 The Clinic & Sexual Health Promotion 2,258,203       2,237,636       2,302,487      2,344,049      41,562         1.8%

A-31 Oral Health 2,407,901       2,663,995       2,320,670      2,320,670      -               0.0%

Total Oral Health, Comm. Disease & Sexual Health Services 8,295,832$        8,696,664$        8,247,413$      8,278,975$      31,562$         0.4%

Environmental Health & Chronic Disease & Injury Prevention
B-1 Office of the Director 411,719$        424,981$        424,849$       486,939$       62,090$       14.6%

B-7 Chronic Disease Prevention and Tobacco Control 1,253,801       1,245,487       1,132,393      1,280,425      148,032$     13.1%

B-14 Food Safety 1,244,377       1,211,262       1,291,262      1,271,262      (20,000)$      -1.5%

B-20 Healthy Communities and Injury Prevention 972,135          994,976          1,205,515      1,219,122      13,607$       1.1%

B-27 Health Hazard Prevention and Management/Vector Borne Disease 1,202,317       1,113,821       1,224,231      1,214,231      (10,000)$      -0.8%

B-35 Safe Water and Rabies Team 726,478          734,255          723,408         723,408         -$                 0.0%

B-42 Southwest Tobacco Control Area Network 321,381          313,670          285,800         285,800         -$                 0.0%

Total Environmental Health & Chronic Disease & Injury Prev 6,132,208$        6,038,452$        6,287,458$      6,481,187$      193,729$       3.1%

Family Health Services
C-1 Office of the Director 894,375$        809,437$        938,197$       873,217$       (64,980)$      -6.9%

C-8 Reproductive Health Team 1,321,394       1,278,914       1,368,882      1,341,363      (27,519)$      -2.0%

C-15 Early Years Team 1,422,555       1,463,626       1,488,873      1,555,131      66,258$       4.5%

C-22 Screening, Assessment and Intervention Team 2,732,057       2,711,977       2,567,414      2,554,676      (12,738)$      -0.5%

C-29 Best Beginnings Team 3,182,872       3,183,493       3,303,974      3,327,990      24,016$       0.7%

C-37 Child Health Team 1,468,438       1,436,836       1,500,023      1,492,524      (7,499)$        -0.5%

C-43 Young Adult Team 1,082,331       1,089,305       1,126,077      1,122,577      (3,500)$        -0.3%
Total Family Health Services 12,104,022$      11,973,588$      12,293,440$    12,267,478$    (25,962)$        -0.2%

2014 PROPOSED BUDGET SUMMARY
MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT

Appendix B



2012 2012 2013 2014 $ increase/ % increase/
REF # Budget Actual Budget Budget ($ decrease) (% decrease)

over 2013 over 2013

2014 PROPOSED BUDGET SUMMARY
MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT

Appendix B

Office of the Medical Officer of Health
D-1 Office of the Medical Officer of Health & Travel Clinic 592,044$           535,192$           530,110$           502,504$           (27,606)$      -5.2%

D-6 Privacy/Occupational Health & Safety 167,692             203,100             174,350             174,350             -$                 0.0%

D-11 Strategic Projects 110,724             132,235             124,149             130,524             6,375$          5.1%

D-16 Communications 318,010             320,075             329,965             378,206             48,241$        14.6%

D-22 Emergency Planning 162,307             214,230             163,465             170,465             7,000$          4.3%

Total Office of the Medical Officer of Health 1,350,777$          1,404,832$          1,322,039$          1,356,049$          34,010$         2.6%

E-1 Finance & Operations 703,870$             689,793$             725,992$             794,447$             68,455$         9.4%

F-1 Human Resources & Labour Relations 873,040$             898,825$             908,033$             939,733$             31,700$         3.5%

G-1 Information Technology Services 1,065,180$          937,391$             1,090,413$          1,095,394$          4,981$           0.5%

H-1 General Expenses & Revenues 2,630,316$          2,657,338$          2,127,546$          2,092,357$          (35,189)$        -1.7%

TOTAL MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT EXPENDITURES 33,155,245$      33,296,883$      33,002,334$      33,305,620$      303,286$      0.9%

Funding Sources
Cost-Shared 22,880,405$      22,592,044$      23,092,096$      23,400,120$      308,024$      1.3%

Ministry of Health and Long Term Care  (100%) 4,039,257          4,227,862          3,811,175          3,801,175          (10,000)$      -0.3%

Ministry of Children and Youth Services  (100%) 5,036,386          4,960,216          5,007,961          4,990,223          (17,738)$      -0.4%

Public Health Agency of Canada 152,430             143,189             152,430             152,430             -$             0.0%

User Fees 686,175             901,273             659,315             674,315             15,000$        2.3%

Other Offset Revenue 360,592             472,299             279,357             287,357             8,000$          2.9%

TOTAL MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT FUNDING 33,155,245$      33,296,883$      33,002,334$      33,305,620$      303,286$      0.9%



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
O

              

ORAL HEA

FFICE OF

                        

ALTH, COMM

F THE AS

        2014 Pl

MUNICABLE

SSOCIATE

lanning & B

 

E DISEASE,
 

E MEDICA

Budget Tem

 SEXUAL H

AL OFFIC

mplate

HEALTH SER

CER OF H

 

RVICES 

HEALTH

 

A

 

A-1 



 
 
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
SUMMA
 
The Offi
is comp
Epidem
Oral He

 V
 O
 I
 T
 S

Oversig
finance 
consulta
program
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ON A 

E AREA 
Oral 
Dise
(OHC

AM TEAM Offic
Offic

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PR

ice of the Assoc
rised of the Ass
iologist, and, in 
alth, Communic
Vaccine Preven
Oral Health 
Infectious Disea
The Clinic 
Sexual Health P

ht of the activitie
are provided by

ation to OHCDS
m planning.   

              

Health, Commu
ease, and Sexua
CDSH) 

ce of the Associ
cer of Health 

ROGRAM 

ciate Medical Of
sociate Medical 
2013, a Contra

cable Disease a
ntable Disease 

ase Control 

Promotion 

es and staff of t
y the Associate 
SH and the Heal

                        

unicable 
al Health 

ate Medical 

fficer of Health t
Officer of Healt

act Epidemiologi
and Sexual Heal

the OHCDSH se
Medical Officer 
lth Unit as a wh

        2014 Pl

MANAGER

DIRECTOR

team of the Ora
th/Director, the P
ist. This team su
lth are as follow

ervice area, incl
of Health/Direc

ole for surveilla

lanning & B

R NAME 

R NAME 

al Health, Comm
Program Assista
upports the activ

ws: 

luding program 
ctor, and suppor
nce, population

Budget Tem

Bryna Warsha
Alison Locker

Bryna Warsha

municable Disea
ant to the Assoc
vities of the ent

and service del
rted by the Prog
 health assessm

mplate

awsky 

awsky 

ase and Sexual 
ciate Medical O
tire OHCSDH S

livery, performa
gram Assistant.
ment, research 

 

Janu

Health (OHCDS
Officer of Health/

ervice area. The

ance, human res
 The Epidemiol
and knowledge 

 

A

DATE 

uary 2014 

SH) Service are
/Director, an 
e Teams within 

sources, and 
logists provide 
exchange, and

 

A-2 

ea 

 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
ONTARI
 
Ontario 

 F
 I
 S
 T
 V
 C
 F

 
 

SECTIO
 
COMPO
 
Panoram
the proc
2014.  A
informat
  
COMPO
 
Epidem
impact o
analysin

 D
 L
 O

 
 
 

m:  Office of th

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEAL

Public Health S
Foundational St
Infectious Disea
Sexual Health, S
Tuberculosis Pr
Vaccine Preven
Child Health - O
Food Safety - F

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TE

ma is a new com
cess of impleme
A number of pre
tion to the new s

NENT(S) OF TE

iological informa
of programs, as
ng, and interpret
Data required to
Local, provincia
Other data relev

 

  
 

he Associate M

LTH STANDARD

Standards and a
tandards;  
ases Prevention
Sexually Transm
revention and C
ntable Diseases
Oral Health comp

ood-borne illnes

AM PROGRAM #

mmunicable dise
enting at all Onta
eparatory activiti
system; reviewi

AM PROGRAM #

ation and suppo
well as to infor

ting a variety of 
o be reported to
al and national s
vant to the work

 

Medical Officer 

(S), RELEVANT 

associated proto

n and Control;  
mitted Infections
ontrol; 
; 
ponents; 
ss components.

#1  PANORAMA 

ease and immu
ario health units
es are required
ng IT needs; as

#2  PROGRAM P

ort is provided to
m planning and
f information, inc
 the Health Unit
urveillance and

k of public health

2014 P

of Health 

LEGISLATION O

ocols: 

s and Blood-bor

.  

IMPLEMENTATIO

nization informa
s; the Health Un
 to support Pan

ssessing privacy

PLANNING SUPP

o the staff and m
 support the de
cluding: 
t by community 
 survey data 
h. 

Planning &

OR REGULATION

rne Infections; 

ON 

ation system tha
nit is scheduled 
norama impleme
y impacts; and d

ORT  

management of 
livery of effectiv

partners (e.g., 

& Budget T

N 

at the Ministry o
to implement th

entation includin
developing and 

the OHCDSH S
ve public health 

reportable disea

Template

of Health and Lo
he immunization
ng: assessing th
delivering train

Service in order
programs.  Act

ase information

 

ong-Term Care 
n module of Pan
he ability to migr
ing. 

r to establish the
ivities include a

, immunization 

 

A

(MOHLTC) is in
norama in May 
rate current 

e need for and 
accessing, 

information) 

 

A-3 

n 



 
Program
 
COMPO
 
Some a

- P
- G

i
- U
- P

a
 
COMPO
 
This fun
include 
post-sec
(PHAC) 
 
 

 
SECTIO
 
PERFOR

 

Compon
% of prov
participa
% of prov
Compon
# of ad h
informed
Compon
% of inva
initiated t
Indicator

m:  Office of th

NENT(S) OF TE

ctivities in this p
Producing healt
Generating com
nfluenza survei
Updating the inf
Providing epide
associated with 

NENT(S) OF TE

nction includes e
teaching in Hea
condary instituti
I-Track survey.

ON E 

RMANCE/SERVIC

nent of Team #1 
vincial Panorama
ted in 
vincial Panorama
nent of Team #2 
hoc requests for e
d program plannin
nent of Team #3 
asive Group A Str
the same day as 
r) 

 

  
 

he Associate M

AM PROGRAM #

program area in
th status reports

mmunity surveilla
llance season 
formation in the 
miological supp
frozen hamburg

AM PROGRAM #

education and c
alth Unit Commu
ons and confere
. 

CE LEVEL MEAS
 

 Panorama imple
a Builders/Early A

a Champions tele
 Program plannin

epidemiological as
ng 
 Surveillance and
reptococcus (iGA
receipt of laborat

 

Medical Officer 

#3  SURVEILLAN

clude: 
s on topics relat
ance reports, e.

Community He
port for local and
ger patties in 20

#4  RESEARCH A

consultation for s
unity Medicine S
ences, and con

SURES 

ementation 
Adopters teleconfe

conferences part
ng support  
ssistance to supp

d population heal
AS) cases where f
tory confirmation

2014 P

of Health 

NCE AND POPUL

ed to the work o
g., the Commun

ealth Status Res
d provincial dise
013. 

AND KNOWLEDG

staff members, 
Seminars, supe
tributing to parti

erences 

ticipated in 

port evidence-

th assessment, a
follow-up was 
(Accountability 

Planning &

LATION HEALTH 

of OHCDSH tea
nity Influenza S

source 
ease outbreaks 

GE EXCHANGE 

community hea
rvising students
icipation in rese

20

82

92

1

and outbreak/inve
10

& Budget T

ASSESSMENT, A

ams, e.g., A Pro
urveillance Rep

and investigatio

alth providers an
s, email update 
earch initiatives,

012 

2% 

2% 

8 

estigation support
0% 

Template

AND OUTBREAK

ofile of People W
port, which is iss

ons, e.g., provin

nd health profes
to health care p
, such as the Pu

2013 
(anticipated

87% (20/23

89% (8/9)

~ 25 

t 
100% 

 

K/INVESTIGATION

Who Inject Drugs
sued weekly thr

ncial E. coli O15

ssional students
providers, guest
ublic Health Age

d) 
same/

3) 

 

A

N SUPPORT 

s in London 
oughout the 

57:H7 outbreak 

s. Activities 
t lecturing at 
ency of Canada 

2014 
(estimate/ 

increase/decrea

Same 

Same 

Increased 

Same 

 

A-4 

ase) 



 
Program
 
% of gon
of receip
Compon
# of lectu
# of stud
# of ema
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
Director 
Program
Epidemio
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
 
 
 
 

m:  Office of th

norrhea cases wh
pt of laboratory co
nent of Team #4 
ures and presenta
ents supervised 

ail updates to hea

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

 Assistant 
ologist 

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

 

  
 

he Associate M

here follow-up wa
onfirmation ( Acco

 Research and k
ations 

lth care providers

2012 Bud

$  490,7
76,2

$  567,0

 

Medical Officer 

s initiated within t
ountability Indicato
knowledge exchan

s 

get  201

72 $ 
68 

40 $ 

2014 P

of Health 

two business day
or) 
nge 

2 Actual 

  639,166 
85,985 

  725,151 

Planning &

ys 98

2
1

~ 

 

2013 T

2013 Budget

$   426,029
73,009

$   729,370

& Budget T

8% 

28 
2 
36 

 
 

TOTAL FTES 

4.0 
1.0 
1.0 
2.0 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   426
73

$   729

Template

100% 

30 
15 
34 

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

6,029 
3,009 

9,370 

 

S

2014 ESTIMA

4.0
1.0
1.0
2.0

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  0 

 

$  0 

 

A

Same 

Increased 
Same 

Sent as needed 

ATED FTES 

0 
0 
0 
0 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
0.0% 
 

0.0% 

 

A-5 

e 
e) 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 

 
 Plan
 Com
 Upd
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 

 

 Impl
proje

 Dep
retai
epid

m:  Office of th

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIA

n for and overse
mpile a health st

ate the online C

ON J 

URES AND CHAL

lementation of t
ect requirement
ending on the a
in the services o

demiological sup

 

  
 

he Associate M

2012 Bu

$     313
542

$    856

ATIVES PLANNE

ee the implemen
tatus report abo
Community Hea

LLENGES 

he immunizatio
ts change and/o
amount Panoram
of a contract ep
pport to the serv

 

Medical Officer 

udget  20

,526 $  
,895 

 
 
 

6,421 $ 

ED FOR 2014  

ntation of the im
ut opioid and in
lth Status Reso

n module of Pa
or increase, it m
ma project funds
idemiologist.  N

vice area, as we

2014 P

of Health 

012 Actual 

     327,426 
397,725 

 
 
 

     725,151 

munization mod
jection drug use

ource with the m

norama is a ma
ay be a compet
s provided by th

Not having a con
ell as the comple

Planning &

2013 Budge

$       326,36
403,00

$    729,37

dule of Panoram
e in Middlesex-L

most recent data

ajor project with 
ting priority relat
he MOHLTC for 
ntract epidemiolo
etion of key deli

& Budget T

et 2014 
Bud

68 $     32
02 40
 
 

 
70 $     7

ma at the Health
London. 
 available. 

many planning 
tive to other imp

r the 2014-2015
ogist would neg
verables. 

Template

Draft 
dget ($ d

26,368 
03,002 

 
 
 

729,370 

h Unit by May 20

facets and invo
portant projects

5 fiscal year, it m
gatively impact t

 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  0 

 
 
 
 

$  0 

014. 

olving many indi
. 

may or may not b
the delivery of d

 

A

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

0.0%
 
 
 
 

0.0%

ividuals.  As the

be possible to 
day-to-day 

 

A-6 

se 
se) 
3 

e 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 

 
Non

 
 

m:  Office of th

ON K 

MENDED ENHAN

e 

 

  
 

he Associate M

NCEMENTS, RED

 

Medical Officer 

DUCTIONS AND 

2014 P

of Health 

EFFICIENCIES F

Planning &

FOR 2014 

& Budget TTemplate   

A

 

A-7 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

              

ORAL HEA

                        

ALTH, COMM

VACCIN

        2014 Pl

MUNICABLE

NE PREV

lanning & B

E DISEASE,
 

VENTABL

Budget Tem

 SEXUAL H

LE DISEA

mplate

HEALTH SER

ASES 

 

RVICES 

 

A

 

A-8 



 
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 

SECTIO
 
SUMMA
 
The Vac
immuniz
educatio
manage
to ensur
follow-u
 
 

SECTIO
 
ONTARI

 
Onta





 
      Imm
      Day 
 
 
 

ON A 

E AREA 
Oral 
Dise
(OHC

AM TEAM Vacc

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PR

ccine Preventab
zation clinics in 
on and consulta
es the distributio
re that vaccines
p of vaccine-rel

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEAL

ario Public Heal
 Immunizatio
 Infectious D
 Vaccine Sto

munization of Sc
 Nurseries Act 

              

Health, Commu
eases Sexual He
CDSH) 

cine Preventabl

ROGRAM 

ble Diseases (V
school, commu

ation to health ca
on of publicly-fun
s are being hand
ated reportable

LTH STANDARD

lth Standards (O
on Management
iseases Protoco

orage and Hand

hool Pupils Act 

 

                        

unicable 
ealth 

e Diseases 

PD) Team focus
nity and clinic s
are providers an
nded vaccines t
dled in a manne
 diseases.  

(S), RELEVANT 

OPHS): Vaccine
t Protocol (2013
ol (2013) 
ling Protocol (20

        2014 Pl

MANAGER

DIRECTOR

ses on reducing
settings; reviewi
nd the general p
to health care p
er that maintains

LEGISLATION O

e Preventable D
3) 

010) 

lanning & B

R  NAME 

R NAME 

g the incidence 
ng students’ im
public about vac
roviders and ins
s their effectiven

OR REGULATION

iseases Standa

Budget Tem

Marlene Price

Bryna Warsha

of vaccine preve
munization reco
ccines and imm
spects the refrig
ness. The Team

N 

ard 

mplate

e 

awsky 

ventable disease
ords as required
unization admin

gerators used to
m is also respon

 

Janu

es. This is achie
d by legislation; 
nistration. The V
o store publicly-f
sible for the inv

 

A

DATE 

uary 2014 

eved by providin
and providing 

VPD Team also 
funded vaccines

vestigation and 

 

A-9 

ng 

s 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
COMPO
 

 R
t

 I
t

 O
 
COMPO
 

 G
 G
 H

r
 

COMPO
 

 I
p
m

 D
i
p
i

 
COMPO
 

 I
s
P

 S
 
 
 

m:  Vaccine Pr

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TE

Regular clinics
the general pub
Influenza clinic
the availability o
Other clinics: C

NENT(S) OF TE

Grade 7: Menin
Grade 8: Huma
High school: A
rubella (MMR)  

NENT(S) OF TE

Immunization o
parents/guardia
medical / philos
Day Nurseries 
nformation prov
part of their lice
nformation or a

NENT(S) OF TE

Information an
site and telepho
Public Health N
Student educa

 

  

reventable Dis

AM PROGRAM #

s: Immunization
blic; no Health C
cs:  Annual influ
of other commun
Clinics to update

AM PROGRAM #

ngococcal and h
an papillomaviru
Any student miss

AM PROGRAM #

of School Pupi
ans are contacte
ophical / religiou
Act: The immu

vided to the chil
ncing requireme

a medical / philo

AM PROGRAM #

d advice for he
one. “Triage” is a
urse.  
tion: Clinical pl

 

sease 

#1  Immunizatio

 clinics are held
Cards or appoint
uenza vaccinatio
nity influenza va
e the vaccinatio

#2    Immunizati

hepatitis B vacci
us (HPV) vaccin
sing vaccination

#3  Screening o

ils Act: The imm
ed if information 
us exemption is
nization records
d care centre op
ents. The Child 
sophical / religio

#4   Education a

ealth care prov
a telephone con

acements are p

2014 P

on clinics (regula

d three days a w
tments are requ
on clinics are he
accination clinic
ons of refugees; 

on clinics (elem

ines  
e to grade 8 fem

ns, generally tet

f immunization 

munization reco
is missing; stud

s not obtained. 
s of children atte
perator who is r
Care Operator 
ous exemption i

and consultation

viders and the 
nsultation servic

provided to med

Planning &

ar, high risk pop

week at the 50 K
ired although ap

eld in the comm
cs (e.g. pharmac

clinics to respo

mentary and sec

male students  
anus, diphtheria

records and enf

ords of all studen
dents may be su

ending licenced
required to have
may deny acce
is not obtained. 

n  

public:  Immun
ce where Progra

ical students an

& Budget T

pulations, outbre

King Street office
ppointments are

munity although t
cies, health care
ond to communit

ondary schools

a and whooping

forcement of ap

nts in elementar
uspended from 

d child care prog
e a complete rec
ss to the day ca
 

nization informat
am Assistants re

nd residents, an

Template

eak)  

e and once a m
e available at th
their numbers h
e providers, wor
ty outbreaks or 

) 

g cough booster

pplicable legisla

ry and seconda
school if the im

grams are review
cord of immuniz
are program if th

tion and advice 
espond to the in

nd nursing stude

 

month at the Stra
he 50 King Stree
have decreased 
rkplaces etc.). 
other arising is

r (Tdap) or meas

tion   

ary schools are r
mmunization info

wed and inform
zation or exemp
he child’s immu

is provided via 
ncoming calls or

ents.  

 

A-

athroy office for 
et office. 
over time due t

sues. 

sles, mumps an

reviewed and 
ormation or a 

mation on missin
ption on file as 
nization 

email, the web 
r direct them to 

 

-10 

to 

nd 

g 

a 



 
 
Program
 
COMPO
 
The Hea
vaccines

 R
r
t

 R
s
 

COMPO
 

 I
w
w
i

 C
h
r

  
COMPO
 
Reports
followed
the infec

 P
e
r

 R
t

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

m:  Vaccine Pr

NENT(S) OF TE

alth Unit orders 
s from the Heal
Review of temp
refrigerators bet
temperature log
Review of orde
supply of vaccin

NENT(S) OF TE

Inspections of 
who order and s
wasted; these in
nspected by the
Cold chain inc
have gone outs
returned as was

NENT(S) OF TE

s of vaccine-prev
d-up to determin
ction.  This is do
Prevention of t
education and c
recommendatio
Reporting to th
through iPHIS, a

 

  

reventable Dis

AM PROGRAM #

publicly-funded
th Unit. During t
perature logs: 
tween 2º and 8º

gs indicate that v
ering patterns: 
nes in their vacc

AM PROGRAM #

locations that 
store publicly-fu
nclude new and
e Infectious Dise
idents: If there 
ide the required
stage. 

AM PROGRAM #

ventable reporta
ne the source of
one for the follow
transmissions:
counselling; reco
ns for isolation 

he Ministry of H
an electronic inf

 

sease 

#5  Vaccine inve

d vaccines from 
the ordering pro
Health care pro
ºC (the required
vaccines have b
Ordering patter

cine refrigerators

#6 Cold chain in

store publicly-
nded vaccines t
 existing health 
ease Control Te
is a power failu

d 2º and 8ºC, the

#7 Investigation

able diseases (e
f the disease ac
wing purposes:
 To prevent tran
ommendations 
or quarantine; a

Health and Lon
fectious disease

2014 P

entory and distr

the Ontario Gov
ocess, the follow
oviders submit te
d temperatures f
been stored betw
rns are assesse
s.  

nspection and in

-funded vaccin
to ensure that th
care provider o

eam). 
ure or problem w
e Health Unit wi

n and follow up o

e.g. measles, m
cquisition (if pos

nsmission, follow
to take antibioti

and/or advice to
ng-Term Care: T
e database. This

Planning &

ibution of public

vernment Pharm
wing steps are u
emperature logs
for safe storage
ween 2º and 8ºC

ed to ensure tha

ncident follow-up

nes: Annual ins
he vaccines are
offices, nursing a

with the refrigera
ill provide advic

of vaccine-preve

mumps, rubella, w
sible) and ident

w-up for the per
cs (chemoproph

o seek medical a
The Ministry of 
s system allows

& Budget T

cly-funded vacci

macy and health
undertaken to en
s to show that th
 of vaccines); th
C. 

at health care pr

p  

pections are co
e being handled
agencies, pharm

ator storing pub
ce on whether th

entable reportab

whooping coug
tify anyone who

rson with the inf
hylaxis); recomm
attention.  
Health and Lon

s for the analysis

Template

ines 

h care providers
nsure that vacc
hey are maintai
hey can receive

roviders are stor

onducted for all h
d appropriately, 
macies and wor

licly-funded vac
hese vaccines c

ble diseases 

h, Streptococcu
o was potentially

fection and thei
mendations for 

ng-Term Care is
s of information

 

s order and pick
ines are handle
ning their vacci

e additional vacc

ring no more tha

health care prov
remain potent a
rkplaces (additio

ccines such that
can still be used

us pneumonia, c
y exposed to the

r contacts may 
immunization; 

s notified of the 
n on these repor

 

A-

k-up these 
ed appropriately
ne storage 
cines if their 

an a two-month

viders’ offices 
and are not bein
onal locations a

t temperatures 
 or must be 

chicken pox) are
e person who ha

include: 

investigation 
rtable diseases.

 

-11 

: 

 

ng 
re 

e 
as 

 



 
 
Program
 SECTIO
 
PERFOR
 

Compon
# of clien
# of com
Compon
% of Gra
school ye
based cl
% of grad
B vaccin
vaccinate
% of grad
vaccine i
vaccinate
Compon
% of stud
tetanus /

% of chil
for tetanu
Compon
# of calls

Compon
# of orde
Compon
# of cold 
# of cold 
Compon
 # of repo
Totals co
and chick

m:  Vaccine Pr
ON E 

RMANCE/SERVIC

nent of Team #1 
nts attending / vac
munity influenza 

nent of Team #2 
ade 7 students wh
ear (accountabilit
inics 
de 7 students wh
e in that school y
ed at school-base
de 8 female stude
in that school yea
ed at school-base
nent of Team #3 
dents 7-17 years 
/ polio / measles, 

dren attending lic
us, diphtheria, pe
nent of Team #4 
s to Triage / # of c

nent of Team #5 
ers received from 
nent of Team #6 
 chain inspection
 chain incidents /

nent of Team #7 
ortable diseases 
onsist of measles
ken pox 

 

  

reventable Dis

CE LEVEL MEAS

 Immunization c
ccines given at  th
clinics / clients se
Immunization c

ho have received 
ty indicator) / # of

ho have complete
year (accountabili
ed clinics 
ents who comple
ar (accountability 
ed clinics 
 Screening of im
of age whose im
mumps and rube

censed child care
ertussis, polio / m
 Education and

consultations thro

 Vaccine invent
and processed fo
 Cold chain ins
s  / % completion
/ cost of vaccine w
Investigation an
reported and inve

s, mumps, rubella

 

sease 

SURES 

clinics (regular,
he Immunization 
een 

clinics (elementa
meningococcal v

f students vaccina

d the two-dose se
ty indictor) / # of 

ted the three-dos
indicator) / # of s

mmunization rec
munization is com

ella (MMR) 

e whose immuniza
easles, mumps, r
 Consultation  

ough incoming em

tory and distribu
or health care pro
pections and In
n  
wastage 
nd follow up of v
estigated  / # con
, whooping cough

2014 P

high risk popula
Clinic  

ary and seconda
vaccine  in that 
ated at school-

eries of hepatitis 
students 

se series of HPV 
students 

cords according
mplete for age for

ation is up to date
rubella (MMR) 

mail 

ution of  publicly
oviders’ offices 
cident Follow U

vaccine-prevent
firmed; 
h, S. pneumonia 

Planning &

 

201

ations, outbreak
7,388 / 

15 / 7
ary schools) 

84% / 

90% / 

56% / 

g to applicable le
r 93% / 93

e 77% /

11,949 

y- funded vaccin
3,9

p 
231 / 1

21 / $6
table reportable

150 

& Budget T

12 

k) 
15,342 

7,322   

3,220  

2,690  

1,341  

egislation   
3% /97% 

/ 86% 

/ 2,447 

nes 
922 

100%  
62,488. 
e diseases 
/ 87 

Template

2013 
(anticipated

7,865 / 16,77
10 / 3,739 

87%/ 2,959

89% / 2,506

58% / 1,310

95% / 95% / 95

80% / 85%

12,913 / 3,28

3,931 

276 / 98%
35 / $63,985

126 / 36 

 

d) 
(same/

79 

  

6  

0  

5% Dec
High

Pla

82 

5. 

All re
follow

 

A-

2014 
(estimate) 

increase/decrea

Same  
Decrease  

Same 

Same 

Same 

crease (* see Key
hlights/ Initiatives
anned for 2014)  

Same 

Same 

Same 

Same 
Same 

eported cases are
wed up in a timely

manner. 

 

-12 

ase) 

y 
 

e 
y 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
Program
Public He
Casual N
Program

 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Rev

m:  Vaccine Pr

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

 Manager      
ealth Nurses      

Nurses      
 Assistants 

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 

venues 

 

  

reventable Dis

2012 Bud

$  1,328,9
126,2

$  1,455,2

2012 Bu

$    1,164,
156,

61,
72,

$   1,455,

 

sease 

get  201

93 $   
15 

08 $   

dget  20

,688 $     
,095 

 
,925 
,500 
,208 $  

2014 P

2 Actual 

1,345,367 
394,519 

1,739,886 

012 Actual 

  1,297,005 
156,611 

 
261,740 
24,530 

  1,739,886 

Planning &

2013 T

2013 Budget

$   1,379,365
139,591

$   1,518,956

2013 Budge

$      1,227,26
157,26

61,92
72,50

$     1,518,9

& Budget T

 
 

TOTAL FTES 
 

17.0 
1.0 
7.1 
1.5 
7.4 

 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   1,379
139

$   1,518

et 2014 
Bud

69 $    1,22
62 15
 

25 6
00 7

956 $   1,51

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

9,365 
9,591 

8,956 

Draft 
dget ($ d

27,269 
57,262 

 
61,925 
72,500 
18,956 

 

2014 ESTIMA

17.
1.0
7.1
1.5
7.4

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  0 

 

$  0 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$    0 

 
 
 
 

$   0  

 

A-

ATED FTES  

0 
0 
1 
5 
4 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013
0.0% 

 

0.0% 

r 
% increas

(% decreas
over 2013

0.0% 
 
 
 
 

0.0% 

 

-13 

e 
e) 

e 
se) 
3 



 
 
Program
 

 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 
 
 Prep
 Cha
 Insu
 Impl
 
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 
 Non
 

SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 
 
 Impl

  *

 Impl
invo

 

m:  Vaccine Pr

ON J 

URES AND CHAL

parations for imp
nges in staffing

ufficient resource
lementation of e

ON K 

MENDED ENHAN

e 

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIA

lementation of P
* Implementation

2013/2014 sch
the following s

lementation of e
lve communicat

 

  

reventable Dis

LLENGES 

plementation of
 personnel due 
es to conduct he
expanded vaccin

NCEMENTS, RED

ATIVES PLANNE

Panorama, a ne
n of this program
hool year, theref
chool year whe

expanded vaccin
ting the change

 

sease 

f Panorama, a n
to staff turn-ove

ealth promotion
ne requirements

DUCTIONS AND 

ED FOR 2014  

ew provincial imm
m will result in s
fore % of studen
n the suspensio
ne requirements

es to parents, sc

2014 P

new provincial im
er 
 campaigns to c
s in the revised 

EFFICIENCIES F

munization and 
students having 
nts immunized i
on process will b
s in the revised 

chool boards an

Planning &

mmunization an

counter mountin
Immunization o

FOR 2014 

inventory mana
their immuniza

in that school ye
be re-implemen
Immunization o
d health care pr

& Budget T

d inventory man

ng vaccine hesit
of School Pupils

agement databa
tion records rev
ear is expected 
ted. 

of School Pupils
roviders. 

Template

nagement datab

tancy 
s Act 

ase system in M
viewed but no s
to decrease slig

s Act for the 201

 

base system  

May 2014;   
uspension proc
ghtly, but will in

14/2015 school 

 

A-

cess for the 
crease again in

year. This will 

 

-14 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

              

ORAL HEA

 

                        

ALTH, COMM

INFEC

        2014 Pl

MUNICABLE

CTIOUS D

lanning & B

E DISEASE,
 

DISEASE

Budget Tem

 SEXUAL H

E CONTRO

mplate

HEALTH SER

OL 

 

RVICES 

 

A-

 

-15 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 

SECTIO
 
SUMMA
 
The goa
program
settings
the gene
properly
 
 

SECTIO
ONTARI

 
Onta












 
 
 
 

m:  Infectious D

ON A 

E AREA 
Oral 
Dise
(OHC

AM TEAM Infec

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PR

al of the Infectio
ms and services

 for food handlin
eral public, inclu
y handled (cold 

ON C 
O PUBLIC HEAL

ario Public Heal
 Food Safety
 Infection Pre
 Infection Pre
 Infection Pre
 Exposure of
 Infectious D
 Institutional/
 Risk Assess
 Tuberculosis
 Public Healt

 

  
 

Disease Contr

Health, Commu
eases Sexual He
CDSH) 

ctious Disease C

ROGRAM 

us Disease Con
: reportable dise
ng and/or infect
uding food hand
chain inspection

LTH STANDARD

lth Standards (O
y Protocol (2008
evention and Co
evention and Co
evention and Co
f Emergency Se
iseases Protoco
/Facility Outbrea
sment and Inspe
s Prevention an
th Emergency P

 

rol 

unicable 
ealth 

Control 

ntrol (IDC) Team
ease follow-up a
tion control prac
dler training. As 
ns) in certain se

(S), RELEVANT 

OPHS): Infectiou
8) 
ontrol in Person
ontrol in Licence
ontrol Practices
ervice Workers t
ol (2008) 
ak Prevention a
ection of Facilitie
nd Control Proto
Preparedness P

2014 P

MANAGER

DIRECTOR

m is to prevent a
and case manag
ctices; health pro
well, the IDC T

ettings. 

LEGISLATION O

us Diseases Pre

al Services Set
ed Day Nurserie
Complaint Prot

to Infectious Dis

nd Control Prot
es Protocol (200

ocol (2008) 
rotocol (2008) 

Planning &

R  NAME 

R NAME 

and control infec
gement; outbrea
omotion activitie
eams assist in i

OR REGULATION

evention and Co

tings Protocol (2
es Protocol (200
tocol (2008) 
seases Protocol

ocol (2008) 
08)  

& Budget T

Tristan Squire

Bryna Warsha

ctions in the com
ak investigation
es including con
influenza immun

N 

ontrol 

2008) 
08) 

l (2008)  

Template

e-Smith 

awsky 

mmunity. The T
n and managem
nsultation and e
nization clinics a

 

D

Janu

Team provides th
ment; inspections
education to inst
and checking th

 

A-

DATE: 

uary 2014 

he following 
s of certain 
titutions and to 
hat vaccines are

 

-16 

e 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
COMPO
 
The IDC
and tube
infection
 
COMPO
 
The IDC
in child c
followed
medicat
beyond 
 
COMPO
 
The IDC
practice
spas, na
handling
stored. 2
 
COMPO
 
The IDC
specific 
 
COMPO
 
The IDC
question
hours. F
workers
infection 

m:  Infectious D

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TE

C team is respon
erculosis) to pre
n; counseling or

NENT(S) OF TE

C Team is respo
care centres an

d with respect to
tions and/or vac
the Middlesex-L

NENT(S) OF TE

C Team inspects
es, and consults
ail salons, barbe
g practices (cold
2013 will be the

NENT(S) OF TE

C Team provides
food handler ed

NENT(S) OF TE

C Team is involv
ns from the pub
Further, a Public
s with a focus on
n control issues 

 

  
 

Disease Contr

AM PROGRAM #

nsible for follow
event spread to 
r specific medica

AM PROGRAM #

onsible for respo
nd in the commu
o infection preve
ccines are recom
London jurisdict

AM PROGRAM #

s institutional (i.
regarding infec

er shops and tat
d chain inspectio
e first time that t

AM PROGRAM #

s Food Handler
ducational need

AM PROGRAM #

ved with health 
lic and health ca

c Health Nurse/I
n hospital and lo
are sent via em

 

 

rol 

#1: Reportable 

ing up certain re
others and dete
al interventions 

#2 : Outbreak M

onding to institu
unity. Typical res
ention and contr
mmended and/o
tion. 

#3: Inspections 

e. hospitals, lon
ction control pra
ttoo/piercing pre
ons) in hospitals
he team has ac

#4: Food Handl

r Training and ce
ds of those who 

#5: Health Prom

promotion activ
are providers ab
Inspector provid
ong term care / 
mail on a regular

2014 P

Disease Follow

eportable disea
ermine if an out
for their contac

Management  

tional (i.e. hosp
sponses include
rol measures, s
or provided. The

 

ng term care fac
ctices as appro
emises) for infec
s, long-term car

chieved a 100% 

er Training 

ertification in pa
work in hospita

motion / Educati

ities and provid
bout infectious d
des on-call serv
retirement hom
r basis.  

Planning &

w-up  and Case M

se (such as dise
break is occurri

cts, and coordina

ital, long-term c
e coordinating w
pecimen collect

e IDC Team also

cilities, retiremen
priate, as well a
ction control pra
re facilities, and
inspection com

artnership with t
al, long term car

on 

es consultative 
diseases on the
ices on weeken
e settings and c

& Budget T

Management  

eases that caus
ng. Responses 
ation of specime

care facility, retir
with the affected
tion and commu
o coordinates th

nt homes) settin
as inspecting fun
actices. The IDC
 retirement hom

mpletion rate. 

he Environment
e facilities, retire

services to inst
e telephone info
nds and holidays
child care settin

Template

se diarrhea and 
 include counse
en collection wh

rement homes) 
d institution to e
unications. As a
he local respons

ngs and child ca
neral homes, pe
C Team also co
me settings whe

tal Health Team
ement homes, a

titutions and the
ormation line wh
s. Educational w
gs. Updates on

 

vomiting, meni
elling for the ind
hen necessary. 

outbreaks as w
nsure best-prac
ppropriate, spe

se to outbreaks 

are centres for f
ersonal service 

onducts inspectio
re publicly-fund

m. The IDC Team
and child care s

e public. The Te
ich operates du

workshops are p
 infectious disea

 

A-

ngitis, hepatitis,
ividual with the 
 

well as outbreak
ctices are 
cific preventive 
that extend 

food handling 
settings (e.g. 
ons of vaccine 

ded vaccines are

m focuses on th
settings.  

am answers 
uring working 
provided for 
ases and 

 

-17 

, 

s 

e 

he 



 
Program
 
 

SECTIO
 
PERFOR

 

IDC Team
# of case
Totals co
O157:H7
influenza
IDC Team

# of conf
Totals co
care faci
settings 
IDC Team
# of insp

# of insp
 

High risk
Medium 
Low risk 

Compon
# of  Foo

Compon
# of telep
consultat

# of pres

m:  Infectious D

ON E 

RMANCE/SERVIC

m Component #
es of reportable d
onsist of active tu
7,  invasive Group
a, listeriosis, Wes
m Component #

firmed / potential 
onsist of enteric a
ilities, retirement h

m Component #
ection of # of per

ections of # of  fo

k inspected once 
risk inspected on
inspected once p

nent of Team #4:
od Handler Trainin

nent of Team #5:
phone consultatio
tions 

sentations on infe

 

  
 

Disease Contr

CE LEVEL MEAS
 

#1: Reportable Dis
diseases followed
uberculosis, camp
p A Streptococcu
st Nile Virus, legio
#2: Outbreak Man

outbreaks manag
and respiratory ou
homes, child care

#3: Inspections   
rsonal services se

ood premises / % 

in each third of th
nce in each half o
per year 

: Food Handler T
ng sessions cond

: Health Promotio
ons / # of email co

ctious disease re

 

rol 

SURES 

sease Manageme
-up  

pylobacter, salmo
s, hepatitis C, he

onella, Lyme disea
nagement   

ged  
utbreaks in hospit
e centres and oth

ettings = % comp

completion 

he year 
f the year 

raining   
ducted for # of ca

on & Education 
onsultation / # of 

elated topics 

2014 P

ent/Case & Conta

nella, E. Coli 
patitis A, 
ase 

tals, long term 
her community 

pletion rate 

ndidates;  

walk-in 

Planning &

201

act follow-up   
95

142 

547 of 60
 

 High risk
/ 90%  

 Medium r
12 / 100%

 Low risk: 
100% 

20 for

182 / 8
  

61

& Budget T

12 

50 

/ 41 

08 = 90% 

: 403 of 134 

risk: 24 of 
% 

5 of 5 / 







r 247  

80 / 13 
 

1 

Template

2013 
(anticipated

731 

135 / 40 

612 of 612 = 10

 High risk: 405 
/ 100%  

 Medium risk: 1
/ 100% 

 Low risk: 7 of 7
100% 

23 classes (10 p
and 13 corpora

178 / 122 / 2

29 
 

 

d) 
(same/

All re
follow

All outb
in a ti

00% 10
comple

of 135 

8 of 9 

7 / 

10
compl

public 
ate)     

20-25
for 22

1 Resp

Respon

 

A-

2014 
(estimate) 

increase/decrea

eported cases are
wed up in a timely

manner 

breaks are manag
imely manner unt

resolution 

00% inspection 
etion by Decembe

00% inspection 
etion by Decemb

31 

 classes to be he
25-275 candidate

ond to all request

nd as requested a
possible 

 

-18 

ase) 

e 
y 

ged 
til 

er 1 

ber 

eld 
es  

ts 

and 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
Program
Program
Public He
Public He

 

 
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
 

m:  Infectious D

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

 Manager 
 Assistant 
ealth Nurses 
ealth Inspectors 

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

 

  
 

Disease Contr

2012 Bud

$  1,261,5
56,5

$  1,318,0

 

 

rol 

get  201

43 $   
56 

99 $   

2014 P

2 Actual 

1,261,538 
68,458 

1,329,996 

Planning &

201

2013 Budget

$   1,307,144
68,786

$   1,375,930

& Budget T

3 TOTAL FTES
 

14.75 
1.0 
1.0 
7.25 
5.5 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   1,307
58

$   1,365

Template

S  

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

7,144 
8,786 

5,930 

 

2014 ESTIMAT
 

14.75
1.0
1.0
7.25
5.5

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
 

$  (10,000) 

$  (10,000) 

 

A-

TED FTES  

5 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013
 
(14.5)% 

(0.8)% 

 

-19 

e 
e) 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 

 
 T

h
‐
‐

 M
‐
‐

‐

 P
c
‐
‐

m:  Infectious D

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIA

Targeted, pro-a
hepatitis C in th
‐ Determine wh
‐ Engage comm

Make inspection
‐ Work with the
‐ Availability of

Service Settin
‐ At first, the w

within the yea
Partner with Lo
clinic: 
‐ To concentra
‐ To enhance t

 

  
 

Disease Contr

2012 Bu

$     510
744

6
57

$   1,318

ATIVES PLANNE

ctive approach
he community)
hich initiatives ma
munity partners a
n reports avail
e local software d
f inspection repor
ng operators to m
ebsite will focus o
ar to include all in
ndon Health S

ate and coordinate
the patient experi

 

rol 

dget  20

,227 $  
,030 

 
,500 
,342 
8,099 $ 

ED FOR 2014  

h to engage the
: 
ay have the great
and people with liv
able online to 

design company, 
rts online will emp

maintain good infe
on inspection rep

nspection reports 
ciences Centre

e tuberculosis-rel
ence by making a

2014 P

012 Actual 

     553,722 
744,030 

 
6,490 

25,754 
   1,239,138 

e population w

test impact to red
ved experience th
the public: 
ResIM, to design
power the public t
ection prevention 
ports from higher-

(i.e.  Long term c
e and/or St. Jo

ated expertise, th
access to tubercu

Planning &

2013 Budge

$       613,12
755,76

7,04
$    1,375,9

who uses  intrav

uce the risk of sp
hroughout the pla

 a website for the
to make more info
and control pract
risk Personal Ser
care facilities, chi
seph’s Health 

hereby becoming
ulosis-related ser

& Budget T

et 2014 
Bud

21 $     61
61 74
 
 

48 
30 $   1,3

venous drug (I

pread and serious
anning and implem

e public to view in
ormed and safer 
tices; 
rvices Settings (i.
ld care centers, s
Care, London 

 the primary refer
rvices easier and 

Template

Draft 
dget ($ d

13,121 
45,761 

 
 

7,048 
365,930 

IVDU) (ultimate

sness of illness;
mentation proces

nspection reports 
choices and prov

.e. Tattoo/piercing
spas, barber shop
to offer a com

rral site in Middle
more comprehen

 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
 

$    (10,000) 
 
 
 

$    (10,000) 

e goal: to reduc

sses. 

of Personal Serv
vides an incentive

g operators) but w
ps, funeral homes
munity-based 

esex-London; 
nsive. 

 

A-

r 
% increas

(% decreas
over 201

 
(1.5)% 

 
 
 

(0.8)% 

ce the burden 

vices Settings; 
e for Personal 

will be expanded 
s, etc.). 
tuberculosis 

 

-20 

se 
se) 
3 

of 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 

 
‐
‐
‐

‐

‐
‐

 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 

 

m:  Infectious D

ON J 

URES AND CHAL

‐ Uncertain na
‐ Limited flexi
‐ As of 2014, 

change how
‐ The IDC tea

workload an
‐ Lack of year
‐ Impending r

 

ON K 

MENDED ENHAN

None 

 

  
 

Disease Contr

 
LLENGES 

ature of demand
bility with respe
no further addit

w small projects 
am is a highly po
nd/or require add
rly increases in 
retirements; plan

NCEMENTS, RED

 

rol 

d/crises (re: num
ect to daily work
tional 100% pro
and workshops

opular student p
ditional time for 
“100%” funding
nning for knowle

DUCTIONS AND 

2014 P

mber and timing
load  limited a
vincial funds for

s are organized/
placement cons
team members

g result in budge
edge transfer 

EFFICIENCIES F

Planning &

g of reportable d
ability to respon
r World TB Day 
funded/prioritize
istently through

s to cover their r
etary pressures 

FOR 2014 

& Budget T

diseases and ou
nd without havin

($2000) and In
ed 
out the year; tim
regular assignm
with potential s

Template

utbreaks) 
ng to choose bet
nfection Control 

me spent coach
ments 
staffing implicatio

 

tween competin
Week ($8000) 

ing students ma

ons 

 

A-

ng priorities 
 have to 

ay both add to 

 

-21 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

              

ORAL HEA

THE
 

                        

ALTH, COMM

E CLINIC A

        2014 Pl

MUNICABLE

AND SEX

lanning & B

E DISEASE,
 

XUAL HEA

Budget Tem

 SEXUAL H

ALTH PR

mplate

HEALTH SER

ROMOTIO

 

RVICES 

N 

 

A-

 

-22 



 
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 

SECTIO
 
SUMMA
 
The Clin
Needle 
also follo
 
Sexual H

 A
p

 A
h

 A
u

At each 
testing, 
 
The Sex
initiative
infection
address
   
 
 
 

m:  The Clinic 

ON A 

E AREA 
Oral 
Dise
(OHC

AM TEAM The 
Prom

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PR

nic Team provid
exchange servi
ows-up reportab

Health Clinics a
At the 50 King S
provide free and
At the 50 King S
health card.   
At the Strathroy
usually require a

clinic, the clien
prescriptions an

xual Health Pro
es regarding top
ns (STIs), and h
s the determinan

 

  
 

and Sexual He

Health, Commu
ease and Sexua
CDSH) 

Clinic and Sexu
motion 

ROGRAM 

des clinical serv
ces are also off
ble sexually tran

are offered as fo
Street Office, the
d anonymous te
Street Office, the

y Office, there ar
a health card.  

t first sees a Pu
nd treatment as

omotion Team 
pics including co
harm reduction s
nts that impact h

 

ealth Promotio

unicable 
l Health 

ual Health 

vices for the pro
fered.  All servic
nsmitted infectio

ollow: 
ere are three Se

esting, treatmen
ere are eight Fa

re two Sexual H

ublic Health Nur
 indicated.  

conducts educa
ontraception, pre
strategies.  The 
health such as s

2014 P

on 

MANAGER

DIRECTOR

ovision of birth c
ces are confiden
ons to prevent tr

exually Transmi
t and counsellin

amily Planning C

Health Clinics wi

se and then see

ational sessions
egnancy testing
Social Determi

substance abus

Planning &

R  NAME 

R NAME 

control and the d
ntial, non-judgm
ransmission to o

itted Infection C
ng; no health ca
Clinics per week

ith extended ho

es the Physician

s, designs sexua
g and options, he
nants of Health 

se, poverty, litera

& Budget T

Shaya Dhinsa

Bryna Warsha

diagnosis and tr
mental, client-foc

others.   

Clinics per week
ard is required.  
k. The clinics op

urs offered per 

n. The clients re

al health campa
ealthy sexuality
Public Health N

acy, being new 

Template

a 

awsky 

reatment of sex
cused and easily

. The clinics ope
 

perate by appoin

month. The clin

eceive informatio

aigns and resou
y, sexual orienta
Nurse within the
to Canada etc.

 

Janu

ually transmitte
y accessible. Th

erate on a drop

ntment and usu

nics operate by a

on, counseling, 

urces, and plans
ation, sexually tr
e Team develop

 

A-

DATE 

uary 2014 

d infections.  
he Clinic staff 

-in basis, and 

ally require a 

appointment an

examination an

s advocacy 
ransmitted 
ps initiatives to 

 

-23 

nd 

nd 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
ONTARI
 
Ontario 

 

SECTIO
 
COMPO
 
The Clin
pill, cerv
provides
 
COMPO
 
The Nee
This pro
The nee
Regiona
through 
 
COMPO
 
To preve
syphilis 
were dia
the clien
The con
provider
Health a
 
 
 

m:  The Clinic 

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEAL

Public health S
Sexual Health a

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TE

nic offers both F
vical cancer scre
s free treatment

NENT(S) OF TE

edle Exchange 
ogram is anonym
edle exchange s
al HIV / AIDS Co
the Health Unit

NENT(S) OF TE

ent the spread o
and HIV/AIDS) 

agnosed at a He
nt has been cou
ntacts are encou
r.  Information o
and Long-Term 

 

  
 

and Sexual He

LTH STANDARD

Standards: Sexu
and Sexually Tr

AM PROGRAM #

Family Planning 
eening, pregnan
t for sexually tra

AM PROGRAM #

provides clean 
mous and availa
site at the Healt
onnection (RHA
t.  

AM PROGRAM #

of sexually trans
are reported to

ealth Unit Clinic
unselled and trea
uraged to be tes
on the client and

Care’s electron

 

ealth Promotio

(S), RELEVANT 

al Health, Sexu
ransmitted Infec

#1  Clinic Servic

and Sexually T
ncy testing, STI 
ansmitted infecti

#2  Needle Exch

needles/syringe
able at the Healt
h Unit is a satel

AC) and the Hea

#3  Sexually Tra

smitted infection
o the Health Unit
c, or by contactin
ated, and ask fo
sted and treated
d their contacts a
nic database. 

2014 P

on 

LEGISLATION O

ually Transmitted
ctions Preventio

ces 

Transmitted Infe
testing and trea

ions.   

hange  

es and other inje
th Unit from Mo
lite site of the C

alth Unit. The Co

ansmitted Infect

ns, people with 
t.  The Clinic Pu
ng the ordering 
or contact inform
d; this can be do
are entered into

Planning &

OR REGULATION

d Infections, and
n and Control P

ctions (STI) Clin
atment, and sex

ection equipmen
ondays to Thurs
Counterpoint Ne
ounterpoint Pro

tion Follow-up 

laboratory-conf
ublic Health Nur
health care pro

mation for sexua
one at the Sexu
o the Integrated 

& Budget T

N 

d Blood-borne I
Protocol (2013)

nics for clients w
xual health educ

nt and accepts u
days from 8:30 
edle Exchange 
gram is adminis

firmed sexually t
rse begins the fo
vider if the clien
al contacts or en
ally Transmitted
Public Health In

Template

nfections (inclu

who need low co
cation. The Clin

used needles/sy
am to 7 pm, an
program which

stered by RHAC

transmitted infe
ollow-up proces
nt was tested el
ncourage the cl
d Infection Clinic
nformation Syst

 

ding HIV) 

ost birth control
nic sells low cost

yringes and oth
nd Fridays from 
h is co-sponsore
C and funds are

ections (chlamyd
ss by contacting
sewhere. The n
ient to notify the
c or at another h
tem (iPHIS), the

 

A-

, morning after 
t birth control an

her equipment.  
8:30 am to 4 pm

ed by the 
 provided 

dia, gonorrhea, 
g the client if the
nurse will ensure
eir own contacts
health care 
e Ministry of 

 

-24 

nd 

m. 

ey 
e 
s. 



 
Program
 
COMPO
 
The Sex
Promoti
provide 
educatio
 
COMPO
 
The Soc
and dec
injection
 
COMPO
 
Other se

 

 
 

 

m:  The Clinic 

NENT(S) OF TE

xual Health Prom
on and Clinic Te
placements for 

on on sexual he

NENT(S) OF TEA

cial Determinan
crease barriers t
n drug use and h

NENT(S) OF TEA

exual health pro
Working on issu
community adv
Updating the fa
Ensuring curren

 

  
 

and Sexual He

AM PROGRAM #

motion Team de
eams provide o
health care pro

ealth topics to th

AM PROGRAM #

ts of Health Pub
to accessing pu
harm reduction 

AM PROGRAM #

omotion activitie
ues related to s

vocacy group; 
act sheets and la
nt and future pro

 

 

ealth Promotio

#4  Sexual Heal

evelops present
one on one cons
ofessional stude
heir clients.  

#5 Social Determ

blic Health Nurs
blic health prog
strategies.  

#6 Other sexual 

es include: 
upporting the Le

anding pages o
ograms are evid

2014 P

on 

lth Education 

tations, campaig
sultation to clien
ents/residents th

minants of Healt

se works with int
grams and servic

health promotio

esbian, Gay, Bi

n the web site;
dence-informed 

Planning &

gns, resources 
nts on the teleph
hereby increasin

th 

ternal and exter
ces. The Social

on activities 

sexual, Transge

and evaluation

& Budget T

and health fairs
hone. The Sexu
ng these studen

rnal partners to 
 Determinants o

endered and Qu

 components ar

Template

s on sexual heal
al Health Promo

nts’/residents’ ab

address the so
of Health Public

ueer (LGBTQ) c

re incorporated 

 

lth topics. The S
otion and Clinic
bilities to provide

cial factors that
c Health Nurse w

community inclu

as possible and

 

A-

Sexual Health 
c Teams also 
e information an

t impact health 
will focus on 

uding running a 

d appropriate. 

 

-25 

nd 



 
Program
 
 

SECTIO
 
PERFOR

 

Compon
% of Gon
case ma
# of birth
 
# of new 
Infection 
# of new 
 

Compon
# of new 
Health U
Approxim
Exchang
Compon
#  of chla
 

Compon
Sexual H

# of pres
Approxim
informati
# of expe
clinical te
 

m:  The Clinic 

ON E 

RMANCE/SERVIC

nent of Team #1 
norrhea case follo
nagement. (Acco

h control  / emerge

 clients / returning
 (STI) Clinic 
 clients / returning

nent of Team #2 
 clients / returning

Unit  
mate # of needles
ge program at the
nent of Team #3 
amydia /  gonorrh

nent of Team #4 
Health Campaigns

sentations, health
mate # of phone c
on 

eriences for medi
eam assistants. 

 

  
 

and Sexual He

CE LEVEL MEAS
 

Clinic Services 
ow-up initiated in 
ountability indicato
ency contraceptio

g clients / visits to

g clients / visits to

Needle Exchang
g clients to the N

s and syringes dis
 Health Unit 
Sexually Transm

hea / syphilis / HIV

 Sexual Health E
s 

 fairs and clinic to
calls to Public He

cal students, resi

 

 

ealth Promotio

SURES 

0-2 business day
ors) 
on pills dispensed

o the Sexually Tra

o the Family Plan

ge  
eedle Exchange 

stributed / returne

mitted Infection 
V/AIDS reported a

Education 

ours 
alth Nurse for sex

idents, nursing st

2014 P

on 

ys to ensure time

d  

ansmitted 

nning Clinic  

program at the 

ed to the Needle 

Follow-up 
and followed-up

xual health 

tudents and 

Planning &

20

ely 99.

33,108

3,448 /  2,3

 London: 2
3,596 / 7

 Strathroy
467  

 
158 /

29,821 /

1,567 / 10

Syphil
Bar Cam

Are You
Adventures

12
76

1

& Budget T

012 

1% 

8 / 675   
 
342 / 8,597  

2,217 / 
,344  

y:  252 / 96 / 





/ 952 

/ 17,149 

6 / 37 /  22 

is bus; 
mpaign; 

u Doin’ It; 
s in Sex City  
21 
60 

1 

Template

2013 
(anticipated

100% 

31,249 / 66
. 

3,217 / 2,242 / 8

London: 1,16
3,252 / 6,683 
Strathroy: 127
372  

 
185/ 992

48,884 / 21,9

1,309  / 81 / 21
Numbers not yet 

Are You Doin
Add Your Colo
Clinic Promot

103 
428 

17 

 

d) 
same/

8 

8,052  

1 / 
  

7 / 143 / 

913 

 / 20 
final 

All re
follow

n’ It; 
our; 
tion 

 

A-

2014 
(estimate/ 

increase/decrea

Same 

Same 

Increase 

Same 

 
Increase 

Increase 

eported cases ar
wed up in a timel

manner 

 

Increase 
Same 

Same 

 

-26 

ase) 

e 
y 



 
Program
 
informati
# of expe
clinical te
Compon
Initiatives
Health N

Compon
# of mee
# of fact 
 

m:  The Clinic 

on 
eriences for medi
eam assistants. 
nent of Team #5 
s that were the fo

Nurse 

nent of Team #6 
etings of LGBTQ a
sheets re-design

 

  
 

and Sexual He

cal students, resi

Social Determin
ocus of the Social

Other Sexual He
advocacy group  
ed or created. 

 

ealth Promotio

idents, nursing st

nants of Health
l Determinants of

ealth Promotion

2014 P

on 

tudents and 

f Health Public 

n Activities 

Planning &

1

Methadone M
Best Practice
Workgroup;
Internal Heal
Clear Writing
and capacity

5
100 re-d

& Budget T

1 

Maintenance 
e 

lth Literacy/ 
g education 
y building  
 

M
B
W
C
O
in

50 
designed 

Template

17 

Methadone Mainte
Best Practice 
Workgroup; 
Community Opioid
Overdose Prevent
nitiative  

 

26  
 5 created

 

 

enance 

d 
tion 

Methad
Best P
Comm
Overdo
initiativ
Munici
Staff e
Social 
Health
Interna
Impact
(HEIA)

Revie

 

A-

Same 

done Maintenanc
Practice Workgrou
munity Opioid 

ose Prevention 
ve; 
pal drug strategy
ducation about 
Determinants of 
; 

al Health Equity 
t Assessment 
)  

Decrease  
ew 105 fact shee

 

-27 

ce 
up; 

y; 

ts 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
Program
Public He
Health P
Clinical T
Program
Nurse Pr
 
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P
 
Total Ex
 
 
 

m:  The Clinic 

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

 Manager 
ealth Nurses  

Promoter 
Team Assistants 
 Assistant 
ractitioner 

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditure 

 

  
 

and Sexual He

2012 Bud

$  1,484,2
773,9

$  2,258,2

 

 

ealth Promotio

get  201

38 $   
65 

03 $   2

2014 P

on 

2 Actual 

1,479,178 
758,458 

2,237,636 

Planning &

2013 T

2013 Budget

$   1,528,522
 773,965

$   2,302,487

& Budget T

 
 

TOTAL FTES 
 

17.5 
1.0 
11.4 
1.0 
4.0 
0.0 
0.1 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   1,570
 773

$   2,344

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

0,734 
3,315 

4,049 

 

2014 ESTIMA

18.
1.0
11.
1.0
4.0
0.4
0.0

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$      42,212 

 (650) 

$      41,562 

 

A-

ATED FTES  

3 
0 
9 

0 
0 
4 
0 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013
2.8% 

(0.1)% 

1.8% 

 

 

-28 

e 
e) 



 
Program
 
SECTI
 
FUNDIN
 

Ob
Re

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS
  User F
  Other 
Total R

 
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 
 

 C
a
p

 S
O
o

 P
p

 
 

m:  The Clinic 

ON H 

NG SOURCES: 

bject of 
evenue 
Shared   
LTC – 100% 
S – 100% 
Fees 
Revenue 

Revenues 

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIA

Computer upg
and attached to 
practice.  This u
Substance use
Opioid Overdos
on a Municipal D
Program evalu
programs and d

 

  
 

and Sexual He

2012 Budget  

    $ 1,541,498 
 431,705 

 
 285,000 

 
$   2,258,203 

ATIVES PLANNE

rade: The curre
client records, 

upgraded progra
e: The Social De
se Prevention Pr
Drug Strategy. 
ation: The Hea

develop an evalu

 

 

ealth Promotio

2012 A

$       1,47
42

32
2

$    2,23

ED FOR 2014  

ent computer pro
and will allow fi

am also has the
eterminants of H
rogram (includin

alth Promoter wi
uation plan for f

2014 P

on 

ctual 20

72,173 $    
20,321 

 
22,952 
22,190 
37,636 $ 

ogram is to be u
les to be archiv
 ability to allow 

Health Public He
ng naloxone dis

ill work closely w
future campaign

Planning &

013 Budget 2

  1,584,043 
433,444 

 
285,000 

 
   2,302,487 

upgraded begin
ed using electro
The Clinic to be

ealth Nurse will 
tribution) to pre

with the Sexual 
ns, presentation

& Budget T

2014 Draft Bud

$   1,625,605
433,444

285,000

$   2,344,049

ning of 2014.  T
onic lists instead
ecome paperles
focus on workin
vent deaths in p

Health Promoti
s, health fairs, a

Template

dget
$ incr

($ dec
over 

5 $     4
4 
 

0 
 

9 $     4

This upgrade wi
d of using a ma
ss. 
ng with commun
people who use

on Public Healt
and other progra

 

rease 
rease) 
2013 

(%

41,562 
 
 
 
 

41,562 

ll allow docume
nual process wh

nity partners to 
e opioid drugs, a

th Nurses to eva
ams.   

 

A-

% increase 
% decrease) ove

2013 
2.6% 

 
 
 
 

1.8% 

ents to be scann
hich is current 

develop the 
and will begin w

aluate current 

 

-29 

er 

ned 

ork 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 
 

 C
d

 S
w
r
C

 A
y
n
u

 
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 

 
Reduct
 
Enhanc
  
 
Enhanc

 
 

m:  The Clinic 

ON J 

URES AND CHAL

Client volume: 
drop-in basis.  T
Sexually transm
whether they ar
reportable disea
Care’s database
Administrative
year for a total o
need to continue
until a later date

ON K 

MENDED ENHAN

ion – Sexual H

cement – Addit
and Sex

cement – Socia
determin

 

  
 

and Sexual He

LLENGES 

Clinic workload
The client is to b
mitted infectio
e diagnosed at 
ases, it can be c
e. 

e Assistant Sup
of 0.4 full-time e
e to be complet

e.   

NCEMENTS, RED

ealth Clinic eff

tional Administ
xual Health Prom

al Determinants
nants of health a

 

ealth Promotio

d can be challen
be seen in a tim
n volumes: Cli
the Health Unit

challenging to fo

pport: As of 201
equivalents (FTE
ted by the Sexu

DUCTIONS AND 

ficiencies - $34

trative Support
motion Team as

s of Health - $4
and health prom

2014 P

on 

nging for clinic s
ely manner and
nic staff follow-u
’s clinics or by a

ollow-up in a tim

14, the Sexual H
Es). However, d
al Health Promo

EFFICIENCIES F

4,000 - Efficienc

t - $28,000 - 0.4
s a result of rene

47,562 – This pr
motion within Ora

Planning &

staff when there
d this can be diff
up reportable se
an external heal

mely manner and

Health Promotio
during the time w
otion Public Hea

FOR 2014 

cies realized in v

4 FTEs of admin
egotiations of th

roposal would s
al Heal, Commu

& Budget T

 is high volume 
ficult when there
exually transmit
lth care provide
d enter data into

on Team will hav
when the Progra
alth Nurses or th

various service 

nistrative suppo
he Travel Clinic c

ee additional 0.
unicable Diseas

Template

 of patients at th
e are many clie
tted infections fo
er.  If there is an
o iPHIS, the Min

ve Program Ass
am Assistant is 
he Health Prom

redesign initiativ

ort to be provide
contract. 

.5 PHN resourc
se and Sexual H

 

he STI clinic wh
nts in the waitin
or residents of M
 increase or a c

nistry of Health 

sistant for eight 
not available, th

moter or will not 

ves in the Sexu

ed to the Sexual

es dedicated to
Health Services.

 

A-

hich operates on
ng room. 
Middlesex-Lond
cluster of 
and Long-Term

months of the 
hese tasks will 
be completed 

ual Health Clinic

 Health Manage

oward the social 
. 

 

-30 

n a 

on 

 

. 

er 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

              

ORAL HEA

 

                        

ALTH, COMM

O

        2014 Pl

MUNICABLE

RAL HEA

lanning & B

 

E DISEASE,
 

ALTH PRO

Budget Tem

 SEXUAL H

OGRAM

mplate

HEALTH SER

 

RVICES 

 

A-

 

-31 



 
Program
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 

SECTIO
 
SUMMA
 
The ove
Team ac
access t
 
 

SECTIO
 
ONTARI
 
Ontario 

 C
 O
 P
 P

 
 
 

m:  Oral Health

ON A 

E AREA 
Oral 
Dise
(OHC

AM TEAM Oral 

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PR

erall goal of the 
chieves this thro
to oral health ca

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEAL

Public Health S
Children in Nee
Oral Health Ass
Preventive Oral 
Protocol for the 

 

  
 

h Program 

Health, Commu
eases, Sexual H
CDSH) 

Health 

ROGRAM 

Oral Health Tea
ough identifying
are. 

LTH STANDARD

Standards (OPH
d of Treatment 

sessment and S
Health Service
Monitoring of C

 

 

unicable 
ealth 

am is to improve
g those at risk of

(S), RELEVANT 

HS) addressed in
(CINOT) Protoc
urveillance Prot
s Protocol (200

Community Wate

2014 P

MANAGER

DIRECTOR

e the oral health
f poor oral healt

LEGISLATION O

nclude: Child He
col (2008) 
tocol (2008) 
8) 
er Fluoride Leve

Planning &

R  NAME 

R NAME 

h status of the ta
th outcomes an

OR REGULATION

ealth, Foundatio

els (2008) 

& Budget T

Chimere Okor

Bryna Warsha

arget population
d ensuring they

N 

onal Standard.

Template

ronkwo 

awsky 

n, which is partic
y have appropria

 

Janu

cularly focused 
ate information, 

 

A-

DATE 

uary 2014 

on children. Th
education and 

-32 

e 



 
Program
 
 

SECTIO
 
COMPO
 
School s
needs s
request.
cannot a
Children
receive 
 
COMPO
 
Oral hea
outcome
and the 
and serv
 
COMPO
 
Informat
commun
 
COMPO
 
The 50 
(such as
Treatme
children
King Str
 
COMPO
 
Fluoride
varnish 
 

m:  Oral Health

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TE

screening involv
such as cavities.
. Those identifie
afford dental ca
n in Need of Tre
publicly-funded

NENT(S) OF TE

alth trends and 
es include the c
adjustment of p

vices are adjust

NENT(S) OF TE

tion and educat
nity-based settin

NENT(S) OF TE

King Street offic
s cleaning, seal
ent, Healthy Sm
 who cannot aff

reet Clinic for a 

NENT(S) OF TE

e strengthens te
programs are b

 

  
 

h Program 

AM PROGRAM #

ves a Dental Hy
. It is done in all
ed as having de
re, publicly-fund

eatment Program
 dental care. 

AM PROGRAM #

the associated 
classification of s
programs and se
ted. 

AM PROGRAM #

tion on oral hea
ngs and via the 

AM PROGRAM #

ce offers a full d
ants and fluorid

mile Ontario and 
ford this type of 
small fee of $30

AM PROGRAM #

eeth to prevent a
being initiated in

 

#1  School scree

ygienist with the
l elementary sch
ntal needs are f
ded treatment is
m (CINOT) or H

#2  Monitoring, r

risk factors with
schools accordi
ervices in respo

#3  Oral health p

lth topics, such 
website, email 

#4 Clinical servi

dental clinic that 
de). Treatment is

Ontario Works)
care from a com

0.00 if they are 

#5  Fluoride  

and repair caviti
 2014 for some 

2014 P

ening 

 support of Den
hools in Junior K
followed-up to e
s offered at the 5

Healthy Smiles O

reporting and qu

hin the commun
ng to different r

onse to observe

promotion 

as brushing, flo
and telephone. 

ices at the 50 K

provides the ra
s provided to ch
). Preventive se
mmunity dentist
on Ontario Wor

es. The level of
children at high

Planning &

ntal Assistant ch
Kindergarten, S
ensure that dent
50 King Street D

Ontario (HSO), d

uality improvem

ity are monitore
risk ratings, whic
d trends.  Evide

ossing, healthy e
 

King Street Clinic

ange of treatmen
hildren on public
rvices (under th
t. Under the Sm
rks or have child

f fluoride in com
her risk.  

& Budget T

hecking children
Senior Kindergar
tal care (treatme
Dental Office or
depending on e

ment 

ed and reported 
ch determine if 
ence-informed in

eating, first dent

c 

nt (such as fillin
cly-funded denta
he PrevOH prog

mileClean Progra
dren on the Hea

mmunity water is

Template

n’s teeth to ident
rten, and Grade
ent and prevent
r at a community
ligibility criteria.

in the Annual O
additional grade
nterventions are

tal visits etc., ar

ngs and extractio
al programs (e.g
gram) are provid
am, adults can a
althy Smiles Ont

s reported to the

 

tify if they have 
e 2, and also by 
tion) is provided
y dental office u
 Children on On

Oral Health Rep
es should receiv
e pilot tested wh

re delivered in s

ons) and preven
g. Children in N
ded to these chi
also receive cle
tario Program. 

e Health Unit. Pi

 

A-

urgent dental 
parental 

d.  For those wh
under the 
ntario Works als

port. The intende
ve screening, 
hen programs 

school and 

ntive services 
eed of 
ldren as well as
anings at the 50

ilot fluoride 

-33 

o 

so 

ed 

s 
0 



 
Program
 
COMPO
 
The Hea
that are 
time fram
 

 
SECTIO
 
PERFOR
 

Compon
# of eligib
Percent o
2014) 
% of chil
preventiv
Compon
 
% of sch
based on
% of chil
/ % of ch
Compon
# of oral 
Compon
# of CINO
# of eligib
fluoride v
Compon
# of child
Compon
# of HSO
% of HSO

m:  Oral Health

NENT(S) OF TE

alth Unit proces
generated by lo

me (i.e. within 2

ON E 

RMANCE/SERVIC

nent of Team #1 
ble students scre
of publicly-funded

dren screened th
ve services (clean
nent of Team #2 

ools classified as
n dental needs id
dren absent durin

hildren excluded f
nent of Team #3 
health presentati

nent of Team #4 
OT clients / # of c
ble clients who re
varnish) at the 50
nent of Team #5 
dren who receive 
nent of Team #6 
O / CINOT claims 
O / CINOT claims

 

  
 

h Program 

AM PROGRAM #

sses claims for H
ocal dentists for
25 business day

CE LEVEL MEAS

 School screenin
eened / % of eligib
d schools screene

hat are identified a
ning, sealants, flu
 Monitoring, repo

s “High Risk”, “Me
entified in Grade 
ng the school-bas
from school based
 Oral health prom
ions 
Clinical service

clients on other p
eceived preventiv
0 King Street Den

 Fluoride 
fluoride varnish t
  Processing th
processed 

s processed withi

 

#6  Processing o

Healthy Smiles O
r services provid
ys of the date of 

SURES 

ng 
ble school childre
ed (accountability

as requiring urgen
uoride varnishes)
orting and quality 

edium Risk”, & “L
2 students.

sed dental screen
d screening  

motion 

es at the 50 King
ublicly-funded pro

ve services (clean
tal Clinic. 

through pilot prog
e dental claims 

n the acceptable

2014 P

of dental claims

Ontario (HSO), 
ded to children u
f receipt of the c

en screened 
y indicator for 

nt care  / 

improvement  

ow Risk” 

ning program 

g Street Clinic 
ograms 

ning, sealants, 

gram 
 

 time frame. 

Planning &

s 

Children in Nee
under these pro

claim). 

2012 

 17,602 / 83
100% 

4.03% / 5.23

11.0% (High r
15.0% (Medium

74.0% (Low r
11.16% / 9.46

68 

194 / 152
538 

Not applicab

2,234 / 1,20
Not availabl

& Budget T

ed of Treatment
ograms. It is inte

(a

% 1

3% 3

risk)  
m risk)  

isk) 

10.
8.7%

80.
6% 8.2

ble N

03 2
le 

Template

t (CINOT) and M
ended that claim

2013 
anticipated) 

5,751 / 81% 
100% 

3.96% / 7.6% 

3% (High risk) 
% (Medium risk) 
.9% (Low risk) 
26% / 15.05% 

70 

200 / 285 
600 

ot applicable 

2,791 / 1,181 
85% / 24% 

 

 

Middlesex Coun
ms are paid with

(es
(same/incr

In

De

De
De
In
De

De

Same
In

In

Increas
Increas

 

A-

nty Ontario Work
in an acceptabl

2014 
stimate) 
rease/decrease)

ncrease  
Same 

ecrease 

ecrease 
ecrease 
ncrease 
ecrease  

ecrease 

e / Increase 
ncrease  

ncrease 

se / Decrease 
se / Increase 

-34 

ks 
e 

 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
       Den

    Prog
    Dent
    Dent
    Dent
    Dent
    Dent
    Heal

 
 
*The Boa
 
 
 
 
SECTI
 
EXPEN
 

Objec

  Perso
  Other 

Total E
 

 
 

m:  Oral Health

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

tal Consultant (S
gram Manager  
tist 
tal Hygienists  
tal Assistants  
tal Claims Analys
tal Claims Assista
lth Promoter (con

ard of Health app

ON G 

NDITURES: 

t of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 

Expenditures 

 

  
 

h Program 

hared among five

st  
ants  
ntract) 

proved up to this s

e 2012 Bud

$  1,214,2
1,193,6

$  2,407,9

 

 

e health units) 

staffing complem

dget  201

232 $   
669 

901 $   

2014 P

ent; the staffing c

12 Actual 

1,188,659 
1,475,336 

2,663,995 

Planning &

201

complement is cu

2013 Budget

$   1,307,610
1,013,060

$   2,320,670

& Budget T

 
 

3 TOTAL FTES
 

16.1 
0.4 
1.0 
1.0 
4.0 
5.7* 
1.0 
2.0* 
1.0  

urrently 6.7 Denta

t 2014 D
Budg

$   1,307
1,013

$   2,320

Template

S  

al Assistants and 

Draft 
get 

$ 
($ de

7,610 
3,060 

0,670 

 

 
 

2014 ESTIMAT
 

16.1
0.4
1.0
1.0
4.0
5.7*
1.0
2.0*
1.0 

1.0 Dental Claim

 increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$   0 

 

$   0 

 

A-

TED FTES  

 

s Assistant. 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
0.0% 

 

0.0% 

-35 

e 
e) 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 

 
1. P

s
2. P

s
3. P

c
o
H

4. R
a
s
n
c

m:  Oral Health

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIA

Pilot school-bas
school. 
Pilot school-bas
schools.  
Pilot test the pro
childcare setting
oral health care 
Home Visitor, as
Reassessment 
and 4 students. 
small positive, b
no discernible e
calendar year. 

 

  
 

h Program 

2012 Bu

$     1,151
871

275
110

$   2,407

ATIVES PLANNE

sed tooth brushi

sed fluoride varn

ovision of fluorid
gs. As well, pare
plan, including 

s a pilot test.  
of oral health te
These lessons 

but temporary ef
effect on caries. 

 

udget  20

,543 $     
,028 

 
,000 
,330 
,901 $  

ED FOR 2014  

ng program for 

nish program fo

de varnish to ch
ents of 0 – 4 yea
fluoride varnish

eaching in the sc
are provided by

ffect on plaque 
Therefore, the 

2014 P

012 Actual 

  1,099,234 
1,214,662 

 
234,156 
115,943 

  2,663,995 

Junior Kinderga

r Pre-Kindergar

ildren 0 – 4 yea
ars old already 
h, integrated into

chools: Classro
y the Dental Ass
accumulation. T
evidence base t

Planning &

2013 Budge

$      1,151,4
783,92

275,00
110,33

$    2,320,6

arten, Senior Ki

rten, Junior Kind

ars of age to be 
enrolled in the H
o their regular h

om-based denta
sistants. Howev
These interventi
to support the p

& Budget T

et 2014 
Bud

16 $   1,15
24 78
 

00 27
30 11

670 $   2,32

ndergarten, Gra

dergarten, Senio

offered in dayca
Healthy Babies 

home visits from

al health educat
ver, evidence ha
ions have a con
program is weak

Template

Draft 
dget ($ d

51,416 
83,924 

 
75,000 
10,330 
20,670 

ades 1 & 2 in a 

or Kindergarten

are settings, pre
Healthy Childre

m either the Pub

tion lessons are
as demonstrate
nsistent positive
k and the progra

 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$     0 

 
 
 
 

$     0 

“High Screenin

n and Grade 1 c

e-school progra
en program will 
lic Health Nurse

e currently offer
d that these inte

e effect on know
am will be re-as

 

A-

r 
% increas

(% decreas
over 2013

0.0% 
 
 
 
 

0.0% 

g Intensity” 

hildren in select

ams and other 
have a targeted

e or the Family 

ed to Grades 2 
erventions have

wledge levels bu
ssessed in this 

-36 

e 
se) 
3 

ted 

d 

e a 
t 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 

 
1. D
2. T

T
3. N

im
th
u

 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 

 
Non
 

 
 

m:  Oral Health

ON J 

URES AND CHAL

Deficit in the Den
The reduction in 
Treatment (CINO
Newly announce
mplications for t
he work of the te
pcoming year. 

ON K 

MENDED ENHAN

e 

 

  
 

h Program 

LLENGES 

ntal Clinic due to
the budget from

OT) expansion. 
ed plans to integ
he staffing of th
eam. These imp

NCEMENTS, RED

 

o the fact that re
m the 100% prov

grate all the pub
he Oral Health p
plications will un

DUCTIONS AND 

2014 P

evenue from bil
vincially-funded

blicly-funded Ora
program. Chang
nfold as addition

EFFICIENCIES F

Planning &

lings for oral he
d programs such

al Health progra
es in the fundin

nal information a

FOR 2014 

& Budget T

ealth services is 
h as Healthy Sm

ams and central
ng for the preven
about the propo

Template

not sufficient to
miles Ontario (H

ize the claims m
ntion and treatm
osed changes be

 

o keep up with e
SO) and Childre

management pro
ment programs w
ecome available

 

A-

expenses. 
en in Need of 

ocess will have 
will also impact 
e over the 

-37 



 
 
 
 

 

  
 

ENVIRO

DIRECT

 

ONMENTAL 

TOR / EPI

2014 P

HEALTH A

DEMIOLO

Planning &

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ND CHRON
 

OGY / PR
 
 

& Budget T

IC DISEASE

ROGRAM 

Template

E PREVENT

EVALUA

 

TION 

ATOR 

 

B

 

B-1 



 
 
SECTIO
 
 
Service
 
 
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
Summa

 O
r
p
s

 
SECTIO
 
Ontario

 O
A
E

 
SECTIO
 
Compo
The obje
informed
sessions
associat
Compo
The obje
practitio
determin
health p
identify 

ON A 

e Area EHC

m Team Direc
Eval

ON B 

ary of Team Pro
Oversight of the
resources, finan
provide consulta
surveillance, pro

ON C 

o Public Health 
Ontario Public H
Assessment, Su
Evaluator team.

ON D 

nent(s) Of Tea
ective of this co
d decision maki
s to enhance us
ted processes, 
nent(s) Of Tea
ective of this co

oners, policy-ma
ne the health of

practitioners and
effective public 

 

  
 

CDP 

ctor/Epidemiolo
uator 

ogram 
e activities and s
nce are provided
ation to EHCDP
ogram evaluatio

Standard(s), R
Health Standard
urveillance, Res
.   

m Program #1 
omponent is to in

ng.  Targeting p
se of research e
for capacity bui
m Program #2 

omponent comes
akers, communit
f the population 
d other key stak
health strategie

 

M

ogy/Program D

staff of the EHC
d by the Directo

P and the overal
on to help ensur

Relevant Legis
ds Principles of
search and Know

Capacity Build
ncrease capacit
public health sta
evidence and co
lding in MLHU s
Program Plan
s directly from t
ty partners, hea
and support eff
eholders in acc

es. 

2014 P

Manager  Name

Director Name

CDP service area
or and supported
l health unit in p

re that programs

lation or Regu
f Need, Impact a
wledge Exchang

ding for Progra
ty among public
aff and manager
onduct program 
staff.   
ning Support
he OPHS Foun

alth care provide
fective public he
essing and inte

Planning &

e 

a in all areas inc
d by the Execut
program plannin
s are evidence-

lation 
and the Founda
ge and Program

am Planning, E
c health practitio
rs, activities of t
evaluations.  It 

dational Standa
ers, and the pub
ealth practice.  T
rpreting various

& Budget T

Sarah Maaten

Wally Adams

cluding program
ive Assistant.  T
ng, population n
informed.  

ational Standar
m Evaluation are

Evaluation and 
oners for effectiv
this component 
also involves th

ard.  We aim to 
blic of the best a
The Epi/PE team
s forms of evide

Template

n 

m and service de
The Epidemiolog
needs assessme

rd components 
e supported by 

Evidence-Info
ve program plan
include plannin

he development

increase aware
available resear
m will conduct a
nce to establish

 

Date 

January 7, 2

elivery, perform
gist and Progra
ents, health ass

of Population H
the Epidemiolog

ormed Decision
nning, evaluatio
ng and delivering
t of a larger plan

eness among pu
rch regarding the
activities that su
h need for their 

 

B

2014 

mance, human 
m Evaluator 

sessment and 

Health 
gist/Program 

n Making 
on and evidence
g training 
n, with 

ublic health 
e factors that 
pport public 
programs and 

 

B-2 

e 



 
Program
 
Compo
The obje
partners
the publ
with mo
that all s
local da
Compo
The obje
the effec
collabor
Compo
The obje
research
commun
opportu
 
SECTIO
 
Perform
 
 

Compo
Average
planning
% of EH
who can
% of EH
research
strategie
Compo
% of EH
who inte
professi
inform d

m: Director/Epid

nent(s) Of Tea
ective of this co
s and health car
lic, community p
re currently ava
sources of local
ta and diverse m
nent(s) Of Tea
ective of this co
ctiveness of exi
rating with public
nent(s) Of Tea
ective of this co
hers, academic 
nity researchers
nities.   

ON E 

mance/Service 

nent of Team #
e monthly % of E
g and evaluation

HCDP staff resp
n develop a logi
HCDP staff who 
h evidence is us
es and intervent
nent of Team #

HCDP staff resp
egrate various fo
onal experience

decision making

  
 

emiology/Progr

m Program #3 
omponent comes
re providers of r
partners and he
ailable, local dat
 health assessm
methods will be 
m Program #4 

omponent comes
sting programs 
c health practitio
m Program #5 

omponent comes
partners, and o

s and academic 

Level Measure

#1 Capacity Bu
EHCDP staff re
n who attend Ev
onsible for prog
c model 
agree that MLH

seful to determi
tions. 
#2 Program Pla
onsible for prog
orms of evidenc
e, political clima
. 

 

am Evaluator 

Population He
s directly from t
relevant and cur
alth care provid

ta and ensuring 
ment information

investigated. 
Program Evalu
s directly from t
and services, a
oners to conduc
Community C
s directly from t

other appropriat
partners, activi

es 

uilding for Prog
sponsible for pr
vidence Club me
gram planning a

HU organization
ne program or p

anning Suppor
gram planning a
ce including rese
ate and commun

2014 P

ealth Assessme
he OPHS Foun
rrent population
ders.  Activities f

that Rapid Risk
n can be distribu

uation Support
he OPHS Foun

as well as of fac
ct process and o
ollaboration fo
he OPHS Foun
e organizations
ties for this com

gram Planning,
rogram 
eetings 
nd evaluation 

 believes that 
policy 

rt 
nd evaluation 
earch, 
nity context to 

Planning &

ent & Surveilla
dational Standa
 health informat
for this compon
k Factor Surveil
uted to the targe

t 
dational Standa
tors contributing
outcome evalua

or Health Resea
dational Standa
 to support pub

mponent include

2012

, Evaluation an
NA

NA

NA

NA

& Budget T

ance 
ard.  To increase
tion.  The target
ent include upd
lance System (R
et audiences.  A

ard.  Increased a
g to their outcom
ations of their pr
arch and Know
ard. Established
lic health resea

e developing par

2 

nd Evidence-In

Template

e awareness am
t audiences incl

dating the comm
RRFSS) data is
Additionally, ide

awareness amo
mes.  Activities f
rograms. 
wledge Exchan
d effective partn
rch and knowle
rtnerships and p

2013 
(anticipated)

formed Decisio
13% 

50% 

71% 

56% 

 

mong the public
lude public heal

munity health sta
s analyzed and i
ntification of new

ong public healt
for this compon

ge 
erships with com
dge exchange.
participating in r

(
(same/in

on Making 

 

B

c, community 
lth practitioners

atus resource 
interpreted so 
w sources of 

th practitioners o
nent include 

mmunity 
Working with 

research 

2014 
(estimate) 
crease/decrea

increase 

increase 

increase 

increase 

 

B-3 

, 

of 

se) 



 
Program
 
Compo
% of EH
who rev
problem
Compo
% of EH
who rev
benefitin
Compo
% of pro
academ
develop
 
SECTIO
 
Staffing
 
 
Director
Adminis
Epidem
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Expend
 

Object o

  Person
  Other P
Total Ex
 
 

m: Director/Epid

nent of Team #
HCDP staff resp
view surveillance
m. 

nent of Team #
HCDP staff resp
view evaluation 
ng from our prog
nent of Team #
ojects involving 

mic partners and
ped)  

ON F 

g Costs: 

r 
strative Assistan
iologist 

m Evaluator 

ON G 

ditures: 

of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 
xpenditure 

  
 

emiology/Progr

#3  Population 
onsible for prog
e data to unders

#4  Program Ev
onsible for prog
reports to asses
grams and serv
#5  Community
partnerships wi
other organizat

nt 

e 2012 Bud

$  39
1

$  41

 

am Evaluator 

Health Assess
gram planning a
stand the extent

valuation Supp
gram planning a
ss who is acces

vices. 
y Collaboration
th community re
tions. (Indicator

get 201

95,777
5,942
1,719

2014 P

sment & Surve
nd evaluation 
t of issue or 

port 
nd evaluation 

ssing and 

n for Health Res
esearchers, 
r to be 

2 Actual 

$  403,922
21,059

$  424,981

Planning &

illance 
NA

NA

search and Kn
NA

2013 T

2013 Budget

$  408,90
15,94

$  424,84

& Budget T

nowledge Exch

 
 

Total FTEs 
 

4.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 

t 2014 D
Budg

07 $  4
42
49 $  4

Template

50% 

36% 

hange 
NA 

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

470,032
16,917

486,939

 

 
 

2014 Estimat

4.75
1.0
1.0
1.0

1.75

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  61,125

975
$  62,090

 

B

increase 

increase 

increase 

ted FTEs 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
15.0% 
6.1% 

14.6% 
 

 

B-4 

e 
e) 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Funding
 

Object o

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS 
  User F
  Other O
Total Re
 
SECTIO
 
Key Hig
 
 Upd
 Deve
 Beg
SECTIO
 
Pressur
 
 Incre
 Furt

partn
 
 

m: Director/Epid

ON H 

g Sources: 

of Revenue 

Shared 
TC – 100% 
 – 100% 

Fees 
Offset Revenue
evenue 

ON I 

ghlights/Initiati

ate of the sectio
elop the contex
in development

ON J 

res and Challe

easing number 
her engagemen
nerships/collabo

  
 

emiology/Progr

2012 Bu

$    4

e 
$   4

ves Planned F

ons of the Comm
xt and culture to 
t of the “Program

nges 

of Accountabilit
nt in Program Bu
oration, legislati

 

 

am Evaluator 

udget 20

411,719

411,719

or 2014  

munity Health S
support eviden

m Profile” detaili

ty Agreement in
udgeting and M
ive requirement

2014 P

012 Actual 

$      424,981

$    424,981

Status Resource
ce-informed pu
ing key element

dicators 
arginal Analysis
 and organizatio

Planning &

2013 Budge

$     424,

$     424,

e relevant to EH
blic health throu
ts of planning a

s requiring in de
onal risk compo

& Budget T

et 2014 
Bud

849 $   
 
 
 
 

849 $  

CDP with most 
ugh a CIHR fund
nd evaluation fo

epth review of th
onents of progra

Template

Draft 
dget ($ d

 486,939

 486,939

recent data ava
ded research st
or programs in E

he need, impact
ams and service

 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$     62,090

$    62,090

ailable 
tudy with McMa
EHCDP 

t, capacity and 
es. 

 

B

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

0 14.6%
 
 
 
 

0 14.6%

aster University  

 

B-5 

se 
se) 
3 

 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Recomm
 
 
The reco
evaluati
 
 
 

m: Director/Epid

ON K 

mended Enhan

ommended enh
on resources th

  
 

emiology/Progr

ncements, Red

hancement is the
hat will improve 

 

am Evaluator 

ductions and Ef

e addition of 0.7
MLHU’s unders

2014 P

fficiencies for 2

75 FTE Program
standing of popu

Planning &

2014 

m Evaluator to th
ulation health ne

& Budget T

he EHCDP Epi/
eed and its serv

Template

/PE team. This p
vices’ impact on

 

proposal will inc
n health outcom

 

B

crease program
es. 

 

B-6 



 

C

 

  
 

ENVIRO

HRONIC 

 

ONMENTAL 

DISEASE

2014 P

HEALTH A

E PREVEN

Planning &

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ND CHRON
 

NTION AN

& Budget T

IC DISEASE

ND TOBA

Template

E PREVENT

ACCO CO

 

TION 

ONTROL 

 

B

 

B-7 



 
 
SECTIO
 
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 

SECTIO
 
SUMMA

 T
c
s

 

SECTIO
 
ONTARI

 O
 R






 O



 R



 

ON A 

E AREA EHC

AM TEAM Chro
and 

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PR
The Chronic Dise
chronic disease. P
sun safety and ult

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEAL
OPHS: Foundatio
Relevant Legisla
 Health Protec
 Smoke-Free 
 City of Londo
 Bill 30, the Sk
OPHS Protocols
 Nutritious Foo
 Tobacco Com
Relevant Fundin
 Ministry of He
 Smoke-Free 

current   

 

  
 

CDP 

onic Disease Pr
Tobacco Contro

ROGRAM 
ease Prevention a
Program areas in
traviolet radiation

LTH STANDARD
onal Standard; Ch
ation: 
ction and Promoti
Ontario Act and O

on Smoking Near 
kin Cancer Preve
s 
od Basket Protoc
mpliance Protocol
ng Agreements a
ealth and Long-Te
Ontario Act Enfor

 

evention 
ol 

and Tobacco Con
nclude: food secu
n protection; tobac

(S), RELEVANT 
hronic Disease P

ion Act 
Ontario Regulatio
Recreation Amen

ention Act receive

col, 2008 
l, 2008 
and Directives 
erm Care Smoke
rcement Directive

2014 P

MANAGER

DIRECTOR

ntrol Team aims to
rity, food skills de
cco use preventio

LEGISLATION O
revention 

on 48/06  
nities and Entran

ed Royal Assent in

e Free Ontario P
es (Youth Access

Planning &

R  NAME 

R NAME 

o improve, promo
evelopment and p
on and cessation

OR REGULATION

ces Bylaw 
n October 2013 w

rogram Guideline
s, Tobacco Retail 

& Budget T

Linda Stobo 

Wally Adams

ote and protect th
promoting healthy
; and tobacco enf

N 

with an anticipate

es 
& Manufacturing

Template

he health of our c
y eating; early de
forcement. 

ed proclamation d

g, and Enclosed P

 

Janua

ommunity throug
etection and preve

ate in 2014 

Public Places/Wo

 

B

DATE 

ary 7, 2014 

h the prevention 
ention of cancer; 

orkplaces) or as 

 

B-8 

of 



Program
 
SECTIO
 
COMPO
Goal: Dec

 p
 s
 a
 p

COMPO
Goal: Dec

 
 

 
 

COMPO
Goal: Dec

 
 
 
 
 

COMPO
Goal: Dec

 O
t

 p
 a
 d
 m

COMPO
Goal: Dec

 e
 s
 i
 p

 

m:  Chronic Di

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TE
crease the rates of 
promote sun protec
support the develop
advocate for and pr
promote skin check
NENT(S) OF TE
crease the morbidit
promote the cance
increase recruitme
and colorectal canc
increase the cultur
increase capacity w
NENT(S) OF TE
crease the morbidit
the provision of foo
annual collection o
support the develo
promote healthy ea
support implement
NENT(S) OF TE
crease the morbidit
One Life One You 
tobacco use by cha
policy development
advocate for provin
denormalization of 
monitor and respon
NENT(S) OF TE
crease the morbidit
encourage tobacco
support the develop
ncrease the numbe
provision of cessati

 

  
 

sease Prevent

AM PROGRAM #
melanoma and oth

ctive behaviours 
pment of policies w
romote the Skin Ca
ks and increase cap
AM PROGRAM #
ty and mortality from

er screening guideli
ent and mobilization
cer screening 

ral sensitivity of hea
within the healthcar
AM PROGRAM #
ty and mortality from
od skills workshops
of the Nutritious Foo
opment of policies w
ating and increased
tation of the objectiv
AM PROGRAM #
ty and mortality from
 - increase the acti

anging social norms
t within school boar
cial legislation/regu
tobacco product us

nd to emerging issu
AM PROGRAM #
ty and mortality from
 users to quit throu
pment of policies w
er of healthcare pro
on counselling serv

 

 

tion and Tobac

#1: SUN SAFET
her types of skin ca

within workplaces, s
ancer Prevention Ac
pacity within the he
#2: EARLY DET
m breast, cervical a
nes and the benefi

n of under and neve

alth care profession
re community and a
#3: FOOD SECU
m preventable chro

s to high risk youth 
od Basket Survey d
within workplaces a
d access to fruits an
ves of the London 
#4: TOBACCO U
m tobacco use by p
ionable knowledge 
s through creative h
rds and municipalit
ulations (e.g. flavou
se and the tobacco 
ues in tobacco cont
#5: TOBACCO C
m tobacco use thro

ugh collaborative co
within workplaces, h
oviders who engage
vices and increased

2014 P

cco Control 

TY AND ULTRAVI
ancer 

chools and childca
ct to reduce youth a
althcare community

TECTION AND PR
and colorectal canc
ts of screening for 
er screened women

nals to help reduce 
address barriers to

URITY, FOOD SK
onic diseases throu
and other priority p

data; advocacy effo
and municipalities, a
nd vegetables (e.g.
Food Charter throu

USE PREVENTIO
preventing the initia
among youth abou

health promotion in
ies to promote toba
ur ban, smoke-free 
industry 

rol
CESSATION   
ough the provision o
ommunication camp
ealthcare facilities 
e clients/patients in
d access to nicotine

Planning &

IOLET RADIATIO

re facilities that pro
access to artificial t
y to facilitate the ea

REVENTION OF C
cer and increase pa
early detection of c
n and marginalized 

the barriers to part
facilitate increased

KILLS/LITERACY
gh the adoption of 

populations (low lite
orts around food ins
and advocacy for p
. Harvest Bucks Vo

ugh the establishme
ON AND YOUTH E
ation of tobacco use
ut tobacco health ris
itiatives and comm

acco-free cultures (
movies, restrictions

of targeted, sustain
paigns 
and municipalities 

n a cessation interve
e replacement ther

& Budget T

ON EXPOSURE (

otect people from ex
tanning services an
arly detection of me
CANCER   
articipation in provin
cervical, breast and

groups (immigrant

ticipating in cancer 
d use of the FOBT 
Y AND PROMOTI

healthy eating beh
eracy, low income, t
security and impact
rovincial legislation

oucher Program, So
ent of a London Foo
ENGAGEMENT  
e in youth and youn
sks and correlated 
unity events  

(e.g. tobacco-free s
s on promotion) 

ned and integrated s

to promote cessati
ention (BCI, Intens
rapy/aids to priority 

Template

(UVR) 

xposure to UVR 
nd to promote the d
elanoma and skin c

ncial cancer screen
d colorectal 
ts, newcomers, low

screening program
for colorectal cance
ON OF HEALTHY

haviours 
transient, young mo
t of income on heal
n/regulations to ach
odium Campaign, E
od Policy Council

ng adults 
risk factors, and to

schools, outdoor by

smoking cessation

on 
sive Interventions, p

populations (e.g. lo

 

dangers of artificial 
cancer cells

ning programs 

w literacy, low incom

ms 
er screening
Y EATING   

others) 
lth 
hieve healthy food e
Energy Drink camp

o decrease the soci

ylaws) 

 services. 

provision of NRT) 
ow income, mental

 

B

tanning 

me) to breast, cervic

environments 
paign) 

ial acceptability of 

l illness, etc)

 

B-9 

cal 



 
Program
 
COMPO
Goal: Dec

 c
 c
 i
 d
 p

 
SECTIO
 
PERFOR
 

Compon
Advocate

Compon
%  of ML
% of MLH
% of MLH
Compon
% of Mid
the recom
Compon
# of Yout
# of Atten
% of you
Agreeme
Compon
% of adu
smokers 
Compon
% of Mid
% of toba
inspectio
# of insp

m:  Chronic Di

NENT(S) OF TE
crease the morbidit
conduct three round
conduct mandated 
ncrease provincial/
decreased exposur
promote complianc

ON E 

RMANCE/SERVIC

nent of Team #1 
e for enactment o

nent of Team #2 
LHU eligible resid
HU eligible reside
HU eligible reside
nent of Team #3 
ddlesex-London re
mmended daily a
nent of Team #4 
th Engaged/Reac
ndees at annual S

uth who have nev
ent Indicator) 
nent of Team #5 
ults aged 19 years

nent of Team #6 
ddlesex-London e
acco vendors in c
on (Accountabilit
ections of public 

  
 

sease Prevent

AM PROGRAM #
ty and mortality from
ds of youth access 
inspections at seco
/municipal prohibitio
re to tobacco produ
e with the Smoke-F

CE LEVEL MEAS

 SUN SAFETY AND

of provincial artific

 EARLY DETECTIO

ents participating
ents participating 
ents participating 
FOOD SECURITY, 
esidents aged 12
mount of vegetab
 TOBACCO USE P

ched in Programm
Smoke-free Movi
er smoked a who

 TOBACCO USE C
s and over in Mid

 PROTECTION AND

exposed to SHS in
compliance with y
ty Agreement In
places and workp

 

tion and Tobac

#6: PROTECTIO
m tobacco use thro
inspections and at

ondary schools, pub
ons on tobacco use

ucts and tobacco ind
Free Ontario Act th

SURES 

D UVR EXPOSURE

cial tanning legisla

ON/PREVENTION OF

g in mammogram
in cervical cance
in colorectal can
FOOD SKILLS, PR

2 years and older 
bles and fruit 

PREVENTION AND Y
ming through part
e Night in the Pa

ole cigarette (Acc

CESSATION   
ddlesex-London th

D ENFORCEMENT  

n vehicles and in 
youth access legi
dicator) 
places 

2014 P

cco Control 

N AND TOBACC
ough reduced expos
t least one display, 
blic places and wor
e (e.g. outdoor smo
dustry product mar
rough vendor educ

 (UVR) 
ation 

F CANCER 
 screening 

er screening  
cer screening 

ROMOTING HEALTH

reporting eating 

YOUTH ENGAGEME

tnerships/projects
ark 
countability 

hat are current 

public places 
slation at last 

Planning &

CO ENFORCEME
sure to second-han
promotion and han
rkplaces (e.g. proac
oking bylaws, smok
rketing/promotion 
cation and collabora

20

80% of public
legislation(

61.1% (20
65.2% (20
33.7% (20

HY EATING   
37% (20

ENT   
s 40

13
87

22% (200

Unava
98

20

& Budget T

NT  (SMOKE-FRE
nd smoke and redu
ndling inspection at
ctive inspections, re

ke-free private mark

ation with enforcem

012 

c in support of 
(2011 data) 

010‐2011) 
009‐2011) 
010‐2011) 

009 data) 

000
300
.5% 

09/2010) 

ailable 
.9% 

001

Template

EE ONTARIO AC
uced access to toba
t all tobacco retailer
responding to comp
ket and social hous

ment agencies and c

2013 
(anticipated)

Provincial legisla
received Royal A

Data not yet ava
Data not yet ava
Data not yet ava

37% (2011/20

4500
1800

> target of 85.

19% (2011/20

15.4% (2011/20
99.4%

1600

 

T AND MUNICIPA
acco products/prom
rs 
plaints/inquiries) 
sing) 

city licensing/bylaw

) 
same

ation 
Assent 

ilable
ilable
ilable

12)

3%

12)

012)

 

B-

AL BYLAWS) 
motion 

w enforcement

2014 
(estimate/ 

e/increase/decrease

Enactment

Increase
Increase
Increase 

Increase

Increase
Increase
Increase

Decrease

Decrease
Same

Same

 

-10 

e) 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
Program
Public He
Public He
Public He
Tobacco
Administ
Youth Le
Test Sho
 
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P
Total Ex
 
 
 

m:  Chronic Di

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

 Manager 
ealth Dietitians 
ealth Nurses 
ealth Promoter 

o Enforcement Off
trative Assistants 
eaders (6-8 stude
oppers ( 6 studen

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure

nel Costs 
Program Costs 
xpenditure 

  
 

sease Prevent

ficers 

ents, approx.. 7-10
ts, approx. 4 to 8

e 2012 Bud

$  1,074,0
179,7

$  1,253,8

 

 

tion and Tobac

0 hours/week) 
8 hours per month

get  201

92 $   
09 
801 $  

2014 P

cco Control 

h) 

2 Actual 

1,058,783 
186,704 

1,245,487 

Planning &

2013 T

2013 Budget

$     889,171
243,222

$   1,132,393

& Budget T

 
 

OTAL FTES 

11.8 
1.0 
2.0 
3.0 
1.0 
3.1 
1.5 
0.0 
0.2 

t 2014 D
Budg

$    957
323

$ 1,280

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

7,203 
3,222 
0,425 

 

 
 

2014 ESTIMAT

13.2
1.0
2.0
3.5
1.0
3.1
1.5
0.9
0.2

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$     68,032 

80,000 
$  148,032 

 

B-

TED FTES 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
7.7% 

32.9% 
13.1% 

 

 

-11 

e 
e) 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 
 Com

colla
of a s

 A Lo
 Prom
 Expa
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 

 T
c

 S
i

 

m:  Chronic Di

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenue 

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIA

mpletion of the Pu
aboration with the 
sustainability plan

ondon Local Food
motion of the Skin
ansion/enhancem
ON J 

URES AND CHAL

The enactment of
challenge if additi

Smoke-Free Onta
nflationary press

  
 

sease Prevent

2012 Bud

$    674,1
572,6

6,9
$  1,253,8

ATIVES PLANNE

blic Health Agenc
Southwest Regio

n to inform ongoin
ds Community Fo
n Cancer Prevent
ment of smoking c

LLENGES 

f the Skin Cancer
ional resources a

ario funding has b
ures will be mitiga

 

 

tion and Tobac

get  201

95 $   
85 

 
 

21 
801 $   

ED FOR 2014  

cy of Canada fund
on Cancer Progra
ng work to increa
rum will be hoste
tion Act which is a
cessation services

r Prevention Act w
are not provided b

been static since 
ated using manag

2014 P

cco Control 

2 Actual 

  655,501 
557,819 

 
 

32,167 
1,245,487 

ded “Mobilizing N
am, the Canadian
ase cancer screen
ed to solicit comm
anticipated to be 
s delivered by the

will require additio
by the Province 

2010; inflation is 
ged gapping in 20

Planning &

2013 Budget

$     493,155
632,317

6,921
$   1,132,393

Newcomers and I
n Cancer Society 
ning rates in unde

munity partner com
proclaimed and e
e Health Unit to re

onal work on the 

putting significan
014. 

& Budget T

t 2014 D
Budg

$    638
632

9
$ 1,280

mmigrants to Can
and the London 

er and never scre
mmitment to estab
enacted by June 2
each priority popu

part of the Chron

nt challenges on o

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

8,187 $
2,317 

 
 

9,921 
0,425 

ncer Prevention a
Intercommunity H

eened populations
blish a London Fo
2014 
ulations 

nic Disease Preve

our comprehensiv

 

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$     145,032 

 
 
 

3,000 
$    148,032 

and Screening Pr
Health Centre an
s in Middlesex-Lo
ood Policy Counc

ention Team whic

ve tobacco contro

 

B-

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
29.4% 

 
 
 

43.4% 
13.1% 

 

roject”, in 
d the establishme
ondon. 
cil. 

ch will be a 

ol program. The 

 

-12 

e 
e) 

ent 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 
 Enha

of nic
 Chro

relate
 Prom

local
prote
legis

 

m:  Chronic Di

ON K 

MENDED ENHAN

ancement to Smo
cotine replaceme
onic Disease and 
ed to chronic dise

motion of Artificial
l campaign to (a) 
ection; and (c) su
slation. 

  
 

sease Prevent

NCEMENTS, RED

oking Cessation S
ent therapies with 

Tobacco Preven
ease prevention a
 Tanning Legisla
increase awaren
pport the implem

 

tion and Tobac

DUCTIONS AND 

Services - $88,03
priority populatio
tion Youth Engag
and tobacco cont
tion under the Sk

ness about the da
entation of a tann

2014 P

cco Control 

EFFICIENCIES F

2 (.50 FTE) - This
ons within our com
gement Strategy -
trol. 
kin Cancer Preven
angers of artificial 
ning services prov

Planning &

FOR 2014 

s proposal will pr
mmunity. 
- $22,000 - This p

ntion Act - $35,00
tanning and ultra
vider education s

& Budget T

rovide additional P

proposal will sign

00 (One-time Fun
aviolet radiation e
strategy/campaign

Template

Public Health Nur

nificantly improve 

nding) – This one
exposure, (b) prom
n to increase ope

 

rse resources to 

the youth engage

e-time funding req
mote the legislati

erator compliance

 

B-

support the uptak

ement efforts 

quest will support 
on and the new 

e with the 

 

-13 

ke 

a 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 

ENVIRO

 

ONMENTAL 

2014 P

HEALTH A

FOO

Planning &

ND CHRON
 

OD SAFET

& Budget T

IC DISEASE

TY  

Template

E PREVENT

 

TION 

 

 

B-

 

-14 



 
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
Service
 
 
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
Summa

 T
a

 
SECTIO
 
Ontario

 E
 H
 R
 F

 
SECTIO
 
Compo

 M
 C
 I

i
 M

s
 E

ON A 

e Area EHC

m Team Food

ON B 

ary of Team Pro
The Food Safet
activities, includ

ON C 

o Public Health 
Environmental H
Health Protectio
Reg. 562 Food 
Food Premises 

ON D 

nent(s) Of Tea
Maintain invento
Conduct annual
Inspect all food 
nspections, leg
Monitor all O. R
special events).
Enforce bylaws 

 

  

CDP 

d Safety 

ogram 
y team aims to 

ding restaurant i

Standard(s), R
Health Program
on and Promotio
Premises 
Inspection and 

m Program #1 
ory of all food pr
l risk assessme
premises includ
al action(s) as r

Reg. 562 exempt
 
(City of London

 

M

D

prevent and red
nspections.  

Relevant Legis
 Standards (Foo

on Act (HPPA) 

Mandatory Foo

Surveillance a
remises.   
nts of all food p
ding year-round
required. 
ted facilities (far

n, Middlesex Co

2014 P

Manager  Name

Director Name

duce the burden

lation or Regu
od Safety) and 

od Handler Train

and Inspection

remises. 
, seasonal, tem

rmers markets, 

ounty) – posting 

Planning &

 

n of food-borne 

lation 
Food Safety Pro

ning Bylaw (City

mporary and pre-

residential hom

inspection sum

& Budget T

David Pavletic

Wally Adams

illness through 

otocol, 2013 

y of London and

-operational (Cit

mes, churches / s

mmaries / manda

Template 

c 

education, mon

d Middlesex Cou

ty of London lic

service clubs / f

atory food hand

Date 

January 7, 2

nitoring and enfo

unty)  

censing) and con

fraternal organiz

ler training certi

B-

2014 

orcement 

nduct re-

zations for 

ification. 

-15 



Program
 
Compo

 I
 I

2
 P
 C

O
Compo

 E
 P

S
t

 P
 M

r
Compo

 M
i

 M
 E
 R

 
SECTIO
 
Perform
 
 

Compo
High risk
(Accoun
Moderat
 

m:  Food Safet

nent(s) Of Tea
Investigate and 
Investigate all s
24 hours). 
Participate in fo
Collaborate with
Ontario Ministry
nent(s) Of Tea
Education / train
Provide food ha
Safety Protocol)
through a corpo
Provide food sa
Make available 
resources (Food
nent(s) Of Tea
Monitor DineSa
naccuracies. 
Maintain DineSa
Ensure that all D
Respond to all m

ON E 

mance/Service 

nent of Team #
k food premises
ntability Agree
te risk food prem

 

  
 

ty 

m Program #2 
respond to all c
uspected food-b

od recall verifica
h Infectious Dise
y of Agriculture a
m Program #3 
ning conducted 
andler training co
) to the general 

orate course opt
afety seminars, c

food safety info
d Talk, Getting S
m Program #4 
fe website for p

afe website by i
DineSafe facilitie
media inquiries 

Level Measure

#1 Surveillance
s inspected onc
ement Indicator
mises inspected

 

 

Management a
complaints relat
borne illnesses 

ation checks.  
ease Control tea
and Food) as di
Awareness, E
informally by PH
ourses and adm
public, not-for-p

tion for larger gr
community pres
ormation for the 
Started Packag
Disclosure 
ublic inquiries (

ncluding legal a
es receive a Din
related to inspe

es 

e and Inspectio
e every 4 month
r) 
d once every 6 m

2014 P

and Response
ed to food prem
and lab confirm

am (MLHU), oth
rected by the M
ducation and T
HIs during inspe

ministration of ex
profits, students
roups (>15 parti
sentations and h
general public /
es and Display 

complaints / ser

actions taken an
neSafe Middles
ection results. 

on 
hs 

months 

Planning &

mises in a timely
med food-borne 

her Public Healt
MOHLTC or loca
Training 
ections and con
xams in accorda
s and food prem
icipants) via on-
health fairs to pr
/ food premises 
Signs etc.). 

rvice requests) 

nd updated mate
ex-London Insp

2012

99% (1,

99% (1,

& Budget T

y manner (within
illnesses related

th Units and age
ally under MOH 

nsultations with 
ance with the P

mises operators. 
-site training.  
romote safe foo
operators via o

and website glit

erial. 
pection Summar

2 

408) 

684) 

Template

n 24 hours). 
d to a food prem

encies (Canadia
direction. 

food premises o
Provincial Food H

  In addition, foo

od handling prac
on-line (www.he

tches or data in

ry (sign) posted

2013 
(anticipated)

99.6% (1,441)

97.8% (1,626)

 

mise in a timely 

an Food Inspect

operators and s
Handler Training
od handler train

ctices. 
ealthunit.com) an

nput errors resul

 at entrance of f

(
same/in

) 

) 

 

B-

manner (within 

tion Agency; 

staff.  
g Plan (Food 

ning is offered 

nd paper 

lting in potential

facility. 

2014 
(estimate/ 
crease/decrea

Increase 

Increase 

 

-16 

 

se) 



 
 
Program
 
Compo
Food Co
hours 
(Formal 
Suspect
hours 
(Formal 
Compo
Food ha
Compo
Total nu
DineSaf
 
SECTIO
 
Staffing
 
 
Program
Public H
Adminis
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
Expend
 

Object o

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

m:  Food Safet

nent of Team #
omplaints / Serv

 monitoring of re
t / Lab Confirme

 monitoring of re
nent of Team #

andler training c
nent of Team #

umber of food pr
fe website and p

ON F 

g Costs: 

m Manager 
Health Inspector
strative Assistan

ON G 

ditures: 

of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

 

  

ty 

#2 Managemen
vice Requests (

esponse time to
ed food-borne ill

esponse time to
#3 Awareness, 
certificates issue
#4 Disclosure 
remises inspect
posted (not inclu

rs 
nt 

e 2012 Bud

$  1,17
7

$  1,24

 

nt and Respons
(CSR) followed u

o be developed 
lness calls follo

o be developed 
Education and

ed 

tion reports disc
uding seasonal 

get 201

70,470 $
73,907

44,377 $

2014 P

se 
up within 24 

for 2014) 
wed up within 2

for 2014) 
d Training 

closed on 
/ special events

2 Actual 

$  1,147,303
63,959

$  1,211,262

Planning &

Estimate
(1,1

24 Estimated 

3,7

s) 
96% (

2013 

2013 Budget

$  1,215,44
75,8

$  1,291,26

& Budget T

ed 100% 
140) 

100% (174) E

705 

(3,772) 

 
 

Total FTEs 
 

14.0 
1.0 

12.0 
1.0 

t 2014 D
Budg

49 $  1,2
13

62 $  1,2

Template 

Estimated 10
(1,139)

Estimated 100%

3,600 

96% 

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

215,449
55,813

271,262

00% 

% (150) 

2014 Estima

14.
1.0

12.
1.0

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 

$   (20,000)

$   (20,000)

B-

Same 

Same 

Same 

Increase 

ated FTEs 

0 
0 
0 

0 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
 

(26.4)% 
(1.6)% 

 

-17 

e 
e) 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Funding
 

Object o

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS 
  User F
  Other O
Total Re
 
SECTIO
 
Key Hig
 
 Expl

Boa
 Inclu
 Unify
 Impr
 
SECTIO
 
Pressur
 
 The 

addi
insp
leve

 Seas
dilig

 Seco
 

m:  Food Safet

ON H 

g Sources: 

of Revenue 

Shared 
TC – 100% 
 – 100% 

Fees 
Offset Revenue
evenues 

ON I 

ghlights/Initiati

lore opportunitie
rds and City of 
ude mobile food
fy and improve u
rove enforceme

ON J 

res and Challe

meat processin
ition, the meat p
ection responsi
l of service with
sonal markets a
ent monitoring, 
ondary schools 

 

  

ty 

2012 Bu

$   1,2

e 
$   1,2

ves Planned F

es for greater co
London). 

d premises into f
upon the DineSa

ent strategies for

nges 

ng plants (low ris
processing being
bilities were pre

h no added reso
are becoming m
assessing and 
operating more

 

udget 20

225,377 $

19,000

244,377

or 2014  

ollaborations wit

food disclosure 
afe program by 
r London busine

sk) will soon be
g conducted wit

eviously conduc
ources anticipate
more popular and

inspecting. 
e hospitality prog

2014 P

012 Actual 

$     1,158,811

52,451

$    1,211,262

th community p

program (DineS
incorporating th

ess owners who

e downloaded to
thin food service

cted by OMAF a
ed. 
d greater in num

grams that invo

Planning &

2013 Budge

$   1,265,

25,

$    1,291,

artners and age

Safe). 
he posted colou
o are chronically

o Public Health U
e establishment

and so additiona

mber and many 

lve the sale of f

& Budget T

et 2014 
Bud

762 $   1
 
 

500 
 

262 $   1

encies for servic

ured signs onto 
y non-compliant

Units from the O
ts will now need

al training and in

are not exempt

foods to the stud

Template 

Draft 
dget ($ d

1,245,762

25,500

1,271,262

ce delivery (Lon

the website. 
t with acquiring 

Ontario Ministry 
d to be inspecte
nspection time w

ted from ON Re

dent body (not c

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$     (20,000

0
$    (20,000

ndon Training Ce

a valid business

of Agriculture a
ed by PHIs from 
will be required t

eg. 562 thereby 

currently being 

B-

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

) (1.6)% 
 
 
 

0  
) (1.6)% 

enter, School 

s license 

and Food, but in
PHUs.  These 
to maintain this 

requiring more 

inspected). 

-18 

se 
se) 
3 

n 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Recomm
 

 R
m
t

 
 

m:  Food Safet

ON K 

mended Enhan

Reduction in Fo
moderate- and h
them available o

 

  

ty 

ncements, Red

ood Safety Mate
high-risk food p
online. 

 

ductions and Ef

erials - $20,000 
remises (1,600 

2014 P

fficiencies for 2

- This proposal 
mailed quarterl

Planning &

2014 

would (a) disco
y), and (b) disco

& Budget T

ontinue “Food Ta
ontinue printing

Template 

alk” – a quarter
g and mailing foo

ly newsletter ma
od safety mater

B-

ailed to all 
rials, and make 

-19 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

H

              

ENVIRO

HEALTHY

                       

ONMENTAL 

Y COMMU

        2014 Pl

HEALTH A

UNITIES A

lanning & B

ND CHRON
 

AND INJU

Budget Tem

IC DISEASE

URY PREV

mplate

E PREVENT

VENTION

 

TION 

N (HCIP) 

 

B-

 
 

-20 



 
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
Service
 
 
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
Summa

 T
s
a
s

 
SECTIO
 
Ontario


 
 
SECTIO
 
Compo

 W
a

 C
Compo

 P
 P
 C

t
 P

(

ON A 

e Area EHC

m Team Heal
Injur

ON B 

ary of Team Pro
The HCIP team 
safety, helmet a
also advocates 
substance misu

ON C 

o Public Health 
 Ontario Pub

ON D 

nent(s) Of Tea
Work primarily w
and linking the w
Collaborate with
nent(s) Of Tea
Promote physic
Play a lead role 
Community and
to School Comm
Partner with Ch
(eg. Acti-pass –

              

CDP  

lthy Communitie
ry Prevention (H

ogram 
promotes phys

and bike safety, 
for healthy com
se (alcohol, ma

Standard(s), R
blic Health Stand

m Program #1 
with mid to sma
workplaces with
h Elgin – St. Tho
m Program #2 
al activity to the
in the Middlese

d partner consul
mittee, Workplac
ild and Youth N

– passes to grad

                       

M

es and 
HCIP) D

sical activity and
car safety, pois

mmunity design t
arijuana, and oth

Relevant Legis
dards: Chronic D

Workplace We
ll workplaces/em

h other MLHU pr
omas Health Un
Physical Activ

e entire commun
ex-London inMo
tation and supp
ce physical activ

Network – Health
de 5 students to 

        2014 Pl

Manager  Name

Director Name

d workplace wel
soning and burn
that supports in
her illicit drugs).

lation or Regu
Disease Preven

ellness  
mployers with lim
rograms and se
nit and Oxford P
vity 
nity with a focus
otion Partnership
ports e.g. Thame
vity promotion.
hy Eating Health
access recreat

lanning & B

 

lness, and work
ns, falls across t
creased physica

lation 
ntion; Prevention

mited resources
ervices. 
Public Health to 

s on those in the
p and the imple
es Valley Trails 

hy Physical Acti
tional activities)

Budget Tem

Mary Lou Alba

Wally Adams

ks to prevent inj
he lifespan, roa
al activity.  The 

n of Injury and S

s to provide emp

address psycho

e 18 to 80 age g
mentation of the
Association Sa

ivity Committee 

mplate

anese 

uries in a numb
ad safety, and vu

team also prov

Substance Misu

ployee wellness

ologically safe a

group 
e inMotion Com

aturday morning

 to implement p

 

Date  

January 7, 2

ber of areas incl
ulnerable road u

vides programs a

use  

s programs thro

and healthy wor

mmunity Challen
 walks, Active a

programs in the 

 

B-

2014 

uding child 
users. The team
addressing 

ough consultatio

rkplaces 

nge 
and Safe Routes

City of London 

 
 

-21 

m 

on 

s 



 
 
Program
 
Compo

 P
 M

Compo
 C
 C
 P

r
 D

Compo
 P

e
 D
 C
 P

Compo
 M
 M
 A
 W
 T

Compo
 D

h
c

 A
 P
 O

w
 O

 

m: Healthy Com

nent(s) Of Tea
Play a lead role 
Member of the S

nent(s) Of Tea
Chair the Londo
Collaborate with
Provide input in
road use; 
Development of
nent(s) Of Tea
Provide child sa
especially vulne
Distribute bicycl
Collaborate with
Partner with the
nent(s) Of Tea
Marketing of the
Marketing the n
Advocate provin
Work with munic
Train primary he
nent(s) Of Tea
Develop submis
healthy commun
cohesion 
Advocate for the
Partner with the
Organize and p
workshop 
Organize a Foo

 

  

munities and Inj

m Program #3 
in the Stepping

SW LHIN Integr

m Program #4 
on-Middlesex Ro
h City of London
to the City of Lo

f Share the Roa
m Program #5 

afety information
erable children 
le helmets for vu
h local and prov
e Pool and Hot T
m Program #6 
e video Underst
ext phase of the

ncially for stricte
cipalities to upd
ealth care worke
m Program #7 

ssions to the mu
nity policy i.e. a

e endorsement 
e City of London
resent the partn

d Charter Forum
 

 

jury Prevention 

Seniors and F
g Out Safely Fal
rated Falls Com

Road Safety (i
oad Safety Coa
n and other Lon
ondon and Midd

ad Campaign for
Child Safety 

n, including vide

ulnerable schoo
vincial partners
Tub Council of C
Alcohol and S

tanding Canada
e ReThinking Yo
er alcohol pricing
date their Munici
ers, including ph
Healthy Comm

unicipal Official 
ctive transporta

of the internatio
n to support Sha
nership forums a

m to work with L

2014 P

(HCIP) 

Falls/Healthy Ag
lls Prevention C

mmittee who are 

including vulne
lition who do ed
don partners to 

dlesex County O

r cyclists 

eos, to caregiver

ol age children (

Canada to imple
Substance Misu

’s Low Risk Drin
Your Drinking cam

g and control an
ipal Alcohol Pol
hysicians, on Lo

munities Partne
Plan consultatio

ation, road safety

onal Toronto Ch
are the Road sig
and workshops 

London commun

Planning &

ging 
Coalition(partner

developing an 

erable road us
ducational camp
develop the Lo

Official Plan revi

rs (parents, gra

(Helmets on Kid

ement a pool sa
use 
nking Guideline
mpaign and we
nd stricter adver
icies 
ow Risk Drinking
ership 
ons for London, 
y; food security 

harter for Physic
gnage and deve
such as the Mid

nity to develop a

& Budget T

rship of 40 partn
implementation

ers) 
paigns e.g. winte
ondon Road Saf
ews re infrastru

ndparents, day 

ds) 

afety campaign

es 
bsite 
rtising legislatio

g Guidelines. 

Middlesex Cou
and healthy ea

cal Activity in ou
elop campaign fo
ddlesex County 

a London Food 

Template 

ners) 
n plan for the Int

er driving, share
fety Strategy 
ucture to promot

care workers, e

n 

unty, and county
ating promotion;

ur local municipa
or drivers and c

y Healthy Comm

Council 

tegrated Falls S

e the road etc;

te walking and c

etc.) for children

y municipalities 
 mental wellbein

alities 
cyclists 
munities Forum; 

B-

trategy 

cycling and safe

n less than 18, 

to enhance 
ng and social 

food canning 

-22 

e 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Perform
 
 

Compo
% of wo
Workpla
Consulta
Compo
inMotion
achieve

Element
Compo
Reduce 
(Accou
reporte
Bus tran
Compo
Winter D

Number
Compo
Distribut
video to
Distribut
Compo
% of po
Guidelin
targets 
Municip

m: Healthy Com

ON E 

mance/Service 

nent of Team #
orkplaces with in
ace Program 
ations provided
nent of Team #
n Community C
d 

tary Schools Im
nent of Team #
 fall-related eme
ntability Agree
d in future yea
nsportation prov
nent of Team #
Driving Campaig

r of drivers and 
nent of Team #
tion of ‘ Give Yo

o parents 
tion of helmets(
nent of Team #
pulation (19+) th

nes (Accountab
to be reported
al Alcohol Polic

 

  

munities and Inj

Level Measure

#1 Workplace W
ncreased knowle

to workplaces 
#2 Physical Ac
hallenge – Minu

mplementing Sch
#3 Seniors and
ergency visits in

ement Indicator
ars) 
vided for vulnera
#4 Road Safety
gn 

cyclists aware o
#5 Child Safety
our Child a Safe

(Helmet on Kids
#6 Alcohol and
hat exceeds the
bility Agreemen
d in future year
cy Implementatio

 

jury Prevention 

es 

Wellness 
edge of MLHU H

ctivity 
utes of Physical 

hool Travel Plan
d Falls/Healthy 
n older adults ag
r – long term ta

able seniors 
y including vuln

of Share The Ro
y 
e Start ‘ Video c

s Coalition) to vu
d Substance Mi
e Low-Risk Drin
nt Indicator – l
rs) 
on 

2014 P

(HCIP) 

Healthy 

Activity 

ns (STP) 
Aging 

ged 65 + 
argets to be 

nerable road u

oad signage  

hild safety 

ulnerable 
isuse 
king 
ong term 

Planning &

2012

69%

100

Media cam

N/A

N/A

200
sers  

229 Ra
PSAs(239,64

N/A
 

N/A

1702
 

N/A

7 Municip

& Budget T

2 

% 

0 

mpaign 2,0

re
L

A 

A 

0 

adio 
46 Reach) PSA
A 

 
A 

2 
 

A 

palities 

Template 

2013 
(anticipated)

Estimated 70%

200 

000,000 minute
physical activity

reached by City 
London residen

10 STP 

N/A 

150 

229 Radio 
As(239,646 Re

Development

Development

1850 

N/A 

7 Municipalities

(
same/in

% 

s of 
y 
of 
ts 

Expan
Cou

Increa

ach) 

 
8000 to
parent

 

s 

B-

2014 
(estimate/ 
crease/decrea

Increase 

Increase 

d Challenge int
unty/#minutes 

 
ase #minutes in

London 
Increase 

N/A 

Same 

Same 

Increase 

o be distributed 
s and caregiver
Increase 

N/A 

Increase 

-23 

se) 

o 

n 

to 
rs 



 
 
Program
 
Compo
City of L
internati
Submit 

Vulnera
vegetab
 
SECTIO
 
Staffing
 
 
Program
Health P
Public H
Adminis
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
Expend
 

Object o

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
 

m: Healthy Com

nent of Team #
London and all  
ional Toronto C
recommendatio

ble population (
bles  

ON F 

g Costs: 

m Manager 
Promoter 
Health Nurses 
strative Assistan

ON G 

ditures: 

of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

 

  

munities and Inj

#7 Healthy Com
Middlesex Cou
harter for Physi

ons to Municipal

(new immigrants

nt 

e 2012 Bud

$  915,970 
5

$  97

 

 

jury Prevention 

mmunities Part
nty municipalitie
cal Activity 
 Official Plan re

s) access to frui

get 201

56,165

72,135

2014 P

(HCIP) 

tnership 
es endorse the 

eviews  

its and 

2 Actual 

$  893,033
101,943

$  994,976

Planning &

 
1 Muni

N

N

2013 

2013 Budget

$  1,144,35
61,16

$  1,205,5

& Budget T

icipality 

/A 

/A 

 
 

Total FTEs 
 

12.6 
1.0 
0.6 

10.0 
1.0 

t 2014 D
Budg

50 $  1,0
65 1

15 $  1,2

Template 

5 Municipalit

3 Municipalit
 

Developme

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

048,257
170,865

219,122

 
ties 

ties 

ent 

2014 Estima

11.
1.0
0.6
9.0
1.0

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  (96,093)

109,700

$    13,607

B-

Increase 

Increase 

Increase 

ated FTEs 

6 
0 
6 
0 
0 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
(8.4)% 

179.35%

1.1% 

 

-24 

e 
e) 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Funding
 

Object o

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS 
  User F
  Other O
Total Re
 
 
SECTIO
 
Key Hig
 
 ALR
 In M
 Sha
 Child
 Impl
 
SECTIO
 
Pressur
 Limi
 Expe
 
 

m: Healthy Com

ON H 

g Sources: 

of Revenue 

Shared 
TC – 100% 
 – 100% 

Fees 
Offset Revenue
evenue 

ON I 

ghlights/Initiati

RDG and Alcoho
Motion Communi

re the Road Ca
d Car Booster S
lementation of t

ON J 

res and Challe
ted  available p
ectations by par

 

  

munities and Inj

2012 Bu

$   9

e 
$   9

ves Planned F

ol brief screening
ity Challenge to
mpaign with ins

Seat Campaign 
he Southwest in

nges 
rogram funding
rtners to contrib

 

 

jury Prevention 

udget 20

958,970

13,165
972,135

or 2014  

g intervention fo
o include Middle
stallation of Sha

ntegrated falls p

 for public educ
bute program do

2014 P

(HCIP) 

012 Actual 

$     940,636

54,340
$    994,976

or primary care 
sex County  

are the Road sig

prevention camp

cation and prom
ollars toward pa

Planning &

2013 Budge

$   1,192,

13,
$    1,205,

providers  

gns in City of Lo

paign 

otion 
rtnership projec

& Budget T

et 2014 
Bud

350 $   1
 
 
 

165 
515 $   1

ndon 

cts 

Template 

Draft 
dget ($ d

1,205,957

13,165
1,219,122

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$     13,607

0
$   13,607

B-

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

7 1.2%
 
 
 

0  
7 1.1%

-25 

se 
se) 
3 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Recomm
 
 Child

a cri
Midd

 In M
initia
Lond

 Lond
Stra

 Web
the n
strat

 

m: Healthy Com

ON K 

mended Enhan

dhood Injury Pr
itical issue: only
dlesex Child Sa

Motion communit
ated across Mid
don. 
don Road Safet
tegy campaigns

bsite and Health
new website an
tegy to address 

 

  

munities and Inj

ncements, Red

evention - Car S
y 25% of childre
fety Committee
ty challenge in M
dlesex County. 

ty Strategy - $10
s which will focu
h Inequities Prog
d staff will now 
Health Inequitie

 

jury Prevention 

ductions and Ef

Seat Safety - $5
n 4-8 in Ontario
 and Buckle Up
Middlesex Coun
This is importa

0,000 (One-time
us on distracted
gram Reassignm
integrate websi
es in the service

2014 P

(HCIP) 

fficiencies for 2

50,000 (One-tim
o are properly re
p Baby program.
nty - $50,000 (O
nt as citizens of

e Funding) - Thi
 driving in 2014
ment – $96,393
te work into the
e area program 

Planning &

2014 

me Funding) - Th
estrained in a bo
. 

One-time Fundin
f Middlesex Cou

is would see thr
4, and cycling/pe
3 and 1.0 FTE - 
eir individual ass

delivery.   

& Budget T

his would fund a
ooster seat. This

ng) - This would 
unty have a high

ree annual $10K
edestrian campa
This position as
signments. The 

Template 

a literature revie
s work would be

 see an in motio
her inactivity rat

K contributions t
aigns in 2015 a
ssisted with the 
EHCDP Manag

ew and program
e done in partne

on Community C
te than citizens 

to the London R
nd 2016. 
development o

gement Team w

B-

mming to addres
ership with the 

Challenge 
within the City o

Road Safety 

f and transition 
will develop a 

-26 

s 

of 

to 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HEAALTH HA

              

ENVIRO

AZARD PR

                       

ONMENTAL 

REVENTIO

        2014 Pl

HEALTH A

ON AND 

lanning & B

ND CHRON
 

MANAGE

Budget Tem

IC DISEASE

EMENT / V

mplate

E PREVENT

VECTOR

 

TION 

R BORNE 

 

B-

DISEASE

 
 

-27 

E  



 
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
Service
 
 
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
Summa

 T
e

 T
E
s
c

 
SECTIO
 
Ontario

 O
 P

S
a

 R
S

 R
 R
 O

 

ON A 

e Area EHC

m Team 
Heal
Man
Dise

ON B 

ary of Team Pro
To prevent and 
environment. 
The Vector Born
Equine Encepha
surveillance and
collection, huma

ON C 

o Public Health 
OPHS Standard
Protocols under
Surveillance; Pu
and Lyme Disea
Relevant Acts: H
Special Care Ac
Relevant Regula
Relevant Bylaw
Other: West Nile

              

CDP  

lth Hazard Prev
agement / Vect

ease 

ogram 
reduce the burd

ne Disease (VB
alitis (EEE), whi
d control progra
an surveillance, 

Standard(s), R
ds: Foundationa
r the OPHS: Ide
ublic Health Em
ase Chapters 
Health Protectio
ct  
ations: O. Reg 5
s: Property Stan
e Virus: Prepare

                       

M

vention and 
tor Borne D

den of illness fro

D) program is a
ich are spread b
m consists of la
source reductio

Relevant Legis
al; Health Hazar
entification, Inve
ergency Prepar

on and Promotio

568 Recreationa
ndards; Idling C
edness and Pre

        2014 Pl

Manager  Name

Director Name

om exposure to 

a comprehensiv
by mosquitoes, 
arval mosquito s
on, public educa

lation or Regu
rd Prevention an
stigation and M
redness; Risk A

on Act; Environm

al Camps; O. R
Control; Vital Ser
evention Plan fo

lanning & B

 

chemical, radio

e program to clo
and Lyme disea

surveillance and
ation, respondin

lation 
nd Management

Management of H
Assessment and

mental Protectio

Reg 636 Homes 
rvices; Clearing
r Ontario 

Budget Tem

Iqbal Kalsi 

Wally Adams 

ological, biologic

osely monitor a
ase (LD), which
d identification, l
ng to public inqu

t; Infectious Dis
Health Hazards;
 Inspection of F

on Act; Occupat

For Special Ca
g of Land.  

mplate

 

cal and other ph

nd control West
h is spread by tic
larviciding, adul
uiries, and tick s

seases Preventi
; Population He

Facilities; Infecti

tional Health an

re; O. Reg 199 

 

Date 

January 7, 2

hysical factors in

t Nile Virus (WN
cks. This compr
lt mosquito trap
surveillance. 

on and Control
ealth Assessmen
ous Diseases –

nd Safety Act; H

West Nile Virus

 

B-

2014 

n the 

NV) and Eastern
rehensive 
ping, dead bird 

nt and 
– West Nile Viru

omes For 

s Control 

 
 

-28 

n 

s  



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Compo

 M
 D
 C
 C
 R
 S
 G

Compo
 R

s
Compo

 R
 R

Compo
 I

l
 I

r
a

 I
 
Compo

 W
 P

Compo
 A

m
 S
 D

r
 P

 
 

m: Health Hazar

ON D 

nent(s) Of Tea
Marijuana Grow
Demolition Perm
Cooling Towers
Climate Change
Radon Educatio
Special Risk Re
General Toxicol
nent(s) Of Tea
Responding to C
sanitation, landl
nent(s) Of Tea
Review Land Us
Review applicat
nent(s) Of Tea
Inspect facilities
east once per y
Inspect facilities
relevant licencin
additionally as n
Inspect Season

nent(s) Of Tea
Work with Mana
Provide technica
nent(s) Of Tea
Assess all areas
management st
Source reductio
Detailed surveil
requirements. 
Perform mosqu

              

rd Prevention an

m Program #1 
w-up Operations
mits Compliance
s Surveillance, M
e Vulnerability a
on & Awareness
esidents (Squalo
logy/Risk Asses
m Program #2 
Complaints, Ser
ord non-complia
m Program #3 
se Planning app
tions to remedia
m Program #4 

s that are under 
year and additio
s that are not un
ng bodies (City o
necessary 
al Farm Worker

m Program #5 
ager of Emergen
al guidance as 
m Program #6 
s of Middlesex-L
rategies based 

on and standing 
lance of Environ

ito larvae identif

                       

nd Management

Special Projec
 (review/comme

e Inspections 
Maintenance an
and Adaptation; 
s 
or, Hoarding) 
ssment & Specia
General EH Pr

rvice requests, a
ance issues, no
Built Environm

plications 
ate and reclaim 

Compliance &
the authority of

onally as necess
nder the authorit
of London, Mini

r Housing at lea

Emergency Re
ncy Preparedne
needed in respo
Larval Mosqui

London where s
on this data. 
water remediat

nmentally Sensi

fication in MLHU

        2014 Pl

t / Vector Borne

cts Health Haza
ent on referrals 

d Compliance 
Ambient Air Qu

al Projects 
rogram Work / 
and Referrals (s

o heat, no water
ment / Land Us

contaminated s
& Inspection Se
f the HPPA and/
sary. 
ty of the HPPA 
stry of Health a

ast once per yea

esponse Supp
ess in the OMOH
onse to emerge
ito Surveillanc
standing water s

tion when possi
itive Areas (ESA

U laboratory as 

lanning & B

e Disease 

ard Program 
from the City of

uality; Extreme T

Investigations
sewage, garbag
r, poor indoor ai
se Planning Pro

sites 
ervices for Exte
/or its regulation

(Residential Ho
nd Long Term C

ar and additiona

ort 
H to respond to 
ncies 
e 
sites are found o

ble 
As), as per Mini

per PHO Guide

Budget Tem

f London) 

Temperatures (I

s 
ge, nuisance, flo
r quality, mould
ogram 

ernal Approval
ns (Boarding an

omes, Homes fo
Care, Ministry o

ally as necessary

emergencies 

on public prope

stry of Natural R

elines and analy

mplate

Issue Heat and 

ooding, insects/p
, etc.) 

l Program 
nd Lodging Hom

or Special Care)
of Community an

ry 

erty and develop

Resources and 

yze results and 

 

Cold Alerts) 

pests, rats/verm

mes and Recrea

) upon request/r
nd Social Servic

p local vector-bo

Ministry of Env

trends 

 

B-

min, bats, 

tional Camps) a

referral from 
ces) and 

orne 

ironment permit

 
 

-29 

at 

t 



 
 
Program
 
Compo

 M
 T

a
 H
 C

Compo
 C
 C
 M
 H

Compo
 P
 P

Compo
 R
 A

 
Compo

 C
 P
 R

 
Compo

 E
 D
 I

 
 
 

m: Health Hazar

nent(s) Of Tea
Monitor approxi
Train six season
activities) 
Hire service pro
Conduct random
nent(s) Of Tea
Conduct adult m
Conduct hotspo
Monitor areas w
Hire a laborator
nent(s) Of Tea
Promote public 
Perform in-hous
nent(s) Of Tea
Respond to com
Assess private p

nent(s) Of Tea
Conduct tick su
Provide informa
Receive tick sub

nent(s) Of Tea
Educate and en
Distribute educa
Issue media rele

 

  

rd Prevention an

m Program #7 
mately 250 stan
nal field staff to 

ovider to conduc
m efficacy check
m Program #8 

mosquito surveil
ot mosquito trap
where large adul
ry to conduct ad
m Program #9 
reporting of dea

se testing to ide
m Program #10

mplaints and inq
properties when

m Program #1
rveillance based

ation and educat
bmissions and f

m Program #12
ngage residents 
ational /promotio
eases when pos

 

 

nd Management

Mosquito Con
nding water site
obtain licence f

ct approximately
ks to ensure suc
Adult Mosquit
lance/trapping o
ping when WNV
lt mosquito pop
ult mosquito ide
Dead Bird Sur

ad crows and bl
ntify WNV 
0 Complaints &

quiries from resid
n standing wate

1 Tick Surveilla
d on annual loca
te the public to 
forward on to re

2 VBD Public E
in practices and

onal materials 
sitive VBD activ

2014 P

t / Vector Borne

ntrol 
s weekly and pe

from MOE throu

y 30,000 treatme
ccess of larvicid
to Surveillance
on a weekly bas
V positive activit
ulations are ide
entification and 
rveillance 
ue jays to the M

& Inquiries 
dents regarding
r concerns are r

ance 
al risk assessm
protect against 
levant governm

Education 
d activities at lo

vity is identified.

Planning &

e Disease 

erform larvicide
ugh in-class and

ents to catch ba
des in catch bas
e 
sis 
ty is confirmed i
ntified and asse
WNV and EEE 

MLHU 

g WNV, EEE an
reported and ov

ents 
tick bites when 

ment laboratories

cal community e

& Budget T

 treatments whe
d field pesticide 

asins in Middles
sins 

in birds, mosqu
ess the need for
viral testing 

d LD 
versee remedial

visiting endemi
s for identificatio

events in order 

Template 

en vector mosq
training (proper

sex-London thre

itoes or humans
r additional trap

l actions 

ic areas in Onta
on 

to reduce expo

uito larvae are i
r use, handling a

ee times during 

s 
pping and larvici

ario. 

osure to WNV, L

B-

identified 
and storage 

mosquito seaso

ding 

LD and EEE 

-30 

on 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
Perform
 
 

Compo
Marijuan
referrals
Demolit
and follo
Cooling 
Guidelin
Compo
Respon
(genera
within 24
(Formal 
Compo
Land Us
Compo
Inspecti
Migrant 
Compo
Emerge
Compo
Identify 
property
Mosquit
Compo
Larvicid
based o
3 Larvic
Compo
Adult mo

m: Health Hazar

ON E 
mance/Service 

nent of Team #
na Grow-up Ope
s 
ion Permit Com
ow-up where the
Towers Assess

nes 
nent of Team #
d to all Compla
l sanitation; hou
4 hours 
 monitoring of re
nent of Team #
se Planning App
nent of Team #
ons of regulated
Farms Complia
nent of Team #

ency Responses
nent of Team #
and monitor sig

y 
to larvae identifi
nent of Team #
e treatment in s

on larval identific
cide treatments o
nent of Team #
osquitoes collec

 

  

rd Prevention an

Level Measure

#1 Special Proj
erations remedi

mpliance Inspect
ere are public h
sed for Complia

#2 General EH 
ints, Service Re
using conditions

esponse time to
#3 Built Enviro
plications – revie
#4 Compliance
d and unregulat
ance Inspections
#5 Emergency 
s 
#6 Larval Mosq
gnificant standin

ed in MLHU lab
#7 Mosquito Co
standing water lo
cation 
of all catch basi
#8 Adult Mosqu
cted 

 

nd Management

es 

jects Health Ha
iation – review/c

tions – respond 
ealth implicatio
nce with Best P

Program Work
equests, and Re
s; indoor air qua

o be developed 
nment / Land U
ew/comment on

e & Inspection S
ted facilities 
s 
Response Sup

quito Surveillan
ng water sites on

boratory  
ontrol 
ocations where 

ins on public pro
uito Surveillan

2014 P

t / Vector Borne

azards Program
comment on 

to referrals 
ns 

Practices 

k/Investigations
eferrals 
ality; etc.) 

for 2014) 
Use Planning P
n referrals  
Services for Ex

pport 

nce 
n public 

required 

operty 
ce 

Planning &

e Disease 

2012

m 
100% (

n/a

n/a

s 
Estimated 100

Program 
100% (1

xternal Approv
100 % (
100% (

Data unav

100% (2

21,20

100% (1

100% (88

18,46

& Budget T

2 

(17) 

0% (872) Esti

156) 
val Program 
154) 
(28) 

vailable 

255) 

01 

047) 

8,665) 

64 

Template 

2013 
(anticipated)

100% (20) 

100% (90) 

100% (130)

imated 100% (9

100% (175)

100% (270)
100% (30) 

3 

100% (267)

16,702 

100% (837)

100% (89,042)

65,409 

(
same/in

975) 

) 

B-

2014 
(estimate/ 
crease/decrea

Same 

Same 

Same 

Same 

Same 

Same 
Same 

Same 

same 

same 

same 

same 

same 

-31 

se) 



 
 
Program
 
Viral tes

Compo
Respon
Test all 
Compo
Respon
On-site 
indicate
Compo
Passive
Conduc
passive 
Compo
Present
and clie
 
SECTIO
 
Staffing
 
 
Program
Public H
Program
Program
Field Te
Lab Tec
Student
 
 
 

m: Health Hazar

sts completed 

nent of Team #
d to all dead bir
birds that are s
nent of Team #
d to all complai
visits/investigat
d 
nent of Team #

e tick surveillanc
t active tick surv
surveillance res
nent of Team #
ation to commu
nts 

ON F 

g Costs: 

m Manager 
Health Inspector
m Assistant 
m Coordinator –
echnician (VBD)
chnician (VBD) 
s (VBD) 

 

  

rd Prevention an

#9 Dead Bird S
rd reports receiv
uitable for testin
#10 Complaints
nts, comments, 
tions of VBD co

#11 Tick Surve
ce – receive and
veillance at site
sults 
#12 Public Edu
unity events, inte

rs 

Vector-Borne D
) 

 

 

nd Management

Surveillance 
ved 
ng for WNV  
s, Comments, 
concerns & inq

ncerns/inquiries

illance 
d identify all tick 
s where indicate

ucation 
ernal and extern

Diseases (VBD)

2014 P

t / Vector Borne

Concerns & In
quiries received
s where 

submissions 
ed from 

nal partners 

) 

Planning &

e Disease 

496 (WNV
(EEE

100% (2
100% (

quiries 
100% (3
100% (

100% (
100% 

8

2013 

& Budget T

V), 334 
E) 

735

205) 
(41) 

364) 
(73) 

(87) 
(2) 

 
 

Total FTEs 
 

13.5 
1.0 
5.0 
0.5 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
4.0 

Template 

5 (WNV), 237 (E

100% (128)
100% (20) 

100% (305)
100% (64) 

100% (118)
100% (4) 

10 

EEE)

2014 Estima

13.
1.0
5.0
0.5
1.0
1.0
1.0
4.0

B-

same 

same 
same 

same 
same 

same 
same 

same 

ated FTEs 

5 
0 
0 
5 
0 
0 
0 
0 

-32 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Expend
 

Object o

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex
 
SECTIO
 
Funding
 

Object o

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS 
  User F
  Other O
Total Re
 
SECTIO
 
Key Hig
 

 C
w

 U
f

 I
 I

m: Health Hazar

ON G 

ditures: 

of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

g Sources: 

of Revenue 

Shared 
TC – 100% 
 – 100% 

Fees 
Offset Revenue
evenues 

ON I 

ghlights/Initiati

Climate Change
with community 
Urban Heat Isla
from Health Can
Increase local ti
Increase public 

 

  

rd Prevention an

e 2012 Bud

$  90
29

$  1,20

2012 Bu

$   1,2

e 
$   1,2

ves Planned F

e and Health Vu
partners and st

and Impact Effec
nada and Resea
ck surveillance 
education and e

 

nd Management

get 201

03,172
99,145

02,317 $

udget 20

202,317 $

202,317

or 2014  

ulnerability Asse
takeholders 
ct (UHIE) Asses
arch assistance
to determine th
encourage resid

2014 P

t / Vector Borne

2 Actual 

$  851,031
262,790

$  1,113,821

012 Actual 

$     1,110,806

3,015
$    1,113,821

essment worksh

ssment for the C
e from Western U
he prevalence of
dents to submit 

Planning &

e Disease 

2013 Budget

$  911,89
312,34

$  1,224,23

2013 Budge

$   1,224,

$    1,224,

hop is planned w

City of London re
University in 20
f LD-carrying tic
ticks 

& Budget T

t 2014 D
Budg

91 $  9
40 3

31 $  1,2

et 2014 
Bud

231 $   1
 
 
 
 

231 $   1

with Health Cana

esearch project 
14 

cks in Middlesex

Template 

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

911,891
302,340

214,231

Draft 
dget ($ d

1,214,231

1,214,231

ada Climate Ch

t will be underta

x-London. 

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 

$   (10,000)

$   (10,000)

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$     (10,000

0
$    (10,000

hange Office on 

ken with the fun

B-

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
 

(3.2)% 

(0.8)% 
 

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

) (0.8)% 
 
 
 

0  
) (0.8)% 

March 27, 2014

nding assistance

-33 

e 
e) 

se 
se) 
3 

4 

e 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Pressur
 

 I
p

 I
 P

e
 I

p
 
SECTIO
 
Recomm
 

 R
H

 

m: Health Hazar

ON J 

res and Challe

Increased public
provide informa
Increased amou
Pressure from e
environment an
Increased press
populations. 

ON K 

mended Enhan

Reduction in Co
However, the ne

 

  

rd Prevention an

nges 

c concern and c
tion and resourc

unt of LD misinfo
environmental a
d populations 

sure to reduce n

ncements, Red

onsulting Servic
eed for consulta

 

nd Management

calls regarding L
ces to the public
ormation by adv
dvocacy groups

non-vector nuisa

ductions and Ef

es - $10,000 - E
ants is infrequen

2014 P

t / Vector Borne

Lyme disease tr
c regarding all a
vocacy groups a
s on an annual b

ance mosquitoe

fficiencies for 2

External consult
nt and unpredict

Planning &

e Disease 

ransmission, su
aspects of LD 
and media outle
basis regarding

es despite regula

2014 

tants are necess
table and better

& Budget T

bmission and p

ets 
 use of biologic

ations and guide

sary on occasio
r addressed on 

Template 

rotection is lead

cal pesticides an

elines to only ta

on when health 
an ad hoc basis

ding to increase

nd the potential 

arget disease-ca

hazards arise in
s. 

B-

ed demand to 

to harm local 

arrying mosquito

n the community

-34 

o 

y. 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              

ENVIRO

                       

ONMENTAL 

SAFE

        2014 Pl

HEALTH A

E WATER 

lanning & B

ND CHRON
 

AND RA

Budget Tem

IC DISEASE

BIES TEA

mplate

E PREVENT

AM  

 

TION 

 

B-

 
 

-35 



 
 

 
SECTIO
 
 
Service
 
 
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
Summa

 T
p
o

 
SECTIO
 
Ontario

 O
 P

C
 R
 R

(
O

 
 

ON A 

e Area EHC

m Team Safe

ON B 

ary of Team Pro
The Safe Water
preventing/redu
occurrence of ra

ON C 

o Public Health 
OPHS Standard
Protocols unde
Control Protoco
Relevant Acts: 
Relevant regul
(Ontario Drinkin
O. Reg. 428/05 

              

CDP  

e Water and Rab

ogram 
r and Rabies Te
cing the burden

abies in humans

Standard(s), R
ds: Foundation
er the OPHS: D

ol 
Health Protecti

ations: O. Reg
ng Water Quality

(Public Spas); O

 

                       

M

bies Team D

eam focus on pr
n of water-borne
s.    

Relevant Legis
al; Safe Water; 

Drinking Water P

ion and Promoti
. 319/08 (Small 
y Standards); O
O. Reg. 557/90 

        2014 Pl

Manager  Name

Director Name

reventing/reduci
e illness and inju

lation or Regu
Rabies Prevent

Protocol, Recrea

ion Act, Safe Dr
Drinking Water
. Reg. 243/07 (S
(Communicabl

lanning & B

 

ing the burden o
ury related to re

lation 
tion and Contro
ational Water Pr

rinking Water A
r Systems); O. R
Schools, Private
e Diseases)  

Budget Tem

Fatih Sekercio

Wally Adams 

of water-borne i
creational wate

ol 
rotocol, Beach M

ct 
Reg. 170/03 (Dr
e Schools and D

mplate

oglu  

 

illness related to
er use. The Team

Management P

rinking Water Sy
Day Nurseries);

 

Date 

January 7, 2

o drinking water
m also aims at p

rotocol, Rabies 

ystems); O. Reg
 O. Reg. 565/90

 

B-

2014  

r and 
preventing the 

Prevention and

g. 169/03 
0 (Public Pools)

 
 

-36 

d 

); 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Compo

 R
 I
 C
 P

Compo
 I
 I
 I
 O
 I

Compo
 T
 C
 P

Compo
 R
 M
 R

Compo
 I
 C
 E
 L
 R

 

m:  Safe Water a

ON D 

nent(s) Of Tea
Responding to A
Issuing Drinking
Conducting wat
Providing resou
nent(s) Of Tea
Inspection of pu
Inspection of pu
Inspection of no
Offering educat
Investigating co
nent(s) Of Tea
Testing public b
Conducting env
Posting signage
nent(s) Of Tea
Risk assessmen
Monitoring the t
Responding to A
nent(s) Of Tea
Investigating hu
Confirming the r
Ensuring individ
Liaising with Ca
Rabies preventi

 

  

and Rabies Tea

m Program #1 
Adverse Water 
g/Boil Water Adv
er haulage vehi
rces (test kits a
m Program #2 

ublic pools (Clas
ublic spas  
on-regulated rec
ion sessions for

omplaints related
m Program #3 

beaches in Midd
vironmental asse
e at the beaches
m Program #3 
nt of Small Drink
est results of SD
Adverse Water 
m Program #6 

uman exposures
rabies vaccinati

duals requiring t
anada Food Insp
on awareness p

 

 

am 

Drinking Wate
Quality Incident
visories as need
icle inspections
nd information) 
Recreational W

ss A and Class B

creational water 
r public pool and
d to recreationa
Beach Manage

dlesex-London 
essment prior to
s if the test resu
Small Drinking

king Water Syst
DWS regularly
Quality Incident
Rabies Preven

s to animals sus
on status of the
reatment have a
pection Agency 
programs 

2014 P

er Program 
ts in municipal s
ded  

to private well o
Water Program
B) 

facilities (wadin
d spa operators
l water facilities
ement Program

o commenceme
ults exceed acce
g Water System
tems (SDWS) 

ts in SDWS 
ntion and Cont
spected of havin
e animals (suspe
access to rabies
for the testing o

Planning &

systems  

owners * 
m 

ng pools and sp
s 
s 
m 

ent of regular tes
eptable paramet
ms Program 

trol 
ng rabies  
ected of having 
s post exposure
of animals for ra

& Budget T

plash pads)   

sting 
ters of water qu

rabies)   
e prophylaxis  
abies  

Template 

uality standards

B--37 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Perform
 

Compo
Respon
systems
Comple
Compo
% of Cla
Agreem
% of rem
inspectio
The num
operato
Compo
The num
Septem
Compo
Respon
% of hig
complet
Agreem
Compo
Respon
having r
Provisio
individua
 

m:  Safe Water a

ON E 

mance/Service 

nent of Team #
d to reports of A

s 
te annual water
nent of Team #
ass A pools insp

ment Indicator) 
maining required
ons 

mber of participa
rs  
nent of Team #

mber of beaches
ber (sampling re
nent of Team #
d to reports of A

gh-risk Small Dr
ted for those tha

ment Indicator) 
nent of Team #
d to reports of h
rabies  
on of rabies post
als where the n

 

  

and Rabies Tea

Level Measure

#1  Drinking W
Adverse Water Q

r haulage vehicl
#2  Recreationa
pected while in o

d public pool/sp

ants to educatio

#3  Beach Man
s monitored and
eductions to occ
#4  Small Drink
Adverse Water Q
rinking Water Sy
at are due for re

#5 Rabies Prev
human exposure

t exposure prop
eed is indicated

 

 

am 

es 

ater Program
Quality Incident

e inspections 
al Water Progr
operation (Acco

pa/wading pool/s

on session for po

agement Progr
d sampled betw
cur in 2014)   

king Water Sys
Quality Incident
ystems (SDWS)
e-assessment (A

vention and Co
es to animals su

phylaxis treatme
d 

2014 P

ts in municipal 

am 
ountability 

splash pad 

ool and spa 

ram  
ween May and 

stems Program
ts in SDWS 
) assessments 
Accountability 

ontrol 
uspected of 

ent to those 

Planning &

2012

100% (

100% 

100% (1

100% (6

92

6

m  
100% (
100% 

 
100% (7

100% (1

& Budget T

2 

(94) 

(4) 

102) 

638) 

(19) 
(3) 

 
777) 

120) 

Template 

2013 
(anticipated)

100% (100)

100% (4) 

100% (102)

100% (638)

131 

6 

100% (20) 
100% (1) 

100% (800)

100% (120)

(
same/in

 

B-

2014 
(estimate/ 
crease/decrea

Same 

Same 

Same 

Same 

Increase 

Decrease  

Same 
Same 

Same 

Same 

-38 

se) 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Staffing
 
 
Program
Public H
Program
 
Note: 
2.0 Stud
 
SECTIO
 
Expend
 

Object o

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex
 
 

m:  Safe Water a

ON F 

g Costs: 

m Manager 
Health Inspector
m Assistant 

dent Public Hea

ON G 

ditures: 

of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

 

  

and Rabies Tea

rs 

alth Inspectors (S

e 2012 Bud

$  69
2

$  72

 

 

am 

Seasonal – May

get 201

99,877
26,601

26,478

2014 P

y to August) 

2 Actual 

$  702,692
31,563

$  734,255

Planning &

2013 

2013 Budget

$  696,12
27,28

$  723,40

& Budget T

 
 

Total FTEs 
 

7.5 
1.0 
6.0 
0.5 

 
 
 

t 2014 D
Budg

21 $  6
87

08 $  7

Template 

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

696,121
27,287

723,408

2014 Estima

7.5
1.0
6.0
0.5

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  0

$  0

B-

ated FTEs 

5 
0 
0 
5 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
0.0% 

 

0.0% 
 

-39 

e 
e) 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Funding
 

Object o

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS 
  User F
  Other O
Total Re
 
SECTIO
 
Key Hig
 

 I
 R
 W

 
SECTIO
 
Pressur
 

 T
d

 
 
 

m:  Safe Water a

ON H 

g Sources: 

of Revenue 

Shared 
TC – 100% 
 – 100% 

Fees 
Offset Revenue
evenues 

ON I 

ghlights/Initiati

Increasing awar
Rabies awarene
Web disclosure 

ON J 

res and Challe

The majority of 
develop and rol

 

  

and Rabies Tea

2012 Bu

$   7

e 
$   7

ves Planned F

reness in water 
ess campaign in
of public pool a

nges 

staff time is ded
l-out health prom

 

 

am 

udget 20

726,478

726,478

or 2014  

sampling amon
n schools and p
and spa inspecti

dicated to field w
motion activities

2014 P

012 Actual 

$     726,255

8,000
$    734,255

ng private well o
romoting rabies
ions   

work which is m
s such as aware

Planning &

2013 Budge

$   723,

$    723,

owners and deliv
s vaccination clin

ainly inspecting
eness campaign

& Budget T

et 2014 
Bud

408 $  
 
 
 
 

408 $  

vering informatio
nics  

g facilities as pe
ns is challenging

Template 

Draft 
dget ($ d

 723,408

 723,408

on materials  

r OPHS. Alloca
g. 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  0

$  0

ting sufficient st

B-

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

0 0.0%
 
 
 
 

0 0.0%

taff time to 

-40 

se 
se) 
3 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Recomm
 

 R
m
b

 E
o

 

m:  Safe Water a

ON K 

mended Enhan

Reduction in Be
management in 
beaches and ins
Enhancement o
owners and enc

 

  

and Rabies Tea

ncements, Red

each Sampling P
mandated by th

stead provide p
of Well water Pro
courage them to

 

am 

ductions and Ef

Program - $15,0
he Ontario Publ
ermanent postin
ogram - $15,000
o safely manage

2014 P

fficiencies for 2

000 (.15 FTE) -
lic Health Stand
ngs at these be
0 (.15 FTE) - Th
e their wells and

Planning &

2014 

there are six be
dards. This prop
aches stating th
his proposal aim
d test their well w

& Budget T

eaches within th
posal would disc
hat they are not 
ms to initiate an 
water regularly.

Template 

he geographic h
continue beach 
monitored. 
awareness cam

ealth unit, and b
surveillance at f

mpaign to reach 

B-

beach 
five of the six 

private well 

-41 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              

ENVIRO

SOUTH

                       

ONMENTAL 

HWEST T

        2014 Pl

HEALTH A

TOBACCO
(SW

lanning & B

ND CHRON
 

O CONTR
W TCAN)

Budget Tem

IC DISEASE

ROL AREA

mplate

E PREVENT

A NETWO

 

TION 

ORK  

 

B-

 
 

-42 



 
 
SECTIO
 
 
Service
 
 
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
Summa

 T
r
a
b
p

 
SECTIO
 
Ontario

 O
 P
 R

 
SECTIO
 
Compo

 I
 I
 I

Compo
 I
 I
 I
 F

s
 

ON A 

e Area EHC

m Team Sout
Area

ON B 

ary of Team Pro
The SW TCAN 
regular meeting
and SFOS reso
budget, and act 
provincial SFO t

ON C 

o Public Health 
OPHS Standard
Protocols unde
Relevant Acts: 

ON D 

nent(s) Of Tea
Increase capaci
Increase the ca
Increase cessat
nent(s) Of Tea
Increase the nu
Increase the nu
Increase ability 
Findings from th
strategy in 2014

              

CDP  

thwest Tobacco
a Network (SW T

ogram 
coordinates the
s of the SW TC
urce centers an
as project man

task forces and 

Standard(s), R
ds: Foundation
er the OPHS: T
Health Protecti

m Program #1 
ity of PHUs to w
pacity for PHUs
tion messages a
m Program #2 
mber of youth a
mber of youth e
of parents to pr

he Social Identit
4 

 

                       

M

o Control 
TCAN) D

e implementation
CAN Steering Co
nd NGOs) in the
nagers to carry o

ensure commu

Relevant Legis
al; Chronic Dise

Tobacco Compli
ion and Promoti

Tobacco Cont
work with heath 
s to work with ho
and specific opp
Tobacco Prev

and young adult
engaged in toba
rotect their child
ties research pr

        2014 Pl

Manager  Name

Director Name

n of the Smoke-
ommittee and su
e development o
out the regional 
unication from th

lation or Regu
ease Prevention
ance 
ion Act, Smoke-

trol  
care providers t
ospitals in their 
portunities for ce

vention and You
ts exposed to pr
acco prevention 
ren/youth from 
oject conducted

lanning & B

 

-Free Ontario S
ubcommittees th
of a regional act

plan and report
he TCAN to the 

lation 
n 

-Free Ontario A

to speak to thei
respective area
essation suppor
uth Engageme
rovincial tobacc
activities and in
the influence of

d in 2013 will be

Budget Tem

Donna Kosma

Wally Adams 

trategy (SFOS) 
he SW TCAN st
tion plan based 
t to the MOHLT
MOHLTC and p

Act, Tobacco Co

r patients/clients
as to further enh
rt for Young Adu

ent 
o prevention ca

nitiatives in their
f tobacco advert
e used to inform

mplate

ack  

 

) in the Southwe
taff engage all p
on local need. T

TC on progress. 
provincial partn

ontrol Act, Munic

ts about tobacco
hance existing to
ults 

ampaigns  
r communities 
tising (i.e. smok

m the developme

 

Date 

January 7, 2

estern region of 
partners (9 Pub
The TCAN staff
TCAN staff are
ers.  

cipal by-laws in 

o use. 
obacco cessatio

king in the movie
ent of a youth to

 

B-

2014  

Ontario. Throug
lic Health Units
f manage the 

e members of 

local PHU area

on policies. 

es) 
obacco preventio

 
 

-43 

gh 
, 

as. 

on 



 
 
Program
 
Compo

 I
 S

2
 B

r
COMPO

 S
 S

 
SECTIO
 
Perform
 

Compo
The num
Commu
The num
support 
the Den
Compo
The num
promotio
The num
The num
TCAN  
Compo
The num
The num
complai
Compo
# of SW
# of train

m:  Southwest T

nent(s) Of Tea
Increase capaci
Support advoca
2015 
By the end of 20
resources for en
ONENT(S) OF T
SW TCAN Mana
SW TCAN YDS

ON E 

mance/Service 

nent of Team #
mber of Health C
nities of Practic

mber of earned/
of provincial ca
ial etc.) 
nent of Team #

mber of social m
on 
mber of smoke-f
mber of attendee

nent of Team #
mber of regiona
mber of workpla
nts 
nent of Team #

W TCAN Steering
ning opportuniti

 

  

Tobacco Control

m Program #3 
ity of PHUs to im

acy efforts of PH

014 the SW TCA
nhancement in 2
TEAM PROGRA
ager chairs the 
 chairs the Yout

Level Measure

#1  Tobacco Ce
Care Providers w
ce related to ces
paid media imp

ampaigns (Drive

#2  Tobacco Pr
media hits receiv

free movie nigh
es at smoke-fre

#3  Protection a
l meetings with 

ace packages di

#4  Knowledge
g Committee me
es organized by

 

 Area Network (

Protection and
mplement tobac
HUs to implemen

AN will have ad
2015. 
AM #4 Knowled
Steering Comm
th Engagement

es 

essation 
who are membe

ssation 
ressions in the 

en to Quit, Woul

revention and Y
ved for provincia

ts held in the SW
ee movie nights 

and Enforceme
Tobacco Enforc
stributed in follo

 Exchange and
eetings 
y the SW TCAN

2014 P

(SW TCAN) 

d Enforcement
cco control initia
nt 9 or more new

ddressed all SFO

dge Exchange 
mittee which brin
t Subcommittee 

ers of local 

SW TCAN in 
durather, Quit 

YE 
al campaign 

W TCAN 
held in SW 

ent  
cement Officers
ow-up to 

d Transfer 

N 

Planning &

t 
atives aimed at y
w tobacco contr

OA workplace c

and Transfer 
ngs together all 

and Regional Y

201

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

s 12
N/A

11
12

& Budget T

youth access to
rol policies/bylaw

complaints in a c

9 SW PHUs for
Youth Coalition

2 

A 

A 

A 

A 

2 
A 

 
2 

Template 

o tobacco produ
ws in the SW T

consistent way a

r knowledge exc
for knowledge e

2013 
(anticipated)

100 

750,000 

350 

9 
6,848 

12 
450 

12 
8 

cts 
TCAN Region by

and evaluated t

change and tran
exchange and t

(
same/inc

B-

y December 31,

the current 

nsfer 
ransfer 

2014 
(estimate/ 
crease/decreas

Increase 

Increase 

Increase 

Same 
Increase 

Decrease 
Decrease 

Decrease 
Same 

-44 

se) 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Staffing
 
 
Program
Health P
Adminis
 
 
SECTIO
 
Expend
 

Object o

  Person
  Other P
Total Ex
 
 
SECTIO
 
Fundin
 

Object 

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS
  User F
  Other 
Total R

m:  Southwest T

ON F 

g Costs: 

m Manager 
Promoter (Youth
strative Assistan

ON G 

ditures: 

of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 
xpenditure 

ON H 

g Sources: 

of Revenue 

Shared 
LTC – 100% 
S – 100% 
Fees 
Offset Revenue

Revenue 

 

  

Tobacco Control

h Development 
nt 

e 2012 Bud

$  17
14

$  32

2012 Bud

$   28

e 3
$  32

 

 Area Network (

Specialist) 

get 201

78,414
42,967
21,381

dget 201

 
85,800

35,581
21,381

2014 P

(SW TCAN) 

2 Actual 

$  179,176
134,494

$  313,670

2 Actual 

$   277,903

35,767
$  313,670

Planning &

2013 

2013 Budget

$  187,29
98,50

$  285,80

2013 Budget

$  285,8

$  285,8

& Budget T

 
 

Total FTEs 
 

2.5 
1.0 
1.0 
0.5 

t 2014 D
Budg

99 $  2
01
00 $  2

t 2014 D
Budg

 
800 $  2

 
 
 

800 $  2

Template 

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

219,447
66,353

285,800

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

285,800

285,800

2014 Estim

2.5
1.0
1.0
0.5

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$     32,218

(32,218)
$  0

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 

$  0

$  0

B-

mate FTEs 

5 
0 
0 
5 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
17.2% 

(32.7%) 
0.0% 

 

% increase
(% decreas

over 2013
 

0.0% 
 
 
 

0.0% 

-45 

e 
e) 

e 
se) 
3 



 
 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
Key Hig
 

 S
p

 T
r

 I
 
SECTIO
 
Pressur
 

 T
b
i

 
SECTIO
 
Recomm
 

 N
 

m:  Southwest T

ON I 

ghlights/Initiati

SW TCAN will u
population of yo
Through particip
reducing youth a
It is hoped that t

ON J 

res and Challe

The SW TCAN 
budget for the T
n order to fund 

ON K 

mended Enhan

N/A  

 

  

Tobacco Control

ves Planned F

use results of re
outh in the SW T
pation in the pro
access  
the SW TCAN w

nges 

has not seen a 
TCAN. Other Pro

Personnel Cost

ncements, Red

 

 Area Network (

or 2014  

gional social ide
TCAN 
ovincial Bad Wa

will assist the M

budget increase
ogram Costs ha
t increases over

ductions and Ef

2014 P

(SW TCAN) 

entities research

ays to be Nice C

OHLTC with the

e since the crea
ave been reduce
r that period. 

fficiencies for 2

Planning &

h conducted in 2

Campaign and b

e implementatio

ation of the TCA
ed from 43% of 

2014 

& Budget T

2013 to create a

y enhancing sfo

on of bill 131 if it

AN in 2005, thus
the total budge

Template 

a prevention str

oa-training.com 

t is successfully

s inflation has p
et in 2012 ($134

rategy targeted 

the SW TCAN 

y passed in early

ut a strain on th
,494) to 30% in

B-

at the identified

will work toward

y 2014. 

he program 
 2014 ($66,353

-46 

d 

d 

) 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

                                      

OF

        2014 Pl

FAMILY HE

FFICE OF

lanning & B

 
 

EALTH SER
 

F THE DIR

Budget Tem

RVICES 

RECTOR

mplate   

C

 
 
 

C-1 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 
SECTIO
SUMMAR
The Offi
Program
activities

 R
 S
 E
 S
 B
 C
 Y

 
Oversig
recruitm
planning
 
In additi
Officer (
health n
program
 
 

m:  FHS – Offi

ON A 

E AREA Fam

AM TEAM Offic

ON B 
RY OF TEAM PRO
ice of the Direct

m Assistant to th
s of the entire F
Reproductive H
Smart Start for B
Early Years  
Screening, Asse
Best Beginnings
Child Health  
Young Adult  

ht of the progra
ment/hiring/orien
g and administra

on the respons
(CNO) and Com
nursing practice 
m planning, popu

 

  
 

ce of the Direc

mily Health Servi

ce of the Directo

OGRAM 
tor of Family He
he Director/CNO
Family Health Se
ealth  
Babies  

essment & Inter
s (West/Central/

ams and staff of 
tation and perfo
ation and comm

ibility of the Chi
mmunity Health 

in order to keep
ulation assessm

 

ctor 

ces M

or  D

ealth Services a
O, an Epidemiolo
ervices area.  T

rvention (Speec
/East) 

Family Health S
ormance develo

munity partner de

ef Nursing Offic
Nursing Specia
p quality outcom

ment, health ass

2014 P

MANAGER  NAME

DIRECTOR NAME

rea is comprise
ogist, Program 
he Teams withi

ch and Languag

Services area in
opment and mon
evelopment and

cer are administ
list (CHNS) wor

mes for the com
essment and su

Planning &

d of the Directo
Evaluator and C
n Family Health

e, Blind Low Vis

ncluding strateg
nitoring for 11 d
d sustainability.

tered through th
rk with nurses a
munity. The Ep
urveillance, and

& Budget T

 

Diane Bewick

or of Family Hea
Community Hea
h Services are a

sion, Infant Hea

y, planning, bud
irect reports and
 

he Director of Fa
and others acros
idemiologist and

d program evalu

Template

 

alth Services/Ch
alth Nursing Spe
as follows: 

aring) 

dgeting, financia
d 120 staff. In a

amily Health Se
ss the agency to
d Program Eval

uation. 

 

DATE 

Februa

hief Nursing Offi
ecialist.  The tea

al monitoring,  
addition engage 

rvices.  The Ch
o promote exce
luator contribute

 

C

ary 12, 2014 

icer (CNO), the 
am supports the

in agency 

ief Nursing 
llence in public 
e to FHS 

 

C-2 

e 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
ONTARIO
Ontario 

 R
 C
 C
 S
 F
 O

 
Child & 

 D
 

Nursing 
 
SECTIO
 
COMPON
 

 
 
 

COMPON
 

 

 

m:  FHS – Offi

ON C 
O PUBLIC HEALT
Public Health S

Reproductive H
Child Health 
Chronic Disease
Sexual Health 
Foundational 
Organizational S

Family Services
Duty to Report L

 Act, 1991 

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TEA

Developing, rev
Actively particip
Community and
requirements, p
 

NENT(S) OF TEA

The Epidemiolo
surveillance an
developing cap
Participate in ag
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 

ce of the Direc

TH STANDARD(S)
Standards: 
ealth 

e & Injury Preve

Standards 

s Act, 1990 
Legislation  

M PROGRAM #1 

viewing and app
pate in Senior L
d Provincial invo
province wide tr

M PROGRAM #2 

ogist and Progra
d program evalu
acity in teams f
gency wide syst

 

ctor 

), RELEVANT LEG

ention 

  - OVERALL FH

proving all aspe
eadership Team
olvement related
aining initiatives

 - EPIDEMIOLOG

am Evaluator pr
uation.  They do
or analysis and 
tems to build ca

2014 P

GISLATION OR R

S LEADERSHIP (

cts of program i
m and agency w
d to the broader
s, consistent Fa

GY & PROGRAM E

rovide consultat
o this through e
integration of d

apacity of organ

Planning &

REGULATION 

(DIRECTOR) 

initiatives based
wide decisions in
r public health s

amily Health pro

EVALUATION 

tion to FHS in po
nsuring best ev

data, consultatio
ization to imple

& Budget T

d on best availa
ncluding effectiv
system eg. selec
vincial messagi

opulation needs
idence resource

on and assistanc
ment evidence 

Template

able evidence 
ve implementati
ction and develo
ing 

s assessments, 
es are available
ce with specific 
informed practi

 

on of these dec
opment of acco

health assessm
e for program pla

program evalua
ce ie. RRFSS, R

 

C

cisions within FH
untability 

ment and 
anning, 
ation. 
RAC. 

 

C-3 

HS. 



 
Program
 
COMPON
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
SECTIO
PERFOR
 

Compo
 C

o

 C
s

Compon
 

 #
r

 #
o

 #
e

 
 

m:  FHS – Offi

NENT(S) OF TEA

Provide staff co
Contribute to po
Provide leaders
Oversee the im
Lead and plan p
Promote and su
Infectious Cont
Lead journal clu
research as req
Contribute to hu

ON E 
RMANCE/SERVICE

nent of Team #
Completion, imp
operational plan

Completion of p
schedule 
nent of Team #2 

# of projects inv
researchers, ac
# of structured c
offerings to FHS
# of consultation
evaluation. 

  
 

ce of the Direc

M PROGRAM #3 

onsultations and
olicy and proced
ship at Nursing 

mplementation of
professional dev
upport national 
rol)  
ubs and knowle
quested.  
uman resource 

E LEVEL MEASUR

#1  OVERALL FH
plementation, ou
ns including bud

performance rev

 EPIDEMIOLOGY &

volving partners
ademic partners
capacity building
S Staff. 
ns with manage

 2

ctor 

 CNO & CHNS

d support to add
dure developme
Practice Counc
f best practice g
velopment prog
certifications su

dge exchange a

sustainability th

RES 

HS LEADERSHIP
utcome evaluati

dgeting in all pro

views for all staff

& PROGRAM EVALU

hip with commu
s and other orga
g planning and 

ers and staff re: 

2014 Plann

– NURSING PRA

dress nursing pr
ent for public he
il meetings and

guidelines, legis
grams for all age
uch as (e.g. Com

activities with st

hrough post sec

(DIRECTOR) 
ion of 
ogram areas. 

ff per biannual 

UATION 

unity 
anization.
evaluation 

program 

ning & Bud

ACTICE QUALITY A

ractice issues  
ealth and public 
 take leadership

slation, regulatio
ency PHNs (150
mmunity Health 

taff to identify be

ondary partners

2012

18 operation
100%

80%

5

0

10

dget Temp

ASSURANCE & L

health nursing 
p role in develop
ons, competenci
0 nurses)  
Nursing, Interna

est practice evid

ships. 

2 

nal plans 
% 

8

% 

plate 

LEADERSHIP 

practice.  
ping implement
ies and trends i

ational Certified

dence and build

2013 
(anticipated)

8 operational plan
100% 

combined severa

80% 

7 

1 

11 

 

ing annual prac
n nursing practi

d Lactation Cons

d critical apprais

(
same/in

ns 

al 
12

  

C

ctice plans.  
ice. 

sultants, US 

sal skills of 

2014 
(estimate/ 
crease/decrea

2 anticipated 

80% 

5 

3 

Increase 

C-4 

se) 



 
Program
 
Compo
 
# of prof

 #

 #
 A

 
 #
 #

 
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 

Director
Adminis
Commu
Epidem
Program
Program
Public H

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

m:  FHS – Offi

nent of Team #

fessional develo
# of all nurse wo

# of team/progra
All agency train

# of practice con
# of staff engag

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

r and Chief Nurs
strative Assistan
nity Health Nurs
iologist 

m Evaluator 
m Assistant to E
Health Nurse 

  
 

ce of the Direc

#3  CNO & CHN

opment events  
orkshops 

am specific initia
ing (BFI/Smokin

nsultations 
ed in structured

 
sing Officer 
nt to the Director
sing Specialist 

Epi/PE/CHNS 

 2

ctor 

NS - NURSING PR

atives 
ng Cessation) 

d knowledge exc

r 

2014 Plann

RACTICE QUALIT

change 

ning & Bud

TY ASSURANCE &

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2013 TOTA

7.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

dget Temp

& LEADERSHIP 

B
n

8

1

AL FTES 

5 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
5 

plate 

 
2  

80% participated
6  

BFI Training (100
nurses participate

58 
8 provincial/nation

events (22 staff)
 journal publicati

 

d 

0% 
ed) 

nal 
) 
on 

 
 

2014 ESTIMATE

6.75
1.0
1.0
1.0
1.0
1.0
1.0

0.75

  

C

 
Same 

Increase 
Same 

Same 
Same 

ED FTES 

5 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 

C-5 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
Directo




 
CNO/CH





m:  FHS – Offi

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIAT
r: 
 Strengthen p
 Pilot neighb

HNS: 
 Nurse works
 Explore re c
 Involvement

  
 

ce of the Direc

2012 Bud

$   669,9
224,4

$   894,3

2012 Bu

$     891

3
$    894,

TIVES PLANNED F

positive parentin
ourhood integra

shops/professio
completion of RF
t in smoking ces

 2

ctor 

get  201

51 $ 
24 

75 $

udget  20

,301 $  
 
 
 

,074 
,375 $  

FOR 2014  

ng directions 
ation project 

onal developmen
FP for Registere
ssation agency w

2014 Plann

2 Actual 

  633,773 
175,664 

  809,437 

012 Actual 

     796,062 
 
 
 

13,375 
    809,437 

nt training sched
ed Nurses’ Asso
wide initiative.

ning & Bud

2013 Budget

$   705,023
233,174

$   938,197

2013 Budge

$       934,82

3,37
$      938,19

duled for May 6
ociation (RNAO

dget Temp

t 2014 D
Budg

$   649
223

$   873

et 2014 
Bud

23 $     86
 

 
 

74 
97 $     87

th, and again in 
) Best Practice 

plate 

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

9,989 
3,228 

3,217 

Draft 
dget ($ d

69,843 
 
 
 

3,374 
73,217 

the fall 2014. 
Guideline Spotl

 

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  (55,034) 

(9,946) 

$  (64,980) 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  (64,980) 

 
 
 
 

$  (64,980) 

light Organizatio

  

C

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
(7.8)% 
(4.3)% 

(6.9)% 

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

(7.0)% 
 
 
 
 

(6.9)% 

on designation. 

C-6 

e 
e) 

se 
se) 
3 



 
Program
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU


 
SECTIO
RECOMM
Commu
 
Reduct
  
 
One-tim
 e
 

m:  FHS – Offi

ON J 

RES AND CHALL
 Significant m

ON K 
MENDED ENHANC
unity Health Nu

ion in Casual N
associated cos

me Funding: - $
evidence regard

  
 

ce of the Direc

LENGES 
manager and sta

CEMENTS, REDU
urse Specialist 

Nursing - ($70,0
ts ($9,946) 

$14,966 - Additio
ding effective or

 2

ctor 

aff changes and

CTIONS AND EFF
- assigned (sha

000) – this prop

onal 0.25 Progr
r promising prac

2014 Plann

d absences in 20

FICIENCIES FOR 2
ared) administra

posal reduces th

am Evaluator ($
ctices in family h

ning & Bud

013-2014.

2014 
ative support is 

he resources av

$14,966) – this w
health, prenatal 

dget Temp

being planned f

vailable to cover

would support p
health, healthca

plate 

for 2014. 

r paid absences

program work by
are provider out

 

s (ie: vacation, s

y gathering and
treach, and chil

  

C

sick-time), and 

d implementing 
d development.

C-7 

. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

REPR

2014 P

FAMILY HE

RODUCT

Planning &

EALTH SER
 

TIVE HEA

& Budget T

RVICES 

LTH TEA

Template

AM 

  

C

 

C-8 



 
 

SECTIO

 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 
SECTIO
 
SUMMAR
 
The Rep
healthie
activity, 
process
 
SECTIO
 
ONTARIO
 
Ontario 
 Child
 Rep
 Foun
 Chro
 Sexu

 
Child & 
 Duty

 
 

ON A 

E AREA Fam

AM TEAM Repr

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PRO

productive Heal
est newborn(s) p

and mental we
s. 

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEALT

Public Health S
d Health 
roductive Healt
ndational Stand
onic Disease an
ual Health 

Family Services
y to Report Legi

  

mily Health Servi

roductive Health

OGRAM 

th Team enable
possible, and be
llness. This team

TH STANDARD(S)

Standards: 

h 
dard  
nd Injury Preven

s Act, 1990 
islation  

 

                         

ces M

h Team D

es individuals & 
e prepared for p
m is also leadin

), RELEVANT LEG

ntion  

                   20

MANAGER  NAME

DIRECTOR NAME

families to achi
arenthood. Spe
g the agency-w

GISLATION OR R

014 Plannin

 

ieve optimal pre
ecific topic areas
wide Health Care

REGULATION 

ng & Budge

Heather Lokko

Diane Bewick

econception hea
s of focus includ
e Provider Outre

et Template

o 

 

alth, experience
de alcohol and t
each initiative a

e 

DATE 

Februa

e a healthy preg
tobacco, healthy
nd Baby Friend

 

C

ary 12, 2014 

nancy, have the
y eating, physic

dly certification 

 
 

 

C-9 

e 
al 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
COMPON
Preconc
concept
 Prov
 Prov
 Prov
 Sup
 Prov

wom
COMPON
 Impl
 Pilot
 Offe
 Prov

preg
COMPON
 Our 

trans
 Prov
 Offe
 Deve
 Deve
COMPON
The Bab
increase
goal is t
indicato
 
COMPON
The Hea
through 
 Stra

pape
 

m: Reproductiv

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TEA
ception health in
tion and to impro
vide preconcept
vide up-to-date 
vide/adapt/prom
port regional “R
vide food skills s

men planning a p
NENT(S) OF TEA
lement a prenat
t a collaboration

er in-class and o
vide food skills s
gnant women 
NENT(S) OF TEA
preparation for 
sition to parenth
vide up-to-date 
er ‘Preparing for 
elop and implem
elop and promo
NENT(S) OF TEA
by-Friendly Initia
e breastfeeding 
to become Baby
r. 

NENT(S) OF TEA
alth Care Provid
physicians, mid
tegies focus on
er/electronic res

ve Health Tea

M PROGRAM #1:
nitiatives are inte
ove pregnancy 
tion health teach
preconception i

mote preconcept
Rethink Your Dri
sessions, and e
pregnancy 
M PROGRAM #2:
tal skin-to-skin c
n with a health c
online prenatal e
sessions and ex

M PROGRAM #3:
parenthood init

hood, including 
preparation for 
Parenthood’ cla

ment a preparat
ote an interactive
M PROGRAM #4:
ative (BFI) is a e
initiation, durat

y-Friendly desig

M PROGRAM #5:
der Outreach In
dwives, nurse p
 providing inform

source binders, 

              

m 

:  PRECONCEPTI
ended to increa
outcomes. Stra
hing to priority p
nformation on M
tion health resou
nking” campaig
xplore collabora

:  PRENATAL HE
communication 
care provider to 
education (6-we
xplore collabora

:  PREPARATION
tiatives focus on
information abo
parenthood info
ass 
tion for parentho
e online parenti
:  BABY-FRIENDL
evidence-based
ion, and exclus
nated by the en

:  HEALTH CARE
itiative is a strat
ractitioners and
mation to and co
workshops, pre

                201

ON HEALTH 
ase the proportio
tegies include:

population group
MLHU website, 
urces for Grade
n 

ation with Strath

ALTH 
campaign 
provide service

eek series, week
ation with Strath

 FOR PARENTHO
n the social, emo
out how parentin
ormation on MLH

ood campaign, t
ng style self-as
LY INITIATIVE 
d strategy that p
ivity.  Breastfee

nd of 2014 or ea

E PROVIDER OUT
tegy to enhance

d nurses. 
onnecting with h

esentations and 

4 Planning

on of individuals

ps 
and implement 

e 7-12 teachers

hroy grocery sto

e to priority popu
kend series, e-le
roy grocery stor

OOD 
otional, and me
ng impacts futur
HU website 

targeting pregna
sessment

romotes, protec
ding is a signific

arly in 2015.  BF

TREACH (INCLUDE
e both preconce

health care prov
so on. 

g & Budget

s who are physic

social media st
in order to build

ores to increase 

ulation women r
earning) 
res to increase s

ental aspects of 
re health.   

ant families 

cts and supports
cant contributor

FI designation is

ES PRECONCEPT
eption, prenatal, 

viders through o

t Template

cally, emotional

trategies related
d teacher capac

 subsidized acc

recently confirm

subsidized acce

parenthood, an

s breastfeeding
r to healthy grow
s a Ministry of H

TION, PRENATAL,
 and early years

office visits, mai

lly, and socially 

d to preconcepti
city in this area

cess to fruits and

med pregnant 

ess to fruits and

nd how to effecti

, and is an effec
wth and develop
Health Accounta

, AND EARLY YEA
s health within o

il-outs, website 

 

C-

prepared for 

on health 

d vegetables, fo

d vegetables for

ively manage th

ctive tool to 
pment.  MLHU’s
ability Agreemen

ARS HEALTH) 
our community  

content, 

 
 
 

-10 

or 

he 

s 
nt 

 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
PERFOR

 

COMPON
Preconc

Interacti

COMPON
# of pre
# of wom
% of pot
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
# of E-le
 
 
Skin-to-

COMPON
# of ses
# of wom

m: Reproductiv

ON E 

RMANCE/SERVICE

NENT OF TEAM #
ception campaig

ive online self-a

NENT OF TEAM #
natal series offe
men/support pe
tential primiparo

earning Registra

skin campaign  

NENT OF TEAM #
ssions offered 
men/support pe

ve Health Tea

E LEVEL MEASUR
 

#1:  PRECONCEP
gn  

assessment tool

#2: PRENATAL H
ered 
rsons attending
ous families 

ants 

#3: PREPARATIO

rsons attending

              

m 

RES 

TION HEALTH 

 preconception 

EALTH 

g sessions 

N FOR PARENTH

g sessions 

                201

health 

HOOD 

4 Planning

2012

 N/A 

 N/A 

5-week series
 89  
 756 women

support per
 45% of prim
 
 
 
 
 
 
E-Learning 
 326 women
 199 suppor

persons 
 Campaign 

planned  

 12  
 73 women &

support per

g & Budget

 C
de

 “P
P
as
de
 

n & 749 
rsons 
mips 

n 
rt 

6-wee
 62
 59

su
 40
 
Prena
 4 
 39

su
 
E-Lea
 50
 32

 C
im

& 67 
rsons 

 12
 92

su

t Template

2013 
(anticipated)

Campaign mater
eveloped 
Pre-Pregnancy 
lanner” self-
ssessment tool 
eveloped  

ek series 
2  
91 women & 58
upport persons
0% of primips 

atal Weekend 
series 

9 women & 35 
upport persons

arning 
03 women 
26 support pers

Campaign 
mplemented 

2  
2 women & 88 
upport persons 

(
same/in

rials  Cam
imple

 “Pre-
Plan
asse
launc
hits/m

84 

sons 

6-week s
 55 sc
 40% 
 
 
 
Prenatal
 15 se

 
 
E-Learni
 550 w
 375 s

 Sam

 

 14  
 120 w

supp

 

C-

2014 
(estimate/ 
crease/decrea

paign will be 
emented  
-Pregnancy 
ner” self-

essment tool 
ched and 100 
month 

series 
cheduled 
of primips 

 Weekend 
eries scheduled

ing 
women 
support persons

e 

women & 100 
port persons 

 
 
 

-11 

se) 

d 

s 



 
Program
 
COMPON
BFI edu
and volu

BFI polic
all staff,
orientati

COMPON
# of mai

In perso
Worksho

 
SECTIO
STAFFIN
 
 
Program
Public H
Public H
Program

 
 
 
 
 

m: Reproductiv

NENT OF TEAM #
cational require

unteers  

cy developed, B
 with sustainabl
ion of new staff 

NENT OF TEAM #
il-outs, # of part

on office contact
op for Primary H

ON F 
NG COSTS: 

m Manager 
Health Nurse 
Health Dietitian 
m Assistant 

ve Health Tea

#4: BABY-FRIEND
ements complete

BOH-approved a
le processes es
and volunteers 

#5: HEALTH CAR
ticipants at pres

t/visits 
Health Care Pro

              

m 

DLY INITIATIVE 
ed by 100% of M

and orientation 
stablished to ens

RE PROVIDER OU
sentations 

oviders on Early

                201

MLHU staff 

provided to 
sure policy 

TREACH 

y Years 

4 Planning

Planning for 
educational ses
completed 

Completed 

 4 mail-outs 
health care 
providers 
 

 18  
 160 particip

2013

g & Budget

ssions 
 98

 A
re

to 315  7 
he

 P
m
30

 R
re

 10
pants  85

 

 
TOTAL FTES 

14.5 
1.0 
9.5 
1.0 
3.0 

t Template

8% MLHU staff 

Annual policy 
evision complete

mail-outs to 31
ealth care provi
resentations to 

medical students
05 practitioners

Revision of 300 
esource binders
05  
5 participants 

  New 
volun
comp
requ
mont

ed  
 Polic

share
staff 

5 
ders
232 

s & 
s 

s  

 More
outre
base

 6 ma
healt

 

 350 
 Sam

2014 ESTIMA

14.1
1.0
9.9
1.0
2.5

 

C-

staff and 
nteers will 
plete educationa
irements within 
ths of start date

cy revisions will 
ed with all MLH
& volunteers 

e electronic 
each and web-
ed resources 
ail-outs to 350 
th care provider

e 

ATED FTES 

15 
0 
9 
0 
5 

 
 
 

-12 

al 
4 
 

be 
U 

rs 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 
SECTIO
KEY HIG
 
 Expa
 Offe
 Deve
 Iden
 
 

m: Reproductiv

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

ON I 
GHLIGHTS/INITIAT

anding the Hea
ering preconcept
eloping program

ntifying and usin

ve Health Tea

2012 Bud

$   1,193,9
127,4

$   1,321,3

2012 Bu

$    1,277

35
8

$    1,321

TIVES PLANNED F

lth Care Provide
tion groups to p

mming for physi
ng social media 

 

              

m 

get  201

50 $   
44 

94 $   

udget  20

,950 $  
 
 

,000 
,444 
,394 $  

FOR 2014  

er Outreach Init
priority populatio
cal activity and 
related to preco

                201

2 Actual 

1,155,945 
122,969 

1,278,914 

012 Actual 

  1,252,359 
 
 

20,433 
6,122 

  1,278,914 

iative to ensure
ons 
pregnancy  

onception health

4 Planning

2013 Budget

$   1,248,488
120,394

$   1,368,882

2013 Budge

$     1,359,348

8,140
1,394

$     1,368,882

e a more collabo

h with an empha

g & Budget

t 2014 D
Budg

$   1,250
90

$   1,341

et 2014 
Bud

8 $     1,33
 

 
0 
4 
2 $     1,34

orative and coor

asis on alcohol u

t Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

0,469 
0,894 

,363 

Draft 
dget ($ d

31,829 
 
 

8,140 
1,394 

41,363 

rdinated MLHU 

use in pregnanc

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$        1,981 

(29,500) 

$    (27,519) 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$    (27,519) 

 
 
 
 

$    (27,519) 

approach  

cy 

 

C-

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
0.2% 

(24.5)% 

(2.0)% 

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

(2.0)% 
 
 
 
 

(2.0)% 

 
 
 

-13 

e 
e) 

se 
se) 
3 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
PRESSU
 
 This
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 
Reduce
 o
 
Reduct
 (
 
Expans
 a
 p

m: Reproductiv

ON J 
RES AND CHALL

s team is still rel

ON K 

MENDED ENHANC

ed Reproductiv
on the Reprodu

ion in Social M
($9,600 or 0.1 P

sion of Healthc
and integrated h
providers’ exper

ve Health Tea

LENGES 

atively new, and

CEMENTS, REDU

ve Health PA S
ctive Health Tea

Marketing Camp
PHN, and $29,5

are Provider O
healthcare provi
rience working w

              

m 

d is in the proce

CTIONS AND EFF

upport - $30,65
am has led to le

paigns - $39,10
00 in health pro

Outreach Initiat
ider outreach.  I
with MLHU. 

                201

ess of establishi

FICIENCIES FOR 2

59 (0.5 FTE) – C
esser requireme

00 – This propos
omotion expense

ive - $42,240 (0
It is expected th

4 Planning

ng a number of 

2014 

Contracting for g
ents for centraliz

sal would be a r
es). 

0.5 PHN FTE) –
hat this would in

g & Budget

f new initiatives.

graphic design a
zed administrati

reduction in hea

– This proposal w
crease efficienc

t Template

.  

and advanced p
ive support. 

alth campaigns 

would support M
cy, reduce dupli

presentation dev

related to repro

MLHU to have b
ication, and enh

 

C-

velopment skills

oductive health 

better coordinat
hance healthcar

 
 
 

-14 

s 

ed 
re 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

                                              2014 Pl

FAMILY HE

EARLY

lanning & B

EALTH SER
 

Y YEARS TE

Budget Tem

RVICES 

EAM 

mplate   

C-

 

-15 



 
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 
SECTIO
 
SUMMAR
The goa
address
facilitatin
environm
County. 
eating/h
develop
 
 
 
SECTIO
ONTARIO
Ontario 







Child & 


 
 

ON A 

E AREA FHS

AM TEAM Early

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PRO
al of the Early Y
s the physical, p
ng access to an
ments, strength
  Topic areas in

healthy weights,
pmental concern

ON C 
O PUBLIC HEALT
Public Health S
 Child Health
 Chronic Dise
 Infectious D
 Vaccine Pre
 Foundationa

 
Family Services
 Duty to Rep

              
 

S 

y Years 

OGRAM 
ears Team is to

psychological, an
nd providing dire
ening communi

nclude breastfee
child safety, or

ns. 

TH STANDARD(S)
Standards: 
h Program 
ease and Injury
iseases Progra

eventable Disea
al 

s Act, 1990 
ort Legislation  

 

                        

M

D

o improve the he
nd social growth
ect services, rais
ty action and pa

eding, safe and 
al health, immu

), RELEVANT LEG

Prevention  
m 
ses Program 

        2014 Pl

MANAGER  NAME

DIRECTOR NAME

ealth and develo
h and developm
sing awareness
artnership, and 
healthy infant c
nization, parent

GISLATION OR R

lanning & B

opmental outcom
ment of children 
s and providing 
building person

care, mental hea
ting, healthy gro

REGULATION 

Budget Tem

Ruby Brewer

Diane Bewick

mes for children
ages 0-4.  Multi
education, crea

nal skills with fam
alth and early ch
owth and develo

mplate

 

n by providing a
i-strategy appro

ating supportive 
milies and care 
hildhood develo
opment and the 

 

DATE 

Februa

a range of activit
oaches are used
physical and so
givers in Londo

opment, nutrition
early identificat

 

C-

ary 12, 2014 

ties designed to
d and include 
ocial 
on and Middlese
n, healthy 
tion of 

 

-16 

o 

ex 



Program
 
SECTIO
 
COMPON
 
PHNs p

 O
 M

c
 T
 P

p

COMPON
Public H

 O
t

 M
 D
 P
 P

 
COMPON
The qua
behavio
develop

 P
 P

B
 F

 
COMPON
Good nu
preventi

 T
 T
 C

m:  Early Year

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TEA

rovide breastfee
One-on-one sup
Multi-strategy aw
community at la
The use of socia
Phone counseli
postpartum pho
 

NENT(S) OF TEA
Health services 
One-on-one ski
telephone servic
Monthly develop
Developing and
Providing educa
Providing educa

NENT(S) OF TEA
ality of parenting
oural problems in
pment and stress
Provide telepho
Provide direct e
Baby Syndrome
Facilitate group 

NENT(S) OF TEA
utrition and phys
ing childhood ob
Tummy Time ( d
Trust Me Trust M
Canada’s Food 

 

  
 

rs Team 

M PROGRAM #1 

eding support a
pport at Well Ba
wareness raisin

arge 
al media and cr
ng is available t

one call to lower 

M PROGRAM #2 
provided to prom
ll-building sessi
ces; 
pmental screen
 implementing a

ation and consu
ational and pare

M PROGRAM #3 
g a child receive
n children.  Pos
s response patt

one counseling, 
education, couns
e, Injury Prevent

skill building se

M PROGRAM #4 
sical health are 
besity. In additio
designed to help
My Tummy (des
Guide and Can

 

 BREASTFEEDIN

nd teaching thro
aby/Child & Brea
ng and social ma

eating a breastf
through the Hea
risk families wit

  INFANT MENTA
mote healthy gr
ons with parent

ing clinics in col
awareness raisi
ltation to license

enting support s

 ADJUSTMENT T
es is considered
sitive parenting p
terns in a child’s
one-on-one cou
seling and supp
tion and Attachm
essions  

HEALTHY EATIN
fundamental to

on to breastfeed
p parents under
signed to help p
nada’s Physical 

2014 P

NG COUNSELING 

ough: 
astfeeding clinic
arketing initiativ

feeding video lib
alth Connection 
th a new infant.

AL HEALTH AND E
rowth and devel
ts at Well Baby/

llaboration with 
ng and social m
ed child care ce
essions to pare

TO PARENTHOOD
d the strongest p
promotes health
s brain.  Service
unseling, and re
port for Post Par
ment 

NG/HEALTHY WE
o the promotion 
ding other action
rstand the impo
parents understa
Activity Guidelin

Planning &

AND SUPPORT 

cs located throu
ves that target p

brary and maint
during busines
 

EARLY CHILDHO
opment and to 
Child & Breastfe

a developmenta
marketing campa
entres 
nts 

D AND PARENTING
potentially modif
hy, secure infan
es to support pa
eferrals to comm
rtum Mood Diso

EIGHTS AND PHYS
of healthy early
ns include: 
rtance on infant
and feeding cue
nes 

& Budget T

ghout the city a
hysicians and o

taining informati
s hours, the Infa

OOD DEVELOPME
identify potentia
eeding Clinics a

al paediatrician 
aigns focused o

G SUPPORT 
fiable risk factor
t attachment an
renting include:

munity resources
order, Healthy Fa

SICAL ACTIVITY
y childhood deve

ts being placed 
es) 

Template

and county 
other primary ca

ion on the webs
antline evenings

ENT 
al developmenta
and through the

 and residents;
on healthy growt

r that contribute
nd is vital to ens
: 
s and supports
amily Dynamics

elopment and a

in a variety of p

 

are providers, fa

site 
s and weekends

al challenges ea
 Health Connec

th and developm

es to developme
suring optimal n

s, Positive Pare

re critical comp

positions throug

 

C-

amilies, and the 

s and the 48 ho

arly in life includ
ction and Infantl

ment; 

ental and 
eurological 

nting, Shaken 

ponents in 

hout the day) 

 

-17 

our 

des: 
ine 



Program
 

 O
 

COMPON
Two key
of appro
provider

 I
C

 D
 P
 I
 O

d
 S

 
SECTIO
 
PERFOR

 

Compo
Breastfe
# Well B
# Mothe

# of fam

# low ris

m:  Early Year

Outreach campa

NENT(S) OF TEA
y partnerships a
oximately 35 org
r agencies. Tog
Identifying strate
Clinical Rounds
Developing reso
Promoting awar
Identifying deve
Organizing com
day), Oneida he
Social media an

ON E 

RMANCE/SERVICE

nent of Team #
eeding women ha
Baby Clinics 
rs receiving cou

ilies receiving ph

sk new mothers c

 

  
 

rs Team 

aigns 

M PROGRAM #5 
are leveraged in
ganizations and 
ether they:  
egies to reach p

s, attending the A
ources (e.g. refe
reness about the
elopmental scree

mmunity events/f
ealth fair 
nd social market

E LEVEL MEASUR
 

#1  BREASTFEED
ave improved kn

nselling 

hone counselling

called within 48 h

 

 COMMUNITY EA
 accomplishing
the Physician C

physicians and o
Annual Clinical 
erral pathways, 
e importance of
ening opportuni
fairs such as the

ting initiatives s

RES 

DING COUNSELIN
nowledge and sk

g for breastfeedin

hours of discharg

2014 P

ARLY YEARS PAR
the goals of thi

Champion Partn

other primary ca
Day in Family M
pamphlets, Red
f early developm
ties (Nipissing, 
e Community To

uch as radio ad

NG AND SUPPOR
kills  

ng 

ge 

Planning &

RTNERSHIP AND 
s team.  The Mi

nership consists

are providers su
Medicine 
d Flags) 
mental screening
Ages and Stage
oddler Fairs, He

ds, newspaper &

2012

T 
 

 16  
 3,041 moth
 
 Enhanced w

information 

 Health Con
597 
 

 Infantline-57
 2,408 

& Budget T

COLLABORATIO
iddlesex-Londo
s of physicians,

uch as hosting a

g 
es) 
ealthy Growth a

& magazine artic

2 

ers  

website 
 

 1
 3

 P
b

nection -

74   

 H
6

 In
 1

Template

ON 
n Community E
Nurse Practition

an annual Main 

nd Developmen

cles and campa

2013 
(anticipated)

6  
3,762 mothers  

Produced 5 
breastfeeding vid

Health Connectio
616 

nfantline-550  
,282 

 

Early Years Part
ners and specia

Pro C worksho

nt and Screenin

aigns

(
same/in

deos 

 
 Same

 
 
 

 Establ
counse
appoin

on -  Same
 
 
 Same
 Same
 
 

 

C-

tnership consist
alized service 

p, presenting at

g days, Kids Fir

2014 
(estimate/ 

ncrease/decrea

ish breastfeedin
elling by 
ntment at MLHU 

 

-18 

s 

t 

rst 

se) 

g 



Program
 
Compo
# of Dev
health n
# of Nipp

# of pare
Connect
# of child

Compo
Positive 
and Me, 
Women’
Space, W
 
 

Compo
Increase
provincia
 
Compo
Commun
 
 
 

m:  Early Year

nent of Team #
velopmental Clin
urses 
pissing Screens 

ents counselled 
tion 
dren screened a

nent of Team #
parenting educa
 Baby and Me, T
s Group, All Abo
Wee Ones. 

nent of Team #
e access and sup
al indicator) 

nent of Team #
nity Early Years 

 

  
 

rs Team 

#2  INFANT MENT
ics with develop

regarding growth

t Well Baby and 

#4  ADJUSTMENT
ation and awaren
Teen Group, Sou
out Breastfeeding

#5  HEALTHY EA
pport to the Nutr

#6  COMMUNITY 
Partnerships 

 

TAL HEALTH AND
mental paediatri

h and developme

Child Clinics 

T TO PARENTHO
ness. eg. clinic T
uthdale Women’s
g, Baby Fun Dro

ATING, HEALTHY 
riSTEP screening

EARLY YEARS P

2014 P

D EARLY CHILDH
ans and public 

ent at Health 

OD AND PARENT
Talks, Mommy 
s Group, Arabic 

op In, Heart 

WEIGHTS AND P
g tools (new 

PARTNERSHIP AN

Planning &

HOOD DEVELOPM
 6 developm

screening c
 139 children

OEYCs 
 

 1,335 famili

 1,980 childr

TING SUPPORT 
 11 group 

programs/1
participants
 

 N/A 
 
 
 16 Just Beg

Series/140 
participants

PHYSICAL ACTIV
 Staff trainin

completed

ND COLLABORAT
 Community

Years Phys
Champion 
Partnership
 

& Budget T

MENT 
mental 
clinics  

 6
s

n at  1
O

 
ies   1

ren  2

,073 
s 

ginning 

s 

 1
p
fa

 1
d

 1
S
p

ITY 
g  O

a
im

TION 
y Early 
sician 

p formed 

 C
Y
C
P
s
c
3

 2
c
y
c

Template

6 developmental 
screening clinics 
34 children at 

OEYC, 10 referra

,200 families 

2,228 children 

1 programs and
presentations 
acilitated  

7 Triple P 
discussion group

2 Just Beginning
Series/90 
participants 

Obtained licensin
and plans for 
mplementation 

Community Early
Years Physician 
Champion 
Partnership 
strengthened (14
committee memb
350 partners) 
2 workshops and
community early 
years newsletters
completed 

 

 
 Increas

als 
 Same

 

 Same

 Same

d 

ps 

g 

 Same 
 
 
 

 Increas
 
 

 Decrea

ng  Increas

y 

4 
bers; 

d 8 

s 

 Increas
 

 

C-

se 

 

se 

ase 

se  

se 

 

-19 



Program
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
 
Program
Public H
Program

 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 

m:  Early Year

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

m Manager      
Health Nurse     
m Assistants   

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

 

  
 

rs Team 

     

2012 Bud

$   1,330,4
92,0

$   1,422,5

2012 Bu

$     1,422

$    1,422

 

get  201

57 $   
98 

555 $   

udget  20

,555 $   
 
 
 
 

,555 $    
 

2014 P

2 Actual 

1,375,756 
87,870 

1,463,626 

012 Actual 

  1,463,626 
 
 
 
 

  1,463,626 
 

Planning &

2013

2013 Budget

$   1,396,667
92,206

$   1,488,873

2013 Budge

$    1,488,87

$   1,488,87

& Budget T

 
 

TOTAL FTES  
 

14.0  
 

1.0 
11.0 
2.0 

 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   1,462
92

$   1,555

et 2014 
Bud

73 $     1,55
 

 
 

 
73 $     1,55

 

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

2,925 
2,206 

5,131 

Draft 
dget ($ d

55,131 
 
 
 
 

55,131 
 

 

2014 ESTIMA

14.7

1.0
11.7

2.0

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  66,258 

 

$  66,258 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  66,258 

 
 
 
 

$  66,258 
 

 

C-

ATED FTES 

75 

0 
75 
0 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
4.8% 

% 

4.5% 

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

4.5%
 
 
 
 

4.5%
 

 

-20 

e 
e) 

se 
se) 
3 



Program
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 

 I
 B
 I
 I
 

 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU

 R
 G

 
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM

Enh
Assi
prov

 
Red
(0.25
 
Hea
telep
 
  

 

m:  Early Year

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIAT

Increase availab
Breastfeeding P
Increased collab
Increase strateg

ON J 

RES AND CHALL
Reducing staff a
Gap in children 

ON K 

MENDED ENHANC
hancement – In
istant work to pr
viders, and othe

duction – Elimin
5 PHN) 

lth Connection
phone support s

 

  
 

rs Team 

TIVES PLANNED F

bility of timely ea
Peer Support pro
boration and se
gies to improve 

LENGES 
at clinics to acco
12 months to sc

CEMENTS, REDU
fant Mental He
romote infant m
r support servic

nation of Just 

n Efficiencies $
service. (0.25 P

 

FOR 2014  

arly postpartum
ogram explored
rvices with licen
childhood obes

ommodate new 
chool entry – re

CTIONS AND EFF
ealth/Early Chil
ental health and

ces. 

Beginnings cla

$(15,329) – This
rogram Assistan

2014 P

m breastfeeding 
d and potentially
nsed childcare c
ity (implementa

initiatives 
equire strategies

FICIENCIES FOR 2
dhood Develo
d positive early 

asses – $(24,01

s proposal captu
nt) 

Planning &

support by brea
y implemented 
centres 
ation strategy  fo

s to access thes

2014 
pment - $105,6
childhood deve

15) – This propo

ures a number o

& Budget T

astfeeding appo

or NutriSTEP as

se families 

602 – This propo
elopment with hi

osal eliminates t

of efficiencies re

Template

ointment only @

s a provincial ind

osal would see 
igh needs famili

the parenting cl

ealized by redes

 

@ MLHU Tuesda

dicator) 

a 1.0 PHN and 
ies, caregivers,

lasses for first ti

sign of the healt

 

C-

ays and Thursda

a 0.25 Program
primary care 

ime mothers. 

th connection 

 

-21 

ays  

m 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              

SCR

                        

EENING, 

        2014 Pl

FAMILY HE

ASSESS

lanning & B

EALTH SER
 

SMENT A
 

Budget Tem

RVICES 

ND INTER

mplate

RVENTIO

 

ON 

 

C-

 

-22 



 
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 
SECTIO
 
SUMMAR
The Scr
Hearing
contract
of Tham
 
The tea
and ear
inform th
 
 
SECTIO
 
ONTARIO
This pro

 
 
 
 

 
A Servic

 
 
 

ON A 

E AREA Fam

AM TEAM Scre
Inter

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PRO
reening, Assess
 Program and t
ted out. tykeTAL

mes Valley, Huro

m is also respo
ly identification 
hem of local res

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEALT
ogram aligns wit
Foundational 
Child Health 
Reproductive H
Injury Preventio

ce Agreement is

              

mily Health Servi

eening, Assessm
rvention 

OGRAM 
sment and Interv
he Blind Low Vi
LK covers the T
on, Perth, Grey-

nsible for Let’s G
strategy to help

sources. This pr

TH STANDARD(S)
th and strengthe

Health 
on 

s signed betwee

 

                        

ces M

ment and D

vention Team a
ision Early Inter

Thames Valley r
-Bruce, and Lam

Grow, an online
p parents learn a
rogram is funde

), RELEVANT LEG
ens our effective

en MCYS and M

        2014 Pl

MANAGER  NAME

DIRECTOR NAME

dministers the p
rvention Program
egion (Middlese

mbton.  

e e-newsletter fo
about appropria
d through the co

GISLATION OR R
eness in the foll

MLHU to deliver 

lanning & B

provincial presc
m. MLHU is the 
ex-London, Elgi

or families of ch
ate development
ost-shared MLH

REGULATION 
owing Ontario P

the three early 

Budget Tem

Debbie Shuga

Diane Bewick

hool speech an
lead agency fo

n, Oxford count

ildren birth to 5 
tal milestones, h

HU budget. 

Public Health St

identification pr

mplate

ar 

 

nd language pro
or these program
ties). IHP and B

years of age. T
how to best stim

tandards : 

rograms. 

 

DATE 

 
Februa

 

gram (tykeTALK
ms. Direct servic
BLV programs co

The e-newslette
mulate their child

 

C-

ary 12, 2014 

K), The Infant 
ces are 
over the regions

r is a prevention
dren and to 

 

-23 

s 

n 



Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
COMPON
tykeTAL
strategie
approxim
the follo
program
service; 
for the c
 
COMPON
 
The Infa
compon
services
commun
provides
 
COMPON
 
The Blin
compon
per year
to attend
 
COMPON
 
The e-n
stimulat
who hav
website
 
 
 
 

m:  Screening 

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TEA
LK is a preventio
es. The program
mately 60% com

owing program c
m are to develop

 ensure early id
child, family and

NENT(S) OF TEA

ant Hearing Prog
nents/strategies:
s for children ide
nity and provide
s service to child

NENT(S) OF TEA

nd Low Vision E
nents/strategies:
r who have bee
d Grade 1. 

NENT(S) OF TEA

ewsletter is a p
e their children 
ve registered re
. 

 

  
 

Assessment a

M PROGRAM #1 
on and early inte
m services child
me from London
components/stra
p and maintain a
dentification and
d caregivers; pro

M PROGRAM #2 

gram-SW Regio
: universal newb
entified with per
es follow-up sup
dren and familie

M PROGRAM #3 

Early Interventio
: intervention an
n diagnosed as

M PROGRAM #4 

revention and e
and to inform th
ceive regular ag

 

and Interventio

 PRESCHOOL SP
ervention progra
ren and their fa

n, 7% from Midd
ategies: Referra
an integrated sy
d intervention for
omote a smooth

 INFANT HEARIN

on is a preventio
born hearing sc
rmanent hearing
pports and servic
es from birth to 

BLIND LOW VISI

n Program is an
nd education an
s being blind or h

 LET’S GROW E

early identificatio
hem of local res
ge-paced e-mai

2014 P

on (SAI) 

PEECH AND LANG
am designed to
milies from birth

dlesex county, 1
al/Intake, Interve
ystem of pre-sch
r all children wit

h transition to sc

NG PROGRAM 

on and early inte
reening, hearing

g loss. The IHP-
ces to approxim
eligibility to atte

ION EARLY INTER

n early intervent
nd family suppor
having low visio

-NEWSLETTER 

on strategy to he
sources. Parents
l blasts connect

Planning &

GUAGE (TYKETA
 give children th

h to school-entry
6% from Elgin c

ention and Com
hool speech and
th communicatio
chool; and provi

ervention hearin
g loss confirmat
-SW screens the

mately 120 childr
end Grade 1.  

RVENTION PROG

tion program. Th
rt and counselin
on. The program

elp parents lear
s have the oppo
ting them to the

& Budget T

ALK) 
he best start in l
y. Of all the chil
county and 16%
munity Awarene
d language serv
on disorders; pr
de family - cent

ng program. The
tion and audiolo
e hearing of 10,
ren per year wh

GRAM 

he program con
ng. The program
m provides servi

rn about approp
ortunity to regist
e appropriate Le

Template

life through opti
ldren that tykeT

% from Oxford c
ess, Support an
vices; maintain s
rovide a range o
tred care that re

e program cons
ogic assessmen
,000 newborns/

ho have perman

nsists of the follo
m provides servi

ce to children a

priate developme
ter on line when

et’s Grow e-new

 

mal verbal com
TALK provides s
county. The prog
nd Education. T
seamless and e
of evidence bas
espects and invo

sists of the follow
nt and follow up
/year either in th
nent hearing los

owing program 
ces to approxim

and families from

ental milestones
n their newborn 
wsletter located o

 

C-

mmunication 
ervice to 

gram consists o
he goals of the 

efficient access 
ed interventions
olves parents. 

wing program 
support and 

he hospital or th
s. The program

mately 120 child
m birth to eligibil

s, how to best 
arrives.. Parent
on the MLHU 

 

-24 

f 

to 
s 

e 

ren 
ity 

ts 



Program
 
SECTIO
PERFOR

 

Compo
Average
Average

Number
Compo
90%  of 
screenin
90% of b
Hearing 
40% of b
of amplif
correcte
Compo
Average
Wait tim
weeks 
Compo
Develop

Translat

# parent
# newsle
 
 

m:  Screening 

ON E 
RMANCE/SERVICE

nent of Team #
e age of referral
e wait from refer

r of children see
nent of Team #
all newborn bab

ng 
babies with a “re
Screening) will h

babies identified 
fication and will b
d age 
nent of Team #

e age of children 
e from referral to

nent of Team #
p ads on Faceboo

e e-Newsletters 

ts enrolled to rec
etters sent 

 

  
 

Assessment a

E LEVEL MEASUR
 

#1  tykeTALK 
 stays below 30
rral to first interv

en for assessme
#2  Infant Hear
bies residing in th

efer” result from U
have an audiolog
with PCHL as a

begin communic

#3 Blind Low V
at referral will re

o first interventio

#4  Let’s Grow 
ok for target pop

in to French 

ceive Lets Grow 

 

 

and Interventio

RES 

0 months 
vention reduced

ent and/or interv
ing Program –
he region receive

UNHS (Universa
gy assessment

a result of UNHS 
cation developme

Vision Early Int
emain at less tha
on will remain at 

e-Newsletter 
pulations 

2014 P

on (SAI) 

d to 16 weeks 

vention 
SW Region 

e a hearing 

al Newborn 

will begin use 
ent by 9 months 

ervention Prog
an 24 months 
less than 12 

Planning &

2012

31 mon
14 wee

 
3266 chi

96%

98%

50%

gram 
20 mon
5 wee

Planning s

Issues 1-4
translated int

2,515
10,31

& Budget T

2 

nths 
eks 

ldren 

% 
 

% 

% 

nths 
eks 

stages Ad
ide

 will be 
to French 

Rem
1

5 
15 

Template

2013 
(anticipated)

30 months 
17 weeks 

 
3300 

96% 

98% 

50% 

20 months 
6 weeks 

ds on Facebook 
entifies web met

mainder of issue
12) translated in

French 
4,752 
18,814 

 

same/in

2

 

and 
trics 

Determ
ba

es (5-
to 

Un

 

C-

2014 
(estimate/ 

ncrease/decreas

29 months 
18 weeks 

 
3500 

96% 

98% 

50% 

20 months 
7 weeks 

mine effectivenes
ased on web 

metrics 
ndetermined 

Increase 
Increase 

 

-25 

se) 

ss 



Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
MLHU S

S
P
I
 

Contrac
F
E
H
S
A
C
S
A
H

 
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
 
 

m:  Screening 

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

Staff: 
System Facilitat
Program Assista
Intake – Coordin

ct Staff : 
Family Support 
Early Childhood
Health Promote
Speech & Lang
Administrative S
Communication
System Coordin
Audiologists 
Hearing Screen

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

 

  
 

Assessment a

tor (Program Ma
ants 
nator 

Workers 
d Vision Consult
er 
uage Pathologis

Support 
 Disorder Assis

nator 

ers 

2012 Bud

$   2,424,1
307,8

$   2,732,0

 

and Interventio

anager) 

tants 

sts 

tant 

get  201

65 $   2
92 

57 $   2

2014 P

on (SAI) 

2 Actual 

2,396,645 
315,332 

2,711,977 

Planning &

2013

2013 Budget

$   2,404,292
163,122

$   2,567,414

& Budget T

 
 

TOTAL FTES  
 

28.32  
 

1.0 
2.4 
1.0 

 
 

0.58 
2.3 
0.4 

11.47 
3.1 
2.8 
0.5 

1.89 
1.28 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   2,396
158

$   2,554

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

6,554 
8,122 

4,676 

 

2014 ESTIMA

27.3

1.0
2.4
1.0

0.1
2.3
0.0

11.4
3.1
2.8
0.5

1.7
1.2

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$    (7,738) 

(5,000) 

$  (12,738) 

 

C-

ATED FTES 

37 

0 
4 
0 

8 
3 
0 
47 
1 
8 
5 
4 
8 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
(0.3)% 
(3.1)% 

(0.5)% 

 

-26 

e 
e) 



Program
 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 

1) P
2) F

s
3) E

c
 

 
 

m:  Screening 

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIAT

Pilot the Tiered 
Facilitate transit
standard 
Evaluate speec
children in this e

 

  
 

Assessment a

2012 Bu

$         42

2,633

35
$    2,711

TIVES PLANNED F

Intervention for
tion to new scre

h and language
environment 

 

 

and Interventio

udget  20

,960 $   
 

,941 
 

,076 
,977 $    

FOR 2014-2015

r Preschool Spe
eening equipmen

e pathology serv

2014 P

on (SAI) 

012 Actual 

       43,908 
 

2,653,073 
 

35,076 
  2,711,977 

 

eech and Langu
nt for the Infant 

vices provided to

Planning &

2013 Budge

$            37,697

2,494,641

35,076
$       2,567,414

age Services Fr
Hearing progra

o children at chi

& Budget T

et 2014 
Bud

7 $          4
 

1 2,47
 

6 3
4 $     2,55

ramework  
am and impleme

ildcare centres 

Template

Draft 
dget ($ d

42,697 
 

76,903 
 

35,076 
54,676 

ent new provinc

and propose a 

 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$        5,000 

 
(17,738) 

 
 

$    (12,738) 

cial Quality Assu

more effective s

 

C-

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

13.3% 
 

(0.7)% 
 
 

(0.5)% 

urance (QA) 

strategy to supp

 

-27 

se 
se) 
3 

port 



Program
 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 
MCYS h
left to cu
MCYS h
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 
 
Reduct
 p
 

E
E
E
 

Reduct
 d
 
Increas
 (
 T
 
 
 
 

m:  Screening 

ON J 

RES AND CHAL

has not provided
ut other than pe
have been place

ON K 

MENDED ENHANC

ions resulting 
pressures in the

Elimination of .4
Elimination of .1
Elimination of  .4

ion in Health P
database and w

se in Weekend 
(Report No. 17-
This avoids any

 

  
 

Assessment a

LLENGES 

d funding increa
ersonnel which r
ed on staff with 

CEMENTS, REDU

from no increa
e programs and 

4 FTE Health Pr
15 FTE Auditory
4 FTE Family S

Promotion in Le
website maintena

Hearing Scree
13C, minutes) t

y reductions requ

 

and Interventio

ases in over 5 ye
results in increa
respect to data 

CTIONS AND EFF

ase to MCYS gr
as a result of th

romoter (tykeTA
y Verbal Therap
Support Workers

et’s Grow Prog
ance no longer 

ning at LHSC -
to fund up to $1
uired in the FTE

2014 P

on (SAI) 

ears yet salary 
sed waitlists an
collection and q

FICIENCIES FOR 2

rants  - $17,738
he loss of One-t

ALK) 
ist (IHP) 

s (BLV) 

gram - $5,000 –
required. 

- $10,000 – This
0,000 for weeke

E resources for 

Planning &

and operation c
d fewer children
quality assuranc

2014 

8 - The following
time funding in t

– This proposal r

s proposal incor
end hearing scr
Hearing Screen

& Budget T

costs have conti
n and families b
ce. 

g reductions are
the amount of $

reduces resourc

rporates the Boa
eening tests on

ners for 2014.  

Template

inued to rise. As
being served. Al

e required to ad
$17,738 in the ty

ces in the Let’s 

ard of Health de
n newborns befo

 

s time goes on t
so additional de

ddress overall in
ykeTALK progra

Grow program 

ecision of Novem
ore discharging 

 

C-

there is no plac
emands from 

nflationary  
am: 

relating to  

mber 21, 2013 
them from LHS

 

-28 

e 

C.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

                                      

B

        2014 Pl

FAMILY HE

BEST BEG

lanning & B

EALTH SER
 

GINNINGS

 

Budget Tem

RVICES 

S TEAM 

mplate   

C-

 
 
 

-29 



 
SECTIO
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 
SECTIO
SUMMAR
The Bes

 T
s
a
d

 T
a

 T
f

 W
c

 S
b
a
s

 
 

ON A 

E AREA Fam

AM TEAM Best

ON B 
RY OF TEAM PRO
st Beginnings Te
The Healthy Ba
school entry wit
assessment in h
development. 
The Social Dete
and those who a
The Family Hea
family physician
Women’s and F
community refe
Smart Start for B
birth outcomes, 
and their suppo
skills, referrals t

              

mily Health Servi

t Beginnings Te

OGRAM 
eam provides h
bies Healthy Ch
h the intent of p
hospital.  A mult

erminants of He
are marginalize

alth Clinic provid
n services and a
Family Shelters (
rral and group s
Babies (SSFB) 
related lifestyle
rt persons with 
to community su

 

                        

ces M

am  D

ealth services t
hildren (HBHC) 
providing childre
ti-disciplinary te

alth work focuse
d, working colla

des primary hea
are operated out
(8) receive publ
support. 
is a Canadian P

e habits, abuse, 
access to healt

upports and res

        2014 Pl

MANAGER  NAME

DIRECTOR NAME

o vulnerable fam
program focuse

en with a healthy
am provide hom

es on families w
aboratively with 
alth care in 8 com
t of existing com
lic health servic

Prenatal Nutritio
poverty, recent
hy foods, nutriti
ources. Limited

lanning & B

milies with infan
es on high risk f
y start in life.  Fa
me visits and oth

who are new to t
community age
mmunity sites e

mmunity location
es on a regular

on Program (CP
t arrival in Cana
onal counseling
 post partum su

Budget Tem

Stacy Manzer
Nancy Greave
Kathy Dowset

Diane Bewick

nts and young ch
families through
amilies come in
her services aim

the country (refu
encies to addres
each week.  The
ns. 
basis inclusive 

PNP) designed fo
ada, and teen pr
g and education
upport programs

mplate

rolle,  
es,  
tt 

 

hildren.  Key pr
h pregnancy and
nto the program 
med at promotin

ugees and new
ss system wide 
ese clinics are fo

of direct care, c

for pregnant wo
regnancies.  SS
n, prenatal educ
s are available.

 

DATE 

Februa

ogram areas inc
d with children f
largely followin

ng healthy growt

wcomers); those 
issues. 
or families who 

counselling, con

men who are at
SFB provides pre
cation, opportun

 

C-

ary 12, 2014 

clude: 
from birth to 
g a risk 
th and 

living in poverty

cannot access 

nsultations, 

t risk for poor 
egnant women 
ities to learn life

 
 
 

-30 

y; 

e 



Program
 
SECTIO
ONTARIO
Ontario 
 Foun
 Rep
 Chro
 Sexu
 Injur
 Child

 
Child & 



MCYS H
 
 
 

m:  Best Begin

ON C 
O PUBLIC HEALT
Public Health S
ndational Stand
roductive and C
onic Disease & 
ual Health 
ry Prevention 
d Health 

Family Services
 Duty to Rep

 
Healthy Babies,

 

  
 

nnings Team 

TH STANDARD(S)
Standards:  
dard,  
Child Health Gui
Injury Preventio

s Act, 1990 
ort Legislation  

Healthy Childre

 

 

), RELEVANT LEG

idelines 
on 

en Protocols 

2014 P

GISLATION OR R

Planning &

REGULATION 

& Budget TTemplate   

C-

 

-31 



Program
 
SECTIO
COMPON
 The 

trans
 Hom

hom
 Serv
 Red

Preg
COMPON
 PHN

advo
the s

 Nurs
fami

COMPON
 Part

beha
relat
offer

 Post
linka
babi

 An A
throu
supp
Prac

 
 

m:  Best Begin

ON D 
NENT(S) OF TEA
HBHC program

sition to school.
me visiting servic
me visiting mode
vice coordinatio
ucing smoking 

gnant families a
NENT(S) OF TEA
Ns provide servi
ocacy, and linka
shelter.  Consul
se Practitioner c
ilies with childre
NENT(S) OF TEA
ticipants attend 
aviours which c
tionships, abuse
red at each ses
tpartum session
ages to program
ies up until 6 mo
Advisory Group 
ugh the SSFB b
ports in the com
ctitioner Led Clin

 

  
 

nnings Team 

M PROGRAM #1 
m provides servi

  The program i
ces provide ear

el focuses on se
n ensures famil
during pregnan
nd those with yo
M PROGRAM #2 
ce to 8 shelters

age of families t
ltation and educ
clinics drop-in o
en under the age
M PROGRAM #3 
weekly prenata
ontribute to hea
e, and smoking 
sion as are food
ns provide inform

ms and resource
onths.  
from communit

budget) assist w
mmunity. In-kind 
nics (NPLC), an

 

 

– HBHC – SCRE
ce to women an
includes screen
ly intervention fo
venteen family 
ies identified ca
cy and in the pr
oung children a
– OUTREACH TO

s for women, chi
o community se

cation with shelt
r by appointmen
e of six and for 
– PRENATAL SU
l/nutrition sessio

althy birth outco
cessation. Nutr

d vouchers, kitc
mation to promo
es in the commu

y agencies prov
with recruiting of

support is prov
nd the London H

2014 P

EENING/ASSESS
nd their families
ning, home visiti
or families who 
goals as identif

an access servic
resence of youn
are offered nicot
O VULNERABLE F
ildren and famil
ervices. The she
ter staff is ongoi
nt are provided 
high school stud

UPPORT & EDUCA
ons at six sites 
mes, and includ
rition education 
hen items and p

ote breastfeedin
unity which supp

vides advice and
f participants an
vided by the Mid
Health Sciences

Planning &

MENT/HOME VIS
s in the prenatal 
ng, service coo
are confirmed a
ied in the Famil
ces and support
ng children has a
ine replacemen

FAMILIES 
ies in London a
elter PHN is also
ing. 
in set locations 
dents who do no
ATION 
in London and S

des mental heal
addresses food
prenatal vitamin
ng, to address is
port families afte

d support for SS
d with linking th

ddlesex & Londo
s Centre (LHSC)

& Budget T

SITING/SERVICE C
period and to fa
rdination and re
as being with ris
y Friendly Serv
ts.  
a significant imp

nt therapy and c

nd Middlesex.  
o able to refer fa

where vulnerab
ot have a prima

Strathroy. Prena
th promotion an

d preparation an
ns are provided.
ssues of infant s
er the birth of th

SFB. Site coord
hem to other app
on Children’s Ai
). 

Template

COORDINATION
amilies with chi
eferral. 
sk of compromis
ice Plan.  

pact on the hea
counselling from

Services includ
amilies to comm

ble families live.
ary care physicia

atal education a
nd injury preven
nd safety, and d
.  
safety and injury
heir baby. High r

dinators (hired b
propriate progra
d Society (CAS

 

ldren from birth 

sed child develo

lth outcomes fo
m a specialized P

e assessment, 
munity programs

.  These clinics 
an. 

addresses inform
ntion, including h
eveloping life s

y prevention, an
risk mothers atte

by partnering ag
ams and neighb

S), Health Zone 

 

C-

until they 

opment. The 

or families. 
PHN. 

intervention, 
s once they leav

offer services fo

mation and 
healthy 
kills. Snacks are

nd to promote 
end with their 

encies and paid
bourhood 
Nurse 

 

-32 

ve 

or 

e 

d 



Program
 
SECTIO
PERFOR
 

Compo
Percenta
Percenta
postpart
Number 
Number 
Total nu
*in 2013
Compo
Number 

Number 
Number 
Compo
Session
Unique 
Unique 
Percent 
Percent 
babies 
Number

 
 

m:  Best Begin

ON E 
RMANCE/SERVICE

nent of Team #
age of postpartu
age of identified 
um 
of families enro
of new referrals
mber of Home V

3 a new more com
nent of Team 2
of client assess

of client visits at
of referrals mad
nent of Team #

ns offered per ye
number of preg
number of supp
 of women who 
 of women who 

r of partner agen

 

  
 

nnings Team 

E LEVEL MEASUR

#1 - HBHC – SC
m screens comp
families who are

lled in the progra
s 
Visits 
mprehensive scr
2 – OUTREACH T
ments complete

t Family Health C
de to other comm
#3 – PRENATAL 
ear (at six locati
nant participant

port persons atte
initiate breastfe
provide smoke

ncies offering S

 

 

RES 

CREENING/ASSES
pleted* 
e confirmed with 

am 

reening tool was
TO VULNERABLE
d at shelters 

Clinics 
munity agencies
SUPPORT & EDU
ons) 
ts 
ending sessions
eeding 
-free environme

SFB sessions 

2014 P

SSMENT/HOME V

risk – 

s introduced acro
E FAMILIES 

UCATION 

s 

ents for their 

Planning &

2012

VISITING/SERVICE
64%
23%

1,020
498

8,704
oss Ontario 

100% of thos
(287
1450
872

120
138
107
93%
90%

1 (CA

& Budget T

2 

E COORDINATION
% 
% 

0 
8 
4 

e referred 
7) 

100

0 
2 

0 
8 
7 
% 
% 

AS) 2

Template

2013 
(anticipated)

N 
67.5% 
61% 

1,111 
470 

9,413 

0% of those refe
(146) 
1573  
872  

158 
196 
159 
90% 
73% 

2 (CAS and Hea
Zone) 

 

(
same/in

Inc
De

erred 

Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc

alth 4 (CAS, 
two n

 

C-

2014 
(estimate/ 
crease/decrea

crease (85%) 
crease (25%) 

Increase 
Same 
Same 

Decrease 

1500 
850 

crease (252) 
crease (300) 
crease (225) 
crease (95%) 
crease (90%) 

 Health Zone, a
new partnering 
agencies) 

 

-33 

se) 

and 



Program
 
 
SECTIO
STAFFIN
 

 
MLHU S

P
P
F
S
P
N

 
Contrac

S

 
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
 

m:  Best Begin

ON F:  
NG COSTS: 

Staff: 
Program Manag
Public Health N
Family Home V
Social Worker 
Program Assista
Nurse Practition

ct Staff: 
Site Coordinato

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

 

  
 

nnings Team 

ger 
urse  
isitor 

ant  
ner 

rs (0.1 FTE x 7 

2012 Bud

$   2,931,8
250,9

$   3,182,8

 

 

sites)  

get  201

73 $   2
99 

72 $   3

2014 P

2 Actual 

2,971,931 
211,562 

3,183,493 

Planning &

2013 T

2013 Budget

$   3,044,771
259,203

$   3,303,974

& Budget T

 
 

TOTAL FTES  
 

36.7 
 

3.0 
16.5 
10.5 
1.0 
4.0 
1.0 

 
 

0.7 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   3,079
248

$   3,327

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

9,413 
8,577 

7,990 

 

 
 

2014 ESTIMAT
 

36.7
 

3.0
18.0
9.0
1.0
4.0
1.0

 
 

0.7
 

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$      34,642 

(10,626) 

$      24,016 

 

C-

TED FTES  

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
1.1% 

(4.1)% 

0.7% 

 

-34 

e 
e) 



Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  Public H
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 
 
SECTIO
KEY HIG
 Incre
 Con
 Pilot
 Expl
 Expl

the C
 
  
SECTIO
PRESSU
 Achi
 Mitig

clien
 The 
 The 
 Prel

spec

m:  Best Begin

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
Health Agency 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

ON I 
GHLIGHTS/INITIAT
ease access to 
tinue with HBHC
t a home visiting
lore options for 
lore opportunitie
Carling Thames

ON J 
RES AND CHALL
ieving an increa
gating the result
nts who are scre
MCYS has not 
growth of the S
iminary explora
cific site for SSF

 

  
 

nnings Team 

2012 Bu

$         555
86

2,383
152

4
$      3,182

TIVES PLANNED F
PIPE, Triple P, 
C screen (liaiso
g component of 
funding which w

es for partnering
s Neighbourhoo

LENGES 
ased percentage
ting workload th
eened  and conf
increased fund

SSFB program h
tion has begun 

FB sessions 

 

udget  20

,608 $     
,721 
,313 
,430 

 
,800 
,872 $     

FOR 2014  
NCAST parent 

on) outreach to c
SSFB for pregn

will provide for a
g with additiona
d Family Centre

e of completed H
hat will accompa
firmed to be at-r
ing for HBHC to

has resulted in a
with the aborigi

2014 P

012 Actual 

     606,943 
92,939 

2,326,275 
143,189 

 
14,147 

  3,183,493 

child interaction
community heal
nant women and
a full-time admin
l community site
e 

HBHC screens 
any increased ra
risk 
o match costs o
a need for enha
inal community 

Planning &

2013 Budge

$         547,839
88,455

2,513,320
152,430

1,930
$      3,303,974

n scales for HB
th care provide
d pregnant teen
nistrative assista
es including the

relies on partne
ates of complete

f program 
nced program a
which could res

& Budget T

et 2014 
Bud

9 $          57
5 8
0 2,51
0 15
 

0 
4 $      3,32

HC families 
rs 
ns who face sign
ant to support th

e London Interco

er collaboration 
ed HBHC scree

assistant suppor
sult in an expan

Template

Draft 
dget ($ d

71,855 
88,455 
13,320 
52,430 

 
1,930 

27,990 

nificant barriers
his expanding p
ommunity Healt

and compliance
ens, specifically,

rt beyond 0.5 F
nsion of the prog

 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$     24,016 

 
 
 
 
 

$      24,016 

 to attending gro
program 
th Care Centre, 

e 
, increased staff

TE 
gram to provide 

 

C-

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

4.4%
 
 
 
 
 

0.7%

oup sessions. 

Heartspace, an

f time to follow u

an aboriginal 

 

-35 

se 
se) 
3 

nd 

up 



Program
 
 
SECTIO
RECOMM
 
Reduct
  
  
 
Reduct
 
Increas
  
  
 
Increas
  

 
 
 

m:  Best Begin

ON K 
MENDED ENHANC

ion in Family H
by ($11,
Children

ion in liaison in

se in Nursing C
$4,087, 
collabora

se focus on Prio
particula

 

  
 

nnings Team 

CEMENTS, REDU

Home Visiting -
665) to meet bu

n and Youth Ser

n shelters - $ 2

Child Assessme
this proposal ai
ation. 

ority Populatio
ar, First Nations 

 

CTIONS AND EFF

- $124,165 – Th
udget constraint
rvices. 

24,015 – This pr

ent Satellite To
ms to increase 

ons - $48,031 –
and New to Ca

2014 P

FICIENCIES FOR 2

his proposal red
ts while continui

roposal reduces

ool (NCAST) - $
NCAST outreac

This proposal w
anada families.

Planning &

2014 

uces 1.5 FTEs 
ing to deliver HB

s a 0.25 PHN wo

$124,165 - With 
ch to all HBHC f

would focus an

& Budget T

of Family Home
BHC program c

orking in shelter

the addition of 
families and enh

additional 0.5 P

Template

e Visitors ($112
components as s

rs, community a

1.25 FTE PHN
hance outcome

PHN working wit

 

,500) and other
specified by the

and family pract

($120,078) and
es reliant on hos

th priority popul

 

C-

r program costs 
e Ministry of 

tice centres 

d support costs 
spital  

ations, in  

 

-36 

of 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

                                              2014 Pl

FAMILY HE

CHILD H

lanning & B

EALTH SER
 

HEALTH T

Budget Tem

RVICES 

TEAM 

mplate   

C-

 
 
 

-37 



 

SECTIO
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 
SECTIO
 
SUMMAR
 
The Ch
issues 
High-Q
of child
 

 
SECTIO
 
ONTARIO
Ontario 







 
Child & 



Thames
 
 
 

ON A 

E AREA Fam

AM TEAM Child

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PRO

hild Health Team
impacting child

Quality Instructio
d health initiative

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEALT
Public Health S
 Child Health
 Chronic Dise
 Infectious D
 Foundationa
 Reproductiv

Family Services
 Duty to Rep

 
s Valley School 

              

mily Health Servi

d Health Team 

OGRAM 

m works with ele
ren and youth.  

on and Programs
es is healthy eat

TH STANDARD(S)
Standards: 
h Program  
ease and Injury
iseases Progra

al Standard 
ve Health 

s Act, 1990 
ort Legislation  

Board Partners

 

                        

ces M

D

ementary schoo
This work is ap
s, Healthy Phys
ting, physical ac

), RELEVANT LEG

Prevention  
m  

hip Agreement

        2014 Pl

MANAGER  NAME

DIRECTOR NAME

ols (139 schools
pproached using
sical Environme
ctivity, mental w

GISLATION OR R

lanning & B

s/45,000 childre
g the foundation
nt, a Supportive

wellness, growth

REGULATION 

Budget Tem

Suzanne Vand

Diane Bewick

n), teachers, pa
ns for a healthy s
e Social Environ
h and developme

mplate

dervoort 

 

arents and comm
school model w

nment and Com
ent and parentin

 

DATE 

Februa

munities to addr
which includes 4
mmunity Partners

ng.   

 

C-

ary 12, 2014 

ress health 
4 components; 
ships. The focus

 
 

-38 

s 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
COMPON
 
Strategi
 Activ

and 
 Deve
 Expa
 Sup
 Teac
 

COMPON
 
Strategi
 Impl
 Assi
 Integ
 Sup
 Teac
 Wor
 

COMPON
 
Provide 
 Skill
 Impl
 Lead
 Prov
 Deve
 Prom
 Prov
 Prov
 

COMPON
 

As pare
with fam
 Prov
 Impl

m:  Child Health 

ON D 
NENT(S) OF TEA

es for addressin
vities to increas
ongoing work w
elopment and d
ansion of milk p
port, education 
ching and learn

NENT(S) OF TEA

es to address th
lementation of A
isting schools to
grating sunsens
port, educate an
ching and learn
rk with Healthy S

NENT(S) OF TEA

support, educa
 building docum
lement OPHEA’
ding the Board w
vide resources w
elop resources 
mote health liter
vide support, ed
vide education a

NENT(S) OF TEA

nting is the mos
milies and specif
vide Triple P sem
lementing IPare

              

Team 

M PROGRAM #1 

ng healthy eatin
e the consumpt

with Healthy Sch
dissemination of
programs, hot lu

and resources 
ing activities wit

M PROGRAM #2 

he promotion of
Active and Safe 
o commit to the 
se and injury pre
nd ensure resou
ing activities wit
School committe

M PROGRAM #3 

ation and resour
ments for teache
’s Smoke Free O
wide Promote H
which develop g
and esure their
racy to JK/SK ag
ducation and ap
and support reg

M PROGRAM #4 

st modifiable ris
fic initiative inclu
minars, discuss

ent social media

                        

  HEALTHY EATI

ng for school ag
tion of fruits and
hool Committee
f Family Meals V
nch programs a
provided to teac
th groups of stu

 PHYSICAL ACTI

f physical activit
Routes to scho
Outdoors Ultim

evention initiativ
urces are provid
th groups of stu
ees to impleme

 HEALTHY GROW

rces to teachers
ers promoting st
Ontario Pilot pro

Healthy Living C
general health li
r use in areas su
ged students th
propriate follow
arding infectiou

 PARENTING  

k factor in the p
ude: 
sion groups and 
a information cam

        2014 Pl

NG 

e children are d
d vegetables thr
es 
Videos and Brea
and breakfast pr
chers, parents a

udents – classro

IVITY/SUNSENSE

ty include: 
ool program 
ate Playground

ves into physica
ded to teachers 
udents  - classro
nt Daily Physica

WTH AND DEVEL

s and other scho
tudent mental he
ogram with 5 sc

Champion Award
teracy 
uch as healthy s
rough the use o
 up to staff, stud
s diseases and

prevention of ab

Tip Sheets to p
mpaign which c

lanning & B

done in partners
rough use of Nu

akfast Videos fo
rograms 
and students thr
oom, assembly, 

E/INJURY PREVEN

 and Bike Rode
al activity progra

and school staf
oom assemblies
al Activity (DPA)

LOPMENT  

ool personnel w
ealth launched

chools to preven
d process 

sexuality and he
of “Murray and B
dents and famili
 vaccine preven

use, chronic dis

parents of schoo
communicates p

Budget Tem

ship with elemen
utrition Tools for 

or parents 

rough multiple v
special health e

NTION 

eo initiatives  
ams 
ff through consu

s and special he
) regulations 

hich promote he

nt tobacco use 

ealthy relationsh
Bird” story book
ies with medica
ntable diseases

sease and ment

ol aged children
positive parentin

mplate

ntary school boa
r Schools, Let’s 

venues 
events 

ultation, staff me
ealth events 

ealthy growth a

hips 
k  
al conditions  i.e 
. 

tal illness, paren

n 
ng messages an

 

ard staff and inc
Get Cookin, Fre

eeting and joint 

nd developmen

diabetes, allerg

nting is a critica

nd directs paren

 

C-

clude: 
esh from the Fa

planning 

nt such as:  

gies, asthma 

l component to 

nts to resources 

 

-39 

arm 

work 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
PERFOR
 

Compo
# of Hea
Use of N
# of Tea

COMPON
Physica
# of sch
Present
 
Compo
Health l
 
 
 
# of Hea
 
COMPON
# of Trip

Positive
in toddle
 
*Decrea
 

m:  Child Health 

ON E 

RMANCE/SERVICE

nent of Team #
althy School Co
Nutrition Tools f
acher consultatio

NENT OF TEAM #
al literacy worksh

ools with Active
ations/formal di

nent of TEAM #
iteracy tool for J

althy Living Cha

NENT OF TEAM #
ple P – seminars

e Parenting iPare
er, child and you

ase as result of L

              

Team 

E LEVEL MEASUR

#1: HEALTHY EA
ommittees 
for Schools  
ons related to h

#2: PHYSICAL AC
hop for school s
e and Safe Rout
scussion with s

#3: GROWTH AND
JK/SK (Murray a

ampion Awards 

#4:  PARENTING 
s and discussio

ent Campaign –
uth parenting 

Labour relations
 

                        

RES 

ATING 

health topics 

CTIVITY/SUNSENS
staff 
tes to school 
tudent groups/c

D DEVELOPMENT
and Bird storybo

n groups  

– implement a c

s at school boar

        2014 Pl

(1
Phy

SE/INJURY PREV

classes 

T  
ook) 

 

campaign N/A

rd 

lanning & B

2012 

54 (39%)
N/A 
700 

83 Healthy Eati
ysical Activity, 2

Wellness)
 

VENTION 
N/A 
N/A 
599 

N/A 

73 

33 sessions wit
Participant

A 

Budget Tem

 

ing, 189 
29 Mental 
) 

 
th 372 
ts 

54

4

mplate

2013 
(anticipate

45* (32%
12 school

685* 

Plan 
7 

600 

Tool develope
produced

49* 

4 sessions, 627

4 – 1 toddler, 2 
adolescen

 

ed) 
sa

%) I
ls 

Im

ed and 
d rec

o

 
7 parents 

child, 1 
nt 

 

C-

2014 
(estimate/ 

ame/increase/decr

Increase 69 (50
Increase 

Increase (700

mplement & Eva
Increase 

Same 

100% of schoo
ceive resources
orientation for u

 
Increase 

Increase  

Increase 

 

-40 

ease) 

0%) 

0) 

luate 

ols 
s and 
se. 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
Program
Public H
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 
 
 

m:  Child Health 

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

m Manager   
Health Nurses 
m Assistant 

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

              

Team 

2012 Bud

$   1,399,1
69,3

$   1,468,4

2012 Bu

$     1,467

1
$    1,468

                        

get  201

24 $   
14 

438 $   

udget  20

,359 $     
 
 
 

,079 
,438 $   

        2014 Pl

2 Actual 

1,369,160 
67,676 

1,436,836 

012 Actual 

  1,428,757 
 
 
 

8,079 
  1,436,836 

lanning & B

201

2013 Budget

$   1,432,449
67,574

$   1,500,023

2013 Budge

$     1,499,684

339
$    1,500,023

Budget Tem

 
 

13 TOTAL FTES 
 

15.5 
1.0 

13.5 
1.0 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   1,432
60

$   1,492

et 2014 
Bud

4 $     1,49
 
 
 

9 
3 $     1,49

mplate

 

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

2,449 
0,075 

2,524 

Draft 
dget ($ d

92,185 
 
 
 

339 
92,524 

 

 
 

2014 ESTIMAT
 

15.5
1.0

13.5
1.0

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
 

$  (7,499) 

$  (7,499) 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$   (7,499) 

 
 
 
 

$   (7,499) 

 

C-

TED FTES 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
0.0% 

(11.1)% 

(0.5)% 

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

(0.5)% 
 
 
 
 

(0.5)% 

 

-41 

e 
e) 

se 
se) 
3 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 
 Impl
 Com
 Prov
 Impl
 Our 

 
 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 
 In M

have
som
does

 
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 
 
Increas
   
   
 
Reduct
   
   
  
 

m:  Child Health 

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIAT

lement Healthy 
mplete the evalu
vide leadership 
lement parentin
team will take t

ON J 

RES AND CHALL

Middlesex-Londo
e limited resourc

me valuable heal
s not follow the 

ON K 

MENDED ENHANC

se to Implemen
Young A
evaluate

ion for Thames
supports
resource

              

Team 

TIVES PLANNED F

Living Champio
ation for both H
in planning and
g education trac

the lead in addre

LENGES 

on there are 139
ces to meet hea
lth topic areas th
calendar year fo

CEMENTS, REDU

tation of Deve
Adult Team (0.5 
e the Developme

s Valley Early L
s parents to opti
es by 0.5 FTE o

                        

FOR 2014  

on Award on-line
Healthy Living C

 hosting the Na
cking system an
essing the Nutri

9 elementary sc
alth demands in
hat we are not a
or planning and

CTIONS AND EFF

lopmental Ass
PHN) or $48,03

ental Asset Fram

Learning Progr
imize their child
r $48,031 and p

        2014 Pl

e in both French
hampions and O

ational Conferen
nd online registr
iSTEP accounta

hools and we h
 particular to en

able to address.
d budgeting. 

FICIENCIES FOR 2

ets – $50,532 –
31 plus $2,501 
mework – an ev

ram & Anaphyl
’s readiness for

program costs o

lanning & B

h and English 
Outdoors the Ul

nce on Healthy S
ration 
ability indicator

ave 12.5 PHNs 
nsure best pract
.  Another intern

2014 

– This shared pr
in support costs

vidence-based a

laxis Training -
r school, and pro
of $10,000. 

Budget Tem

ltimate Playgrou
Schools in Lond

to provide serv
tice and proper 
nal challenge fo

roposal (betwee
s) is a collabora
approach to pos

- $58,031 – This
ovides training t

mplate

und 
don 

vice to students,
evaluation of al

or the Child Hea

en the Child Hea
ative effort to pla
sitive child and a

s proposal elim
to schools on a

 

, teachers and p
ll services provi
lth Team is the 

alth Team (0.5 
an, develop, imp
adolescent deve

inates this prog
naphylaxis. It re

 

C-

parents.  We 
ded. There are 
academic year 

PHN) and the 
plement and 
elopment. 

ram which  
educes PHN 

 

-42 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

                                              2014 Pl

FAMILY HE

YOUNG 

lanning & B

EALTH SER
 

ADULT T

Budget Tem

RVICES 

TEAM 

mplate   

C-

 

-43 



 
SECTIO
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 
SECTIO
 
SUMMAR
The You
seconda
compreh
groups, 
approac
 
 
SECTIO
 
ONTARIO
Ontario 







 
Child & 


 
Thames
 
 

ON A 

E AREA Fam

AM TEAM Youn

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PRO
ung Adult Team
ary high schools
hensive health p
neighbouring h

ch. 

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEALT
Public Health S
 Child & You
 Chronic Dise
 Infectious D
 Sexual healt
 Reproductiv

Family Services
 Duty to Rep

s Valley School 

              

mily Health Servi

ng Adult Team 

OGRAM 
m focuses on the
s and several co
promotion progr
ealth units, com

TH STANDARD(S)
Standards: 
th Health Progr
ease and Injury
iseases Progra
th Standard 

ve Health Standa

s Act, 1990 
ort Legislation  

Board Partners

 

                        

ces M

D

e healthy growth
ommunity settin
ramming approa

mmunity agencie

), RELEVANT LEG

ram Standard 
Prevention Sta

m Standard 

ard 

hip Agreement

        2014 Pl

MANAGER  NAME

DIRECTOR NAME

h and developm
gs to address th
ach. The team w
es and various t

GISLATION OR R

andard  

lanning & B

ent of adolesce
he complex hea
works in partner
teams from with

REGULATION 

Budget Tem

Christine Pree

Diane Bewick

ents and young a
alth and social is
rship with local 

hin MLHU to ens

mplate

ece 

 

adults. The team
ssues that impa
school boards, 
sure a compreh

 

DATE 

Februa

m works primar
act youth by utili
school administ

hensive health p

 

C-

ary 12, 2014 

rily in 24 
zing a 
trators, youth 

promotion 

 
 

-44 



Program
 
SECTIO
COMPON
The You
facilitatio
school a
issues a
Spring f
COMPON
The par
of positi
“Parenti
newslett
COMPON
Be Brigh
consum
with you
 
 

m:  Young Adu

ON D 
NENT(S) OF TEA
ung Adult Team
on of small grou
and home health
are identified an
focused on the d
NENT(S) OF TEA
rent engagemen
ve parenting. A
ng Your Teen” 
ters and parent 
NENT(S) OF TEA
hter with Breakf
ption of fruits an

uth. 

 

  
 

ult Team  

M PROGRAM #1:
m implements a s
ups, one-to-one 
h newsletters. W
d students take
development of 
M PROGRAM #2:

nt initiative provi
five year plan h

videos, parentin
council packag

M PROGRAM #3:
fast aims at incr
nd vegetables a

 

 

: YOUTH HEALTH
series linked ac
support, studen

When possible, 
e leadership add

the whole child
:  PARENT ENGA
ides parents wit
has been develo
ng support prog
ges. 
:   BE BRIGHTER
reasing knowled
among seconda

2014 P

H AND MENTAL W
ctivities in partne
nt youth engage
staff initiate and

dressing them.  
d.  
AGEMENT IN SCH
th education and
oped to engage
rams, establish

R WITH BREAKFA
dge about the im
ry school youth

Planning &

WELL BEING 
ership with scho
ement, health co
d work with Hea
The team is hos

OOL COMMUNITI
d skill building o
 parents in their
ment of parent 

ST 
mportance of  ea
.  A series of co

& Budget T

ool partners whic
ommunication c

althy School com
sting the Nation

IES 
opportunities to 
r school commu
involvement co

ating a healthy b
omprehensive a

Template

ch support posi
campaigns, phys
mmittees in each
nal Healthy Scho

increase their k
unities.  Strategi
mmittees and re

breakfast, regul
activities are sho

 

tive youth deve
sical literacy pla
h school where 
ools Conference

knowledge abou
ies include the l
eaching out to p

ar breakfast ea
owing a nutrition

 

C-

lopment such a
an and regular 
health related 

e in London this

ut the importanc
launching of 
parents through

ting and 
n improvement 

 

-45 

as 

s 

ce 



Program
 
SECTIO
PERFOR
 

COMPON
# of scho
# of stud

COMPON
# of edu
London 
# of activ

Parent e
- Parent 

- parenti

 

 

COMPON
Increase

Increase

Increase
schools 
* decrea

m:  Young Adu

ON E 
RMANCE/SERVICE

NENT OF TEAM #
ools with active h
dent receiving on

NENT OF TEAM #
cational/skill bui
 
vities offered in p

engagement in a
meetings/comm

ng your teen vid

NENT OF TEAM #
e in morning mea

e in percentage o

e in consumption

ase due to Scho

 

  
 

ult Team  

E LEVEL MEASUR

#1:  YOUTH HEAL
healthy school c
ne-on-one suppo

#2: PARENT ENG
lding activities of

partnerships with

ctivities aimed a
munity events 

deos 

#3:  BE BRIGHTE
al intake  

of students that a

n of fruits and veg

ool Board labor 

 

RES 

LTH AND MENTAL
ommittees 

ort from school n

GAGEMENT IN SC
ffered to parents

h parent councils

at positive teen p

R WITH BREAKFA

ate 3 of 4 food g

getables among

disruption 

2014 P

L WELL BEING 

urse 

HOOL COMMUNIT
s of teens in Midd

s  

arenting.  

AST 

roups at breakfa

 youth at second

Planning &

(617
co
a

TIES 
dlesex-

Dev

Dev

10 vid
12,

1,0
sub

ne
24
co

Dev

ast Dev

dary Dev

 

& Budget T

2012 

14 
4,891 

7 referrals to 
ommunity 
gencies) 

54 

velopment 
phase 

 
velopment 
phase 

 
deos viewed 
,000 times 

 
 

00 parents 
bscribed to 
ewsletter 

44 parents 
ounselled 

velopment 
phase 

velopment 
phase 

velopment 
phase 

Template

2013 
(anticipated

*12  
1,931 

(896 referrals
community age

95  

45  

 
 4,750 paren

 25 videos vi
25,000 time

 1,300 paren
receive 
newsletter 

 800 parents
counselled

Increase (3%
 

Increase (8%
 

Increase (3%
 

 

d) 
same/i

s to 
ncies) 

nts  Incre

ewed 
s 

nts 

 

%) 

%) 

%)  

 

C-

2014 
(estimate/ 

ncrease/decreas

Increase  
Same 

 

Increase 

Same  

 
ease participation

 

Increase 
 

Same 

Increase  

Increase 

Increase  

 

-46 

se) 

n 



Program
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
Program
Public H
Program
Health P
Dietitian
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 

m:  Young Adu

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

m Manager 
Health Nurses 
m Assistant 
Promoter  
n  

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

 

  
 

ult Team  

2012 Bud

$   1,009,2
73,1

$   1,082,3

2012 Bu

$     1,082

$     1,082

 

get  201

21 $   
10 

31 $   

udget  20

,331 $   
 
 
 
 

,331 $   

2014 P

2 Actual 

1,014,146 
75,159 

1,089,305 

012 Actual 

  1,086,730 
 
 
 

2,575 
  1,089,305 

Planning &

201

2013 Budget

$   1,055,767
70,310

$   1,126,077

2013 Budge

$    1,126,07

$    1,126,07

& Budget T

 
 

13 TOTAL FTES 
 

12.0 
1.0 
8.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   1,055
66

$   1,122

et 2014 
Bud

77 $     1,12
 

 
 

 
77 $    1,12

Template

 

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

5,767 
6,810 

2,577 

Draft 
dget ($ d

22,577 
 
 
 
 

22,577 

 

 
 

2014 ESTIMAT
 

12.0
1.0
8.0
1.0
1.0
1.0

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
 

(3,500) 

$  (3,500) 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  (3,500) 

 
 
 
 

$  (3,500) 

 

C-

TED FTES 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
0.0% 

(4.9)% 

(0.3)% 

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

(0.3)% 
 
 
 
 

(0.3)% 

 

-47 

e 
e) 

se 
se) 
3 



Program
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 
 Com
 Lead
 Res
 Stre

 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 
Pressur
their fam
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 
 
Dis-inve
   
   
 
 
Increas
   
   
 
 
 

m:  Young Adu

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIAT

mprehensive He
ding the plannin
earch and plann
ngthening pare

ON J 

RES AND CHALL

re for Public Hea
milies.  

ON K 

MENDED ENHANC

estment in You
with you
youth en

se to Implemen
Young A
evaluate

 

  
 

ult Team  

TIVES PLANNED F

althy Schools im
ng of the Nation
ning for Develop
nt and youth en

LENGES 

alth Nurses to d

CEMENTS, REDU

uth Create Hea
th in after schoo

ngagement activ

tation of Deve
Adult Team (0.5 
e the Developme

 

FOR 2014  

mplementation f
al/Provincial He
pment Assets w
ngagement 

do more in secon

CTIONS AND EFF

lthy Communit
ol programs.  In
vities in school a

lopmental Ass
PHN) or $48,03

ental Asset Fram

2014 P

focusing on thre
ealthy Schools C
with Community 

ndary school se

FICIENCIES FOR 2

ties Program -
nstead other you
and community 

ets – $50,531 –
31 plus $2,500 
mework – an ev

Planning &

ee themes: heal
Conference in A
Partners and S

ettings as the he

2014 

$54,031 – This
uth engagement
settings. This p

– This shared pr
in support costs

vidence-based a

& Budget T

thy eating, phys
April 2014 to be 

chool Boards 

ealth needs are 

s proposal will re
t strategies will 

proposal include

roposal (betwee
s) is a collabora
approach to pos

Template

sical activity, an
held in London.

becoming more

educe staff time
be used to assi

es a reduction o

en the Child Hea
ative effort to pla
sitive child and a

 

nd mental wellne
. 

e prevalent amo

e (0.5 PHN or $4
ist with the impl
f $6,000 in othe

alth Team (0.5 
an, develop, imp
adolescent deve

 

C-

ess 

ong our youth an

48,031) working
ementation of 

er program costs

PHN) and the 
plement and 
elopment. 

 

-48 

nd 

g 

s. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                      

OFFICE O

O

        2014 Pl

OF THE MED

OMOH & T

lanning & B

 
 

DICAL OFFI
 

TRAVEL 

Budget Tem

CER OF HE

CLINIC 

mplate

EALTH 

 

  

D

 

D-1 



 
Program
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 
 

SECTIO
 
SUMMA
Provides
managem
 
 
 

SECTIO
 
ONTARI
Health P

 O
 R

 
Ontario P

 F
 O

 
 

m:  Office of th

ON A 

E AREA Offic
Heal

AM TEAM Offic
Heal

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PR
s support to the B
ment and supervi

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEAL
Promotion and Pro
Overall Complian
Requirement to h

Public Health Sta
Foundational Sta
Organizational St

 

  
 

he Medical Offi

ce of the Medica
lth (OMOH) 

ce of the Medica
lth (OMOH) 

ROGRAM 
oard of Health an
ision of all Directo

LTH STANDARD
otection Act 
nce 
have a full time me

ndards: 
ndard 
tandard 

 

 

icer of Health

al Officer of 

al Officer of 

nd Board Commit
ors, OMOH Mana

(S), RELEVANT 

edical officer of h

2014 P

MANAGER

DIRECTOR

ttees as well as o
agers, OMOH adm

LEGISLATION O

health 

Planning &

R  NAME 

R NAME 

overall leadership 
ministrative staff, 

OR REGULATION

& Budget T

Dr. Chris Mac

Dr. Chris Mac

to the Health Un
and the travel cli

N 

Template

ckie 

ckie 

nit, including strat
inic. 

 

Janua

egy, planning, bu

 

D

DATE 

ary 18, 2014 

udgeting, financia

 

D-2 

al 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
COMPO

 D
 E

COMPO
 D

COMPO
 P
 P
 E

COMPO
 M

 
 
SECTIO
 
PERFOR

 

Compon
Strategic

Compon
Budget C
Year-End
Compon
Board of 
(timeline

m:  Office of th

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TE
Developing and r
Ensuring decision

NENT(S) OF TE
Developing and im

NENT(S) OF TE
Preparing materia
Providing Secreta
Ensuring impleme

NENT(S) OF TE
Monitors and ove

ON E 

RMANCE/SERVIC

nent of Team #1 
c Plan Progress 

nent of Team #2 
Change – Municip
d Variance 
nent of Team #3 
f Health Members
ss and quality of 

 

  
 

he Medical Offi

AM PROGRAM #
enewing strategy
ns are guided by 

AM PROGRAM #
mplementing ann

AM PROGRAM #
als for meetings o
ary/Treasurer fun
entation of decisio

AM PROGRAM #
ersees the Travel 

CE LEVEL MEAS
 

- Overall Leader

- Financial Mana
pal Funding 

- Board of Healt
s Satisfied or Very
materials and su

 

icer of Health

#1 - Overall Le
y in partnership w
relevant research

#2 - Financial 
nual budget in par

#3 - Board of H
of the Board of He
ctions 
ons of the Board 

#4 – Travel Im
Immunization Cli

SURES 

rship 

agement 

th Support 
y Satisfied with M
pport during mee

2014 P

eadership and
with the Board of H
h (“evidence-infor

Management
rtnership with the

Health Suppo
ealth and Board C

of Health 

munization C
inic service contra

Meeting Process 
etings) 

Planning &

d Strategy 
Health and the Se
rmed”) 

t 
e Director of Finan

ort 
Committees 

Clinic Service 
act  

201

NA

(2.0
0.6

NA

& Budget T

enior Leadership 

nce and the Senio

Contract 

12 

A 

0%) 
6% 

A 

Template

Team 

or Leadership Te

2013 
(anticipated

61% On Trac
31% In Progre

8% Delayed
 

0% 
1.6% (estimat

NA 

 

eam 

d) 
(same/

ck 
ess 
d 

Incre

te) 

 

D

2014 
(estimate) 

increase/decrea

ease % On Track

 
0% 

Decrease 

NA 

 

D-3 

ase) 

k 



 
Program
  
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
Medical 
Executiv
Program
 

SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re

m:  Office of th

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

 Officer of Healt
ve Assistant 

m Assistant (Tra

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

 

  
 

he Medical Offi
 

th & Chief Exec

avel Clinic) 

2012 Bud

$  534,4
57,5

$  592,0

2012 Bu

$   513
78

$   592

 

icer of Health

cutive Officer 

get  201

64 $ 
80 

44 $ 

udget  20

,880 $
,164 

 
 
 

,044 $

2014 P

2 Actual 

  504,323 
30,869 

  535,192 

012 Actual 

$     439,859 
95,333 

 
 
 

$    535,192 

Planning &

2013 T

2013 Budget

$   472,530
57,580

$   530,110

2013 Budge

$   530,110

$    530,110

& Budget T

 
 

TOTAL FTES 
 

3.5 
1.0 
1.5 
1.0 

 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   448
54

$   502

et 2014 
Bud

0 $   49
 
 
 
 

0 $   50

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

8,424 
4,080 

2,504 

Draft 
dget ($ d

97,504 
 
 
 

5,000 
02,504 

 

2014 ESTIMA

3.1
1.0
1.5
0.6

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  (24,106) 

(3,500) 

$  (27,606) 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  (32,606) 

 
 
 

5,000 
$  (27,606) 

 

D

ATED FTES 

1 
0 
5 
6 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
(5.1)% 

 (6.1)% 

(5.2)% 

r 
% increas

(% decreas
over 2013

(6.2)% 
 
 
 

N/A 
(5.2) %

 

D-4 

e 
e) 

e 
se) 
3 



 
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 
 Rene
 Reor

Heal
 Imple

 
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 
 Incre
 Furth

comp
 Incre

 
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 
OMOH id
Emergen
OMOH - 
 
Renegot
$5,000 o
 

m:  Office of th

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIA

ewal of MLHU St
rganization of OM
lth and Safety and
ement evidence-i

ON J 

URES AND CHAL

easing number of
her engagement 
ponents of progra
eased public expe

ON K 

MENDED ENHAN

dentified a total o
ncy Preparedness
Other Profession

iation of the Trav
of rental income. 

 

  
 

he Medical Offi

ATIVES PLANNE

rategy 
MOH and Human 
d Privacy to trans
informed public h

LLENGES 

f Accountability A
in Program Budg
ams and services
ectation of accou

NCEMENTS, RED

f $18,525 in effic
s, Occupational H
nal Services of $ 

vel Immunization C

 

icer of Health

ED FOR 2014  

Resources and C
sfer to HRCS 
health project at th

greement indicat
eting and Margin

s. 
ntability 

DUCTIONS AND 

iencies across th
Health and Safety
3,500. 

Clinic Service Co

2014 P

Corporate Strateg

he Health Unit in

ors 
nal Analysis requi

EFFICIENCIES F

e program areas 
y and Privacy, Co

ontract identified $

Planning &

gy (HRCS) to alig

collaboration with

ring in depth revi

FOR 2014 

within OMOH.  T
ommunications, a

$ 29,106 in efficie

& Budget T

gn with organizatio

h researchers at 

ew of the need, im

These are reflecte
nd Strategic Proj

encies, including r

Template

onal needs – Stra

McMaster Univer

mpact, capacity a

ed in the 2014 Pla
ects, and OMOH

reduced Program

 

ategic Projects an

rsity 

and partnerships/

anning and Budg
H.  This includes a

m Assistant time b

 

D

nd Occupational 

/collaboration 

et documents for
a reduction in 

by 0.4 FTE and 

 

D-5 

r 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

              

PRIVA

                        

OFFICE O

ACY AND

        2014 Pl

OF THE MED

D OCCUPA

lanning & B

DICAL OFFI

ATIONAL
 

Budget Tem

CER OF HE

L HEALTH

mplate

EALTH 

H & SAFE

 

ETY 

 

D

 

D-6 



 
 
OMOH
 
 

 
SECTIO
 
 
Service
 
 
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
Summa
 
The Hea
Informat
Safety A
each pro
across t
 
SECTIO
 
Ontario
 
 Mun
 Pers
 Occ
 Fire 
 Onta

-
-

 
 
 
 

: Privacy & Oc

ON A 

e Area Offic
Heal

m Team Priva
Heal

ON B 

ary of Team Pro

alth Unit’s privac
tion and Protect

Act. This is achie
ogram through t
the organization

ON C 

o Public Health 

nicipal Freedom 
sonal Health Inf
upational Health
Prevention and

ario Public Heal
- Item 6.2 re.:
- Item 6.14 re

              

ccupational He

ce of the Medica
lth 

acy and Occupa
lth and Safety 

ogram 

cy and occupat
tion of Privacy A
eved by suppor
the identification

n when specific 

Standard(s), R

of Information a
formation Protec
h and Safety Ac

d Protection Act 
lth Organization
 Risk Managem

e.: Human Reso

                        

ealth & Safety

al Officer of M

ational D

ional health and
Act (MFIPPA), t
rting the Board o
n, monitoring an
issues respectin

Relevant Legis

and Protection o
ction Act 
ct 
and the Fire Co

nal Standards (O
ment; 

urces Strategy

        2014 Pl

Manager  Name

Director Name

d safety program
he Personal He
of Health and th
nd/or resolution 
ng these areas 

lation or Regu

of Privacy Act 

ode 
OPHOS) 

lanning & B

 

ms facilitates co
ealth Information
he Senior Leade

of prioritized or
arise. 

lation 

Budget Tem

Vanessa Bell

Christopher M

ompliance with th
n Protection Act
ership Team in t
rganizational ris

mplate

Mackie 

he requirement
t (PHIPA) and th
the continued d

sks. The program

 

Date 

Janua

s of the Municip
he Occupationa
evelopment and
m also supports

 

D

ary 24, 2014 

pal Freedom of 
al Health and 
d maturation of 
s service areas 

 
 

D-7 



 
OMOH
 
SECTIO
 
Compo
 
Facilitat
incident
 
Compo
 
Facilitat
safety ri
 
 
SECTIO
 
Perform
 
 

Compo
# of priv
# of priv
# of acc
days (P
 
Compo
#  of los
# of haz
# of wor
% of sta
 
 

: Privacy & Oc

ON D 

nent(s) Of Tea

te activities to en
ts. 

nent(s) Of Tea

te activities to en
sks and inciden

ON E 

mance/Service 

nent of Team #
vacy breaches 
vacy complaints
cess requests re
HIPA, MFIPPA)

nent of Team #
st time injuries 
zards identified, 
rkplace employe
aff who received

 

  
 

ccupational He

m Program #1

nhance the Hea

m Program #2

nhance the Hea
nts.   

Level Measure

#1 : Monitoring

from the public
eceived and % c
)) 

#2: Monitoring 

and % resolved
ee incident repo
d the annual infl

 

 

ealth & Safety

: Monitoring Le

alth Unit’s comp

: Monitoring Le

alth Unit’s comp

es 

g legislative co

c 
completed within

legislative com

d 
orts 
uenza vaccinati

2014 P

egislative Com

liance with the a

egislative Com

liance with appl

mpliance and 

n the required 3

mpliance and o

ion 

Planning &

mpliance and O

applicable priva

mpliance and O

licable health an

20

organizational
3
1

30 28 (5

organizational 
6

31 (9
2
7

& Budget T

rganizational R

acy laws and red

rganizational R

nd safety legisla

012 

 risk - Privacy
3 
1 

53%) 

risk – Occupat
6 
94%) 
25 
79 

Template

Risk - Privacy  

duce the occurr

Risk – Occupat

ation and reduc

2013 
(anticipate

1 
1 

45 (66%)

tional Health a
5 

70 (90 %)
42 
88 

 

 

rence of privacy

tional Health a

e the occurrenc

d) 
same

 

nd Safety 

) 

 

D

y risks and 

and Safety 

ce of health and

2014 
(estimate/ 

e/increase/decr
se) 

Same 
Same 

Same 

Same 
Same 

Increase 
±85 

 

D-8 

 

rea



 
OMOH
 
SECTIO
 
Staffing
 
 
Program
Program
Public H
 
SECTIO
 
Expend
 

Object o

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
 
SECTIO
 
Funding
 

Object o

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS 
  User F
  Other O
Total Re

: Privacy & Oc

ON F 

g Costs: 

m Manager 
m Assistant 
Health Nurse  

ON G 

ditures: 

of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

g Sources: 

of Revenue 

Shared 
TC – 100% 
 – 100% 

Fees 
Offset Revenue
evenues 

 

  
 

ccupational He

e 2012 Bud

$  14
1

$16

2012 Bu

$  1

e 
$  1

 

ealth & Safety

get 201

47,884
9,808

67,692

udget 20

67,692

167,692

2014 P

2 Actual 

$  180,268
22,832

$  203,100

012 Actual 

$  203,100

$  203,100

Planning &

2013 

2013 Budget

$  154,54
19,80

$  174,35

2013 Budge

$  174,

$  174,

& Budget T

 
 

Total FTEs  
 

1.8 
1.0 
0.5 
0.3 

t 2014 D
Budg

42 $  1
08

50 $  1

et 2014 
Bud

350 $ 
 
 
 
 

350 $ 

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

154,542
19,808

174,350

Draft 
dget ($ d

 174,350

 174,350

 

2014 Estima

1.8
1.0
0.5
0.3

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  0

$  0

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  0

$  0

 

D

ated FTEs 

8 
0 
5 
3 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
0.0% 

 

0.0% 

 

r 
% increas

(% decreas
over 2013

0 0.0% 
 
 
 
 

0 0.0% 

 

D-9 

e 
e) 

e 
se) 
3 



 
OMOH
 
 
SECTIO
 
Key Hig
 
 Rele
 Wor
 
SECTIO
 
Pressur
 
 Ther

cons
 
SECTIO
 
Recomm
 
 Non
 
 

: Privacy & Oc

ON I 

ghlights/Initiati

ease of 2014 Pr
rkplace Violence

ON J 

res and Challe

re are an increa
sistently stretch

ON K 

mended Enhan

e 

 

  
 

ccupational He

ves Planned F

rivacy Audit Rep
e Prevention an

nges 

asing number of
es resources in

ncements, Red

 

ealth & Safety

or 2014  

port 
d Response Tra

f statutory requi
 this area. 

ductions and Ef

2014 P

aining 

rements to be m

fficiencies for 2

Planning &

met in both the p

2014 

& Budget T

privacy and occ

Template

cupational health

 

h and safety pro

 

D-

ograms that 

 

-10 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

                                      

OFFICE O

S

        2014 Pl

OF THE MED

STRATEG

lanning & B

 
DICAL OFFI

GIC PROJ

Budget Tem

CER OF HE

JECTS

mplate

EALTH 

 

 

 

D-

 
 

-11 



 
OMOH
 
SECTIO
 
 
Service
 
 
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
Summa

 S
A
a

 
 
SECTIO
 
Ontario

 H
 O
 P

 
SECTIO
 
Compo
Activitie
MLHU’s
in the fu
indicato
 
 
 
 

: Strategic Pro

ON A 

e Area Offic
Heal

m Team Strat

ON B 

ary of Team Pro
Strategic Projec
Accreditation, o
achievement of 

ON C 

o Public Health 
HPPA Complian
OPHS (Organiz
PHIPA (Records

ON D 

nent(s) Of Tea
s in this compo

s compliance wit
uture, applying Q
rs, and (e) mon

 

  
 

ojects 

ce of the Medica
lth 

tegic Projects 

ogram 
cts (SP) provide
perational plann
the strategic di

Standard(s), R
nce (manage Pu
zational Standar
s Management)

m Program #1 
nent are intende
th the OPHS/OS
QI approaches t
itoring complian

 

al Officer of M

D

s support acros
ning support & C
rections, and; (5

Relevant Legis
ublic Health Fun
rds) 
) 

- Accreditation,
ed to enhance s
S and other req
that will improve
nce with the Org

2014 P

Manager  Name

Director Name

ss MLHU progra
CQI; (2) Record
5) Strategic proj

lation or Regu
nding & Accoun

, operational pla
service delivery 
uirements (i.e., 

e processes and
ganizational Sta

Planning &

 

ams and service
ds management
jects. 

lation 
tability Agreeme

anning support &
and reduce org
Accreditation), 

d reduce waste,
andards. 

& Budget T

Ross Graham

Dr. Chris Mac

es. The portfolio
t; (3) Administra

ent compliance 

& CQI 
ganizational risk
(b) ensuring all
 (d) monitoring 

Template

m 

ckie 

o consists of five
ative policy revie

process) 

k by (a) facilitatin
l teams have a c
and reporting o

 

Date 

Janua

e areas of respo
ew; (4) Supporti

ng an objective 
completed oper

on the Accounta

 

D-

ary 24, 2014 

onsibility: (1) 
ng the 

review of 
rational plan, (c)
ability Agreemen

 

-12 

) 
nt 



 
OMOH
 
Compo
Records
risk by (
dispose
transpar
Compo
Adminis
are up-t
knowled
 
Compo
Activitie
supporti
 
Compo
Strategi
Youth N
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
Perform
 
 

Compo
% of Ac
Compo
% of rec
Compo
% of po
Compo
Annual 

: Strategic Pro

nent(s) Of Tea
s management a
(a) clarifying wh
 of personal info
rency or legal a
nent(s) Of Tea

strative policy re
o-date and acce

dge, whilst not in

nent(s) Of Tea
s in this compo
ing each Strateg

nent(s) Of Tea
c projects are d

Network’s Family

ON E 

mance/Service 

nent of Team #
countability Agr
nent of Team #
cords kept for pr
nent of Team #
licies that are u
nent of Team #
reporting to BO

 

  
 

ojects 

m Program #2 
activities are int
at records shou
ormation and bu
ction, (d) reduc
m Program #3 

eview activities s
essible (both in 
ncreasing the ad

m Program #4 
nent aim to adv
gic Achievemen

m Program #5 
determined by th
y Centres aroun

Level Measure

#1  Accreditatio
reement reportin
#2  Records ma
roper retention 
#3  Administrativ
p to date 
#4  Supporting a
H 

 

- Records man
tended to meet 
uld kept and disc
usiness records
ing the administ
- Administrative

support risk man
language and f
dministrative bu

- Achieving the
vance the expres
nt Group to repo

- Strategic proj
he MOH/CEO. C
nd London, supp

es 

n, Operational P
ng deadlines ac

anagement 
period (self-repo
ve policy review

achievement of 

2014 P

agement 
the OS requirem
carded (i.e., cla
, (c) store recor
trative burden a
e policy review 
nagement and o
format), as well 
urden. 

e strategic direct
ssed strategic d
ort their progres

ects 
Current special 
porting the Heal

Planning Suppo
chieves 

ort, sample) 
w 

the strategic dir

Planning &

ments (6.12), as
ssification & ret
rds in a manner 
associated with 

organizational e
as developed in

tions 
directions of the 
s/performance t

projects involve
lth Unit to achie

2012

ort & CQI 
100%

N/A

N/A
rections 

Y

& Budget T

s well as enhan
tention schedule
that protects pr
record keeping 

effectiveness. Th
n a manner that

Health Unit Bo
to the Senior Te

e coordinating th
eve various Sha

2 

% 

A 

A 

Template

ce service deliv
e); (b) supportin
rivacy, and supp
and (e) reducin

hese activities a
t engages staff 

ard and Staff. T
eam and the Bo

he Health Unit’s
red Service Rev

2013 
(anticipated)

100% 

N/A 

N/A 

Y 

 

very and reduce
ng staff to respo
ports MLHU be 
ng waste. 

are intended to 
and capitalizes 

This includes pa
oard. 

s involvement in
view recommen

same/in

 

D-

e organizational 
onsibly store and

poised for 

ensure policies 
on available 

articipating and 

 the Child & 
ndations. 

2014 
(estimate/ 

ncrease/decrea

100% 

100% 

100% 

Y 

 

-13 

d 

se) 



 
OMOH
 
SECTIO
 
Staffing
 
 
Program
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
Expend
 

Object o

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
 
SECTIO
 
Funding
 

Object o

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS 
  User F
  Other O
Total Re

: Strategic Pro

ON F 

g Costs: 

m Manager 
m Assistant 

ON G 

ditures: 

of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

g Sources: 

of Revenue 

Shared 
TC – 100% 
 – 100% 

Fees 
Offset Revenue
evenues 

 

  
 

ojects 

e 2012 Bud

$  10

$11

2012 Bu

$  1

e 
$  1

 

get 201

00,763
9,961

0,724

udget 20

10,724

110,724

2014 P

2 Actual 

$  120,883
11,352

$  132,235

012 Actual 

$  132,235

$  132,235

Planning &

2013 

2013 Budget

$  108,08
16,06

$  124,14

2013 Budge

$  124,

$  124,

& Budget T

 
 

Total FTEs  
 

1.0 
1.0 
0.0 

t 2014 D
Budg

88 $  1
61

49 $  1

et 2014 
Bud

149 $ 
 
 
 
 

149 $ 

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

118,488
12,036

130,524

Draft 
dget ($ d

 130,524

 130,524

 

2014 Estima

1.2
1.0
0.2

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  10,400

(4,025)

$    6,375

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$   6,375

$   6,375

 

D-

ated FTEs 

2 
0 
2 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
9.6% 

(25.1)% 

5.1% 

 

r 
% increas

(% decreas
over 2013

5 5.1% 
 
 
 
 

5 5.1% 

 

-14 

e 
e) 

e 
se) 
3 



 
OMOH
 
SECTIO
 
Key Hig
 
 Deve
 Plan
 Phas
 Laun
 Tran
 
 
SECTIO
 
Pressur
 
 MOH
 MLH
 Sign
 Stra
 Nee
 
SECTIO
 
Recomm
 
Reduct
 $1,0
 $3,0
 
Enhanc
 $10,4
 

: Strategic Pro

ON I 

ghlights/Initiati

elop records ma
n for new strateg
se out of CYN i
nch BOH risk as
nsition portfolio t

ON J 

res and Challe

HLTC increasin
HU has increase
nificant effort ne
tegic plan renew
d for enhanced 

ON K 

mended Enhan

ion 
000 - reduced st
025 – no accred

cement 
400 – Program A

 

  
 

ojects 

ves Planned F

anagement prog
gic planning pro
nvolvement 
ssessment tool/
to HR dept. 

nges 

g the number of
ed use of strateg
eded to update 
wal in 2014 
records manag

ncements, Red

trategic projects
itation fees for 2

Assistant suppo

 

or 2014  

gram (framewor
ocess 

/process 

f indicators in A
gic project mana
policies and str

gement in order 

ductions and Ef

s travel budget (
2014 (possible b

ort for Strategic 

2014 P

rk, roles, month

Accountability Ag
agement 
rategies the OP

to mitigate priva

fficiencies for 2

(possible becau
because OCCH

Projects 

Planning &

ly activities, rete

greement 

PHS Organizatio

acy-related risk

2014 

se MOHLTC su
HA has ceased o

& Budget T

ention schedule

onal Standards.

s 

upports much of
operations) 

Template

e) that better ma

f this portfolio's 

 

atches MLHU pr

travel) 

 

D-

riorities 

 

-15 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

                                      

OFFICE O

        2014 Pl

OF THE MED

COMMU

lanning & B

DICAL OFFI

UNICATIO

Budget Tem

CER OF HE

ONS 

mplate

EALTH 

 

 

 

D-

 
 

-16 



 
OMOH
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
Service
 
 
Program
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
Summa
Commu
role is to
is done 
promotio
content 
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
Ontario
OPHS O
standard
 
 

: Communicat

ON A 

e Area Offic
Heal

m Team Com

ON B 

ary of Team Pro
nications acts a
o promote and e
through a comm
onal campaign 
and social med

ON C 

o Public Health 
Organizational S
ds. 

 

  
 

ions 

ce of the Medica
lth 

mmunications 

ogram 
as an internal M
enhance the ML
munications sup
materials; medi

dia channels; an

Standard(s), R
Standard (Comm

 

 

al Officer of M

D

edia Relations, 
LHU brand and 
pport program th
a relations supp

nd strategic and 

Relevant Legis
munications stra

2014 P

Manager  Name

Director Name

Advertising, Ma
profile as a lead
hat includes: the
port and training
risk communica

lation or Regu
ategy), as well a

Planning &

 

arketing, Graph
der in public hea
e development a
g; the developm
ations initiatives

lation 
as the Commun

& Budget T

Dan Flaherty

Dr. Chris Mac

ic Design and C
alth in London a
and coordinatio

ment and mainte
s. 

ications and He

Template

ckie 

Communications
and Middlesex C
n of targeted ad
nance of the He

ealth Promotion 

 

Date  

Janua

s agency for the
County and acro
dvertising, mark
ealth Unit’s web

aspects of mos

 

D-

ary 24, 2014 

e Health Unit. Its
oss Ontario. Thi
keting and 
bsite, online 

st other 

 

-17 

s 
s 



 
OMOH
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
Compo
Through
Middles
announc
interview
staff. 
 
Compo
The Adv
(graphic
broadca
needed.
graphic 
 
Compo
Commu
date pub
www.din
provided
to, feedb
 
Compo
Since 20
process
with rep
new thre
Septem
 
Compo
Commu
and Ser

: Communicat

ON D 

nent(s) Of Tea
h the Media Rel
ex County is en
cements and ac
ws. Communica

nent(s) Of Tea
vertising and Pr
cs, posters, vide
ast and/or displa
. Campaign pro
design are coo

nent(s) Of Tea
nications maint
blic health inform
nesafemiddlese
d through socia
back posted via

nent(s) Of Tea
008, the MLHU 

s. The current ag
presentation from
ee-year agreem
ber. 

nent(s) Of Tea
nications drafts

rvice Areas will 

 

  
 

ions 

m Program #1-
ations Program

nhanced. Comm
chievements. Co
ations also assis

m Program #2 
romotion Progra
eos, audio files, 
ay media. Camp
posals are deve
rdinated throug

m Program #3 
ains, updates a
mation to local r

exlondon.ca and
l media channe

a the “Health” em

m Program #4 
has entered int

greements expi
m all Service Ar

ments. It is expec

m Program #5 
s the Health Unit
be asked to sub

 

- Media Relatio
, awareness of 

munications also
ommunications 
sts in developing

  Advertising a
am supports age

displays, marke
paign materials 
eloped in consu
h Communicatio

  Online Activi
nd coordinates 
residents throug

d www.iparent.n
ls (Twitter, Face
mail account an

  Graphic Serv
to three-year no
re in the fall of 2
eas, launch an 
cted that work o

  MLHU Annua
t’s Annual Repo
bmit their conten

2014 P

ons 
the Health Unit

o issues periodic
also responds t

g key messages

and Promotion
ency initiatives a
eting and/or pro
are developed i
ltation with the 
ons. 

ities 
all MLHU online

gh www.healthu
et. Other opport
ebook, YouTube
d user commen

vices Procurem
on-exclusive ser
2014, therefore 
RFP for interes

on the RFP will b

al Report 
ort. A request fo
nt to Communic

Planning &

’s programs and
c media release
to media reques
s, Q&As, media

n  
and services thr
motional produc
in consultation w
teams on target

e activities. The
unit.com as well 
tunities for inter
e).Online activit

nts submitted on

ment 
rvice agreement
it will be necess
ted firms, then r
begin in late- Fe

or program and S
cations by the be

& Budget T

d services and t
es, which aim to 
sts, then works 

a lines, backgrou

rough the develo
cts etc.) and the
with team memb
t audience, dem

e goal of these o
as other online

raction with MLH
ties also include
nline. 

ts with four grap
sary to convene
review submiss
ebruary/early M

Service Area hi
eginning of Apri

Template

their value to th
 highlight progra
with staff and p

unders and othe

opment of camp
e placement of a
bers and MLHU

mographics and 

online initiatives
e resources like 
HU clients and c
e online contests

phic design firm
e a Graphic Serv
sions, select fou
arch and that s

ghlights will be 
il. The goal is to

 

e residents of L
am initiatives, s

prepares spokes
er resources, as

paign materials 
advertisements 

U-contracted des
budget. Ad boo

s is to provide cr

community mem
s and sharing, a

s, selected afte
vices Procurem
r design firms a
elections will be

sent to the SLT
o deliver the rep

 

D-

London and 
services, 
speople for 
s necessary with

and products 
in print, 

sign firms as 
okings and 

redible, up-to-

mbers are 
and responding 

r a competitive 
ment Committee 
and enter into 
e made by late-

T in early 2014 
port at the Board

 

-18 

h 

d 



 
OMOH
 
of Healt
 
Compo
Commu
Commu
awards 
 
 
SECTIO
 
Perform
 
 

Compo
Media s
Compo
Campai
Impress
Compo
Enhance

 
SECTIO
 
Staffing
 
 
Program
Online C
Program
Marketin

: Communicat

h’s June meetin

nent(s) Of Tea
nications coord
nications Mana
to staff for their

ON E 

mance/Service 

nent of Team #
stories  
nent of Team #
gns 

sions 
nent of Team #
ements to onlin

ON F 

g Costs: 

m Manager 
Communications
m Assistant 
ng Coordinator 

 

  
 

ions 

ng. 

m Program #6 
inates the plann

ager and include
r years of servic

Level Measure

#1: Media Rela

#2: Advertising

#3: Online Acti
e presence 

s Coordinator 

 

  Staff Recogn
ning of the MLH
es representatio
e. Each year, B

es 

tions 

g and Promotio

vities 

2014 P

nition 
HU’s Annual Sta
on from all Servi
Board of Health m

on  

Planning &

ff Day event. Th
ce Areas. Staff 
members are in

2012

1,389

N/A
N/A

YouTube C
launched, w

redevelop
initiate

2013 

& Budget T

he Staff Day Pla
Day celebrates

nvited to attend 

2 

9 

A 
A 

Channel 
website 
pment 
ed. 

Re
l

Fa

 
 

Total FTEs  
 

3.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
0.0 

Template

anning Committ
s the MLHU’s ac
Staff Day. 

2013 
(anticipated)

1,300 (est.)

N/A 
N/A 

edeveloped web
launched, MLH
acebook launch

 

tee is chaired by
chievements an

(
same/in

bsite 
U 

hed. 

Cont
develo

rede
disclo

onlin

2014 Estima

3.3
1.0
1.0
0.8
0.5

 

D-

y the 
d presents 

2014 
(estimate/ 
crease/decrea

Same 

N/A 
N/A 

tinued website 
pment, launch o
eveloped/new 
sure website(s)

ne registration.

ated FTEs 

3 
0 
0 
8 
5 

 

-19 

se) 

of 

, 



 
OMOH
 
 
SECTIO
 
Expend
 

Object o

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
SECTIO
 
Funding
 

Object o

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS 
  User F
  Other O
Total Re
 
SECTIO
 
Key Hig
 
 Rev
 Inve
 Initia

: Communicat

ON G 

ditures: 

of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

g Sources: 

of Revenue 

Shared 
TC – 100% 
 – 100% 

Fees 
Offset Revenue
evenues 

ON I 

ghlights/Initiati

iew of Corporat
entory of adverti
al concepts for p

 

  
 

ions 

e 2012 Bud

$  24
7

$31

2012 Bu

$  3

e 
$  3

ves Planned F

te Graphic Stand
sing opportuniti
public health aw

 

get 201

47,340
70,670

8,010

udget 20

318,010

318,010

or 2014  

dards 
es 

wareness campa

2014 P

2 Actual 

$  250,616
69,459

$  320,075

012 Actual 

$  320,075

$  320,075

aign 

Planning &

2013 Budget

$  259,29
70,67

$  329,96

2013 Budge

$  329,

$  329,

& Budget T

t 2014 D
Budg

95 $  2
70

65 $  3

et 2014 
Bud

965 $ 
 
 
 
 

965 $ 

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

285,536
92,670

378,206

Draft 
dget ($ d

 378,206

 378,206

 

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  26,241

22,000

$  48,241

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  48,241

$  48,241

 

D-

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
10.1% 
31.1% 

14.6% 

 

r 
% increas

(% decreas
over 2013

1 14.6% 
 
 
 
 

1 14.6% 

 

-20 

e 
e) 

e 
se) 
3 



 
OMOH
 
 Awa
 Laun
 Con
SECTIO
 
Pressur
 
Advanci
Commu
 
Many pr
 
 
SECTIO
 
Recomm
 
Dis-Inve
Reduce
commun
 
Dis-Inve
Efficienc
 
Investm
This pro
awarene
 
One-tim
 
 

: Communicat

arding of Non-Ex
nch of redevelo
tinued enhance

ON J 

res And Challe

ing large, strate
nications. 

rojects tend to b

ON K 

mended Enhan

estment: Redu
d administrative
nications work. 

estment: Redu
cies in staff reco

ment: Marketing
oposal will estab
ess about the w

me Project: MLH

 

  
 

ions 

xclusive Service
ped www.dines

ement of www.h

enges 

egic, proactive c

be planned for S

ncements, Red

uced Communi
e support to Com

uced Communi
ognition practice

g and Promotio
blish a part-time

work and service

HU Promotion 

 

e Agreements to
afemiddlesexlo
ealthunit.com w

ommunications 

September and 

ductions and Ef

cations PA Su
mmunications b

cations Progra
es and speaker’

on Position: $3
 marketing role 

es of the Health 

and Awarenes

2014 P

o four graphic d
ndon.ca website

website 

projects in the 

the end of the y

fficiencies for 2

pport: $10,400
by 0.2 FTE in ord

am Costs: $8,0
’s fee ($6,000) a

36,641 
to provide supp
Unit. 

ss Campaign: $

Planning &

esign firms 
e 

face of unpredic

year. The volum

2014 

 
der to have this

00 
and the product

port to teams ac

$30,000 

& Budget T

ctable, issue-dr

me of work at this

 support focus o

tion of the annua

cross MLHU as 

Template

riven demands i

s time each yea

on only the high

al report to the 

well as launch 

 

s a major challe

ar can stretch re

hest priority orga

community ($2,

a promotional c

 

D-

enge for 

esources.  

anization-wide 

,000). 

campaign to rais

 

-21 

se 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

                                      

OFFICE O

E

        2014 Pl

OF THE MED

EMERGEN

lanning & B

DICAL OFFI

NCY PLA

Budget Tem

CER OF HE

ANNING

mplate

EALTH 

 

 

 

D-

 
 

-22 



 
OMOH
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
Service
 
 
Program
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
Summa
This pro
monitors
sustaina
proactiv
 
 
SECTIO
 
Ontario

 E
 O

 
 
 

: Emergency P

ON A 

e Area Offic
of He

m Team Eme

ON B 

ary of Team Pro
ogram ensures t
s, assesses and
able emergency
ve and preventiv

ON C 

o Public Health 
Emergency Man
Ontario Public H

 

  
 

Preparedness 

ce of the Medica
ealth 

ergency Prepare

ogram 
that the Health U
d responds to ur
y planning while 
ve strategies for

Standard(s), R
nagement & Civ
Health Standard

 

 

al Officer  M

edness D

Unit can effectiv
rgent public hea
strengthening t

r urgent threats 

Relevant Legis
vil Protection Ac
ds – Public Heal

2014 P

Manager  Name

Director Name

vely respond to 
alth matters.  Th
the capacity to m
and emergencie

lation or Regu
ct R.S.O. 1990, 
lth Emergency P

Planning &

 

public health em
he program also
monitor and res
es. 

lation 
c.E.9, s.1. 
Preparedness P

& Budget T

Patricia Simon

Dr. Christophe

mergencies and
o works with nei
spond to urgent 

Protocol, Requir

Template

ne 

er Mackie 

d emergencies w
ighbouring stake
public health th

rements #1 to #

 

Date 

Janua

with public healt
eholders to ach

hreats, and also 

8. 

 

D-

ary 7, 2014 

th impacts, and 
ieve strong 
develops 

 

-23 



 
OMOH
 
SECTIO
 
Compo

a) C
a

b) C
Compo

a) “
b) R
c) P
d) E

Compo
a) T
b) E
c) E
d) D
e) C

COMPO
a) R

s
a

b) F
t

c) A
p

d) O
F

COMPO
a) C

p
b) C
c) E

 
 
 

: Emergency P

ON D 

nent(s) Of Tea
Contribute to Ci
are specific and
Create brochure
nent(s) Of Tea
“Evergreen doc
Requires consta
Provide targeted
Ensures complia
nent(s) Of Tea
Test fan-out to a
Ensure radio sy
Ensure tests of 
Deliver periodic 
Consider, review
ONENT(S) OF T
Recruit, maintai
situations will be
assist in shelter 
Facilitate annua
training site. 
Attendance at a
planning practic
Oversees the F
Fit-testing”, CSA
ONENT(S) OF T
Consult with and
practices and pr
Consult with and
Ensure public h

 

  
 

Preparedness 

m Program #1 
ty, County and 

d recognized. 
es, fact sheets, 
m Program #2 
ument” requires
ant liaison and c
d training and s
ance with AODA
m Program #3 
all staff twice an

ystems are in wo
overhead spea
campaigns and

w, and impleme
TEAM PROGRA
n databases, tra
e mobilized to s
r situations. 
al Critical Incide

an average of six
ces. 
it-testing Progra
A Z94.4-11 “Car
TEAM PROGRA
d support visitin
roducts for hom
d support NGO’
ealth representa

 

 Assess Hazard
Municipal “Haza

website informa
 Emergency Re

s periodic updat
co-ordination wi
ummary version
A and WHIMIS
 Emergency No

nnually. 
orking order by 
ker systems are
d training on Em
ent, the electron
AM #4  Educatio
ain, educate citi
upport the work

nt Stress Manag

x fairs annually 

am for MLHU st
re and Use of R
AM #5  Determin
ng home nurse t

me use. 
’s and victim su
ation on city and

2014 P

ds and Risks 
ard, Infrastructu

ation and distrib
esponse Plan/B
ting to reflect org
th external part
ns of roles respo

otification 

bi-monthly testi
e conducted twic
mergency Colou
ic ERMS system
on and Training
izens to register
k efforts of MLH

gement (CISM) 

leverages oppo

aff and voluntee
Respirators” and
ning Health in E
teams, infection

pport teams to 
d municipal and

Planning &

ure and Risk Ass

bute to target gro
Business Continu
ganizational, leg
ners. 
onsibilities and 

ng of equipmen
ce annually. 
r Code nomenc
m (auto call). 

r for Community
U staff. CERV a

courses which 

ortunities for risk

ers ensuring com
d best practices 
Emergency Situa
n control network

reach high risk 
d stakeholder pl

& Budget T

sessments (HIR

oups providing i
uity Plan 
gislative and pro

expectations. 

nt. Ensure liaiso

clature. 

y Emergency Re
are valuable res

historically have

k populations to

mpliance with M
of Ministry of La
ations 
ks, and infant a

clients. 
anning groups e

Template

RA)”, ensuring t

information on p

ocedural chang

ns with local AR

esponse Volunt
sources in annu

ve positioned the

o gain literature 

MLHU Policy # 8
abour orders. 

nd early years s

ensuring evacu

 

hat Public Healt

possible regiona

es. 

RES chapters re

teers (CERV) w
ual flu clinics and

e MLHU as a le

and education o

8-051 “Respirato

staff on emerge

ation preparedn

 

D-

th components 

al hazards. 

emain strong. 

who in emergenc
d are trained to 

ad provincial 

on emergency 

or Protection – 

ency planning 

ness. 

 

-24 

cy 



 
OMOH
 
SECTIO
 
Perform
 
 

Compo
a) E

s
b) P

Compo
Bi –ann

Compo

Testing 

Compo
Commu
Compo
Through
internall
 
 
 
 
 

: Emergency P

ON E 

mance/Service 

nent of Team #
External Emerg
stakeholder gro
Printed material

nent of Team #
ual update of E

nent of Team #

of and Use of N

nent of Team #
nity Emergency
nent of Team #
h education and
y and in externa

 

  
 

Preparedness 

Level Measure

#1  Assess Haz
ency Planning m
ups 
l production and

#2  Emergency 
mergency Resp

#3  Emergency 

Notification syste

#4  Education a
y Response Vol
#5 Promoting Em
d provision of ‘ki
al agencies 

 

es 

ards and Risks
meetings with c

d distribution 

Response Plan
ponse Plan (ER

Notification 

ems 

nd Training 
unteers (CERV
mergency Plann
t’ items, staff re

2014 P

ommunity 

n/Business Cont
P) 

) available 
ning Outreach 
ached 

Planning &

2012

57

21 agenc
requested at 

brochur
tinuity 

Plan was upd
summary

produced fo
referen

100% of sy
tested on sc

102

              23 

& Budget T

2 

cies 
least 50 

res 
req

dated and 
y was 
or easy 
nce (Inc

S
ad

ystems 
chedule 

1
te

      

Template

2013 
 

57 

34 agencies 
quested at least 

brochures 

City’s recent 
commitment to 
implement IMS

cident Managem
System) requires
ditional training
health unit staff

00% of system
sted on schedu

138 

         44 

 

(
(same/in

75 
Like

 
ment 
s 
 of 
f 

ERP w
reflec

s 
ule 

               

 

D-

2014 
(estimate) 
crease/decrea

same 
 

ly to increase 

will be edited to 
ct IMS changes

Same 

increase 

increase 

 

-25 

se) 



 
OMOH
 
SECTIO
 
Staffing
 
 
Program
Program
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
Expend
 

Object o

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
SECTIO
 
Funding
 

Object o

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS 
  User F
  Other O
Total Re

: Emergency P

ON F 

g Costs: 

m Manager 
m Assistant 

ON G 

ditures: 

of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

g Sources: 

of Revenue 

Shared 
TC – 100% 
 – 100% 

Fees 
Offset Revenue
evenues 

 

  
 

Preparedness 

e 2012 Bud

$  13
2

$16

2012 Bu

$    
1

e 
$  1

 

get 201

33,352
28,955

62,307

udget 20

33,454
28,853

162,307

2014 P

2 Actual 

$  142,546
71,684

$  214,230

012 Actual 

$    74,577
128,853

10,800
$  214,230

Planning &

2013 

2013 Budget

$  135,72
27,73

$  163,46

2013 Budge

$    34,
128,

$  163,

& Budget T

 
 

Total FTEs  
 

1.5 
1.0 
0.5 

t 2014 D
Budg

27 $  1
38

65 $  1

et 2014 
Bud

612 $ 
853 

 
 
 

465 $ 

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

141,727
28,738

170,465

Draft 
dget ($ d

   26,612
128,853

15,000

 170,465

 

2014 Estima

1.7
1.0
0.7

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$    6,000

1,000

$    7,000

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  (8,000

15 000

$  7,000

 

D-

ated FTEs 

7 
0 
7 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
4.4% 
3.6% 

4.3% 

r 
% increas

(% decreas
over 2013

) (23.1)%
 
 

0 N/A 
 

0 4.3% 

 

-26 

e 
e) 

e 
se) 
3 



 
OMOH
 
SECTIO
 
Key Hig
 Deve
 Wor
 Crea
 Obta
 Rec
 Ann
 Enro
 Com
 

 
 
SECTIO
 
Recomm

 $
a

 $
 

SECTIO
 
Externa
 Due

Thus
 Exte

man
 Train
 Co-o

sess
 Part
 Inter
 

: Emergency P

ON I 

ghlights/Initiati
elopment of the
rk with EH-PHI’s
ate IMS function
ain generators f
ruit, train new C
ual exercise to t
oll in ERMS. 

mplete HEIA tem

ON K 

mended Enhan
$5,000 estimate
additional costs 
$3,000 reduced

ON J 

al Pressures an
 to nature of the
s projects const

ernal partners ha
ndatory. 
ning and educa
operations withi
sion!) 
t-time schedule 
rnal consumers 

 

  
 

Preparedness 

ves Planned F
e Fit-testing Bus
s and communit
n specific role aw
for refrigeration 
CERV team and
test Emergency

mplates for all ha

ncements, Red
ed net savings b

to extend the p
 costs related to

nd Challenges 
e portfolio, unex
tantly need to b
ave expectation

tion must be ma
n the Health Un

of assistant. So
of the products

 

or 2014  
siness Case. Re
ty partners to do
wareness traini
units for protect
 maintain curren

y Response Pla

azards. 

ductions and Ef
by offering fit-tes
program (this inc
o changes in CE

xpected emerge
e reassigned. 

ns of this progra

aintained as uni
nit (competing p

ometimes work l
s of this portfolio

2014 P

ecruit staff, train
o site visits and 
ng package. 
tion of the vacc
nt staffing. 
n, scheduled fo

fficiencies for 2
sting services to
cludes an additi
ERV recognition

encies or other a

am’s involvemen

ique issues aris
priorities) often in

load demands a
o sometimes do

Planning &

ing, community 
assessments o

ine inventory in 

r June 2014. 

2014 
o the general pu
onal 0.2 FTE in

n practices. 

activities becom

nt to their team a

se and certificati
nhibit the plann

a full time sched
n’t see the value

& Budget T

outreach etc. Im
of all designated

case of power 

ublic.  The $15,0
n administrative 

e an immediate

and thus a pers

ons are require
ing and course 

dule to accomm
e, importance o

Template

mplement appro
d evacuation cen

outage. 

000 in anticipate
support). 

e priority and req

sonal attendance

ed in order to tra
of action (i.e.: “

odate deadlines
of priority projec

 

oved plan. 
ntres in the regi

ed revenue will 

quire resources

e at events and

ain others on the
I can’t make tha

s 
ts. 

 

D-

on. 

offset $10,000 i

s and attention. 

 workshops is 

eir roles. 
at fit-test 

 

-27 

in 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                      

FIN

        2014 Pl

FINANCE A

NANCE A

lanning & B

 

AND OPERA
 

ND OPER

Budget Tem

ATIONS  

RATIONS

mplate

S 

  

E

 

E-1 



 
 
SECTIO
 
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 

SECTIO
 
SUMMA
 This

regu
serv
Hea
and 

 This
equi
man

 
SECTIO
 
ONTARI
The follo
Health O
 
 

 

ON A 

E AREA Fina

AM TEAM Fina

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PR
s service provide
ulations.  This is
vices, payroll ad
lth Unit’s financ
implementing p

s service also pr
ipment, leaseho

nagement, and t

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEAL
owing legislation
Organizational S

              

nce & Operatio

nce & Operatio

ROGRAM 
es the financial 
s accomplished 
ministration, pro

cial assets, cont
policies and proc
rovides oversigh
old improvemen
the managemen

LTH STANDARD
n/regulations ar
Standards, Inco

 

                        

ns 

ns 

management re
through providin
ocurement, cap
aining costs thro
cedures, and pr
ht for the health 
ts, insurance an

nt of all building 

(S), RELEVANT 
re relevant to the
me Tax Act, On

        2014 Pl

MANAGER

DIRECTOR

equired by the B
ng effective ma
ital assets, and 
ough reporting a
roviding relevan
unit “Operation

nd risk managem
leases and pro

LEGISLATION O
e work performe

ntario Pensions 

lanning & B
 
 

R  NAME 

R NAME 

Board of Health 
nagement and l
contract manag
and enforcemen

nt financial repor
ns” which include
ment, security, j

operty matters. 

OR REGULATION
ed in Finance &
Act, PSAB stan

Budget Tem

John Millson

John Millson

to ensure comp
leadership for fi
gement.  This se
nt of policy, sys
rting and suppo
e facility manag
janitorial, parkin

N 
& Operations: He
ndards, and othe

mplate

pliance with app
nancial plannin
ervice provides 

stems and proce
ort to the Board.
gement type ser
ng, on-site and o

ealth Protection
er relevant emp

 

December 1

plicable legislatio
g, financial repo
 value through p

ess improvemen

rvices such as f
off-site storage 

n & Promotion A
ployment legisla

 

E

DATE 

17, 2013 

on and 
orting, treasury 
protecting the 
nts, developing 

urniture and 
and inventory 

Act, Ontario Pub
ation. 

 

E-2 

lic 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
COMPO
 
Financia
 Deve
 Deve

(app
prov
The 
a pre
prep

 Man
thos

 Prep
mini

 Prep
 Prep
 
Treasur
 Acco

paym
 Acco
 Cas

inclu
 Gen

Insuranc
 Purc

finan
 Req
 
Payroll A
 Perf

infor
 Proc

m: Finance & Op

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TE

al Planning: 
elop long term f
elop, monitor an

prox.. 72%) of th
vides a grant, an

remaining prog
edetermined gra

paration and pla
nage two annua
se with a March 
pare quarterly fi
stry quarterly re

pare the various
pare monthly an

ry Services: 
ounts payable p
ment.  This also
ounts receivable
h management 
udes minor inve
neral accounting

ce & Risk Mana
chase appropria
ncial assets of t
uest insurance 

Administration: 
forms payments
rmation includin
cess mandatory

 

  
 

perations 

AM PROGRAM #

funding strategi
nd report annua
he services are 
nd the remaining
grams and servi
ant from the pro

anning. 
l audits includin
31st year end. 
nancial stateme

eporting the form
s annual settlem
nd quarterly repo

processing inclu
o includes verify
e processing inc
function include
stment transact

g includes bank 

agement: 
ate and adequat
he health unit. 
certificates requ

s to employees i
ng employee set
y and voluntary e

 

#1 - FINANCIAL 

es for senior ma
al operating bud
funded through
g amount is req
ces are funded 

ovince.  Many p

ng preparation o

ents for external
mats differ betw
ments for the min
orts for internal 

des verifying pa
ing and process
cludes reviewing
es processing c
tions to best util
reconciliations, 

te insurance and

uired for various

including salary
t-up and mainte
employee dedu

2014 P

SERVICES 

anagement and
gets.  Health U
 cost-sharing w
uested from the
100% by the pr
rograms have d

of consolidated f

l stakeholders in
een ministries a
nistry funded pr
stakeholders to

ayments, issuing
sing corporate c
g and posting in

cash payments a
ize cash balanc
quarterly HST 

d draft contractu

s funding agree

y and hourly staf
enance.  
ctions, calculati

Planning &

 Board of Healt
nit programs are
here by the Boa

e City of London
rovince, whereb
different budget 

financial statem

ncluding the Cit
and programs a
rograms and ser
o ensure financia

g cheques, revi
card purchases,
nvoices, monito
and point of sale
ces. 
remittances, ge

ual conditions fo

ments and cont

ff.  This includes

ng and process

& Budget T

h and provide o
e funded throug
ard of Health ap
n and Middlesex
by the Board of H

formats and tim

ents for both pr

y of London, an
dding to the com
rvices.   
al control and p

ewing invoices,
, employee mile
ring and collect
e transactions, a

eneral journal en

or third party co

tracts. 

s accurate data 

sing special pay

Template

ongoing monitor
gh a complex m
pproves the ope
x County on a p
Health approve

melines which pr

rograms with a D

nd various minis
mplexity of gene

proper resource 

, ensuring prope
eage statements
ions activities.
and preparing b

ntries, monthly a

ontracts to prote

a entry and verif

yments and retro

 

ring.  
ix of funding.  T

erating budget, t
proportionate of 
s an operating b
rovide challenge

December 31st y

stry departments
erating the repo

allocations. 

er authorizations
s and expense r

bank deposits.  

allocations. 

ect the human, p

ication of emplo

oactive adjustm

 

E

The majority 
the ministry 
population basi
budget based o
es in budget 

year end and 

s.  In terms of 
orts. 

s exist for 
reports. 

This also 

physical and 

oyee and retiree

ments. 

 

E-3 

is.  
n 

e 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
COMPO
 
 Set 

and 
 Stat

OME
 Prep

pena
 Adm
 
Procure
 Prov
 Proc

time
 Part
 Utiliz

serv
 Perf

 
Capital A
 Tang
 Ensu
 
Contrac
 Con

agre
 
 

m: Finance & Op

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TE

up and maintain
accruals. 
utory Payroll Re
ERS annual 119
pare and remit p
alties and intere

ministers employ

ement: 
vide accurate an
curement of goo
es ensuring valu
ticipates in the E
ze and participa

vices. 
forms general p

Asset Managem
gible Capital As
ures the proper 

cts & Agreement
tract managem

eements are rev

 

  
 

perations 

AM PROGRAM #

n the payroll sys

eporting – in ord
9 Report. 
payments due to
est.  Payments a
yee paid Canad

nd timely procur
ods and services
e for money. 

Elgin Middlesex 
ate in provincial 

urchasing and r

ment: 
ssets – ongoing 

inventory and t

ts: 
ent including va

viewed for progr

 

 

#1 - FINANCIAL 

stem in complia

der to comply w

o third parties re
are reconciled to
a Savings Bond

rement advice to
s in a fair, trans

Oxford Purchas
contracts such 

receiving activiti

processes for a
tracking of corpo

arious agreemen
ram effectivenes

2014 P

SERVICES… CO

nce with collect

ith payroll legisl

esulting from pa
o deductions or
d program, wher

o internal progra
sparent, and ope

sing Cooperativ
as courier, pho

ies for program 

accounting of ca
orate assets for

nts to ensure th
ss and Board of

Planning &

ONTINUED… 

tive agreements

lation.  This incl

ayroll deductions
r third party invo
re staff can purc

ams and service
en manner throu

ve (EMOP) to en
tocopier, and ce

areas. 

apital assets and
r insurance and 

e Health Unit is
f Health liability.

& Budget T

s and legislative

udes Records o

s and employer 
oices. 
chase bonds thr

es (customers).
ugh Request for

nhance or lever
ell phone provid

d ensuring com
valuation purpo

s meeting its obl
. 

Template

e requirements f

of Employment 

r contributions w

rough payroll de

. 
r Tenders, Quot

rage procureme
ders to lower co

mpliance with PS
oses. 

ligations and co

 

for all pay, bene

(ROEs), T4, T4

within strict dead

eductions. 

tes, and Propos

ent opportunities
sts to the progra

SAB 3150. 

ommitments.  Co

 

E

efits, deductions

4A, WSIB, EHT, 

dlines to avoid 

sals, and at all 

s to lower costs.
ams and 

ontracts and 

 

E-4 

s 

 



 
Program
 
COMPO
 
 Spa

furni
 Coo
 Man

Fron
 Secu
 Cust

for th
 Man
 Perf

 
 

SECTIO
 
PERFOR

 

Compon
Numb
Numb
Numb
Numb
Numb
Numb
Total 

 
Compon
 

Numb
Avera

 
 

m: Finance & Op

NENT(S) OF TE

ce planning – lia
iture and equipm
rdinates manag

nages the three 
nt Street in Strat
urity – manages
todial Services 
he 50 King Stre

nages and maint
forms general fa

ON E 

RMANCE/SERVIC

nent of Team #1 
ber of manual jou
ber of vendor invo
ber of MLHU invo
ber of direct depo
ber of manual che
ber of competitive
value of goods &

nent of Team #2 

ber of meeting roo
age time to set-up

 

  
 

perations 

AM PROGRAM #

aisons with prog
ment purchasing
gement respons
main property le
throy) 
s and maintains
– manages and

eet office. 
tains both on-si

acility maintenan

CE LEVEL MEAS
 

 Financial Servi
rnal entries per F
oices paid/proces
oices prepared/iss
osits processed (p
eques (payroll) is
e bid processes 
& services purcha

 Operations 

om set-up/take-d
p/take-down mee

 

 

#2  - OPERATIO

gram areas to e
g, and relocatio

se to monthly Jo
eases including

s the controlled a
d maintains the c

te and off-site s
nce including m

SURES 

ces 
FTE 
ssed per FTE 
sued per FTE 
payroll) 
sued 

ased through proc

owns 
ting room  (and o

2014 P

NS 

ensure facilities 
n of employees

oint Occupationa
g renegotiations 

access and pan
contract for jani

storage facilities
inor repairs, dis

curement process

or??) 

Planning &

meet program r
s. 
al Health & Safe
and dispute res

nic alarm system
torial services f

s, keeping track 
sposal of bio-ha

20

1,5
8,4
31

9,2
5
2

s $6.87 

21
1.9 h

 

& Budget T

requirements.  T

ety Committee (
solution (50 Kin

ms, and the afte
for two locations

of supplies, equ
zardous materia

012 

519 
477 
18 
217 
54 
22 
million 

12 
hours 

Template

This may involve

(JOHSC) inspec
g Street, 201 Q

er-hours security
s.  This includes

uipment and co
als, meeting roo

2013 
(anticipated

1,450 
8,500 
325 

9,200 
35 
30 

$7.5 million

210 
1.5 hours

 

e leasehold imp

ction reports. 
Queens Ave in L

y contract. 
s day-time and e

rporate records
om set-up and t

d) 
same/

n 

 

E

provements, 

ondon, and 51 

evening cleanin

s. 
ake-downs. 

2014 
(estimate/ 

increase/decrea

Decrease 
Increase 

Same 
Increase 

Same 
Same 

Increase 

Decrease 
Decrease 

 

E-5 

g 

ase) 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
Director 
Administ
Accounti
Accounti
Accounti
Procurem
Receivin
 
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
 
 

m: Finance & Op

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

trative Assistant t
ng & Budget Ana
ng & Payroll Ana
ng & Administrat

ment and Operati
g & Operations C

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

 

  
 

perations 

o the Director 
alyst 
alyst 
ive Assistants 
ons Manager 

Coordinator 

2012 Bud

$  692,3
11,5

$  703,8

 

 

get  201

70 $ 
00 

70 $ 

2014 P

2 Actual 

  675,917 
13,876 

  689,793 

Planning &

2013 T

2013 Budget

$   714,492
11,500

$   725,992

& Budget T

 
 

TOTAL FTES 
 

9.0 
1.0 
0.5 
1.0 
1.0 
3.5 
1.0 
1.0 

 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   782
11

$   794

Template

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

2,947 
,500 

4,447 

 

2014 ESTIMA

8.5
1.0
0.5
1.0
1.0
3.0
1.0
1.0

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  68,455 

 

$  68,455 

 

E

ATED FTES 

5 
0 
5 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
9.6% 

 

9.4% 

 

E-6 

e 
e) 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 
 Cont
 Imple
 Revi
 Cont
 Deve
 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 
 Lowe

demo
 Effic

prog
 The 

more
also 

 

m: Finance & Op

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIA

tinue implementa
ement Electronic 
ew, revise and up
tinue implementa
elop a facilities pl

ON J 

URES AND CHAL

er growth in provi
onstrate the value
iencies created re
ram will depend o
province continue
e performance me
implemented ann

 

  
 

perations 

2012 Bu

$   672
31

$   703

ATIVES PLANNE

ation of process e
Funds Transfer f

pdate financial po
ation of an integra
an for office lease

LLENGES 

incial grants will c
e of its programs 
egarding Electron
on their up-take. 
es to implement i
easures and repo
nual audits of pub

 

udget  20

,589 $
,281 

 
 
 

,870 $

ED FOR 2014  

fficiencies/improv
for major vendor 
olicies and re-com
ated planning and
es.   

continue to place 
and services. 

nic Funds Transfe

ts accountability 
orting each year. 
blic health units, p

2014 P

012 Actual 

$     649,215 
40,578 

 
 
 

$    689,793 

vements (on-line 
classes (groups s

mmunicate to MLH
d budgeting proce

pressure on prog

ers depend prima

framework in the
 The health unit w
performing 2 rand

Planning &

2013 Budge

$   693,635
32,357

$    725,992

submission for pr
such as local den
HU staff 

ess. 

grams and servic

arily on the accep

 public health sec
will need to contin
dom audits per ye

& Budget T

et 2014 
Bud

5 $   76
7 3
 
 
 

2 $   79

rogram expenses
ntists) 

es.  The Health U

ptance from the ve

ctor, refining its P
nue to implement
ear. 

Template

Draft 
dget ($ d

62,090 
32,357 

 
 
 

94,447 

s, and time & atte

Unit will need to c

endors we do bus

Public Health Acc
t and maintain the

 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  68,455 

0 
 
 
 

$  68,455 

endance) 

continue to provid

siness with.  The 

countability Agree
ese measures.  T

 

E

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

9.9%
 
 
 
 

9.4%

de efficiencies and

success of this 

ements, requiring 
The province has 

 

E-7 

se 
se) 
3 

d 



 
Program
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 
 This 

reim
One-Tim

 

 Facil
lease

 
 

m: Finance & Op

ON K 

MENDED ENHAN

budget includes 
bursement/claims

me Funding: 

lities Project Man
es. ($104,755) 

 

  
 

perations 

NCEMENTS, RED

a reduction of 0.5
s processes.  Thi

nager to develop a

 

DUCTIONS AND 

5 FTE Accounting
s work will contin

an operational pla

2014 P

EFFICIENCIES F

g & Administrative
nue in 2014. (-$36

an regarding the 

Planning &

FOR 2014 

e Assistant relatin
6,300) 

space and office 

& Budget T

ng to process imp

requirements to 

Template

provements creat

assist in the rene

 

ted by implement

egotiations of the 

 

E

ting on-line 

various office 

 

E-8 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              

HU

HU

                        

UMAN RESO

UMAN RE

      2014 Pla

OURCES & L

SOURCE

anning & B

 

LABOUR RE
 

ES & LAB

Budget Tem

ELATIONS S

OUR REL

mplate

SERVICES

LATIONS

 

S 

 

F

 

F-1 



 
 
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 
SECTIO
 
SUMMA
 The 
 Our 

orga
 The 
 Libra
 Rec

 
SECTIO
 
ONTARI
HUMAN
Act (AO
1990; B
 
LIBRAR
 
 
 

ON A 

E AREA Hum
Rela

AM TEAM Hum
Rela

ON B 

RY OF TEAM PR
HRLRS Team 
role is to provid

anization; builds
HR department

ary Services su
eption provides

ON C 

O PUBLIC HEAL
N RESOURCES
ODA), 2005; Pay

ill 32, 2013; 

RY: Foundationa

              

man Resources &
ations 

man Resources &
ations 

ROGRAM 
is comprised of 

de value-added 
s communication
t balances serv
pports MLHU e
 services at bot

LTH STANDARD
S: Ontario Emplo
y Equity Act, 199

al Standard – su

 

                        

& Labour 

& Labour 

the Human Res
HR and OD stra

n between empl
ice and regulato
mployees and is
th the 50 King S

(S), RELEVANT 
oyment Standar
90; OHSA, 1990

upports evidenc

      2014 Pla

MANAGER

DIRECTOR

sources, Library
ategies to our p
loyees and man
ory requirement
s also one of 4 

Street and Strath

LEGISLATION O
rds Act, 2000; L
0; Workplace Sa

ed based progr

anning & B

R  NAME 

R NAME 

y Services and 
program partners
nagement; and m
ts with responsi
hub libraries in 

hroy locations. 

OR REGULATION
abour Relations
afety and Insura

am delivery and

Budget Tem

 

Laura Di Cesa

Reception funct
s that: identify a
mitigates risk to
bility for suppor
the province. 

N 
s Act Ontario, 1
ance Act, 1990, 

d knowledge ex

mplate

are 

tions. 
and respond to t
o the organizatio
rting all phases 

995; Accessibil
 OMERS Act, 2

xchange 

 

DATE 

January 201

the changing ne
on. 
of the Employm

ity for Ontarians
2006; Pension B

 

F

14 

eeds of the 

ment Life Cycle. 

s with Disabilitie
Benefits Act, 

 

F-2 

es 



 
Program
 

SECTIO
 
COMPO
Human 
a) Wor
b) Wor
c) Wor

adm
d) Wor

 
COMPO
MLHU P
referenc
by Publi
Thomas
 
 
COMPO
Receptio
King Str
with the 
 
 

 
 

m:  Human Re

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TE
Resources resp

rkforce Planning
rkforce Engagem
rkforce Maintena

ministration; perf
rkforce Separati

NENT(S) OF TE
Public health lib
ce services, inte
ic Health Ontari
s Public Health, 

NENT(S) OF TE
on services pro
reet they also in
 Family Plannin

 

  

esources & Lab

AM PROGRAM #
ponsibilities incl
g (e.g. recruitme
ment (e.g. orien
ance (e.g. Colle
ormance manag
ion (e.g. manag

AM PROGRAM #
rarians offer tra

erlibrary loans, a
o, the MLHU Li
Haldimand Nor

AM PROGRAM #
vided at 50 King

nclude providing
ng/STI clinics. 

 

 

bour Relations

#1 – HUMAN RE
ude all compon

ent; succession 
tation; employe

ective Agreemen
gement; policy d
ement and adm

#2  - LIBRARY S
ining and help w
and bibliographi
brary provides l
rfolk Health Unit

#3 - RECEPTION
g and in Strathr

g coverage for th

2014 P

s 

ESOURCES 
ents related to a
planning; HR M

ee training and d
nt negotiations a
development/ad

ministration of re

SERVICES 
with accessing a
c database sea
library services 
t, Niagara Regio

N 
oy include, gree
he vaccine clerk

Planning &

an employee’s “
Metrics and repo
development init
and grievance m
dministration); a
esignations, retir

and using the pr
arching. As part 
to 5 additional h

on Public Health

eting and redire
k. In Strathroy, t

& Budget T

“life-cycle” while
orting to support
tiatives; rollout o
management; jo
and  
rements and ter

roducts and ser
of the Shared L
health units incl
h, and Windsor-

cting clients, sw
they provide adm

Template 

e at MLHU. The
t strategic and o
of new agency-w

ob design and e

rminations). 

rvices of the libr
Library Services
luding Chatham
-Essex County H

witchboard oper
ministrative sup

ese responsibilit
operational initia
wide initiatives)
valuation; bene

rary in addition t
s Partnership (S

m-Kent Health U
Health Unit. 

ation and mail s
pport for office s

F

ties include  
atives);  
);  
efits and pension

to providing 
SLSP) launched 

nit, Elgin-St. 

services.  At 50 
staff and assist 

F-3 

n 



 
Program
 

SECTIO
 
PERFOR
 

Compon
Employe
Internal C
Compon
Internal C
 

% of refe
complete
% of Com
week Se
% of Arti
day Serv
Compon
Internal C
% of call
 
 

m:  Human Re

ON E 

RMANCE/SERVIC

nent of Team #1 
ee Engagement S
Client Satisfaction
nent of Team # - 
Client Satisfaction

erence questions 
ed within a timelin
mprehensive Lite
ervice Delivery Ta
cle Retrieval/doc

vice Delivery Targ
nent of Team #3 
Client Satisfaction
s completed with

 

  

esources & Lab

CE LEVEL MEAS

– Human Resou
Score 
n Survey 
Library Service

n Survey 

acknowledged w
ne agreed upon w
rature Searches 

arget 
ument delivery co
get 
- Reception 
n Survey 
in an average of 

 

 

bour Relations

SURES 

urces 

s 

within 1 day and 
with the requestor
completed within

ompleted within t

3 minutes 

2014 P

s 

MLHU

r 
468 

reference
questions

 the 4 172 searc
requests

he 5 1,331 item

 

Planning &

2012 

N/A 
N/A 

N/A 
SLSP 

(started 
May 2012) 

%
w

e 
s  

102 
references 
questions 

ch 
s   

82  
search 

requests 
ms  658 items  

N/A 

 

& Budget T

% completed 
within target M

100% 8
refe
que

100% 123 
req

100% 2523

(Avg

Template 

2013 
(anticipated

N/A 
N/A 

N/A 

MLHU 

SLSP 
(started 

May 
2012) 

851 
erence 
estions 

239 
reference 
questions 

search 
quests  

98  
search 

requests 
23 items  1792 

items  

N/A 
g. 80 calls/day) 100%

d) 
(s

B
B

B
% 

completed 
within 
target 
100% 

100% 

100% 

B
% 

F

2014 
(estimate) 

same/ increase/ 
decrease) 

Benchmark Year 
Benchmark Year 

Benchmark Year 
 

 

 

 

Benchmark Year 
Same 

F-4 

 

 



 
Program
 

SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
Director  
HR Offic
HR Coor
Administ
Student 
Librarian
Program
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

Personne
Other Pr

Total Ex

 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

Cost-Sha
MOHLTC
MCYS – 
User Fee
Other Of
Total Re
 

m:  Human Re

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

er 
rdinator 
trative Assistant t
Education Progra

n 
 Assistant  

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

el Costs 
rogram Costs 

xpenditures 

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

ared 
C – 100% 
100% 

es 
ffset Revenue 
evenues 

 

  

esources & Lab

o the Director 
am Coordinator 

2012 Bud

$  776,9
96,0

$  873,0

2012 Bu

$   763
110

$   873

 

bour Relations

get  201

75 $ 
65 

40 $ 

udget  20

,040 $
,000 

 
 
 

,040 $

2014 P

s 

2 Actual 

  783,244 
115,581 

  898,825 

012 Actual 

$     772,696 
101,088 

 
 

25,041 
$    898,825 

Planning &

2013 T

2013 Budget

$   811,968
96,065

$   908,033

2013 Budge

$   798,033
110,000

$    908,033

& Budget T

 
 

OTAL FTES 

9.4 
1.0 
2.0 
1.0 
0.5 
0.5 
2.0 
2.4 

t 2014 D
Budg

$   860
79

$   939

et 2014 
Bud

3 $   82
0 11
 
 
 

3 $   93

Template 

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

0,568 
9,165 

9,733 

Draft 
dget ($ d

29,733 
10,000 

 
 
 

39,733 

 
 

2014 ESTIMAT

9.4
1.0
2.0
1.0
0.5
0.5
2.0
2.4

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
$  48,600 
(16,900) 

$  31,700  

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  31,700 

0 
 
 
 

$  31,700 

F

TED FTES 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
6.0% 

(17.6)%

3.5% 

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

4.0%
 
 
 
 

3.5%

F-5 

e 
e) 

se 
se) 
3 



 
Program
 

SECTIO
 
KEY HIG
 
 With

inclu
Res
in or

 The 
 Ong

coor
 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU
 
 Deve

the s
of th

 Ther
and 
prior

 The 
 As th

requ
 
SECTIO
 
RECOMM
 

Redu
Redu
Redu
One-
to po

 

m:  Human Re

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIA

hin the context o
uding Occupatio
ources and Cor
rder to collect an
collective agree

going and new in
rdinated educat

ON J 

URES AND CHAL

eloping the dire
staff.  As indicat

he Health Unit, a
re needs to be a
indicators to ma

rity. 
challenge for n

he demand for e
uests for service

ON K 

MENDED ENHAN

uction in Newspa
uction in Voluntee
uction in Staff De
-time expense rec
olicy training requ

 

  

esources & Lab

ATIVES PLANNE

of the PWC revie
onal Health and 
rporate Strategy
nd analyze the 
ements for both
nitiatives related
ion and skills tra

LLENGES 

ection for change
ted in the PWC 
and others will n
a major shift fro
ake this shift.  T

egotiations with
evidence—base

es may mean a 

NCEMENTS, RED

aper Advertising fo
er Program Budg

evelopment  
commendation to

uirements as well 

 

bour Relations

ED FOR 2014  

ew and recomm
Safety and Stra

y team. This will
metrics, with res
 CUPE and ON

d to attendance 
aining for both s

e, as well as ma
report, the team

need to have inp
m being reactiv

This will place ad

h the unions will
ed research incr
decline in the a

DUCTIONS AND 

or Vacancies 
et  

 
o hire 0.5 FTE tha
as support the ad

2014 P

s 

mendations, and
ategic Initiatives
 be achieved by
spect to the key

NA expire March
management, a

staff and manag

anaging the cha
m is willing and 
put into changes
ve to demands fo
dded pressure o

 come from the 
reases along wi
bility to meet th

EFFICIENCIES F

-$10,000 
-$  3,500 
-$  3,400 

at would support d
dministrative nee

Planning &

d under new lea
s, to gain efficien
y identifying key
y indicators and
h 31, 2014.  Neg
accommodation
gement.  

anges, will be a 
ready to make c
s that affect the
or service to be
on the HR staff 

provincial gove
ith the reputatio
e service delive

FOR 2014 

development of to
eds of the ONA an

& Budget T

dership, Human
ncies and demo
y performance in
 proposing new

gotiations can be
n and other legis

significant chall
changes.  Howe
m, as well as ha

eing proactive an
as quick and re

ernment’s direct
on of the libraria
ery timelines. 

ools and training 
nd CUPE negotia

Template 

n Resources sta
onstrate the valu
ndicators, chan

w strategies for w
e expected to c
slated requirem

lenge for the inc
ever, changes in
aving the chang
nd strategic. Th
eliable customer

tion regarding fis
ns for being a v

materials to addr
ation committees 

aff functions will
ue added impac
ging processes
workforce plann
commence befo
ents will be sup

coming Director
n this area impa
ges well commu
ere is a need to
r service has alw

scal restraint. 
valued resource

ress strategic HR
 +$48,600 

F

l be refocused, 
ct of the Human
 and procedure
ing. 
re the summer. 

pported through 

r as well as for 
act all other area
unicated.  
o develop metric
ways been a 

, the increased 

R initiatives related

F-6 

 
s 

as 

cs 

d 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                      

INFOR

INF

        2014 Pl

RMATION T

ORMATIO

lanning & B

 

ECHNOLOG
 

ON TECH

Budget Tem

GY SERVICE

HNOLOGY

mplate

ES 

Y

  

G

 

 

G-1 



 
 
SECTIO
 
 
Service
 
 
Program
 
 
SECTIO
 
Summa
Informat
 
 
SECTIO
 
Ontario
 Onta

 Mun
 Pers

 
SECTIO
 
Compo
 
 Busi
 Impr
 Data
 “Sta

etc. 
 

ON A 

e Area Infor

m Team Infor

ON B 

ary of Team Pro
tion Technology

ON C 

o Public Health 
ario Public Heal

o 3.2 Strat
o 6.1 Oper
o 6.2 Risk 
o 6.12 Info

nicipal Freedom 
sonal Health Inf

ON D 

nent(s) Of Tea

iness analysis, 
roving business
a analysis suppo
ndard” applicati

 

  
 

rmation Techno

rmation Techno

ogram 
y Services (I.T.)

Standard(s), R
lth Organization
tegic Plan 
rational Plannin
Management 

ormation Manag
of Information a

formation Protec

m Program #1 

project manage
s processes to im
ort for program 
ions including e

 

logy M

logy D

) is a centralized

Relevant Legis
nal Standards: 

ng improvement

gement 
and Protection o
ction Act (PHIPA

 Applications

ement, compute
mprove program
evaluation. 

e-mail, common 

2014 P

Manager  Name

Director Name

d service provid

lation or Regu

s 

of Privacy Act (M
A) 

r software selec
m delivery, impro

desktop applica

Planning &

 

ing the informat

lation 

MFIPPA) 

ction/implement
ove efficiency o

ations, web/intra

& Budget T

Mark Przyslup

John Millson

tion technology 

tation. 
or increase capa

anet services, d

Template

pski 

needs of progra

acity. 

database service

 

Date 

December 1

ams and staff a

es, telephone/vo

 

G

17, 2013 

at MLHU. 

oice application

 

G-2 

ns 



 
 
Program
 
Compo
 Pers
 Serv
 Wire
 Inter
 Inter
 Tele
Compo
 Stan
 Data
 E-m
 Pass
 Inve
 Firew
Compo
 He
 Clie
 Net
 Mo
 Per
 Co

 

 
 

m: Information T

nent(s) Of Tea
sonal computers
ver computers, d
ed and wireless 
r-site network/d
rnet and eHealt

ephony devices—
nent(s) Of Tea

ndards & policy 
a security techn
ail security/filter
sword policies a

estigation and au
walls and remot
nent(s) Of Tea
lpdesk—client s
ent Training. 
twork logon acc

onitoring and res
rsonal compute
mputer and soft

              

Technology 

m Program #2 
s (desktop and 
data storage, ba
network device
ata transmissio
h application ac
—telephone han
m Program #3 
development an
ologies and app
ring. 
and procedures
udit of various s
te access. 
m Program #4 
support. 

count managem
sponding to syst
r loading and co
tware upgrades

 

                        

 Infrastructure
laptop) and mob
ackup and back

es and physical 
n and communi

ccess. 
ndsets, voicema
 Security 

nd documentati
proaches includ

. 
systems to ensu

 Support & Op

ment. 
tem problems.
onfiguration ma

s and deploymen

        2014 Pl

e
bile devices. 

kup power. 
cabling. 
cation. 

ail servers, phon

on. 
ing encryption.

ure security of da

perations 

nagement. 
nt. 

lanning & B

ne switches, etc

ata. 

 Se
 E-
 Te
 Pr
 Da
 Tr

Budget Tem

c 

ecurity updates 
-mail support an
echnology asse
reventative main
ata backup/rest
rending, budget

mplate

installation. 
nd troubleshoot
et tracking/mana
ntenance. 
tore. 
ting & planning o

 

ing. 
agement. 

of future techno

 

G

ology needs. 

 

 

G-3 



 
SECTIO
 
Perform
 
 

Compo
“Core in
Commo
compute
Major T
 
Compo
“Core in
Program
40 comp
 
Compo
Reques
Resolut
Resolut
Resolut
 
 
 

ON E 

mance/Service 

nent of Team #
nfrastructure” so
on software appl
ers) 
raining Initiative

nent of Team #
nfrastructure” ha
m/Service Area a
puters) 

nent of Team #
ts addressed by
ion/closure with
ion/closure with
ion/closure with

 

  
 

Level Measure

#1  Application
oftware refresh p
lication major up

es 

#2  Infrastructu
ardware refresh 
application/data

#4  Support & O
y 1st Level Helpd

hin 1 day 
hin 2 days 
hin 7 days 

 

 

es 

ns 
projects 
pgrades (affecti

ure 
projects 

abase upgrades

Operations 
desk 

2014 P

ng all 410 

s (affecting 5 to 

Planning &

2012 

5 
1 

3 
 
 
5 
20 

 

61% 
67% 
80% 
93% 
 

& Budget T

201
(an

3 
1 

7 
 
 
4 
20

 

67%
70%
85%
95%
 

Template

13 
nticipated) 

% 
% 
% 
% 

 

2014 
(estimat
same/in

Increase
Increase

Increase
 
 
Same 
Increase

 

Increase
Increase
Increase
Same 
 

 

G

te/ 
crease/decrea

e 
e 

e 

e 

e 
e 
e 

 

G-4 

se) 



 
SECTIO
 
Staffing
 
 
Director
Adminis
Busines
Data An
Network
Server I
Desktop
Helpdes
Corpora
 
SECTIO
 
Expend
 

Object o

  Person
  Other P
Total Ex
 
 

ON F 

g Costs: 

r/Manager 
strative Assistan
ss Analyst 
nalyst 
k & Telecom An
nfrastructure An

p & Applications
sk Analyst 
ate IT Trainer 

ON G 

ditures: 

of Expenditure

nnel Costs 
Program Costs 
xpenditures 

 

  
 

nt 

alyst 
nalyst 

s Analyst 

e 2012 Budge

$     667,842
397,338 
$  1,065,180

 

 

et  2012 A

2 $   607,
330,339

0 $   937,

2014 P

2

8
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
0

Actual 2

,052 $
9 3
,391 $

Planning &

2013 Total FTE

8.5 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
0.5 

2013 Budget 

$     693,075 
397,338 
$  1,090,413 

& Budget T

Es 

2014 Draft
Budget 

$     678,05
417,338 
$  1,095,39

Template

 
 
2014 
 
8.5 
1.0 
0.5 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 

t $ inc
($ de
2013

56 $ (15
20,00

94 $     4

 

Estimated FTE

rease 
crease) over 

,019) 
00 
4,981 

 

G

Es 

% increase 
(% decrease)
over 2013 
(2.2)% 
5.0% 
0.5% 
 

 

G-5 

 



 
SECTIO
 
Funding
 

Object o

  Cost-S
  MOHL
  MCYS 
  User F
  Other O
Total Re
 
SECTIO
 
Key Hig
 
 Impl
 Impl
 Upg
 Impl
 Con
 Impl
 Con
 

ON H 

g Sources: 

of Revenue 

Shared 
TC – 100% 
 – 100% 

Fees 
Offset Revenue
evenues 

ON I 

ghlights/Initiati

lement new des
lement Virtual P
rade email serv
lement new on-
tinue business 
lement Window
tinue to lead the

 

  
 

2012 Budg

$   1,065,18
 
 
 

e  
$   1,065,18

ves Planned F

sktop managem
Private Network 
ver to Outlook 2
line training soft
process improv
s 7 on desktop 
e Electronic Clie

 

 

get  2012 A

80 $     9
 
 
 
11,98

80 $    93

or 2014  

ent initiative 
(VPN) 
010 
tware 
ement (payroll, 
computers 
ent Record (EC

2014 P

Actual 

25,411 

0 
37,391 

expense reimb

R) initiative 

Planning &

2013 Budget

$   1,090,413
 
 
 
 
$    1,090,413

ursements, and

& Budget T

2014 Dra
Budget 

$   1,095,
 
 
 
 
$   1,095,

d Incident report

Template

aft $ in
($ d
201

,394 $    
0 
 
 
 

,394 $  4

ting) 

 

ncrease 
decrease) over 
3 
4,981 

,981 

 

G

% increase 
(% decrease
over 2013 
0.5% 
 
 
 
 
0.5% 

 

G-6 

e) 



 
SECTIO
 
Pressur
 
 Mini

prog
 
 
 
SECTIO
 
Recomm
 
 Red
 Red
 Enh
 Enh
 

ON J 

res and Challe

stry of Health a
gram outcomes 

ON K 

mended Enhan

uced Administra
uction related to
anced corporate
anced business

 

  
 

nges 

nd Long-Term C
of this service. 

ncements, Red

ative Support - 
o implementing 
e training by inc
s improvement p

 

Care technology

ductions and Ef

0.5 FTE (-$35,0
Manager positi

crease 0.5 FTE 
processes throu

2014 P

y initiatives (suc

fficiencies for 2

019) 
on in place of D
in this area ($40

ugh increased d

Planning &

ch as Panorama

2014 

Director (-$20,00
0,000) 
evelopment bud

& Budget T

a) can be unpre

00) 

dget – developm

Template

edictable and/or 

ment/consulting 

 

poorly timed af

 ($20,000) 

 

G

ffecting the 

 

G-7 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

                                      

GENER

        2014 Pl

RAL EXP

lanning & B

 
 

ENSES &
 
 

Budget Tem

& REVENU

mplate

UES 

  

H

 
 
 

H-1 



 
SECTIO
 
SERVICE
 
 
PROGRA
 
 
SECTIO
SUMMAR
General
Health U
vacancie
 
 
SECTIO
ONTARIO
 Ont

 Sec

 
 

ON A 

E AREA Gen
Reve

AM TEAM Gen
Reve

ON B 
RY OF TEAM PRO
l Expenses & R
Unit property co
es, and general

ON C 
O PUBLIC HEALT
tario Public Hea

o 2.1 Rem
o 6.2 Risk 
o 6.9 Capi

ction 49, Health 

              

eral Expenses &
enues 

eral Expenses &
enues 

OGRAM 
evenues is a ce

osts, risk manag
l offset revenue

TH STANDARD(S)
alth Organization

muneration of bo
Management 

ital Funding Pla
Protection & Pr

 

                        

& M

& D

entralized budge
ement & audit, 
s. 

), RELEVANT LEG
nal Standards:

oard of health m

n 
romotion Act – a

        2014 Pl

MANAGER  NAME

DIRECTOR NAME

et managed by t
post-employme

GISLATION OR R

embers 

as it relates to th

lanning & B

the Senior Lead
ent benefits, em

REGULATION 

he payment of B

Budget Tem

 

Senior Leader

dership Team re
ployee assistan

Board of Health

mplate

rship Team 

elated to Board
nce program (EA

h members 

 

DATE 

Februa

of Health meeti
AP), managed p

 

H

ary 12, 2014 

ings, general 
position 

 
 

H-2 



Program
 
SECTIO
 
COMPON
 
This pro
Remune
 

COMPON

This com
 L
 U
 J
 S
 G
 M
 G

COMPON

This com
for rese
 

COMPON

This com
manage
 
General

 E
 P
 S
 S

COMPON

General
revenue

m:  General Ex

ON D 

NENT(S) OF TEA

ogram budget su
eration includes

NENT(S) OF TEA

mponent suppo
Leasing costs 
Utilities – Hydro
Janitorial contra
Security contrac
General office &
Management of
General office s

NENT(S) OF TEA

mponent suppo
rve fund contrib

NENT(S) OF TEA

mponent suppo
ed position vaca

l employee bene
Employee Assis
Post-employme
Supplemental E
Sick Leave paym

NENT(S) OF TEA

l revenues acco
e.  

 

  
 

xpenses & Rev

M PROGRAM #1 

upports the rem
s meeting stipen

M PROGRAM #2 

rts the resource

o, telephone & o
acts 
cts. 
& equipment ma
f the multi-purpo
supplies (copy p

M PROGRAM #3 

rts the insuranc
butions. 

M PROGRAM #4 

rts the allocatio
ancies. 

efits include: 
stance Program
nt benefits (retir

Employment Insu
ments which are

M PROGRAM #5 

ounted for in this

 

venues 

  - BOARD OF H

muneration of bo
nd, travel costs a

 - FACILITIES / O
e allocation for h

other communica

aintenance and 
ose photocopier
paper, batteries,

– INSURANCE, A

ce needs of the o

– POST-EMPLOY

n of resources f

 (EAP) 
rees) 
urance benefits
e funded by the

– GENERAL OFF

s section are no

2014 P

EALTH & COMMI

ard of health m
and payments fo

OCCUPANCY COS

health unit office

ations costs, an

repairs. 
rs. 
 forms etc.) & p

AUDIT, LEGAL FE

organization, an

YMENT & OTHER

for general emp

 
 Sick Leave Re

FSET REVENUES

on-program spec

Planning &

ITTEES 

embers as desc
or professional 

STS 
es which include

nd water, 

postage and cou

EES AND RESERV

nnual audit fees

R BENEFITS AND 

ployee benefits (

serve Fund 

 

cific in nature su

& Budget T

cribed in Section
development op

es the following 

urier costs. 

VE FUND CONTR

s, legal and othe

VACANCY MANA

(listed below) an

uch interest reve

Template

n 49 of the Hea
pportunities 

expenditure ca

RIBUTIONS 

er professional s

AGEMENT 

nd is the area w

enue, property 

 

alth Protection a

tegories: 

services and pro

where the health

searches and m

 

H

and Promotion A

ovides the budg

h unit budgets fo

miscellaneous 

 

H-3 

Act.  

get 

or 



Program
 
SECTIO
PERFOR
 

Compo

No spec

SECTIO
 
STAFFIN
 
 
 

 
 
SECTIO
 
EXPEND
 

Object 

  Person
  Other P

Total Ex

 
 
 

m:  General Ex

ON E 
RMANCE/SERVICE

nent of Team #

cific performanc

ON F 

NG COSTS: 

ON G 

DITURES: 

of Expenditure 

nel Costs 
Program Costs 

xpenditures 

 

  
 

xpenses & Rev

E LEVEL MEASUR

#1 - #5 

ce / service level

No FTEs 
 

2012 Bud

$      301,5
2,328,7

$   2,630,3

 

 

venues 

RES 

 measures are a

get  201

60 $     
56 2

16 $     2

2014 P

available for thes
of future b

2 Actual 

  269,925 
2,387,413 

2,657,338 

Planning &

2012

se components 
budget presentat

 
 

2013 TOTA

2013 Budget

$      (58,200)
2,185,746

$   2,127,546

& Budget T

2 

at this time.  Du
tions. 

AL FTES 

t 2014 D
Budg

$     (435,
2,527

$    2,092

Template

2013 
(anticipated)

uring 2014 these

Draft 
get 

$
($ de

339) $
7,696 

2,357 $

 

(
same/in

e will be develop

 
 

2014 ESTIMATE

 
 

$ increase 
ecrease) over 

2013 
   (377,139) 

341,950 

      (35,189) 

 

H

2014 
(estimate/ 
crease/decrea

ped and will be p

ED FTES 

% increase
(% decrease

over 2013 
(648.0)%

15.7% 

(1.7)% 

 

H-4 

se) 

part 

e 
e) 



Program
 
SECTIO
 
FUNDING
 

Objec

  Cost-Sh
  MOHLT
  MCYS –
  User Fe
  Other O
Total Re
 
SECTIO
 
KEY HIG

 Th
fa

 Re
 Im

 
 
SECTIO
 
PRESSU

 Im
Te

 Th
re

 Bo
th

 
 
 

m:  General Ex

ON H 

G SOURCES: 

ct of Revenue 

hared 
TC – 100% 
– 100% 
ees 
Offset Revenue 
evenues 

ON I 

GHLIGHTS/INITIAT
he initiatives and
cilities plan for t
eview the health

mplement contra

ON J 

RES AND CHALL
mplementation o
echnology Rese
his budget inclu
serve fund cont
oth the Ontario 
e future costs a

 

  
 

xpenses & Rev

2012 Bu

$     2,614

3
12

$      2,630

TIVES PLANNED F
d highlights affe
the office space
h unit’s insuranc
act changes for 

LENGES 
of the Board of H
erve Fund and S
des an increase
tributions object
Nurses’ Associa

are uncertain. 

 

 

venues 

udget  20

,286 $   
 
 

,750 
,280 
,316 $   

FOR 2014  
ecting this budge
e and improve o
ce requirements
both security an

Health Reserve 
Salary Stabilizat
e of $535,163 in
tives position va
ation (ONA) and

2014 P

012 Actual 

  2,630,889 
 
 

3,051 
23,398 

  2,657,338 

et are related to
ffice space utiliz

s and to the bes
nd janitorial serv

/ Reserve Fund
tion Reserve Fu
n managed posi
acancies will nee
d Canadian Unio

Planning &

2013 Budge

$       2,096,516

3,750
27,280

$      2,127,546

o those describe
zation.   
st value for mon
vices 

d Policy with the
und). 
tion vacancies f
ed to be closely
on of Public Em

& Budget T

et 2014 
Bud

6 $     2,06
 
 

0 
0 2
6 $     2,09

ed under the “O

ey. 

e addition of thre

for a total of $81
y examined. 

mployees (CUPE

Template

Draft 
dget ($ d

61,327 
 
 

3,750 
27,280 
92,357 

perations” portf

ee new reserve

15,163.  For the

E) contracts exp

 

$ increase 
decrease) over

2013 
$  (35,189) 

 
 
 
 

$  (35,189) 

folio.  That is to 

funds. (Facilitie

e health unit to a

pire March 31st,

 

H

r 
% increas

(% decrea
over 201

(1.7)% 
 
 
 
 

(1.7)% 

develop a 

es Reserve Fund

achieve its 

, 2014, therefore

 

H-5 

se 
se) 
3 

d, 

e 



Program
 
SECTIO
RECOMM
 
Reduct
  
 
Reduct
  
  
 
Reduce
  
 
Reduct
  
  
 
Enhanc
  
  
  
 
Enhanc
  
  
 
Enhanc
 
 
 
 

m:  General Ex

ON K 
MENDED ENHANC

ions resulting 
contract

ions in insuran
Currently
and the 

ed use of legal 
contract 

ion related to r
$300,00
as identi

cement – Contr
funds, o
$50,000 
reserve f

cement – Priori
Margina
Pricewat

cement – Salary

 

  
 

xpenses & Rev

CEMENTS, REDU

from changes 
ual agreements

nce costs - $28
y the Health Un
broker (insuran

services - $40,
review and pre

recognizing ad
0 to allow for an
ified in the Prog

ributions to new
ne for an annua
annually for fut

fund. 

itize Software -
l Analysis (PBM
terhouseCoope

y & Benefit adj

 

venues 

CTIONS AND EFF

in service con
s. 

8,250 – This pro
nit obtains its ins
ce premiums).  

,000 – Historica
paration.  This p

dditional positio
nnual contributio
gram Budget Ma

w reserve fund
al contribution of
ture purchases 

- $10,000 – This
MA) initiative as 

rs. 

justments - $15

2014 P

FICIENCIES FOR 2

ntracts - $49,80

oposal relates to
surance through
Further informa

ally, legal couns
proposal would 

on vacancies -
ons to reserve f
arginal Analysis 

ds - $450,000 –
f $200,000 for c
relating to Inform

s proposal will a
part of the integ

58,024 - This ite

Planning &

2014 

0 – Three propo

o possible savin
h the City of Lon
ation can be fou

el has been use
reduce reliance

 $535,163 – Th
unds, and for an
process. 

– This proposal w
costs associated
mation Technol

assist in the effic
grated planning 

em relates to ex

& Budget T

osals relate to c

gs resulting from
ndon’s policy.  T
nd in Report No

ed for union neg
e on these servi

is proposal incr
n additional $23

would request th
d with the Board
ogy, and anothe

cient gathering o
and budgeting 

xpected salary a

Template

creating efficien

m obtaining insu
The City acts as
o. 001-13C 

gotiation, bargai
ices. 

rease the agenc
35,163 to fund o

he Board of He
ds of Health’s us
er $200,000 for

of information re
process recomm

and benefit chan

 

cies and result 

urance through 
 both the insure

ining, dispute re

cies position vac
one-time investm

alth to create th
se of property, a

r a new salary st

elated to Progra
mended by  

nges.  

 

H

in altering  

a competitor.  
er (self-insuranc

esolution, and 

cancy budget by
ment proposals 

hree new reserv
another for 
tabilization 

am Budget  
 

 

H-6 

ce) 

y 

e 



                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 07-14FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health 

 

DATE:  2014 February 12 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2013 BUDGET VARIANCE REPORT TO DECEMBER 31ST 
 

Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee review and recommend to the Board of 

Health to:  

 receive Report No 07-14FFC “2013 Budget Variance Report to December 31
st
”; 

 that the Board of Health provide $500,000.00 of the Health Unit’s 2013 surplus to the municipal 

funders at the same rate as they fund the municipal component of the Health Unit’s budget 

($420,000, or 84% to the City of London, and $80,000, or 16% to the County of Middlesex); and 

 that decisions regarding contributions to reserves and reserve funds be deferred until further 

discussions have occurred with municipal funders and audited financial statements are available. 

 

Key Points  
 

 The unaudited operating surplus for the cost-shared programs is approximately $ 844,730. The health 

unit auditors, KPMG will be performing its annual audit beginning March 24th, 2014. 

 An additional amount of $101,250 from 2012 operations is available resulting from the Province 

approving 75% funding for the Shared Services Review project. 

 Several specific budgets are anticipated to have modest surpluses or shortfalls, including a shortfall in 

the range of $20,000 for the Dental Treatment Clinic.  

 In order to support the municipal funders with their 2014 budget decisions, it is recommended that the 

Board of Health provide $500,000.00 from the Health Unit’s 2013 surplus to the municipal funders at 

the same rate as they fund the municipal component of the Health Unit’s budget ($420,000, or 84% to 

the City of London, and $80,000, or 16% to the County of Middlesex). 

 

 
Fourth Quarter Review (2013) 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Finance & Facilities Committee with a summary review of the 

Health Unit’s operating results and to provide projections of expenditures at the end of 2013.   

 

The attached Budget Variance Summary (Appendix A) shows actual and budgeted expenditures net of offset 

revenues for the twelve months ending December 31
st
, 2013.  For programs with a March 31

st
 year-end, this 

report shows the actual and budgeted expenditures net of offset revenues for the nine month period April 1
st
 

to December 31
st
, 2013.  The Budget Variance Summary provides management’s forecasted year-end 

balances and a brief explanation or comment. 

 

Cost-Shared Programs 
 

The net budget for cost-shared programs for 2013 was Board approved at $23,198,916.  As can be seen from 

reviewing the Budget Variance Summary (Appendix A), the cost-shared programs are projected to complete 

the operating year with a surplus of $844,730 or a 3.65% variance.  Table 1 below provides the major 

reasons for the surplus.  

 

  

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-02-12-report-07-14-ffc-appendix-a.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-02-12-report-07-14-ffc-appendix-a.pdf


2014 February 12 -  2  - Report No.07-14FFC 

 

  

Table 1 – Summary of Cost-Shared Variances 
 
 Description Amount 

1. Managed position vacancies $      700,000 

2.  - Less the planned or budgeted managed position vacancies (280,000) 

3. Needle Exchange Program – recovery of prior year’s surplus created by 2012 year-end 
purchases of needles and additional provincial funding. 

84,800 

4. Savings in professional services (legal and other consulting services) 151,000 

5. Revenue from food handler training 35,000 

6. Savings in Furniture & Equipment (computer hardware and office furniture) 68,000 

7. Children In Need of Treatment (CINOT) fewer payments to dentists 63,000 

8. Other expenditures (materials, supplies, travel and professional development)  22,903 

  $     844,703 

 
As reported in the previous variance reports, an additional amount of $101,250 is available as a result of the 

Province providing a one-time grant of 75% of the Shared Services Review costs.  Originally the Board of 

Health approved this funding to come from the 2012 operating surplus.  Therefore, the total surplus available 

to be allocated is expected to be approximately $945,980. 

 
Other 100% Funded Programs/Initiatives 
 

Programs in this category are funded 100% by the province or are cost-shared but one-time in nature or in 

the case of the Dental Treatment program funded through user fees.  This group of programs is expected to 

end the operating year in a deficit position of approximately $20,405 primarily due to unfavourable 

variances in both the Dental Treatment and Healthy Smiles Ontario programs.  The unfavourable variance in 

the Healthy Smiles Ontario Program of $19,228 is being reviewed by the Province for additional funding as 

they reduced the funding in 2013 by $87,103 and the fees to local dentists increased approximately 13% 

from the previous year as a result of increased participation in the preventative program. 

 

For the March 31
st
 programs it is not anticipated at this time that these programs will generate significant 

variances by March 31
st
, 2014. 

 

Surplus to Municipal Funders 
 

There are several needs for which the Health Unit could consider establishing or enhancing existing reserve 

funds.  However, discussions with municipal funders to establish a framework for using surplus funds to 

accumulate reserves have not yet reached a conclusion.  As such, and in consideration of the municipal 

funders’ budget discussions that are currently ongoing and nearing conclusion, it is recommended that the 

Board of Health provide $500,000.00 from the Health Unit’s 2013 surplus to the municipal funders at the 

same rate as they fund the municipal component of the Health Unit’s budget ($420,000, or 84% to the City 

of London, and $80,000, or 16% to the County of Middlesex).   

 

In view of the surplus available, this level of disbursement would not put Health Unit programming at risk, 

and it is anticipated that the reserve and reserve fund needs of the Health Unit can be achieved in the coming 

years without this funding.  There remains some uncertainty in the surplus amount until audited financial 

statements are available.  Providing more than this amount at this point would limit the Board of Health’s 

ability to meet other needs, and at the extreme end, could potentially put the health unit in a deficit position 

for the 2013 operating year. 

 

This report was prepared by Mr. John Millson, Director of Finance & Operations. 

 

 

 

Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health 



2013 2013 VARIANCE % DECEMBER 2013 DECEMBER

 YTD ACTUAL YTD BUDGET (OVER) / VARIANCE FORECAST ANNUAL SURPLUS /
UNDER BUDGET (DEFICIT) Comment / Explanation

COST-SHARED PROGRAMS

Oral Health, Communicable Disease & Sexual Health Services

Office of the Associate Medical Officer of Health 315,549$        326,368$        10,819$        3.3% 315,549$       326,368$          10,819$            $7,500 net surplus from epidemiologist being reassigned to Panorama; $3,300 due to 

Materials & Supplies and other expenditures.

Vaccine Preventable Diseases 1,225,612       1,227,269       1,657            0.1% 1,227,269      1,227,269         -                         $(17,500) deficit in staffing due to medical leaves; $4,500 surplus in travel related expenses; 

$13,500 in software development that was deferred due to staffing shortages; $2,000 in other 

expenses; ($21,000) shortfall in influenza campaign; $18,500 surplus in shingles vaccine.

The Clinic 1,034,570       1,205,962       171,392        14.2% 1,051,462      1,205,962         154,500            $49,000 surplus due to gap in Manager, two maternity leaves filled with lower paying staff, 

Nurse Practitioner being replace with a physician in Strathroy and decreased overtime;  

$84,800 recovery from the Needle Exchange Program due to extra provincial funding and 

year end purchasing of needles in 2012; $18,400 surplus due to fewer purchases of 

contraceptives; $2,300 in materials & supplies and other costs.  

Sexual Health Promotion 302,879          378,081          75,202          19.9% 302,879          378,081            75,202              $76,900 surplus due to vacancy in Sexual Health Promoter and gapping from vacancy in 

PHN; $3,000 accompanying surplus in mileage and other administrative costs; ($4,700) 

shortfall in materials and supplies and public education and advertising costs.

Infectious Disease Control 623,121          613,121          (10,000)         -1.6% 623,121          613,121            (10,000)             $(18,500) relating to wages and benefits and $(2,300) in travel related costs, partially offset 

by $10,800 savings in materials & supplies and other expenses.  

Dental Prevention 683,765          738,416          54,651          7.4% 683,765          738,416            54,651              $21,600 surplus due to position gapping, $21,300 surplus in material and supplies, $(4,700) 

deficit relating to purchasing new dental software; $6,000 surplus in other expenses due to 

lower cost of running Oral Health Week: $10,250 in additional revenue from other Health 

Units relating to the Dental Consultant contract.

Children In Need of Treatment (CINOT) 424,656          487,463          62,807          12.9% 424,656          487,463            62,807              $62,800 surplus due to lower billings in the 0-13 year old CINOT program from less payment 

to dental professionals, likely due to increased participation in the Healthy Smiles Ontario 

instead of CINOT.

Total Oral Health, Comm. Disease & Sexual Health Services 4,610,152$       4,976,680$       366,528$        7.4% 4,628,701$      4,976,680$         347,979$            

Environmental Health & Chronic Disease & Injury Prevention

Office of the Director 424,275$        424,849$        574$             0.1% 424,275$       424,849$          574$                  No significant variation expected

Environmental Health 2,500,863       2,555,303       54,440          2.1% 2,473,603      2,555,303         81,700              ($10,000) Standby-On call costs based on experience to date, ($7,000) for student 

placements, ($10,000) staffing costs related to cooling tower mapping project. ($15,000) for 

supplies related to pool inspections and food handler training. $11,000 for consulting services 

and printing. $35,000 additional food handler training revenue, and $16,000 revenue from the 

MOHLTC for student placements.

Chronic Disease Prevention 481,917          493,155          11,238          2.3% 481,917          493,155            11,238              $49,948 in Public Health Nursing wages and benefits due to vacancies and reallocation to 

100% initiatives partially offset by ($20,000) youth leaders wages & benefits;($18,700) in 

health promotion campaigns; 

Injury Prevention 1,112,799       1,192,350       79,551          6.7% 1,149,350      1,192,350         43,000              $40,900 in salary & benefits primarily in Public Health Nursing & Health Promoter wages and 

benefits due to vacancies and reallocation to 100% initiatives.  Partially offset by ($5,200) in 

health promotion campaigns.

Vector Borne Disease Program 615,782          615,782          -                    0.0% 615,782          615,782            -                         No significant variation expected

Small Drinking Water Systems 42,316            42,316            -                    0.0% 42,316            42,316              -                         No significant variation expected

Total Environmental Health & Chronic Disease & Injury Prev. 5,177,952$       5,323,755$       145,803$        2.7% 5,187,243$      5,323,755$         136,512$            

MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT

BUDGET VARIANCE SUMMARY
As at December 31, 2013

APPENDIX A



2013 2013 VARIANCE % DECEMBER 2013 DECEMBER

 YTD ACTUAL YTD BUDGET (OVER) / VARIANCE FORECAST ANNUAL SURPLUS /
UNDER BUDGET (DEFICIT) Comment / Explanation

Family Health Services

Office of the Director 457,912$        622,210$        164,298$      26.4% 457,912$       622,210$          164,298$          $100,000 in managed vacancies in casual PHN resources; $20,000 relating to delay in 

electronic documentation; $12,000 in health promotion projects; $30,000 relating to Child & 

Youth Network which was not provided.

Program Evaluation 306,759          312,613          5,854            1.9% 316,759          312,613            (4,146)               Variance relates to additional wages and benefits to perform the breastfeeding survey and 

data analysis.

Early Years Team 1,448,084       1,430,043       (18,041)         -1.3% 1,452,552      1,430,043         (22,509)             Increased utilization of casual Public Health Nursing hours to back-fill work due to sick leaves 

and various accommodations. 

Reproductive Health Team 1,324,863       1,359,348       34,485          2.5% 1,327,518      1,359,348         31,830              Surplus in Public Health Nursing wages and benefits due to vacancies and higher than 

anticipated revenue from the sale of physical activity DVDs and prenatal education.

Best Beginnings Team 488,385          547,839          59,454          10.9% 493,016          547,839            54,823              Surplus relating to a Leave of Absence, public health promotion projects not completed, and 

lower than client travel, printing and interpretation costs.  

Young Adult Team 1,113,235       1,126,077       12,842          1.1% 1,113,736      1,126,077         12,341              Public Health Nursing wages and benefits due to vacancies.

Child Health Team 1,452,161       1,499,684       47,523          3.2% 1,469,912      1,499,684         29,772              Expected surplus is related to position vacancies and expenditures related to Triple P training 

(staff training) as this opportunity was limited to one person.

Infant Line Program 73,909            58,830            (15,079)         -25.6% 73,909            58,830              (15,079)             Due to overtime costs relating to Full-Time staff performing on-call work.

Let's Grow Program 33,540            37,697            4,157            11.0% 33,540            37,697              4,157                 $4,157 lower advertising costs and design work required due to late release of an e-magazine 

issue.

Total Family Health Services 6,698,848$       6,994,341$       295,493$        4.2% 6,738,854$      6,994,341$         255,487$            

Office of the Medical Officer of Health

Office of the Medical Officer of Health

351,992$        451,193$        99,201$        22.0% 370,193$       451,193$          81,000$            $98,000 due to vacancy, partially offset by ($20,000) hiring costs.  Additional hours for 

administrative support for new Finance Committee ($15,000).  $12,750 savings in other 

professional services, and $5,250 in materials and supplies and other costs. 

Communications 324,252          329,965          5,713            1.7% 324,252          329,965            5,713                 Reduced costs for Staff Appreciation Day.

Privacy/Occupational Health & Safety
200,381          174,350          (26,031)         -14.9% 200,381          174,350            (26,031)             Additional Administrative Assistant hours for privacy review.

Travel Clinic
74,347            78,917            4,570            5.8% 74,347            78,917              4,570                 Savings in printing costs, cell phone, and administrative expenses, as well as revenue from 

rent.

Emergency Planning 44,278            34,612            (9,666)           -27.9% 44,278            34,612              (9,666)               Additional Administrative Assistant hours for priority projects.

Records / CQI Management 121,643          124,149          2,506            2.0% 121,643          124,149            2,506                 Savings related to accreditation fees not paid in 2013.

Total Office of the Medical Officer of Health 1,116,893$       1,193,186$       76,293$          6.4% 1,135,094$      1,193,186$         58,092$              

Finance & Operations 716,898$          725,992$         9,094$            1.3% 716,898$         725,992$            9,094$                 $10,500 due to ULOA, ($3,700) in additional professional development for Director position, 

and $2,294 anticipated savings realized relating to negotiation of new cellular contract with 

Rogers and other materials & supplies. 

Human Resources & Labour Relations 804,201$          798,033$         (6,168)$           -0.8% 804,201$         798,033$            (6,168)$               $36,000 surplus due to vacant student placement position partially offset by ($13,000) for 

casual administrative support and ($12,000) for new HRCS Director overlap, and $(18,300) 

owing to incorrect budget for stator benefits and HR coordinator position, ($5,400) for 

professional development, $4,600 as a result of not hosting a volunteer appreciation dinner, 

and $2,000 from other expenses.
Information Technology Services 855,396$          1,090,413$       235,017$        21.6% 915,396$         1,090,413$         175,017$            $145,000 saving to due vacancies in various positions as a result of the departure of the IT 

Director and an LTD claim.  $30,000 savings resulting from fewer  replacements of computer 

equipment.

General Expenses & Revenues (rent, utilities and other) 1,947,169$       2,096,516$       149,347$        7.1% 2,227,799$      2,096,516$         (131,283)$           $(280,000) for Managed Position Vacancy target, offset by positive variances in general 

materials and supplies $17,500, legal services $67,000, and other professional services of 

$64,000.

TOTAL COST-SHARED PROGRAMS 21,927,509$   23,198,916$   1,271,407$   5.5% 22,354,186$  23,198,916$     844,730$          



2013 2013 VARIANCE % DECEMBER 2013 DECEMBER

 YTD ACTUAL YTD BUDGET (OVER) / VARIANCE FORECAST ANNUAL SURPLUS /
UNDER BUDGET (DEFICIT) Comment / Explanation

OTHER PROGRAMS

December 31 Year-End Programs:

Infectious Disease Control (MOHLTC) 1,166,722$     1,166,722$     -$                  0.0% 1,166,722$    1,166,722$       -$                  

Infection Control & Prevention Nurse (MOHLTC) 88,300            88,300            -                    0.0% 88,300            88,300              -                    

Needle Exchange Program - 100% 234,991          234,991          -                    0.0% 234,991          234,991            -                    

Social Determinants of Health (MOHLTC) 176,910          176,910          -                    0.0% 176,910          176,910            -                    

Shared Services Review (PWC) 94,767            101,250          6,483            6.4% 94,767            101,250            6,483                 

Website Redevelopment Funding 100,000          100,000          -                    0.0% 100,000          100,000            -                    

Chief Nursing Officer (MOHLTC) 115,039          119,033          3,994            3.4% 115,039          119,033            3,994                 

Smoke Free Ontario (MHP) 1,015,900       1,015,900       -                    0.0% 1,015,900      1,015,900         -                    

Dental Treatment (User Fees)

243,214          222,412          (20,802)         -  243,214          222,412            (20,802)             Anticipated operating shortfall is due to higher operating costs with no growth in dental fee 

revenue.

Healthy Babies Healthy Children (MCYS) 2,474,165       2,483,313       9,148            0.4% 2,474,165      2,483,313         9,148                 Surplus in staffing costs due to position vacancies.

Healthy Smiles Ontario (MHLTC) 803,152          783,924          (19,228)         -2.5% 803,152          783,924            (19,228)             

Total December 31 Year End Programs 6,513,160$       6,492,755$       (20,405)$         -0.3% 6,513,160$      6,492,755$         (20,405)$             

March 31 Year-End Programs:

Smart Start for Babies (Federal) 67,131$          114,323$        47,192$        41.3% 152,430$       152,430$          -$                      

Tyke Talk - Preschool Speech & Language (MCYS) 1,066,982       1,111,736       44,754          4.0% 1,482,315      1,482,315         -                         

Blind-Low Vision Program (MCYS) 57,104            119,027          61,923          52.0% 158,702          158,702            -                         

Infant Hearing Screening Program (MCYS) 599,038          626,915          27,877          4.4% 835,886          835,886            -                         

Panorama Project (MOHLTC) 82,710            172,749          90,039          52.1% 230,332          230,332            -                         

Smoke Free Ontario - Demonstration Project 56,630            62,925            6,295            10.0% 83,900            83,900              -                         

Shared Library Services Partnership (PHO) 101,497          135,698          34,201          25.2% 180,931          180,931            -                         

Total March 31 Year End Programs $2,031,092 2,343,373$       312,281$        13.3% 3,124,496$      3,124,496$         -$                        

TOTAL OTHER PROGRAMS 8,544,252$     8,836,128$     291,876$      3.3% 9,637,656$    9,617,251$       (20,405)$           

TOTAL MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 30,471,761$   32,035,044$   1,563,283$   4.9% 31,991,842$  32,816,167$     824,325$          



                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 08-14FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health 

 

DATE:  2014 February 12 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PUBLIC SECTOR SALARY DISCLOSURE ACT - 2013 RECORD OF EMPLOYEE’S 
SALARIES AND BENEFITS 

 
 

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee make recommendation to the Board of Health 

to receive Report No. 08-14FFC re Public Sector Salary Disclosure Act – 2013 Record of Employee’s 

Salaries and Benefits for information. 
 

Key Points  
 

 The Public Sector Salary Disclosure Act, 1996, requires the Health Unit to disclose salaries and taxable 

benefits of employees who are paid $100,000 or more in 2013.   

 Attached as Appendix A is the report required to be submitted to the Minister of Finance on or before 

the 5
th
 business day in March 2014.  

 

Background  
 

The Public Sector Salary Disclosure Act, 1996 (the Act) makes Ontario's public sector more open and 

accountable to taxpayers. The act requires organizations that receive public funding from the Province of 

Ontario to disclose annually the names, positions, salaries and total taxable benefits of employees paid 

$100,000 or more in a calendar year.  
 

The Act applies to organizations such as the Government of Ontario, Crown Agencies, Municipalities, 

Hospitals, Boards of Public Health, School Boards, Universities, Colleges, Hydro One, Ontario Power 

Generation, and other public sector employers who receive a significant level of funding from the provincial 

government. 
 

Compliance 
 

The main requirement for organizations covered by the Act is to make their disclosure or if applicable to 

make their statement of no employee salaries to disclose available to the public by March 31
st
 each year.  

Organizations covered by the Act are also required to send their disclosure or statement to their funding 

ministry or ministries by the fifth business day of March.   
 

Attached as Appendix A, is the record of employees’ 2013 salaries and benefits for the Middlesex-London 

Health Unit which will be provided to the Minister of Finance prior to March 7, 2014. 
 

This report was prepared by Mr. John Millson, Director, Finance and Operations 
 

 
Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health 

 

  

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-02-12-report-08-14-fcc-appendix-a.pdf


Cal 

Year /

Année 

civile Sector / Secteur Employer / Employeur Surname / Nom de famille

Given Name / 

Prénom Position Title / Poste

Salary Paid / 

Traitement 

versé

Taxable 

Benefits / 

Avantages 

imposables

2013

Hospitals & Boards of Public 

Health / Hôpitaux et Conseils 

de santé

Middlesex - London 

Health Unit/Bureau de 

santé de Middlesex-

London

ADAMS WALLY

Director, Environmental Health & Chronic Disease & Injury Prevention 

Services/Directeur, services de la Santé environnementale et de la Prévention 

des maladies chroniques et des blessures 

$117,970.41 $762.40

2013

Hospitals & Boards of Public 

Health / Hôpitaux et Conseils 

de santé

Middlesex - London 

Health Unit/Bureau de 

santé de Middlesex-

London

BEWICK DIANE Director, Family Health Services/Directrice , Soins de santé familiale $121,158.68 $783.62

2013

Hospitals & Boards of Public 

Health / Hôpitaux et Conseils 

de santé

Middlesex - London 

Health Unit/Bureau de 

santé de Middlesex-

London

DHIR SUMAN Dentist/Dentiste $139,084.54 $0.00

2013

Hospitals & Boards of Public 

Health / Hôpitaux et Conseils 

de santé

Middlesex - London 

Health Unit/Bureau de 

santé de Middlesex-

London

MACKIE CHRISTOPHER
Medical Officer of Health & Chief Executive Officer/Médecin hygiéniste et 

directeur général
$151,839.15 $924.91

2013

Hospitals & Boards of Public 

Health / Hôpitaux et Conseils 

de santé

Middlesex - London 

Health Unit/Bureau de 

santé de Middlesex-

London

MILLSON JOHN Director, Finance & Operations/Directeur, Finance & opérations $121,158.68 $783.62

2013

Hospitals & Boards of Public 

Health / Hôpitaux et Conseils 

de santé

Middlesex - London 

Health Unit/Bureau de 

santé de Middlesex-

London

TYLER LOUISE
Director, Human Resources & Labour Relations/Directrice, Ressources 

humaines et Relations du travail
$121,158.68 $731.26

2013

Hospitals & Boards of Public 

Health / Hôpitaux et Conseils 

de santé

Middlesex - London 

Health Unit/Bureau de 

santé de Middlesex-

London

VAN HARTEN MARIA Dental Consultant/Conseiller Dentaire $157,604.85 $1,002.60

2013

Hospitals & Boards of Public 

Health / Hôpitaux et Conseils 

de santé

Middlesex - London 

Health Unit/Bureau de 

santé de Middlesex-

London

WARSHAWSKY BRYNA

Associate Medical Officer of Health & Director, Communicable Diseases & 

Sexual Health Services/Médecin hygiéniste adjoint et directrice, services des 

Maladies transmissibles et de la Santé sexuelle

$271,037.98 $1,619.94

RECORD OF EMPLOYEES' 2013 SALARIES AND BENEFITS

REGISTRE DES TRAITEMENTS ET AVANTAGES VERSÉS AUX EMPLOYÉS EN 2013

Insert additional rows at the end as needed / Insérer d'autres rangées au besoin

Please refer to the guide Preparing Your Report for the Year 2013, Public Sector Salary Disclosure  Act before filling out this form.

Se reporter au guide de Préparation du rapport de 2013 aux fins de la Loi de 1996 sur la divulgation des traitements dans le secteur public  pour remplir la présente formule.

Page 1



Cal 

Year /

Année 

civile Sector / Secteur Employer / Employeur Surname / Nom de famille

Given Name / 

Prénom Position Title / Poste

Salary Paid / 

Traitement 

versé

Taxable 

Benefits / 

Avantages 

imposables

RECORD OF EMPLOYEES' 2013 SALARIES AND BENEFITS

REGISTRE DES TRAITEMENTS ET AVANTAGES VERSÉS AUX EMPLOYÉS EN 2013

Insert additional rows at the end as needed / Insérer d'autres rangées au besoin

Please refer to the guide Preparing Your Report for the Year 2013, Public Sector Salary Disclosure  Act before filling out this form.

Se reporter au guide de Préparation du rapport de 2013 aux fins de la Loi de 1996 sur la divulgation des traitements dans le secteur public  pour remplir la présente formule.

Name / Nom Position Title / Poste

Date / Date

This record has been approved by: / Ce registre a été approuvé par : 

Prepared under the Public Sector Salary Disclosure Act, 1996 / Préparé en vertu de la Loi de 1996 sur la divulgation des traitements dans le secteur public.

John Millson, BA, CGA

Phone Number / Téléphone

519-663-5317 Ext. 2336

Director, Finance & Operations

05-Feb-14

Page 2



                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 09-14FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health 

 

DATE:  2014 February 12  

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2013 BOARD OF HEALTH REMUNERATION 
 

Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee review and make recommendation to the 

Board of Health to receive Report No. 09-14FFC re 2013 Board of Health Remuneration for information.   

 

Key Points  
 

 Section 49 of the Health Protection and Promotion Act outlines the reimbursement of Board of Health 

members. 

 In June 2013, the Board of Health struck a new Finance & Facilities Committee to provide additional 

oversight to the financial management of the Health Unit. 

  
 

  
Background  
 

Section 49 of the Health Protection and Promotion Act (HPPA) speaks to the composition, term, and 

remuneration of Board of Health members. Subsections (4), (5), (6), & (11) below relate specifically to 

remuneration and expenses which are: 

  

Remuneration 

(4)  A board of health shall pay remuneration to each member of the board of health on a daily basis 

and all members shall be paid at the same rate. R.S.O. 1990, c. H.7, s. 49 (4). 

Expenses 

(5)  A board of health shall pay the reasonable and actual expenses of each member of the board of 

health. R.S.O. 1990, c. H.7, s. 49 (5). 

Rate of remuneration 

(6)  The rate of the remuneration paid by a board of health to a member of the board of health shall not 

exceed the highest rate of remuneration of a member of a standing committee of a municipality within the health 

unit served by the board of health, but where no remuneration is paid to members of such standing committees 

the rate shall not exceed the rate fixed by the Minister and the Minister has power to fix the rate. R.S.O. 1990, 

c. H.7, s. 49 (6). 

Member of municipal council 

(11)  Subsections (4) and (5) do not authorize payment of remuneration or expenses to a member of a 

board of health, other than the chair, who is a member of the council of a municipality and is paid annual 

remuneration or expenses, as the case requires, by the municipality. R.S.O. 1990, c. H.7, s. 49 (11). 

 

In relation to Section 49(6), the Board of Health’s meeting rate for 2013 was $139.93 from January to 

March, and $142.03 from April to December 2013.  

 
 

  

https://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/statutes/english/elaws_statutes_90h07_e.htm#BK56
http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/statutes/french/elaws_statutes_90h07_f.htm#s49s4
http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/statutes/french/elaws_statutes_90h07_f.htm#s49s5
http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/statutes/french/elaws_statutes_90h07_f.htm#s49s6
http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/statutes/french/elaws_statutes_90h07_f.htm#s49s11


2014 February 12 -  2  - Report No. 09-14FFC 

 

  

2012 Remuneration and Expenses  
 

Under Section 284 (1) of the Municipal Act, the City of London and Middlesex County Administration are 

required to report on the remuneration paid to Council members, including remuneration paid to members of 

Council by Boards and Commissions.  The remuneration report, attached as Appendix A, includes stipends 

paid for meetings, reimbursements provided for travel and related expenses that the Health Unit provided to 

each Board of Health member in 2013.  

 

In June 2013, the Board of Health introduced a new Finance & Facilities Committee with the purpose of 

providing an advisory and monitoring role to the Board, the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive 

Officer, and the Director of Finance & Operations in administrative and risk management matters relating to 

the finance and facilities of the organization.  The remuneration paid to the following Committee Members 

is included in the amounts reported in Appendix A:  

 

 Ms. Trish Fulton (Chair)  Mr. Ian Peer 

 Mr. David Bolton   Ms. Denise Brown 

 Mr. Marcel Meyer  

  

Mr. Al Edmondson continues to be actively involved on the Association of Local Public Health Agencies 

(alPHa) Board of Directors as President.  In addition, Ms. Viola Poletes Montgomery and Mr. Marcel Meyer 

were actively involved in the recruitment of the new Medical Officer of Health & Chief Executive Officer.    

 

Consistent with Section 49(11) of the Health Protection and Promotion Act, City Councilors Denise Brown, 

Stephen Orser, and Sandy White did not receive remuneration for any Board of Health or Committee 

meetings.  

 

This report was prepared by Mr. John Millson, Director of Finance & Operations. 

 

 
 

 

Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health 

 

http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/statutes/english/elaws_statutes_01m25_e.htm#BK342


Appendix A

MIDDLESEX-LONDON BOARD OF HEALTH

2013 REMUNERATION REPORT

Board/Committee Board Mtg. Other Mtgs./ Other Travel &

Board Member Meetings Travel Conferences Accomm. Total

Mr. David Bolton 1,852.69$               812.84$          845.88$          -$                  3,511.41$       

Ms. Denise Brown
1

-                         -                  -                  -                    -                  

Mr. Al Edmondson
2

1,443.40                 146.00            4,095.77         1,604.16           7,289.33         

Ms. Trish Fulton 2,209.87                 26.09              843.78            -                    3,079.74         

Mr. Marcel Meyer (Chair) 
3

2,491.85                 310.45            5,248.81         647.86              8,698.97         

Mr. Stephen Orser
1

-                         -                  -                  -                    -                  

Mr. Ian Peer 2,134.65                 -                  847.98            -                    2,982.63         

Ms. Viola Poletes Montgomery
3

1,318.17                 148.31            2,942.73         4,409.21         

Ms. Nancy Poole 1,428.70                 246.56            985.81            -                    2,661.07         

Mr. Mark Studenny 1,138.34                 258.05            281.96            -                    1,678.35         

Ms. Sandy White
1

-                         -                  -                  -                    -                  

TOTAL 14,017.67$             1,948.30$       16,092.72$     2,252.02$         34,310.71$     

Notes:

1) Remuneration for meetings for City Councillors is included in their annual salary which is paid by the City of London

2) Remuneration for Other Meetings for Mr. Al Edmondson relate to his involvement on the alPHa Board of Directors

3) Remuneration for Other Meetings for Ms. Viola Poletes Montgomery and Mr. Marcel Meyer refelect the additional work they both gave in 

the search and hiring of the new Medical Officer of Health & Chief Executive Officer.

08/02/2014



                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 10-14FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance and Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health 

 

DATE:  2014 February 12 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

LOCALLY DRIVEN COLLABORATIVE PROJECT FUNDING  
AGREEMENT – PUBLIC HEALTH ONTARIO (PHO)  

 
Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Finance and Facilities Committee review and make recommendation to the 

Board of Health to endorse the Board Chair to sign the Agreement Form for the Locally Driven 

Collaborative Project as it relates to receiving $75,000 funding from Public Health Ontario.  
 

 

Key Points 
 

 Public Health Ontario provides up to $75,000 in funding for “locally driven collaborative projects” 

which are research studies. 

 Middlesex-London will be one of three lead agencies for a proposed research study that will aim to 

identify areas of focus regarding mental health promotion for children and youth. 

 This research study will provide direction to Public Health Units which is relevant, evidence-

informed, and based on the experiences of research participants.  

 Healthy growth and development is an Ontario Public Health Standard within the Child Health 

section. 

 After this study, public health units will be in a better position to move forward with actions to meet 

the need for mental health promotion in children and youth. 
 

 
Background  
 
Mental health is an important component to healthy growth and development of children and youth.  Ontario 

Boards of Health have a responsibility to provide programs and services that focus on the healthy growth 

and development of children and youth.  

 

Public Health Ontario (PHO) provides funding to local health units to collaborate and perform research 

studies. In 2013, several Ontario health units collaborated and applied for $75,000 to operationalize a 

research study that aims to focus on child and youth mental health promotion.  The funding approval letter is 

attached as Appendix A. 

 

Role of the Health Unit 
 

The research study called, “Supporting Ontario Public Health Units to Promote the Mental Health of 

Children and Youth”, aims to identify areas of focus regarding mental health promotion for children and 

youth. A qualitative research design will be used to meet these goals, because it will allow the researchers to 

gather first-hand information from Public Health Units, mental health organizations and provincial 

ministries.  

 

  

  

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-02-12-report-10-14-fcc-appendix-a.pdf


2014 February 12 -  2  - Report No 10-14FFC 

 

  

The Health Unit will be one of three leads for this research study.  Health Unit staff members will work in 

partnership with Hamilton Public Health Services and Thunder Bay District Health Unit to complete this 

research study along with nine other public health units and two mental health agencies. Funding of $75,000 

has been approved by Public Health Ontario and the money for this project will flow through the Middlesex-

London Health Unit. The project will begin March 2014 and finish March 2015. The Agreement Form for 

this project is attached as Appendix B.  

 

 

This report was prepared by Mr. John Millson, Director of Finance & Operations, and Ms. Christine Preece, 

Manager- Family Health Services.  

 

 
 

Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health 

 

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2014-02-12-report-10-14-fcc-appendix-b.pdf




Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 1 of 31 
 
 

 

THE AGREEMENT effective as of the 1st day of February, 2014 
 

B E T W E E N : 
 
 

ONTARIO AGENCY FOR HEALTH PROTECTION AND PROMOTION 
 

(“Public Health Ontario”) 
 

- and - 
 

MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
 

(the “Recipient”) 
 

 
Background:  
 
1. Public Health Ontario funds projects similar to the project described in Schedule “A”; 

and  

2. The Recipient has applied to Public Health Ontario for funds to assist the Recipient 
in carrying out the Project and Public Health Ontario wishes to provide such funds. 

 
Consideration: 
 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and for 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
expressly acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
 

ARTICLE 1 
INTERPRETATION AND DEFINITIONS 

 
1.1 Interpretation.  For the purposes of interpretation: 
 

(a) words in the singular include the plural and vice-versa;   
 
(b) words in one gender include all genders;  
 
(c) the background and the headings do not form part of the Agreement; they are 

for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation of the Agreement;   
 
(d) any reference to dollars or currency shall be to Canadian dollars and 

currency; and   



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 2 of 31 
 
 

 
(e) “include”, “includes” and “including” shall not denote an exhaustive list. 

 
1.2 Definitions.  In the Agreement, the following terms, in addition to any other 

terms defined herein, shall have the following meanings: 
 
“Act” means the Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion Act, 2007, 
c. 10, Schedule K, as amended or replaced from time to time. 
 
“Agreement” means this agreement entered into between Public Health Ontario 
and the Recipient and includes all of the schedules listed in section 27.1 and any 
amending agreement entered into pursuant to section 34.2. 
 
"BPSAA" means the Broader Public Sector Accountability Act, 2010 (Ontario), 
including any directives issued pursuant to that Act. 
 
“Budget” means the budget attached to the Agreement as Schedule “B”. 
 
“Supporting Organization(s)” means one or more public health unit or other 
organization that is working in collaboration with the Recipient to carry out the 
Project. 
 
“Conditions Precedent” means the conditions precedent to the provision by 
Public Health Ontario of Funds pursuant to this Agreement as set out in Article 4; 
 
“Effective Date” means the date set out at the top of the Agreement.  
 
“Event of Default” has the meaning ascribed to it in section 14.1. 

 
“Force Majeure” has the meaning ascribed to it in Article 25. 

 
“Funding Year” means:  
 
(a) in the case of the first Funding Year, the period commencing on the 

Effective Date and ending on the following March 31; and  
 

(b) in the case of Funding Years subsequent to the first Funding Year, the 
period commencing on April 1 following the end of the previous Funding 
Year and ending on the following March 31. 

 
“Funds” means the money provided by Public Health Ontario to the Recipient 
pursuant to the Agreement, and “Funding” shall have the corresponding 
meaning.  
 
“Indemnified Parties” means the Ontario Agency for Health Protection and 
Promotion, its directors, officers, agents, appointees and employees. 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 3 of 31 
 
 

 
“Maximum Funds” means $75,000.  
  
“Notice” means any communication given or required to be given pursuant to 
the Agreement.  
 
“Notice Period” means the period of time within which the Recipient is required 
to remedy an Event of Default, and includes any such period or periods of time 
by which Public Health Ontario considers it reasonable to extend that time. 
 
“Parties” means Public Health Ontario and the Recipient.  
 
“Party” means either Public Health Ontario or the Recipient.  
 
“Project” means the undertaking described in Schedule “A”.  
 
“Reports” means the reports described in Schedule “D”. 
 
“Timelines” means the Project schedule set out in Schedule “A”.  
 
 

 
ARTICLE 2 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS 
 
2.1 General.  The Recipient represents, warrants and covenants that: 
 

(a) it is, and shall continue to be for the term of the Agreement, a validly 
existing legal entity with full power to fulfill its obligations under the 
Agreement;  

 
(b) it has, and shall continue to have for the term of the Agreement, the 

experience and expertise necessary to carry out the Project; and  
 
(c) unless otherwise provided for in the Agreement, any information the 

Recipient provided to Public Health Ontario in support of its request for 
funds (including information relating to any eligibility requirements) was 
true and complete at the time the Recipient provided it and shall continue 
to be true and complete for the term of the Agreement.  

 
2.2 Execution of Agreement.  The Recipient represents and warrants that: 
 

(a) it has the full power and authority to enter into the Agreement; and 
 
(b) it has taken all necessary actions to authorize the execution of the 

Agreement.  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 4 of 31 
 
 

 
2.3 Governance.  The Recipient represents, warrants and covenants that it has, and 

shall maintain, in writing, for the period during which the Agreement is in effect:  
 

(a) a code of conduct and ethical responsibilities at all levels of the 
Recipient’s organization; 

 
(b) procedures to ensure the ongoing effective functioning of the Recipient;  

 
(c) decision-making mechanisms; 

 
(d) procedures to provide for the prudent and effective management of the 

Funds;  
 

(e) procedures to enable the successful completion of the Project;  
 

(f) procedures to enable the timely identification of risks to the completion of 
the Project and strategies to address the identified risks; 

 
(g) procedures to enable the preparation and delivery of all Reports required 

pursuant to Article 7; and 
 

(h) procedures to deal with such other matters as the Recipient considers 
necessary to ensure that the Recipient carries out its obligations under the 
Agreement. 

 
2.4 Supporting Documentation.  Upon request, the Recipient shall provide Public 

Health Ontario with proof of the matters referred to in this Article 2.    
 
 

ARTICLE 3 
TERM OF THE AGREEMENT 

 
3.1 Term.  The term of the Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and 

shall expire on July 31, 2015 unless terminated earlier pursuant to Article 12, 
Article 13 or Article 14. 

 
 

ARTICLE 4 
CONDITIONS PRECEDENTS, FUNDS AND CARRYING OUT THE PROJECT 

 
4.1 Conditions Precedent to First Payment.  The obligation of Public Health 

Ontario to make its first payment of Funds under this Agreement is subject to 
satisfaction by the Recipient of each of the following conditions: 
 
(a) Public Health Ontario shall have received  the insurance certificate or 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 5 of 31 
 
 

other documents provided for in section 11.2; 
(b) the representations and warranties of the Recipient set forth in Article 2 

shall continue to be true and correct; and 
(c) no Event of Default or event or condition which, with notice or lapse of 

time, or both, would constitute an Event of Default shall have occurred or 
be continuing.    

(d) the Recipient has received an acknowledgement in writing, in a form 
acceptable to Public Health Ontario acting reasonably, that all Supporting 
Organizations have read and understand the Agreement and agree to 
assist the Recipient in meeting the obligations therein. 

 
4.2 Conditions Precedent to Subsequent Payments.  The obligation of Public 

Health Ontario to make each subsequent payment of Funds under this 
Agreement is subject to satisfaction by the Recipient of each of the following 
conditions: 
 
(a) the representations and warranties of the Recipient set forth in Article 2 

shall continue to be true and correct; 
(b) no Event of Default or event or condition which, with notice or lapse of 

time, or both, would constitute an Event of Default shall have occurred or 
be continuing; and  

(c) Public Health Ontario shall have received the applicable Reports (both 
financial and those documenting the progress of the Project) as set forth in 
Schedule “D”. 

 
4.3 Satisfaction of Conditions Precedent.  The Recipient shall notify Public Health 

Ontario as soon as is reasonably practicable of the satisfaction of the applicable 
Conditions Precedent described in sections 4.1 and 4.2 and such notification 
shall include, as an attachment, all relevant information and documentation 
evidencing the satisfaction of such Conditions Precedent. 

 
4.4 Waivers. The Conditions Precedent set out in Article 4 are for the sole benefit of 

Public Health Ontario, and may be waived by Public Health Ontario in whole or in 
part in respect of any particular payment of Funds, without prejudicing Public 
Health Ontario’s right to assert them in whole or in part in respect of any other 
payment of Funds. 

 
4.5 Funds Provided.  Public Health Ontario shall: 
 

(a) provide the Recipient up to the Maximum Funds for the purpose of 
carrying out the Project; 

 
(b) provide the Funds to the Recipient in accordance with the payment 

schedule attached to the Agreement as Schedule “C”; and  
 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 6 of 31 
 
 

(c) deposit the Funds into an account designated by the Recipient provided 
that the account: 

 
(i) resides at a Canadian financial institution; and  
 
(ii) is in the name of the Recipient. 
 

4.6 Limitation on Payment of Funds.  Despite anything in this Agreement, Public 
Health Ontario: 
 
(a) is not obligated to provide instalments of Funds until it is satisfied with the 

progress of the Project; and 
 
(b) may adjust the amount of Funds it provides to the Recipient in any 

Funding Year based upon Public Health Ontario’s assessment of the 
information provided by the Recipient pursuant to section 7.1. 

 
4.7 Funding Contingent on Appropriation.  Pursuant to the Financial 

Administration Act (Ontario), if Public Health Ontario does not receive the 
necessary appropriation from the Ontario Legislature for payment under the 
Agreement, Public Health Ontario shall not be obligated to make any such 
payment, and, as a consequence, Public Health Ontario:  

 
(a) may reduce the amount of the Funds and, in consultation with the 

Recipient, change the Project; or 
 

(b) may immediately terminate the Agreement pursuant to section 13.1. 
 
4.8 Use of Funding and Project.  The Recipient shall: 
 

(a) carry out the Project: 
 

(i) in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement; and 
 

(ii) in compliance with all federal and provincial laws and regulations, 
all municipal by-laws, and any other orders, rules and by-laws 
related to any aspect of the Project;  

 
(b) use the Funds only for the purpose of carrying out the Project;  
 
(c) spend the Funds only in accordance with the Budget; and 
 
(d) not use the Funds or any portion thereof to offset any expenses respecting 

the Project incurred by the Recipient in a previous Funding Year. 
 

4.9 No Changes.  The Recipient shall: 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 7 of 31 
 
 

 
(a) not make any changes to the Project, the Timelines and/or the Budget 

without the prior written consent of Public Health Ontario; and  
 
4.10 Interest Bearing Account.  If Public Health Ontario provides Funds to the 

Recipient prior to the Recipient’s immediate need for the Funds, the Recipient 
shall place the Funds in an interest bearing account in the name of the Recipient 
at a Canadian financial institution.   

 
4.11 Interest.  If the Recipient earns any interest on the Funds:  
 

(a) Public Health Ontario may deduct an amount equal to the interest from 
any further instalments of Funds; or  

 
(b) the Recipient shall pay an amount equal to the interest to Public Health 

Ontario as directed by Public Health Ontario. 
 
4.12 Maximum Funds.  The Recipient acknowledges that the Funds available to it 

pursuant to the Agreement shall not exceed the Maximum Funds. 
 
4.13 Rebates, Credits and Refunds.  The Recipient acknowledges that the amount 

of Funds available to it pursuant to the Agreement is based on the actual costs to 
the Recipient, less any costs (including taxes) for which the Recipient has 
received, will receive, or is eligible to receive, a rebate, credit or refund. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5 
ACQUISITION OF GOODS AND SERVICES, AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 

 
5.1 Acquisition.  Subject to section 32.1, if the Recipient acquires supplies, 

equipment or services with the Funds, it shall do so through a process that 
promotes the best value for money.  

 
5.2 Disposal.  The Recipient shall not, without Public Health Ontario’s prior written 

consent, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any asset purchased with the Funds 
or for which Funds were provided, the cost of which exceeded $1,000 at the time 
of purchase.  

 
 

ARTICLE 6 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
6.1 No Conflict of Interest.  The Recipient shall carry out the Project and use the 

Funds without an actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest. 
 
6.2 Conflict of Interest Includes.  For the purposes of this Article, a conflict of 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 8 of 31 
 
 

interest includes any circumstances where: 
 
(a) the Recipient; or  
 
(b) any person who has the capacity to influence the Recipient’s decisions, 
 
has outside commitments, relationships or financial interests that could, or could 
be seen to, interfere with the Recipient’s objective, unbiased and impartial 
judgment relating to the Project and the use of the Funds. 

 
6.3 Disclosure to Public Health Ontario.  The Recipient shall: 
 

(a) disclose to Public Health Ontario, without delay, any situation that a 
reasonable person would interpret as either an actual, potential or 
perceived conflict of interest; and  
 

(b) comply with any terms and conditions that Public Health Ontario may 
prescribe as a result of the disclosure.  

 
 

ARTICLE 7 
REPORTING, ACCOUNTING AND REVIEW 

 
7.1 Preparation and Submission.  The Recipient shall: 

 
(a) submit to Public Health Ontario at the address provided in section 18.1, all 

Reports in accordance with the timelines and content requirements set out 
in Schedule “D”, or in a form as specified by Public Health Ontario from 
time to time;  

 
(b) submit to Public Health Ontario at the address provided in section 18.1, 

any other reports as may be requested by Public Health Ontario in 
accordance with the timelines and content requirements specified by 
Public Health Ontario;  

 
(c) deliver to Public Health Ontario a report setting out the amounts and 

sources of third party funds, including grants, which the Recipient has 
received or expects to receive in respect of the Project, at such times as 
may be specified by Public Health Ontario, 

 
(d) ensure that all Reports and other reports are completed to the satisfaction 

of Public Health Ontario; and  
 
(e) ensure that all Reports and other reports are signed on behalf of the 

Recipient by an authorized signing officer.  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 9 of 31 
 
 

 
7.2 Record Maintenance.  The Recipient shall keep and maintain: 

 
(a) all financial records (including invoices) relating to the Funds or otherwise 

to the Project in a manner consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles; and 

 
(b) all non-financial documents and records relating to the Funds or otherwise 

to the Project. 
 
7.3 Inspection.  Public Health Ontario, its authorized representatives or an 

independent auditor identified by Public Health Ontario may, at its own expense, 
upon twenty-four hours’ Notice to the Recipient and during normal business 
hours, enter upon the Recipient’s premises to review the progress of the Project 
and the Recipient’s expenditure of the Funds and, for these purposes, Public 
Health Ontario, its authorized representatives or an independent auditor 
identified by Public Health Ontario may:  
 
(a) inspect and copy the records and documents referred to in section 7.2; 

and 
 

(b) conduct an audit or investigation of the Recipient in respect of the 
expenditure of the Funds and/or Project. 

 
7.4 Disclosure.  To assist in respect of the rights set out in section 7.3, the Recipient 

shall disclose any information requested by Public Health Ontario, its authorized 
representatives or an independent auditor identified by Public Health Ontario, 
and shall do so in a form requested by Public Health Ontario, its authorized 
representatives or an independent auditor identified by Public Health Ontario, as 
the case may be. 

 
7.5 No Control of Records.  No provision of the Agreement shall be construed so 

as to give Public Health Ontario any control whatsoever over the Recipient’s 
records. 

 
7.6 Auditor General.  For greater certainty, Public Health Ontario’s rights under this 

Article are in addition to any rights provided to the Auditor General pursuant to 
section 9.1 of the Auditor General Act (Ontario).  

 
 

ARTICLE 8 
CREDIT, OWNERSHIP AND USE OF MATERIALS 

 
8.1 Acknowledge Support.  Unless otherwise directed by Public Health Ontario, the 

Recipient shall, and shall ensure that all Supporting Organizations shall, in a form 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 10 of 31 
 
 

approved by Public Health Ontario, acknowledge the support of Public Health 
Ontario in any publication of any kind, written or oral, relating to the Project.  

 
8.2 Publication.  The Recipient shall, and shall ensure that all Supporting 

Organizations shall, indicate in any of its/their publications of any kind, written or 
oral, relating to the Project, that the views expressed in the publication are the 
views of the Recipient and/or Supporting Organizations and do not necessarily 
reflect those of Public Health Ontario. 
 

8.3 Public Health Ontario Entitled to Disclose.  Public Health Ontario shall be 
entitled to disclose the name of the Recipient and all Supporting Organizations 
and any general information about the Project in Public Health Ontario forums, 
website and publications. 
 

8.4 Ownership.  Subject to section 8.5, all material of any kind relating to the Project 
and produced by the Recipient and Supporting Organizations and all copyright 
and other intellectual property rights in that material shall belong to the Recipient 
and Supporting Organizations.  

 
8.5 Grant of License.  The Recipient hereby grants, and shall ensure that all 

Supporting Organizations grant, to Public Health Ontario, a non-exclusive, 
royalty-free license to use, reproduce and modify, for Public Health Ontario 
purposes, any material relating to the Project and produced by the Recipient 
and/or Supporting Organizations, including distributing it, as Public Health 
Ontario, in its sole discretion, considers appropriate, provided Public Health 
Ontario appropriately acknowledges the Recipient and Supporting Organizations. 

 
8.6 Notice of Proposed Publication.  Despite section 8.4, the Recipient shall notify 

Public Health Ontario at least 60 days before it publishes any material relating to 
the Project and produced by the Recipient and provide a copy of the material it 
proposes to publish to Public Health Ontario at that time. The Recipient shall 
ensure that all Supporting Organizations comply with the requirements set out in 
this section. 

 
8.7 Material Provided by Public Health Ontario.  Any information and/or material 

provided to the Recipient by Public Health Ontario or received by the Recipient of 
behalf of Public Health Ontario, including all copyright and other intellectual 
property rights in such material, shall continue to belong to Public Health Ontario 
and shall be kept confidential by the Recipient. The Recipient shall ensure that all 
Supporting Organizations comply with the requirements set out in this section. 

 
 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 11 of 31 
 
 

ARTICLE 9 
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF PRIVACY  

 
9.1 FIPPA.  The Recipient acknowledges that Public Health Ontario is bound by the 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Ontario) and that any 
information provided to Public Health Ontario in connection with the Project or 
otherwise in connection with the Agreement may be subject to disclosure in 
accordance with that Act. 

 
 

ARTICLE 10 
INDEMNITY 

 
10.1 Indemnification.  The Recipient hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 

the Indemnified Parties from and against any and all liability, loss, costs, 
damages and expenses (including legal, expert and consultant fees), causes of 
action, actions, claims, demands, lawsuits or other proceedings, by whomever 
made, sustained, incurred, brought or prosecuted, in any way arising out of or in 
connection with the Project or otherwise in connection with the Agreement, 
unless solely caused by the negligence or wilful misconduct of Public Health 
Ontario.  

 
 

ARTICLE 11 
INSURANCE 

 
11.1 Recipient’s Insurance.  The Recipient represents and warrants that it has, and 

shall maintain for the term of the Agreement, at its own cost and expense, with 
insurers having a secure A.M. Best rating of B+ or greater, or the equivalent, all 
the necessary and appropriate insurance that a prudent person carrying out a 
project similar to the Project would maintain, including commercial general 
liability insurance on an occurrence basis for third party bodily injury, personal 
injury and property damage, to an inclusive limit of not less than two million 
dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence. The policy shall include the following:  

 
(a) the Indemnified Parties as additional insureds with respect to liability 

arising in the course of performance of the Recipient’s obligations under, 
or otherwise in connection with, the Agreement; 

 
(b) a cross-liability clause;  
 
(c) contractual liability coverage; and 

 
(d) a 30 day written notice of cancellation, termination or material change.  
 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 12 of 31 
 
 

11.2 Proof of Insurance.  The Recipient shall provide Public Health Ontario with 
certificates of insurance pursuant to section 4.1(a), or other proof as may be 
requested by Public Health Ontario, that confirms the insurance coverage as 
provided for in section 11.1.  Upon the request of Public Health Ontario, the 
Recipient shall make available to Public Health Ontario a copy of each insurance 
policy. 

 
 

ARTICLE 12 
TERMINATION ON NOTICE 

 
12.1 Termination on Notice.  Public Health Ontario may terminate the Agreement at 

any time upon giving at least 30 days Notice to the Recipient. 
 
12.2 Consequences of Termination on Notice by Public Health Ontario.  If Public 

Health Ontario terminates the Agreement pursuant to section 12.1, Public Health 
Ontario may: 

 
(a) cancel all further instalments of Funds; 

 
(b) demand the repayment of any Funds remaining in the possession or 

under the control of the Recipient; and/or 
 

(c) determine the reasonable costs for the Recipient to wind down the Project, 
and: 

 
(i) permit the Recipient to offset the costs determined pursuant to 

section 12.2(c) against the amount owing pursuant to section 
12.2(b); and/or 

 
(ii) subject to section 4.12, provide Funds to the Recipient to cover the 

costs determined pursuant to section 12.2(c).  
 
 

ARTICLE 13 
TERMINATION WHERE NO APPROPRIATION 

 
13.1 Termination Where No Appropriation.  If, as provided for in section 4.7, Public 

Health Ontario does not receive the necessary appropriation from the Ontario 
Legislature for any payment Public Health Ontario is to make pursuant to the 
Agreement, Public Health Ontario may terminate the Agreement immediately by 
giving Notice to the Recipient. 

 
13.2 Consequences of Termination Where No Appropriation.  If Public Health 

Ontario terminates the Agreement pursuant to section 13.1, Public Health 
Ontario may:  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 13 of 31 
 
 

 
(a) cancel all further instalments of Funds; 

 
(b) demand the repayment of any Funds remaining in the possession or 

under the control of the Recipient; and/or 
 

(c) determine the reasonable costs for the Recipient to wind down the Project 
and permit the Recipient to offset such costs against the amount owing 
pursuant to section 13.2(b). 

 
13.3 No Additional Funds.  For purposes of clarity, if the costs determined pursuant 

to section 13.2(c) exceed the Funds remaining in the possession or under the 
control of the Recipient, Public Health Ontario shall not provide additional Funds 
to the Recipient.  

 
 

ARTICLE 14 
EVENT OF DEFAULT, CORRECTIVE ACTION AND TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT 

 
14.1 Events of Default.  Each of the following events shall constitute an “Event of 

Default”: 
 

(a) in the opinion of Public Health Ontario, the Recipient breaches any 
representation, warranty, covenant or other material term of the 
Agreement, including failing to do any of the following in accordance with 
the terms and conditions of the Agreement:  

 
(i) carry out the Project;  

 
(ii) use or spend Funds; and/or 
 
(iii) provide, in accordance with section 7.1, Reports or such other 

reports as may have been requested pursuant to section 7.1(b);  
 

(b) the nature of the Recipient’s operations, or its organizational structure, 
changes such that it no longer meets one or more of the applicable 
eligibility requirements of the program under which Public Health Ontario 
provides the Funds; 

 
(c) the Recipient makes an assignment, proposal, compromise, or 

arrangement for the benefit of creditors, or is petitioned into bankruptcy, or 
files for the appointment of a receiver;  

 
(d) the Recipient ceases to operate; and 
 
(e) an event of Force Majeure that continues for a period of 60 days or more.  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 14 of 31 
 
 

 
14.2 Consequences of Events of Default and Corrective Action.  If an Event of 

Default occurs, Public Health Ontario may, at any time, take one or more of the 
following actions: 

 
(a) initiate any action Public Health Ontario considers necessary in order to 

facilitate the successful continuation or completion of the Project; 
 
(b) provide the Recipient with an opportunity to remedy the Event of Default; 
 
(c) suspend the payment of Funds for such period as Public Health Ontario 

determines appropriate; 
 
(d) reduce the amount of the Funds;  
 
(e) cancel all further installments of Funds;  
 
(f) demand the repayment of any Funds remaining in the possession or 

under the control of the Recipient;  
 
(g) demand the repayment of an amount equal to any Funds the Recipient 

used but did not use in accordance with the Agreement; 
 
(h) demand the repayment of an amount equal to any Funds Public Health 

Ontario provided to the Recipient; and/or  
 

(i) terminate the Agreement at any time, including immediately, upon giving 
Notice to the Recipient.  

 
14.3 Opportunity to Remedy.  If, in accordance with section 14.2(b), Public Health 

Ontario provides the Recipient with an opportunity to remedy the Event of 
Default, Public Health Ontario shall provide Notice to the Recipient:  
 
(a) of the particulars of the Event of Default; and 
 
(b) the Notice Period.  

 
14.4 Recipient not Remedying.  If Public Health Ontario has provided the Recipient 

with an opportunity to remedy the Event of Default pursuant to section 14.2(b) 
and: 
 
(a) the Recipient does not remedy the Event of Default within the Notice 

Period; 
 
(b) it becomes apparent to Public Health Ontario that the Recipient cannot 

completely remedy the Event of Default within the Notice Period; or 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 15 of 31 
 
 

 
(c) the Recipient is not proceeding to remedy the Event of Default in a way 

that is satisfactory to Public Health Ontario, 
 
Public Health Ontario may extend the Notice Period, or initiate any one or more 
of the actions provided for in sections 14.2 (a). (c). (d), (e), (f), (g), (h) and (i). 
 

14.5 When Termination Effective.  Termination under this Article shall take effect as 
set out in the Notice. 

 
 

ARTICLE 15 
FUNDS AT THE END OF A FUNDING YEAR  

 
15.1 Funds at the End of a Funding Year.  Without limiting any rights of Public 

Health Ontario under Article 14, if the Recipient has not spent all of the Funds 
allocated for the Funding Year as provided for in the Budget, Public Health 
Ontario may:  

 
(a) demand the return of the unspent Funds; or 
 
(b) adjust the amount of any further instalments of Funds accordingly. 
 

 
 

ARTICLE 16 
FUNDS UPON EXPIRY  

16.1 Funds Upon Expiry.  The Recipient shall, upon expiry of the Agreement, return 
to Public Health Ontario any Funds remaining in its possession or under its 
control.  

 
 

  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 16 of 31 
 
 

ARTICLE 17 
REPAYMENT  

 
17.1 Debt Due.  If: 
 

(a) Public Health Ontario demands the payment of any Funds or any other 
money from the Recipient; or 
 

(b) the Recipient owes any Funds or any other money to Public Health 
Ontario, whether or not their return or repayment has been demanded by 
Public Health Ontario,  

 
such Funds or other money shall be deemed to be a debt due and owing to 
Public Health Ontario by the Recipient, and the Recipient shall pay or return the 
amount to Public Health Ontario immediately, unless Public Health Ontario 
directs otherwise. 
 

17.2 Interest Rate. Public Health Ontario may charge the Recipient interest on any 
money owing by the Recipient at the then current interest rate charged by Public 
Health Ontario of Ontario on accounts receivable. 
 

17.3 Payment of Money to Public Health Ontario.  The Recipient shall pay any 
money owing to Public Health Ontario by cheque payable to the “Ontario Agency 
for Health Protection and Promotion” and mailed to Public Health Ontario at the 
address provided in section 18.1. 

 
 

ARTICLE 18 
NOTICE 

 
18.1 Notice in Writing and Addressed.  Notice shall be in writing and shall be 

delivered by email, postage-prepaid mail, personal delivery or facsimile, and shall 
be addressed to Public Health Ontario and the Recipient respectively as set out 
below:   
 
To Public Health Ontario: 
Public Health Ontario 
480 University Avenue 
Suite 300 
Toronto, Ontario  
M5G 1V2 
Attention:  Vinita Haroun,  
Manager, Research & Ethics 
 
Fax: 416.260.7600 
Email: vinita.haroun@oahpp.ca 

To the Recipient: 
Middlesex-London Health Unit 
50 King Street 
London, ON  
N6A 5L7 
Attention: Christine Preece 
Manager, Family Health Services 
 
Fax: 519.617.0579  
Email: Christine.preece@mlhu.on.ca 

 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 17 of 31 
 
 

18.2 Notice Given.  Notice shall be deemed to have been received:  
 

(a) in the case of postage-prepaid mail, seven days after such Notice is 
mailed; or  

 
(b) in the case of email, personal delivery or facsimile, on the day such Notice 

is received by the other Party. 
 
18.3 Postal Disruption.  Despite section 18.2(a), in the event of a postal disruption: 
 

(a) Notice by postage-prepaid mail shall not be deemed to be received; and 
 
(b) the Party giving Notice shall provide Notice by email, personal delivery or 

by facsimile.   
 
 

ARTICLE 19 
CONSENT BY PUBLIC HEALTH ONTARIO  

 
19.1 Consent.  Public Health Ontario may impose any terms and/or conditions on any 

consent Public Health Ontario may grant pursuant to the Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 20 
SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS 

 
20.1 Invalidity or Unenforceability of Any Provision. The invalidity or 

unenforceability of any provision of the Agreement shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other provision of the Agreement. Any invalid or 
unenforceable provision shall be deemed to be severed. 

 
 

ARTICLE 21 
WAIVER 

 
21.1 Waivers in Writing.  If a Party fails to comply with any term of the Agreement, 

that Party may only rely on a waiver of the other Party if the other Party has 
provided a written waiver in accordance with the Notice provisions in Article 18.  
Any waiver must refer to a specific failure to comply and shall not have the effect 
of waiving any subsequent failures to comply. 

 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 18 of 31 
 
 

 
ARTICLE 22 

INDEPENDENT PARTIES 
 
22.1 Parties Independent.  The Recipient acknowledges that it is not an agent, joint 

venturer, partner or employee of Public Health Ontario and the Recipient shall 
not take any actions that could establish or imply such a relationship. 

 
 

ARTICLE 23 
ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT OR FUNDS 

 
23.1 No Assignment.  The Recipient shall not assign any part of the Agreement or 

the Funds without the prior written consent of Public Health Ontario. 
 
23.2 Agreement to Extend.  All rights and obligations contained in the Agreement 

shall extend to and be binding on the Parties and their respective heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors and permitted assigns. 

 
 

ARTICLE 24 
GOVERNING LAW 

 
24.1 Governing Law.  The Agreement and the rights, obligations and relations of the 

Parties shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Public 
Health Ontario of Ontario and the applicable federal laws of Canada. Any actions 
or proceedings arising in connection with the Agreement shall be conducted in 
Ontario.  

 
 

ARTICLE 25 
FURTHER ASSURANCES 

 
25.1 Agreement into Effect.  The Recipient shall do or cause to be done all acts or 

things necessary to implement and carry into effect the terms and conditions of 
the Agreement to its full extent. 

 
 

ARTICLE 26 
CIRCUMSTANCES BEYOND THE CONTROL OF EITHER PARTY 

 
26.1 Force Majeure Means.  Subject to section 26.3, “Force Majeure” means an 

event that: 
 
(a) is beyond the reasonable control of a Party; and 

 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 19 of 31 
 
 

(b) makes a Party’s performance of its obligations under the Agreement 
impossible, or so impracticable as reasonably to be considered impossible 
in the circumstances. 

 
26.2 Force Majeure Includes.  Force Majeure includes: 

 
(a) infectious diseases, war, riots and civil disorder; 
 
(b) storm, flood, earthquake and other severely adverse weather conditions; 
 
(c) lawful act by a public authority; and 
 
(d) strikes, lockouts and other labour actions, 
 
if such events meet the test set out in section 26.1. 
 

26.3 Force Majeure Shall Not Include.  Force Majeure shall not include: 
 
(a) any event that is caused by the negligence or intentional action of a Party 

or such Party’s agents or employees; or 
 
(b) any event that a diligent Party could reasonably have been expected to: 

 
(i) take into account at the time of the execution of the Agreement; 

and 
 
(ii) avoid or overcome in the carrying out of its obligations under the 

Agreement.  
 

26.4  Failure to Fulfil Obligations.  Subject to section 14.1(e), the failure of either 
Party to fulfil any of its obligations under the Agreement shall not be considered 
to be a breach of, or Event of Default under, the Agreement to the extent that 
such failure to fulfill the obligation arose from an event of Force Majeure, if the 
Party affected by such an event has taken all reasonable precautions, due care 
and reasonable alternative measures, all with the objective of carrying out the 
terms and conditions of the Agreement.    

 
 

ARTICLE 27 
SURVIVAL 

 
27.1 Survival.  The provisions in Article 1, any other applicable definitions, sections 

4.11(b), 5.2, 7.1 (to the extent that the Recipient has not provided the Reports or 
other reports as may be requested by Public Health Ontario to the satisfaction of 
Public Health Ontario), 7.2, 7.3, 7.4, 7.5, 7.6, Articles 8 and 10, sections 12.2, 
13.2, 13.3, 14.1, 14.2 (d), (e), (f) (g) and (h), Articles 16, 17, 18, 20, 24,  27, 28, 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 20 of 31 
 
 

30, 31 and 34, and all applicable cross-referenced provisions and schedules shall 
continue in full force and effect for a period of seven years from the date of expiry 
or termination of the Agreement.  

 
 

ARTICLE 28 
SCHEDULES 

 
28.1 Schedules.  The Agreement includes the following schedules: 

 
(a) Schedule “A” - Project Description and Timelines; 

 
(b) Schedule “B” - Budget;  

 
(c) Schedule “C” - Payment Schedule; and 
 
(d) Schedule “D” - Reports. 

 
 

ARTICLE 29 
COUNTERPARTS 

 
29.1 Counterparts.  The Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
 

ARTICLE 30 
JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY 

 
30.1 Joint and Several Liability.  Where the Recipient is comprised of more than one 

entity, all such entities shall be jointly and severally liable to Public Health Ontario 
for the fulfillment of the obligations of the Recipient under the Agreement. 

 
 

ARTICLE 31 
RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CUMULATIVE 

 
31.1  Rights and Remedies Cumulative.  The rights and remedies of Public Health 

Ontario are cumulative and are in addition to, and not in substitution for, any of its 
rights and remedies provided by law or in equity. 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 21 of 31 
 
 

 
 

ARTICLE 32 
BPSAA  

 
32.1 BPSAA.   For the purposes of clarity, if the Recipient is subject to the BPSAA 

and there is a conflict between any of the requirements of the Agreement and the 
requirements of the BPSAA, the BPSAA shall prevail. 

 
 

ARTICLE 33 
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH OTHER AGREEMENTS 

 
33.1   Other Agreements.  If the Recipient: 
  

(a) has failed to comply (a “Failure”) with any term, condition or obligation 
under any other agreement with Public Health Ontario;  

 
(b)  has been provided with notice of such Failure in accordance with the 

requirements of such other agreement;  
 
(c)  has, if applicable, failed to rectify such Failure in accordance with the 

requirements of such other agreement; and 
 
(d)  such Failure is continuing, 
 

 Public Health Ontario may suspend the payment of Funds for such period as 
Public Health Ontario determines appropriate. 
 

 
ARTICLE 34 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
34.1 Entire Agreement.  The Agreement, together with the attached schedules listed 

in s.28.1, constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to 
the subject matter contained in the Agreement and supersedes all prior oral or 
written representations and agreements. 

 
34.2 Modification of Agreement.  The Agreement may only be amended by a written 

agreement duly executed by the Parties. 
 
 

[Signature page immediately follows] 
  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 22 of 31 
 
 

The Parties have executed the Agreement on the dates set out below. 
 
 

ONTARIO AGENCY FOR HEALTH PROTECTION AND 
PROMOTION 
 
 
_________________________  ________________ 
Name: George Pasut   Date 
Title: VP, Science and Public Health 
 
  
 
 
MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 
 
 
_________________________  ________________ 
Name:     Date 
Position: 
 
 
_________________________  ________________ 
Name:     Date 
Position: 
 
 
I/We have authority to bind the Recipient. 

 
  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 23 of 31 
 
 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND TIMELINES 
 

 
Project Title 
 
Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health 
 
Background 
 
The burden of mental illness and addictions in Ontario is more than 1.5 times that of all 
cancers and more than seven times that of all infectious diseases. The majority of 
mental health problems have their onset during childhood or adolescence. Not only do 
these experiences cause difficulties at their onset, they can disrupt important life 
transitions, developmental milestones and be burdensome throughout one’s lifespan. 
Ontario population health data reflects that children and youth are dealing with 
significant mental health and substance use concerns.  
 
In Ontario, the core business of public health units is illness prevention and health 
promotion. However, a recent survey of Ontario public health units reveals that a 
specific role for public health and health promotion approaches in addressing child and 
youth mental health has not been well articulated at the provincial level. This includes a 
lack of role clarity within the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS) and the provincial 
mental health and addictions strategy. This is a concern, since health promotion, 
prevention, and early identification are critical strategies for reducing the lifelong burden 
of mental illness and addictions.   
 
Despite responding to local mental health needs where possible, public health 
stakeholders in Ontario have identified being ill-prepared to effectively engage in illness 
prevention and health promotion in the area of mental health using evidence-based 
approaches. Overall, public health stakeholders identify a lack of a clear role as a 
barrier to more effectively addressing the mental health of children and youth in their 
communities. 
 
Research Question 
 
What are the evidence-informed areas of focus for child and youth mental health 
promotion initiatives that are consistent with the core principles of Ontario’s public 
health system? 
 
  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 24 of 31 
 
 

Project Objectives  
 

1. To explore existing frameworks and best practices for mental health promotion in 
children and youth aged 0 – 19 years to define areas of focus that align with 
public health principles of need, impact, capacity, partnership, and collaboration. 

2. To explore common assumptions, knowledge, and beliefs of provincial 
stakeholders around priorities and gaps in areas of focus in mental health 
promotion for children and youth aged 0 – 19 years.   

3. Through consultation with public health leaders, confirm alignment of the 
identified key areas of focus with the core principles of Ontario’s public health 
system. 

Scope of Project  
 

1. This project will aim to identify areas of focus for mental health promotion in 
children and youth. These areas of focus will be evidence-informed and shaped 
by provincial stakeholders. The areas of focus will be in alignment with the core 
principles of Ontario’s public health system. 

2. The outcomes from the proposed research may provide the basis for future 
research exploring the application of the areas of focus at the public health unit 
level. 

3. The findings from this study may assist in providing direction to public health 
stakeholders and decision makers across Ontario on how to further incorporate 
mental health promotion into existing public health programs. 

 
Timeline 
 

Milestone 1: Project Administration 
 

Description of Activity:  
Confirm involvement of academic partner and establish clear roles and responsibilities; 
develop role description for the research coordinator; arrange in‐person meeting 
including booking space, lunch and equipment; locate opportunity for NVivo training 
and register; engage transcriptionist; hire research coordinator; and conduct in‐person 
team meeting and delineate sub‐groups and membership roles. 
 

Duration in Weeks: 12  Completion Date: April 18, 2014  
 

  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 25 of 31 
 
 

Milestone 2: Determine process for literature review 
 

Description of Activity:  
Engage library services; finalize scoping review parameters; identify search terms; 
identify relevant academic and grey literature; and develop a process for identifying 
key areas of focus for child and youth mental health from the literature. 
 

Duration in Weeks: 3  Completion Date: March 21, 2014 
 

Milestone 3: Completion of literature search and analysis of literature 
 

Description of Activity:  
Research coordinator, in collaboration with library services, to conduct literature 
search under the guidance of the project team; research coordinator to conduct initial 
review of the literature using the identified process; and project team to analyze 
literature. 
 

Duration in Weeks: 4  Completion Date: April 18, 2014 
 

Milestone 4: Complete research ethics review process 
 

Description of Activity:  
Research coordinator and academic partner, under the guidance of the project team, 
to submit project to an academic research ethics review at Western University; 
research coordinator, under the guidance of the project team, to determine if 
independent health units require separate ethics reviews and submit project to 
relevant health unit research ethics boards. This will include drafting materials for 
recruitment and informed consent (e.g., introduction letter and consent form).  
 

Duration in Weeks: 3  Completion Date: April 11, 2014 
 

Milestone 5: Organize one‐to‐one interviews with provincial stakeholders 
 

Description of Activity:  
Pilot test interview guide and incorporate pilot feedback to finalize guide; Complete 
qualitative interview training with subgroup; revise and distribute introduction letter 
and consent form; and follow up to arrange initial interviews with stakeholders. 
 

Duration in Weeks: 5  Completion Date: May 16, 2014 
 



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 26 of 31 
 
 

Milestone 6: Complete one‐to‐one interviews with provincial stakeholders 
 

Description of Activity:  
Conduct key informant interviews with provincial stakeholders in the location of 
stakeholder’s choice. 
 

Duration in Weeks: 4 
 

Completion Date: June 13, 2014 

Milestone 7: Complete transcription of one‐to‐one interviews 
 

Description of Activity:  
Complete transcription of interviews immediately following each interview (not to be 
transcribed in bulk). 
 

Duration in Weeks: 6 
 

Completion Date: June 27, 2014 

Milestone 8: Complete analysis of one‐to‐one interviews 
 

Description of Activity:  
NVivo research software training; arrange in‐person analysis working group meeting for 
2 days; import data into NVivo software; complete line by line coding with analysis sub‐
committee; complete axial coding and category development/thematic analysis with 
the analysis working group; and return to participants with follow up questions 
subsequent to analysis. 
 

Duration in Weeks: 7 (beginning June 2, 
2014) 
 

Completion Date: July 18, 2014 

Milestone 9: Organize focus groups with public health leaders 
 

Description of Activity:  
Pilot test interview  guide and incorporate pilot feedback to finalize guide; Research 
coordinator, under the guidance of the project team, to organize venues and distribute 
invitations for 7 focus groups; project team to establish buy‐in from their geographic 
locations and follow up with designated public health leaders as appropriate. 
 

Duration in Weeks: 7 
 

Completion Date: September 5, 2014 

  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 27 of 31 
 
 

Milestone 10: Complete focus groups with public health leaders 
 

Description of Activity:  
Conduct 7 focus groups with PHU representatives in each geographic location. 
 

Duration in Weeks: 6 
 

Completion Date: October 17, 2014 

Milestone 11: Complete transcription of focus groups 
 

Description of Activity:  
Engage a transcriptionist and complete transcription of all focus groups. 
 

Duration in Weeks: 6 (beginning 
September 22, 2014) 
 

Completion Date: October 31, 2014 

Milestone 12: Complete analysis of focus groups 
 

Description of Activity:  
Import data into NVivo software; complete line‐by‐line coding with the analysis working 
group; complete axial coding and category development/thematic analysis with the 
analysis working group; and share thematic analysis of all findings with the team and 
discuss KE plans. 
 

Duration in Weeks: 6 
 

Completion Date: December 12, 2014 

Milestone 13: Complete report on research findings 
 

Description of Activity:  
Under the guidance of the project team, research coordinator to complete report on 
research findings 
 

Duration in Weeks: 7 
 

Completion Date: January 30, 2015 

Milestone 14: Knowledge Exchange (KE) 
 

Description of Activity:  
Generate interest and awareness of topic through methods identified in KE plan and 
provide summary report to all 36 Ontario Public Health Units. 
 

Duration in Weeks: 20  Completion Date: June 30, 2015  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 28 of 31 
 
 

 
 

SCHEDULE “B” 
 

BUDGET 
 

CATEGORY AMOUNT 

Personnel $27,300 
Students $0 
Materials and Supplies $3,725 
Services $16,025 
Equipment $5,550 
Travel $16,410 
Knowledge Exchange $5,990 
Other $0 

TOTAL $75,000



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 29 of 31 
 
 

SCHEDULE “C” 
   

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
 

PAYMENT DATE OR MILESTONE AMOUNT 

February 1, 2014 $25,000
July 1, 2014 $25,000
October 1, 2014 $19,010
April 1, 2015 $5,990

  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 30 of 31 
 
 

SCHEDULE “D” 
 

REPORTS 
 
 

Name of Report Due Date 

1. Quarterly Financial Report #1 By June 1, 2014

2. Quarterly Financial Report #2 By September 1, 2014 
3. Interim Activity Report # 1 By September 1, 2014 
4. Quarterly Financial Report #3 By December 1, 2014 
5. Interim Activity Report #2 By March 1, 2015

6. Interim Financial Report #4 By March 1, 2015 

7. Final Activity Report By July 1, 2015 

8. Final Financial Report By July 1, 2015 

9. Reports specified from time to time As specified by PHO 

 
 

Report Details 
 
1. Quarterly Financial Report #1 

This report contains a financial progress update for the first 3 months of the funding period 
(February 1, 2014 – April 30, 2014). 

 
The report will specify actual expenditures/revenues against the approved budget and any 
resulting variances. 

 
2. Quarterly Financial Report #2 

This report contains a financial progress update for the next 3 months of the funding period 
(May 1, 2014 – July 31, 2014). 
 
The report will specify actual expenditures/revenues against the approved budget and any 
resulting variances. 

 
3. Interim Activity Report #1 

This report contains an activity progress update for the first 6 months of the funding period 
(February 1, 2014 – July 31, 2014). 
 
The report will document achievements in relation to the agreed upon objectives and/or 
project requirements in relation to the project timeline. 

  



Transfer Payment Agreement – Identifying Areas of Focus for Mental Health Promotion in Children and Youth for 
Ontario Public Health        Page 31 of 31 
 
 

4. Quarterly Financial Report #3 
This report contains a financial progress update for the next 3 months of the funding period 
(August 1, 2014 – October 31, 2014). 
 
The report will specify actual expenditures/revenues against the approved budget and any 
resulting variances. 

 
5. Quarterly Financial Report #4 

This report contains a financial progress update for the next 3 months of the funding period 
(November 1, 2014 – January 31, 2015). 
 
The financial section will specify actual expenditures/revenues against the approved budget 
and any resulting variances. 

 
6. Interim Activity Report #2 

This report contains an activity progress for the next 6 months of the funding period (August 
1, 2014 – January 31, 2015).  
 
The report will document achievements in relation to the agreed upon objectives and/or 
project requirements in relation to the project timeline. 
 

7. Final Financial Report  
This report contains a financial progress update for the final 5 months of the funding period 
(February 1, 2015 – June 30, 2015). 
 
The financial section will specify actual expenditures/revenues against the approved budget 
and any resulting variances. 

 
8. Final Activity Report 

This report contains an activity progress for the next 6 months of the funding period 
(February 1, 2015 – June 30, 2015).  
 
The report will document achievements in relation to the agreed upon objectives and/or 
project requirements in relation to the project timeline. 
 

 
 

 

 

 


	2014-02-12-agenda-ffc
	2014-01-29-minutes-ffc
	2014-02-12-report-05-14-ffc
	2014-02-12-report-05-14-fcc-appendix-a
	2014-02-12-report-05-14-fcc-appendix-b
	2014-02-12-report-05-14-fcc-appendix-c
	2014-02-12-report-06-14-ffc
	2014-02-12-report-06-14-ffc-appendix-a
	2014-02-12-report-06-14-ffc-appendix-b
	2014PBTSummary
	Section A_OHCDSH Services_Consolidated_V2
	Section B_EHCDP Revised
	Section C_FH Services_Consolidated_V2
	Section D_2014 PBT OMOH_Consolidated
	Section E_FOS Planning and Budget Template
	Section F_hRLRS
	Section G_IT Planning and Budget Template
	Section H_GER PBT

	2014-02-12-report-07-14-ffc
	2014-02-12-report-07-14-ffc-appendix-a
	2014-02-12-report-08-14-ffc
	2014-02-12-report-08-14-fcc-appendix-a
	2014-02-12-report-09-14-ffc
	2014-02-12-report-10-14-ffc
	2014-02-12-report-10-14-fcc-appendix-a
	2014-02-12-report-10-14-fcc-appendix-b



